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THE FEDERAL RESPONSE TO THE AIDS EPI-
DEMIC: INFORMATION AND PUBLIC EDUCA-
TION

MONDAY, MARCH 16, 19587

HouUSE oF REPRESENTATIVES,
HuMAN RESOURCES AND
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE
OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:03 a.m., in room
2154, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Ted Weiss (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Ted Weiss, Barney Frank, and James
M. Inhofe.

Also present: James R. Gottlieb, staff director; Gwendolyn S.
McFadden, secretary; Mary Kazmerzak, minority professional staff,
Committee on Government Operations; and Linda A. Valleroy,
Ph.D.,, congressional science fellow.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN WEISS

Mr. Weiss. Good morning, The Human Resources and Intergov-
ernmental Relations Subcommittee is now in session. We will be
joined by other colleagues as the hearing proceeds.

Since 1981, the Public Health Service has reported almost 32,000
cases of AIDS in the United States. Unknown thousands suffer
from pre-AIDS conditions. Medical experts believe that up to 2 mil-
lion Americans are already infected with the AIDS virus.

Based on the current growth rate of the epidemic, more than
74,000 new cases will be diagnosed in the year 1991 alone.

These numbers only hint at the incredible suffering being en-
dured by those struck down by the disease and by their families
and friends and loved ones.

We have no vaccine to prevent the disease. Effective drugs for
treatment ere not yet in sight, although a few do show some prom-
ise. In light of these facts, it would be a grave mistake for the
American people to relax and assume that researchers will find a
cure for AIDS in the near future.

Public health officials tell us that the greatest hope for stemming
the AIDS epidemic is an aggressive public health education cam-
paign, greater than the United States has ever undertaken. Last
fall, the National Academy of Sciences concurred, emphasizing that
“The most effective measures for significantly reducing the spread
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g£ i . (AIDS) are education of the public and voluntary changes in
vior.”

At about the same time the Surgeon General warned when re-
leasing his excellent report on AIDS last October, “The need (for
education) is critical and the price of neglect is high.”

Today the subcommittee will hold its seventh public hearing on
the Federal response to AIDS. In earlier hearings we have re-
viewed overall AIDS funding, discrimination, patient care, civil
rights, testing and drug development, issues which remain ex-
tremely important. Today, we will focus on Federal efforts to
devise and implement a massive public education campaign.

There are many dedicated Government Public Health Service
geOple attempting to mount an effective education campaign. But,

espite their urging for months, and in some case, for years, of spe-
cific education activities that are needed, they have been unable to
get administration approval even for an overall AIDS information
plan, which has been circulating for months.

In some cases, aggressive Federal activity has been stalled by bu-
reaucratic and interdepartmental fighting, and in other cases, b
contruversies over the content of education materials being devel-
oped by Federal contractors.

Only after this hearing was announced a few weeks ago did a
number of important projects finally begin to start moving at the
Department. Some of these had been stalled for months, like a pro-
posal to hire an ad agency to begin work on a media campaign.
Even with this new initiative, it will probably be another full year
before the mass media campaign begins.

One major stumbling block to Federal efforts is the continuing
dispute over the content of school education- material on AIDS.
While I agree that school curriculum should be locally determined,
the administration must not use this as an excuse to limit the in-
formation local school boards and parents have available to make
those decisions. As the Surgeon General stated, “We can no longer
afford to sidestep frank, open discussions about sexual practices.”

The National Academy of Sciences was forced to conclude last
fall that “The present level of AIDS-related education is woefully
inadequate. It must be vastly expanded and diversified.”

Other countries with many fewer AIDS victims have undertaken
some excellent education campaigns. These will hopefully become
models for the United States.

Fortunately, many local organizations, and public and private of-
ficials have step in to fill the void in Federal efforts. Some of
these, like the American Red Cross, have been supported by grants
from the Public Health Service, but much, much more is needed.

Education, information and the practice of safe behavior are the
only weapons we presently have to stop the spread of the epidemic,
to lessen unnecessary fear and to cease discrimination against
AIDS victims.

Until now, the Federal Goevernment’s information and education
efforts appear to have been, at best, slow and inadequate. Today,
we will attempt to learn why, and try to make sure that everything
which can be done, is being done.

As we proceed and other members arrive, we will afford them
the opportunity to make their opening statements.
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We have a number of panels scheduled. Our first witness, panel
one, will be Dr. David W. Fraser, who is president of Swarthmore
College, a member of ihe Institute of Medicine, and a member of
the Health Care and Public Health Panel of the National Academy
of Sciences Committee on a National Strategy for AIDS.

Dr. Fraser, before we proceed, the tradition and practice of the
subcommittees of the Government Operations Committee is to
swear in the witnesses. Would you please raise your right hand.

Do you affirm that the testimony you are about to give will be
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? Let the
record indicate that the witness answered in the affirmative.

Dr. Fraser. your entire statement, as prepared, will be entered
into the record, without objection.

STATEMENT OF DAVID W. FRASER, M.D., PRESIDENT, SWARTH-
MORE COLLEGE, AND MEMBER, INSTITUTE OF MEDICINE, AND
HEALTH CARE AND PUBLIC HEALTH PANEL OF THE NATIONAL
ACADEMY OF SCIENCES COMMITTEE ON A NATIONAL STRATE-
GY FOR AIDS

Dr. Fraser. Next to the threat of nuclear war, AIDS is fast be-
coming the most important public health problem of the 20th cen-
tury. That importance comes from three facts, that it is likely to
kill 179,000 people in the United States alone by 1991, that it af-
fects especially young adults and, increasingly, children, and that,
although we have no effective drugs to treat it nor vaccine to pre-
vent it, we do know how to prevent the spread of the virus that
causes it.

Education is the one tool that we have for controlling the AIDS
epidemic but up to now it has not been used with near the effec-
tiveness that is called for. I shall try to lay out the case for a cen-
trally coordinated, comprehensive educational program to halt the
spread of HIV, the AIDS virus, via sexual transmission, through in-
travenous drug use and from mother to infant.

HIV is most commonly spread by &2xual intercourse, specifically
anal intercourse and vaginal intercourse. People who are intent on
not catching HIV have several good strategies they can follow.

The surest is to remain in a monogamous relationship that has
been so since 1977 or to abstain from anal or vaginal intercourse
but these strategies are not practical for many people and the
number for whom this advice 18 not helpful grows as each genera-
tion becomes sexually active.

For those people, using a condom during anal or vaginal inter-
course is likely to be very effective. Barring a tear in the condom
the HIV is most unlikely to be transmitted through it, and other
activity during lovemaking, including kissing and oral-genital
intercourse, does not seem to spread the virus.

For couples who become monogamous, the blood test for antibody
for HIV may be very helpful in determining when it is safe to stop
using a condom. If both partners are seronegative 6 months efter
entering into a monogamous relationship, they are on pretty solid
ground to assume that condoms are no longer needed so long as
they have sex oniy with each other.

-
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I should like to emphasize that I am not oﬁ'erixf different advice
for heterosexual and homosexual ple here. All sexually active
people are at risk. The visk of does not derive from sexual
orientation but rather from particular sexual acts, number of part-
ners, and precautions taken or not taken.

To date, educational efforts have clearly been insufficient except
in a few special situations like the gay population of San Francisco
where intense education has been associated with marked changes
in sexual behavior.

One problem is the language used to educate. The Surgeon Gen-
eral has quite appropriately called for blunter, more explicit infor-
mation ut specific sexual acts and specific precautions but
advice continues too often to be vague.

Warnings about “intimate sexual activity” or “exchange of
bodily fluids” do not adequately differentiate between the potential
riskiness of anal and vaginal intercourse and the apparent safety
of, say, mutual masturbation.

We have heard welcome, open talk about condoms in recent
weeks but the utility of condoms needs to be more widely known
and their use encouraged and accepted.

The second most common way for HIV to spread is through the
sharing of needles and syringes by intravenous drug users. Again,
the mechanics of halting virus spread are simple.

If drug users would not share equipment, the virus in the blood
would not be spread this way although spread from infected drug
users to their sexual partners would still be a matter of concern.

Because of the complex psychological and social factors associat-
ed with intravenous drug use, simple dissemination of information
is unlikelg' toﬂ? sufficient to curb spread of HIV in this population.

Public health workers will need to help addicts get off drugs,
to assist them into more stable personal situations, and to help
them take more responsibility for their actions.

A great expansion of methadone maintenance progrars may be
an essential companion to education of drug users about AIDS.

The third biggest educational need has to do with the risk of
transmission of HIV from mother to her infant or fetus. Over 300
cases of AIDS have been reported in children, half of them under 1
year of age. Most of the infants are born to mothers who are intra-
venous drug users themselves, are sexual partners of drug users or
bisexual men or are from countries where the prevalence of HIV
infection is higher in women than it now is in the United States.

But as heterosexual spread of HIV becomes more common, the
number of women of childbearing age who are infected and could
in turn pass HIV on to their children will increase.

We must develop educational programs to identify women at
high risk of HIV infection and, in conjunction with serologic test-
ing as indicated, counsel them about the risks to them and their
children and alternatives open to them such as birth control or
abortion.

In focusing on these three groups in need of education, I do not
mean to indicate that education is not needed elsewhere. Myths
about AIDS need to be dispelled so that people who are infected
are not treated innumanely at work or at school by people who
think erroneously that they might transmit the virus by such daily

v
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activities as shaking hands, sneezing, coughing or sharing of uten-
sils or even by embracing and kissing.

But the emphasis must be on educating people about ways they
can stop HIV transmission through sex, by sharing IV drug para-
phernalia and from mother to child.

I understand that the Centers for Disease Control has been given
a mandate to oversee a national educational program about AIDS.
Concentrating responsibility in that way will be essential for
mounting an effective program but five other elements will also be

necessary.

First, model progrems for education and control must be devel-
oped for use in the States and the money must be provided for put-
ting these model programs in place.

Second, counseling of people at high risk in conjunction with con-
fidential serologic testing is critical. This will require great expan-
sion of counseling and voluntary testing in such places as clinics
for sexually transmitted diseases, IV drug use, and prenatal care.

Third, private physicians must be mobilized to serve as counsel-
ors and educators for all of their patients at risk of AIDS. Profes-
sional medical organizations, like the American Medical Associa-
tion and the American Academy of Pediatrics, and State medical
societies should be leaders in encouraging and focusing the work of
private physicians to alert their patients to the danger and to help
them r- ke responsible choices.

Fourth, special attention must be paid to AIDS education for
young people from junior high school on. By taking the initiative in
developing models for AIDS education in schools and then provid-
ing funds and encouragement for putting them in piace, the Feder-
al Government would indicate how important it is that AIDS edu-
cation be universal, be frank ana begin early.

Fifth, advertising must be used more than it has been. Prime
time television offers an important opportunity to reach a large
portion of the U.S. population with detailed information about
AIDS risk and practical preventive measures. The networks should
be willing to contribute substantially to this effort as part «f their
public trust. Direct mailings, local radio spots and billboards can
also be used imaginatively.

In summary, AIDS education should be pursued with a sense of
urgency and a level of funding that is appropriate for a life-or-
death situation. The total budget for AIDS education and public
health measures from governmental and private sources combined
should approximate $1 billion by 1990.

This represents per capita expenditure equal to that provided by
the State of California for San Francisco in 1986. If we are to slow
the spread of HIV, we must be ready to educate the entire U.S.
population w" "1 the intensity that to date has been reserved for se-
lected high-risk groups.

With a disease that has as long an incubation period as AIDS, we
cannot afford to initiate intensive and sustained control measures,
which means education, only after the disease becomes rampant
everywhere.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Fraser follows:]
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Testimony of David W. Fraser, M.D.
on AIDS Education
House Subcomnittee on Human Resources end Intergovernmental Relations

March 16, 1987

1 am David V. Fraser, President of Swarthmore College, a physician and
on epideniologist. Today I am representing the Hational Academy of Sciences
and the Institute of Medicine, on whose Committee on ¢ National Strategy for

AIDS I served lsst yeer.

Next to the threat of nuclear wsr, AIDS i{s fast becoming the most
{important public health problem of the 20th century. That importsnce comes
from three facts: 1) that it {s likely to kill 179,000 people in the U.5.
alone by 1991 and the epidemic could continue to expand {n the decsdes
aftervards; 2) that {t affects especially young adults and, incressingly,
children snd 3) that, although we have no effective drugs to treat the
underlying disease or veccine to prevent it, we do know how to prevent the

spread of the virus that causes {it.

The pzzallels Jlth nuclear war go somevhat further. At one level we
know how to prevent nuclear wer too -- we could dismantle all nuclear
wespons. But to get asnkind to the point that that might be done is a very
cozplicated matter, requiring concentrated end comprehensive planning and

{mplementation.

Educetion {s the most proaising tool thet we now have for controlling
the AIDS epidemic but up to now {t hss not been used with near the
effectiveness thst {s called for. I shall try to lay out the case for a

centrally coordinated, comprehensive educetion program to helt spread of the
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Fressr -+ AlDS sducstion 2 March 16, 1987

virus that ceusss AIDS, the Hunan lmmunodeficisncy Virus or HIV, vis sexusl

{ntercourss, through intrevenous (1V) drug use snd from mother to i{nfent.

HIV {s most commonly sprssd by sexual intsrcourss, spscificslly enel
intercourss and veginal {ntercourss. Like sll sexually transmitted
disesses, the chences of scquiring it gc up es ones number of sexual
psrtners goss up. And, the risk {s relsted directly to the proportion of

psrtners vho ers infected.

Pasopln who ers intent on not cetching HIV have ssvarsl good stratsgies
thet they can follow. The surest {s to remain ir « monogamous relstionship
thet haes besn 30 since 1977, or to ebatein from enal or ruginel intsrcourss
8ut thess stretegles ere not precticel for many psopls end the nuamber for
who this sdvice {s not helpful constantly grows ss esch nev generstion
bscomes sexually sctivs. For those psopls, using e condon during enal or
veaginal intsrcourse is likely to be ve:ry sffasctive. Barring s tesr in the
condom the HIV {s wost unlikely to by trsnsmitted through it .- end other
activity during love-making, including kiesing send orsl-genital intercourse,
does not sesm to spresd the virus. For couples who become nmonogamous, the
blood test for sntidbody to HIV zmay be vary hslpful in determining when it {s
ssfe to stop using e condom. Most people develop s positive serologic test
for HIV within 6.8 waesks of becoaing infected; on the outside seroconversion
may take 6 mont':. So {f both pertners are seronegstive 6 months sfter
entering into s monogamous relationship, they are on pretty solid ground to
sssume thet condons ers no longer ne~ded so long as they have se- only with

esch other.
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Fraser -- AIDS education 3 March 16, 1987

If a man {s found to be seropositive, he should continue to use a
condom during intercourse. If a woman i{s seropositive, her male partners

should continue to use condoms.

Those who reject monogamy or condoms may still be able to lower their
risk of AIDS considerably by decreasing their number of sexual partners or
by ensuring that the people * th vhom they do have sex are seronegative for

HIV.

I should like to emphasize that I am not offering different advice for
heterosexual and hodosaxual people here. The risk of AIDS does not derive,
it seems, from sexual orientation but rather from particular sexual nctsf
nunbers of partners, and precautions taken or not taken. All sexually
active people are at risk, although that risk will vary (and is varying;
according co the frequency of the infection in the population from which one

chooses <exual partner(s).

Given that the risk of AIDS {s great and growing and that ways to halt
the sexual spread of HIV are pretty straight forward, it fs essentfal that
we find ways to alert people to their risk and inform them of ways that they
can alter their sexual behavior to lower that risk markedly. Efforts to
date have clearly been insufficient except in a few special situations like
the gay population of San Francisco where intense educational efforts hav-
been associated with marked changes in sexual behavior. One problem is the
language that has been used to educate. The Surgeon General has quite

appropriately called for blunter, more explicit information about spescific
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sexual acts and specific precautions but advice continues too often to be
vague. WVarnings about "intimate sexual activity® or "exchange of bodily
fluids® do not adequately differentiate between the potential riskiness of
anal and vaginal intercourse and the apparent safety of, say, mutual
nasturbation. Ve have heard welcome, open talk about condoms in recent
weeks but the utility of condoms needs to be more widely known and their use

encouraged and accepted.

The second most common way for HIV to spread is through the sharing of
needles and syringes by intravenous drug users. Again, the mechanics of
halting virus spread are sfmple. If drug users would not share equipment
the virus {n the blood would not be spread this way, although spread from
infected drug users to their sexual partners would still be a matter of
concern. The importance of educating drug users is especially great because
of the wide differences that now exist in the rate of HIV infection among
drug users in different cities in the U.S. Many people now at high risk of
infectfon can be spared if effective educational efforts can be mounted

quickly, and then sustained.

Because of the complex psychological and social factors associated with
intravenous drug use, simple dissemination of information is unlikely to be
sufficient to curb spread of HIV in this population. Public health workers
will need also to help addicts get off drugs, to assist them into more
stable personal situations, and to help them take more responsibility for
their actions. A great expansion of methadone maintenance programs may be

an essential companion to education of drug users about AIDS.
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The third biggest educational need has to do with the risk of
transaission of HIV from mother to her fetus or infant. Over 300 cases of
AIDS have been reported in children, half of them under one year of age.
Most of the infants are born to mothers who are intravenous trug users
themselves, are sexual partners of drug users or bisexual men, or are from
countries where the prevalence of HIV infection i{s higher in women than it
now {s in the United States. But as heterosexual spread of HIV becomes more
common the number of women of childbearing age who are infected and could in
turn pass HIV ¢ 1 to their children will increase. We must develop
educational programs to identify women at high risk of HIV infection and, in
conjunction with serologic testing as indicated, counsel them about risks to
them and their children and alternatives open to them such as birth control

or abortion.

In focusing on these three groups in need of education, I do not mean
to i{ndicate that education is not needed elsewhere. Myths about AIDS need
to be dispelled so that people who are infected are not treated {nhumanely
at work or at school by people who think (erroneously) that they might
transmit the virus in such daily activities as shaking hands, sneezing,
coughing or sharing of utensils--or even by embracing and kissing. But the
emphasis must be on educating people about ways they can stop HIV
transmissfon through sex, by sharing IV drug paraphernalia and from mother

to child

Ve understand that the Centers for Disease Control has been given a

mandate to oversee a national educatiunal program about AIDS. Concentrating

et
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responsibility in that way will be essential for mounting an effective
program, but other elements will als. he necessary. Suggestions for model
prograns for educatfon and control must be developed for usa in the states,
and the money must be provided for putting those model programs in place.
Experienced representatives of state and local health departments, health
ca%ve providers, educators and potential consumers can help greatly in

advising on the content of these model programs.

The use of serologic testing in conjunction with careful counselling is
likelr to be an important parr of education especially of those in high risk
groups. This will require great expansion of counselling and voluntary
testing in clinics for sexually transmitted diseases, IV drug use, and
obstetrics and gynecology. In all of this work, we must be very careful to
protect the confidentiality of test results {f these ;rograms are to be

effective in reaching those that need them.

Private physicians must be mobiifzed to serve as counsellors and
educators for all of their patients at risk of AIDS. Professional medical
organizations like the American HMedical Association and the Americar
Academy of Pedlatrics, and state medical societies should be leaders in
encouraging and focusing the work of private physicifans *- alert their

patients to the danger and to help them make responsible choices.

Special attention must be paid to AIDS education for young people in
jurfor high schooi, high school and college, many of whom are entering

perious of experimentation with sex and drugs Frank discussion of the risk
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of AIDS and behaviors that do and do not transmit HIV has become an urgent
necessity. CDC could, for example, develop several model curricula for use
{n junior tigh schools, allowing local school boards to select which might
be most appropriate for their particular settings. By taking the
initiative, however, CDC and the Federal government generally would indicate
how imporzant it {s that AIDS education be universal, be frank and begin

early.

A broad and effective educational campa’gn i{s likely to require far
more use of advertising than has occurred to date. Prime tire television
offers an important opportunity to reach a large portion of the J.S.
population with detailed {nformation about AIDS risk and practical
preventive measures. The networks should be willing to contribute
substantially to this effort as part of their public trust. Local radio

spots and billboards can also be used imaginatively

AIDS education should be pursued with a sense of urgency and a level of
furding that i{s appropriate for a life-or-death situation. Greatly expanded

erucational rrograms to effect behavioral change are necessary for high-risk

groups ana the public at large. The total budget for AIDS education and
public health measures from governmental and private sources combined should
approximate $1 billion annually by 1990 This represents per capita
expenditure equal to that provided by the State of California for San
Francisco in 1986. 1If we are to slow the spread of HIV, we must be ready to
educate the ent..e U.S. population with the {nt:nsity that to date has been

reserved for selected high risk groups. With a disease that has as long an

incubation period as AIDS we cannot afford to initiate intensive and

sustaincu control measures -- which means education -- only aftev the .

disease becomes rampant everywhere.
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Mr. Wess. Thank you very much, Dr. Fraser. Before we proceed
with questions, let me take note of the fact that we have been
Jjoined by one of the newest members on the subcommittee and in
the Congress, Mr. Inhofe from Oklahoma. We are delighted to have
you with us. I understand that you have an opening statement that
you would like to give.

Mr. InsoFE. Yes, I do, Mr. Chairman, if 1 may be allowed to
make a brief opening statement. I want to thank you for holding
the hearing on AIDS education and prevention efforts. It is urgent
E_‘l:laii‘ﬁe as Members of Congress work toward stopping this dread-

er.

In my home State of Oklahoma, the number of AIDS cases has
doubled each year since 1983 according to the State health officials
I have personally talked to. By the end of the decade, the disease
could become the No. 2 communicable disease in the State. To date,
there have been 92 reported cases of AIDS and 49 deaths.

Of the reported cases, 25 have occurred in Tulsa, OK, the district
which I represent. Oklahoma health officials estimate that the
number of AIDS cases could top 800 by 1990.

Although these numbers are much lower than most other States,
the spread of AIDS represents a serious threat to all communities.

Today’s tragic reality is that AIDS is continuing to affect more
Americans because many of its victims continue to transmit the
disease because they are unaware that they are carriers of the
virus.

AIDS is no longer confined to homosexuals and drug users but
has been spread to the general population. Recent studies by the
Federal Public Health Service indicate that approximately 9 per-
cent of all new cases of AIDS involve those who contracted the dis-
ease as a result of heterosexual activities.

It is my hope that today’s hearing will make significant progress
in preventative measures to stop the spread of AIDS.

I want to thank you for giving this emphasis on it, Mr. Chair-
man. One of th> myths that kind of spreads around is that only
people on the east coast and the west coast should be concerned
with this problem. In visiting with Bill Dannemeyer prior to going
into session in January, I found that people out in California are
very much concerned.

There seems to be a fear, Mr. Chairman, for people in my part of
the country to address this as being a serious problem. So as an
experiment and I will share this with you, I went back in the third
week in January, and held a news conference just on AIDS and the
threat that it was in a very frontier spirited conservative area like
Tulsa, OK, and let me assure you that it captivated their attention.

I feel very strongly in my limited exposure to the knowledge on
AIDS that it is the greatest life threat in the history of the world. I
am ve.’y, very much concerned about it. So that comes from out in
Oklahoma, and 1 do have a question for Dr. Fraser when the appro-
priate time comes.

Mr. WEiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Inhofe.

Dr. Fraser, you are familiar with the Surgeon General's report
on AIDS, I'm sure.

Dr. Fraser. Yes.

Q
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Mr. Weiss. We will, incidentally, from time to time be placing
the various reports and documents that we refer to in the hearing
record, without objection. If any of the members or any of the wit-
nesses have material which they would like to place in the record,
please 8o indicate and we will try to make that effort.

Are you in general agreement with the findings and recoramen-
dations contained in the report?

Dr. Fraser. Yes. I think in general the U.S. Public Health Serv-
ice has done a remarkable fbb in investigating this ﬁ;gblem and in
identifying ways to control it. I think that more to be done
than has been done. Much of the limitation of that has to do with
iéu:dmagl, but clearly the directions are outlined by the Surgeon

neral.

Mr. WEiss. Are there any areas of serious disagreement between
the National Academy of Sciences’ report and the Surgeon Gener-
al’s report?

Dr. Frasgr. I think the biggest area of contrast is in the concern
of the National Academy and Institute of Medicine Committee that
the education effort be greatly expanded, centrally coordinated and
put forward more assertively than has been the case in the past.
We recognize that many in the U.S. Public Health Service want to
do that same thing but our Committee wanted to emphasize this
even more strongly than the Surgeon General has because there is
so much more to do.

Mr. Weiss. The National Academy of Sciences’ report states that
“education to prevent HIV infection can be strongly expected to
bear results,” especially in view of the serious and fatal nature of
the disease.

What leads you to believe that education will help to prevent
HIV infection?

Dr. Fraser. I think the best evidence of that comes from the gay
vopulations, as in San Fraacisco, where intense efforts have been
put in place by the city, by private voluntary organizations, and by
the State of California, along with help from the U.S. Public
Health Service. There, there has been evidence of changes in
sexual behavior, s evidenced by drops in rectal gonorrhea rates,
indicating changes in sexual behavior in that population.

Mr. Werss. Until recently, relatively little money has even been
requested by the Public Health Service for information/education.
I wonder if this can be connected in any way to the overly optiniis-
tic predictions by the administration several years ago that soon
we would have a vaccine and effective treatment measures.

Is there still a belief :n the administration, do you think, that
one need not worry too much about AIDS because we will soon
have a cure?

Dr. Fraser. There may be members of the administration who
believe that. The scientists with whom I talked believe that, for the
next 5 or 10 years, our emphasis has to be on education because it
is the on!v method we have to halt spread of the virus. Even the
optimists hink that a vaccine will be unavailable for the next 5

years.
Mr. Weiss. The NAS report describing AIDS education to date

states “The present level of AIDS related education is woefully in-
adequate.” Why did the Committee come to that conclusion?
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Dr. Fraser. Well, for example, if we look at one of the major
needs, counseling in conjunction with confidential serologic testing
of high-risk groups, perhaps $40 million has been spent last year on
that activity. I would estimate that the cost of a really adequate
program of counseling and confidential testing of high-risk people
would cost somewhere between $200 and $600 million a year.

It is a major expense to train counselors. There is a high burnout
rate among counselors. There is the need for very careful work be-
tween counselors and high risk people, to make sure that they un-
derstand the way this disease is spread, that they understand the
mechani that are open to them to halt the spread of the disease
and they understand what their own situation is, if they happen to
be infected.

Mr. Weiss. The repor: also states that “If behavior modification
is the goal of education about AIDS, the content of the material
presented must address the behavior in question in as direct a
manner as possible.”

The Surgeon General agreed with that very conclusion. Based on
your experience and the discussions of the NAS Committee, do you
believe that the Federal Government can effectively support frank
and open education efforts?

Dr. Fraser. I think it’s hard for the Federal Government to do
that. I think that the Federal Government has taken some steps to
put some distance between the tendency to be reserved in speech
and the actual decisionmaking about what materials are used at a
local level, but I certainly see a trend toward more frankness, I
think we need much more frankness than we have had to date, not
just talk about condoms but talk about specific sexual acts, as I did
In my testimony.

Mr. Weiss. Why did the Committee believe that only the Federal
Government was situated “to develop and coordinate a massive
campaign to implement the educational program”?

Dr. Fraser. The Federal Government has been superb in my
view and I think in the view of all members of the Committee in
pursuing the scientific aspects, the epidemiologic aspects and the
virological research that has been necessary. It is in a uaiquely
strong position to provide publicity about the need for education
and adequate funding throughout the United States, not just in
States where there is already the perception of a very high risk,
like California or New York, but :u: States where the perception is
that the risk is not so immediate.

We need to have education put in place intensively now in high-
and low-risk areas. I do not see ti.e central drive for that coming
efficiently anywhere from any source other than the Federal Gov-
ernment.

Mr. Weiss. The Public Health Service has been working on what
they call an AIDS information/education plan for many months.
Have you, or to your knowledge, any of the National Academy of
Sciences’ Committee members been asked to assist in the drafting
or review of the Public Health Service plan?

Dr. Fraser. I have not been asked and I don’t know of other
people who have been asked.

Mr. Wess. Have ;ou seen the proposed plan?

3 20




16

Dr. Fraser. No. I have talked to people who have seen it but I've
not seen it myself.

Mr. Wess. The NAS Committee expressed serious concerns
about the Centers for Disease Control’s directive, requiring local
review boards to determine whether materials developed for AIDS
education were too explicit, the so-called “dirty words” issues. Why
is thi?s a problem and who do you think should make these deci-
sicns

Dr. Fraser. I think there are different sensitivities about the use
of exl‘Plicit information. I think it has traditionally been difficult for
the Federal Government to impose educational standards on local
areas. The U.S. Public Health Service has worked hard not to in-
trude on State responsibility and local responsibility in this area.

AIDS is a problem that I think pushes us up to the limit of what
is appropriate. I think it would be quite useful for the CDC to de-
velop educational information perhaps in two or three different
forms with various degrees of explicitness that would be appropri-
ate perhaps for different age groups as well as for different popula-
tions and offer that range of educational material to the State and
local authorities who could pick out what seemed to be most appro-
priate for the groups they were educating.

Mr. Wriss. I gather that the NAS Committee felt a great concern
about having all this work J)repared, and then having the local
review board negate what had been developed.

Dr. Fraser. I think we did worry about that but we also worried
on the other side about what would happen if the CDC worked out
one set of educational material which was then objectionable to
local educational and health authorities. We did not want to lose
the opportunity to have the fullest education of all populations at
risk and were willing to consider a variety of ways that could be
effective.

Mr. Wess. Directly following the expression of concern that I
quoted, the next line is “The result of such a process . . . ” that is
the local review board process, “could be to cut off frank, explicit
information from areas where it is needed the most, in regions out-
side those urban centers that have large concentrations of homo-
sexual men and IV drug users, where awareness of the specifics of
HIV transmission is already high.”

Do you agree with that?

Dr. Fraser. I do agree with that and I think that to have local
review can have that effect, but I think with central leadership
from the Federal Government, going further than the Surgeon
General has in talking about the importance of bluntness, we can
create an environment in which it is all right to talk about sex,
and it is all right to talk about behaviors that will prevent the
transmission of HIV.

That's the kind of leadership that I think the Federal Govern-
ment can give. That doesn’t mean that the Federal Government
need prescribe every letter of the text that is used in schools or
with high-risk populations.

Mr. Weiss. It is generally recognized that the private sector must
play a major role in AIDS educatior. In fact, some, such as the
American Council of Life Insurance in conjunction with the Red
Cross, have done so in the past.
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Does the Academy, or do you, have any suggestions on promoting
an expansion of private efforts?

Dr. Fraszr. Well. certsinly looking at those areas where AIDS
wducation has besa ;cod. piivate organizations have contributed
mightily to the work in San Francisco or New York. There are pri-
vate medical groups that we think could do more. The American
Medical Aseociatic., I think, could have a wxajor effect in educating
physicians and in focusing their work on providing proper educa-
tion to all of their patiente who are at risk of AIDS. This is a whole
Ko ulatigﬁigg counselors that the private .nedical commur:ity could

elpm .

l\gr. Wess. Have there been efforts to involve the medical asso-
ciations in the overall effort?

Dr. Fraser. There have been some. I don’t think they have been
as comprehensive or as effective as they could be.

Mr. Wess. Up te now, public service announcements have been
the primary vehicle used to do what little education has been done.
Is this sufficient to reach the people that are the targets in the
education campaign?

Dr. Frasex. I think not. They tend to be brief. They tend to ka
out of prime time, They do not necessarily reach the broad range of
U.S. population including high-risk groups that need to be reached.
I think we need a far more comprehensive advertising cam?axgn
involving extensive time in prime time, involving direct mailings,
involving radio spots and billboards. All of these are likely to com-
plement each other in providing for a much more effective out-
reach to high-risk groups.

Mr. WEiss. The ree;l)ort notes the extremely high costs involved in
the use of mass media, such as newspaper, TV and radio >dvercis-
ing, yet reflects that private sector companies are willing *o spend
$30 to $50 million to introduce a new camera cr a new dev:gent.
Those efforts are judged successful if they produce a modes- _hift
in behavior.

How much advertising do you think will be needed to inlaence
the behaviors that spread AII§S?

Dr. Fraser. It’s very hard to sag' nationally. In San Frar.cisco,
the average expenditure in 1986 y the State of Californix was
about $5 per person for all educational and public health activities.
That incltl}lld \ a fair amount of advertising. A com rehengi‘; camI
paign without my suggesting who act y pays for it, use
thinx the networks ought to be willing to provide & large propo:-
tion of it free, might cost in the area of $100 million a year.

Mr. Wess. The report indicated that by the year 1991 there
should be about $1 billion a year provided for tofal public educa-
tion, mass education programs, from a variety of sources, public
and private.

The report also said that the major portion of this totsl should
come from Federal sources because only the national agencies are
in the ition to launch coordinated efforts commensurate with
the problem. Even then it is possible that the amounts envisaged
by the NAS Committee will not be sufficient to stem the increase
in the disease.

Do you agree with those conclusions?

Dr. Fraser. Yes; I do.
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Mr. Wriss. Does the National Academy of Sciences have any type
of ongoing review of AIDS? .

Dr. Fraskr. The National Academy of Sciences’ Institute of Med-
icine Committee has not met since its report was released at the
end of last fall. It has, however, seen great value in, aud discusses
in its report the value of, continuing to have oversight. To my
knowledge, the next stage has not been taken in that process.

Mr. Wrss. Do you think that the NAS would be willing to under-
take a continuing advisory role, such as a Federal contract, to re-
quire annual detailed reports and recommendations, such as the
1986 report that you issued?

Dr. Yes. I think the National Academy of Sciences and
the Institute of Medicine feel an ongoing responsibility to help in
overseeing, altho\tl‘gh not directing, of course, the ongoing Federal,
State, and local efforts.

Mr. Wrss. Thank you. )

We have been joined, since opening the hearing, by our distin-
ﬁhd colleague from Massachusetts, Mr. Frank, and we welcome

im to this hearing. He has played a very important role in the
o oin%ll.;e:{'ings that this committee has conducted over the years.

. do you have an opening statement or any comments

or ﬁl: ions?
. FRaNK. Thank you.

Dr. Fraser, I'm sorry that I missed part of your statement, but I
read it through as I was sittinigsere.

One question that I have to do with areas that fo}: had
touched on by Mr. Weiss. It seemed to me—and I'll be asking our
friends from here—that Dr. Koop, who is, I thought, well in-
tentioned, thoughtful, on tho right track, got somewhat slowed
down when he to sign a ‘reaty with Secretary of Education
Bennett on the question of educstion, and it seemed to me that Dr.
Koop’s thoughtful and well-info'med direction was somewhat de-
terred by Mr. Bennett’s deciding to ideolggioze it.

And I will ask the people fror HHS about that, and not expect
them to answer me, bat I will ask them.

But I did want to ask you, without commenting—well, let me ask
you specifically—you saw the statement that was issued as a result
of the Koop/Bennett meeting, which I think was initiated by
people outside of the administration.

Dr. Fraser. I have heard about it. I have not seen it.

Mr. Frank. All right. Well, it seemed to me to move the ed'ica-
tional efforts away from explicitness, et cetera. Do you think that
was helpful?

Dr. Fraser. I think it's extremely important that the educational
effort be explicit, and I strongly favor the direction that the Sur-
geon General has gone in suggesting that language be blunt, that
we talk about specific sexual acts, and that we talk about specific
wal_vs that people can keep from spreading the HIV.

would be very disappointed if we retreated into euphemisms.

Mr. Frank. I think that's not just euphemisms that we're talking
about, but we're retreating into, it seems to me, not discussing
some things, as I understood what Mr. Bennett was trying to do.

I guess, as I understand, what Mr. Bennett seems to be doing,
and some others, is that they believe that the education we do
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should have a dual purpose, that it should be to inculcate values—

in fact, Mr. Bennett's values and Mr. Meese’s--and that education

which suggested that behavior that Mr. Bennett doesn’t approve of
ight be carried out would be wrong.

I'm wondering what you think, and specifically what, as I under-
stand it now—let me leave aside Mr. Bennett for now—but there
are people wha argue that any education ought to be based on tell-
ing people that they should be monogamously heterosexual, and
then—if they are married, and if they are not married, they should
abstain from sex, and that those should be essential elements of
AIDS educntion.

lIl wondler tlvg?:h youshthulinkd ba:o‘;tg:;ed AIDSnl educati::gte that would
tell people ey sho e only in sex r marriage
and no other kind? ’you think that will be an effective education
program for the of AIDS that is sexually transmitted?

Dr. Fraszr. I don’t think it will have the degree of effectiveness
that we just have to have in an AIDS education program. I think
we have to reach out to I?IHV people in our country w4¢ are at rigk of
spreading or acquiring .

Mr. hlmx%ell, I think we should stress—

Dr. Fraszr. To do that, we cannot proscribe certain activities,
and we acﬁnnot lwmi off certtain;g np;lﬁ. We must b'% tlsg educa-
tion to people who are at hi recognizing that there are
differences in sexual behavior and sexual orientation. We must be
helpful to the people whom we’~e serving, not condemning of cer-
tain actions.

Mr. Frank. Well, I must say, of all the things I would like to see
members of the President’s Cabinet doing, dp‘roscribing sexual prac-
tices for Americans without regard to health effects, seems to me—
it’s very low on my list, so I would like them to concentrate on the
healvh effects.

I mean, if they are that interested in other things, then they
ought to—maybe Secretary Bennett should go be the MC on “The
Dating Game,” but he ought not—{laughter]—but he ought not to
interfere, it seems to me, with et¥orts to save people’s lives.

You're a college president. How' effective, aiming at the college
population with which you are particularly familiar at Swarthmore
and an alumnus of which is making big political news in Massa-
chusetts these days, as you know, but how effective would this type
of education which, as I understand it, basically says that the thing
you should tell particularly unmarried college students of any
sexual orientation is that the best way for them is to abstain and
that information should heavily counsel abstention from any
sexual activity and sheuld not in any way suggest that it was okay
io engage in any form of sexual activity?

Would you find that to be a particularly effective way of trans-
mitting information to the college students with whom you're fa-
miliar?

Dr. Fraseg. I would find that quixotic. I think it is fine to tell
people that the way to lower their risk the most is to abstain from
sex. It's probably true.
mﬁr' FRANE. No one doubts that. I don’t think anyone doubts
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Dr. Fraszr. But that is not practical advice for the large ma'g:)ri-
ty of people, including a large pro rtion of college students. So I
want to be more helpful to our students than such advice would be.

Mr. Franx. Well, I notice in your own statement, you, I thin
talk about monogamy and that that’s the safest way, if you're
guing to be having sex, and I don’t think—and I'm glad you said
that—no one is doubting that abstention is the safest. But the ques-
tion is whether that is sufficient unto itself as advice. And I guess
the question basically has been answered by what you say.

I agree very much with what you say, and I think we ought to be
clear that we are talking about people in the executive branch of
the administration and the executive branch of the Federal Gov-
ernment, who I think are, for ideological reasons, interfering with
the most effective form of education.

It seemed to be very clear that Dr. Koop, on his own, was going
in a better direction until he was presumably directed by higher

litical authority—unfortunately not higher medical authority—

igher political authority and lower medical authority to water
down his efforts, and I think that is unfortunate.

I thank you.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Frank.

Mr. Inhofe.

Mr. INHOFE. Dr. Fraser, I think it probably would be more appro-
priate to explore this with another witness, who is more directly
involved in the other concerns, other than just educaiion. But in
terms of—do you have any comments or thoughts about the vari-
ous State laws that might be inhibiting the research and develop-
ment because of protecting privacy or any other banner under
which they are passing laws to inhibit the transfer of information
to make a more effective research and development program, inso-
far as the AIDS virus is concerned?

Dr. Fraser. I think there is a very thorny issue having to do
with protecting confidentiality of information about serologic test-
ing for HIV. I don’t have an answer for what would be most appro-

riate.

The poles of the ent are, I'm sure you well know, that on
one hand public health authorities need to know who is infected, if
they are going to pull together the information and attack the
problem in as effective a way as they could.

On the other hand, if there is any thought that the confidential-
ity of such information would be reached, then people with the
greatest need to know their own infection status and to modify
their behaviors would be likely to refrain from being tested out of
fear that those results would become public.

A number of States have wrestled with what kind of State law to
have about reporting or not reporting, and they disagree.

Mr. Innore. Yesterday, 1 read something rather alarming that
came out of, I think, Ascension, out of Paraguay, concerning the
mosquito being a vector of this. I know that this is not to be dis-
cussed, and this isn't gour end of it, but I just wondered if you
heard—that was over the weekend—there was a release concerning
that. Did you read that by any chance?

Dr. Fraser. No. And it's certainly not my area.

Mr. InnorE. Yes, OK, fine. you.
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Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Inhofe.

You have not heard any evidence that, in fact, this disease is
transmitted by moequitos, have tg;ou?

. Dr. Fraser. No. And 1 think the probability of that is very small,
Elven the concentration of virus in the blood and the amount of
lood that is carried by mosquitos.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much. Thank you, Dr. Fraser, for ap-
pearing and sharin? your knowledge with us.

Our second panel will consist of Federal agency officials, and I
want to welcome all of them.

First, we have Dr. Robert E. Windom, our distinguished Assist-
ant Secretary for Health, Department of Health and Human Serv-
ices, accompanied by other Public Health Service officials, who he
will introduce.

Dr. Windom, Dr. Dowdle, Dr. Noble, and the other distinguished
members of the panel, as you know, we ask our witnesses to swear
or affirm to the truth of their testimony. So would you all please
stand to be sworn?

Do you affirm that the testimony you are about to give is the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

you. Let the record indicate that all of the witnesses have
replied in the affirmative.

Windom, your entire statement will be entered into the
record as submitted to us, and you can then proceed as you deem
most appropriate. We would appreciate it if you could limit your
oral presentation to 10 minutes, if possible.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT E. WINDOM, M.D., ASSISTANT SECRE-
TARY FOR HEALTH, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, ACCOMPANIED BY DR LOWELL HARMISON,
DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH; DR. WALTER R.
DOWDLE, DEPUTY DIRECTOR [AIDS), CENTER FOR INFECTIOUS
DISEASES, CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL; DR. JUAN RAMOS,
DEPUTY DIRECTOR FOR PREVENTION AND SPECIAL
PROJECTS, NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF MENTAL HEALTH; DR.
ROY PICKENS, GIRECTOR OF CLINICAL RESEARCH, NATIONAL
INSTITUTE OF DRUG ABUSE; DR. GARY NOBLE, AIDS COORDI.
NATOR, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE- R. SAMUEL MATHENY, DI
RECTOR, AIDS OFFICE, _UREAY *FROURCES AND DEVEL-
OPMENT, HEALTH RESOUR~ . "ICES ADMINISTRA-
TION; DR. JAMES HILL, ASS1  NT i:v THE DIRECTOR, NIAID:
AND HARELL LITTLE, CHIEF, b. SET BRANCH, OASH

Dr. WiNpoM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of the
committee. I am pleased to have this opportunity to discuss the
Public Health Service’s response to the Acquired Immune Deficien-

Syndrome epidemic and the emphasis on education and preven-
tion activities.

With me today are Dr. Lowell Harmison, Deputy Assistant Secre-
tary for Health; Dr. Gary Noble, the Public Health Service AIDS
Coordinator; Dr. Walt Dowdle, the Deputy Director of the Centers
for Disease Control; Dr. Juan Ramos, NIMH Deputy Director for
Prevention and Special Projects, Dr. Roy Pickens; Dr. Samuel
Matheny; Dr. James Hill; and Mr. Harell Little.
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1 will now summarize my testimony, Mr. Chairman.

In a few short years, has grown from a rare and unusual
health problem to an epidemic of IS&SM proportions; it is expected
to continue to grow. More than 31,000 cases of AIDS have been re-
ported to date. Already 16,000 of these patients have died. It is esti-
mated that by *lie end of 1991, the cumulative total of AIDS cases
iln t:llfsUnited ttetes will reach 270,000 and result in nearly 180,000

eaths.

Statistics will show that in 1986, AIDS became one of the top 10
leading causes of potential life loss. Cases of AIDS have been re-

rted in all 50 States, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, and the
trust territories.

Although the mejority of cases continue to occur among hom- -
gexual and bisexual men and intravenous irug abusers, the infec-
tion is also spreading among non-IV-drug-abusing heterosexuals
and from infected mothers to newborn infants. Nearly 1,20 cases
of heterosexual transmission and more than 450 cases of DS in
children have been reported.

In addition, most infected IV drug abusers are heterosexual and
can spread the virus by their sexual contacts.

There is no vaccine against AIDS and only a few drugs with very
limited therapeutic potential. Complicating the icture is the fact
that infected persons are capable of spreading the virus to others
for years before experiencing the signs or symptoms of AIDS. At
this time, information and education, which provide opportunity
for individuals to eliminate or to reduce high-risk behavior, are the
onll%'_ means we have to prevent the spread of AIDS infection.

om the beginning, providing information has been an impor-
tant part of our work. Our early efforts concentrated on the dis-
semination of scientific information to America’s health communi-
ty. Recently there have been significant changes in the direction
and momentum of these efforts. Eighteen months ago, among our
primary concerns were the safety of our blood supplies and the pro-
vision of alternate testing sites for people who believed they may
have been exposed to the AIDS virus. Sinc. .hen, safeguards have
been put in place to ensure the safety of our blood supply. The al-
ternate test sites have become a nationwide counseling and testing
program, and AIDS health education and risk reduction programs
are now in place across the Nation.

The report of the Public Health Service meeting in Coolfont,
WYV, last June and the Surgeon General’s report on AIDS that was
issued in October together mark the beginning of a more intense
phase in our information and education efforts.

Withiu the Public Health Service, I have taken steps to enhance
the effectiveness of our fight gainst AIDS. I have strengthened the
position of the Public Health Service AIDS Coordinator. I have con-
tinued to rely on the Public Health Service Executive AIDS Task
Force and its work by a series of subgroups, one of which focuses
on information, education, and health education risk reduction. I
have assigned lead agency responsibility for this activity to the
CDC, and they now chair that subgroup.

CDC's Director, Dr. James on, has also taken steps to
strengthen the management of AIDS activities. Also we initiated a
Federal Coordinating Committee on AIDS Information, Education,
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and Risk Keduction, which brings together Federal officials to co-
ordinate the Federal Government’s AIDS information and educa-
tion efforts. I serve as Chairman of that Committee.

At my direction, the CDC is coordinating the development of the
information education plan to prevent and control AIDS in the
United States. This is a comprehensive Public Health Service plan
for informing and educating the American pettagle about AIDS. The
plan specifies the audiences to be addressed, the basic elements of
AIDS information ard education, and the outline of strategies by
which this education can be accomplished.

The plan draws upon the knov;;lﬁdsge and experience the Public
Health Service has gained since was first recognized, and it
incorporates the contributions of many experts in the PHS agen-

cies.

Successful implementation of this plan depends upon action and
collaborative efforts among State, county, and municipay ~~very-
ments, professional and service organizations, the private sector,
and the Federal Government.

From 1983 through 1986, the PHS spent $40 million to inform
and educate the public in groups at high risk of acquiring the in-
fection. In fiscal dyeau- 1987, we .ve planning to spend more than
$79.5 million and in fiscal Kz‘ar 1988 more than $103.9 million.
However, it is expected that funds appropriated by Congress in any
given year for information and education will be multiplied many-
fold by the efforts and resources of the pub¥ic, other public agen-
cies, and the private sector. This combineg operative effort over
the long term will have a much greater im .ct on changing public
behavior than the efforts of the Federal Government alone.

Under the plan, our efforts are targeted to certain populations.
The first is the general public.

A second is the special population of school- and college-aged
youth. Schools, colleges, and family institutions provide an effective
channel for appropriately instructing the young people of our
Nation about AIDS before and as they reach the ages when they

ight practice behaviors that put them at risk of infection.

third target population is those persons at increased risk or
who are infected. Qur highest priority is informing and educating
those groups at increased risk of acquiring or transmitting the
virus because of certain behaviors or circumstances, such as
homosexual and bisexual men, IV drug abusers, hemophiliacs,
female sex partners of those at risk, and prostitutes and their cli-
ents.

The fourth target pOﬁulation is our Nation’s health workers.
Members of this group have direct responsibility for patient care
and for counseling AIDS patients, persons with laboratorv evidence
of infection, or other concerned persons. They will provide leader-
ship in informing and educating the public.

I will highlight the activities that are being directed toward each
of these populations.

Now that we have taken steps to protect our blood supply, we
will be concentrating on preventing the sexual transmission of the
AIDS virus and preventing the transmission of AIDS among IV
drug abusers. Primary Federal responsibility for this aspect lies
within the . Information and education efforts to prevent the
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sexual transmission of AIDS will encompass a number of major ac-
tivities. This fiscal year, we are planning to conduct a national
public information campaign.

In September 1986, an AIDS hotline service was expanded to a
full 24 hours daily operation. We are continuing to distribute our
Public Health Service public service announcements, as well as
publications and materials prepared in collaboration with the
American Red Croes and other organizations. To date, we have dis-
tributed about 325,000 copies of the Surgeon General’s Report on

This fiscal year, we will be establishing a National AIDS Infor-
mation Clearinghouse in order to manage and handle the many
publications regarding AIDS prevention and control. We plan to
bring together major public and private sector organizations that
are currently actively involved in the fight against AIDS and solic-
it their contribution to the Nation’s effort to stem the epidemic.

Working at community levels, NIDA, the National Institute of
Drug Abuse, is utilizing mass media_and special print media to
inform their special target audiences. Local communities are being
encouraged to undertake public education programs. V. : are work-
ing with the entertainment community to encourage the industry
to undertake activities to educate the public.

A national toll-free telephone has been established which directs
drug abusers to treatment programs in their communities. This
hotline service has been promoted in advertising which promotes
treatment for intravenous drug abusers. The drug hotline is linked
also to our AIDS hotline.

Schools efficiently can inform 90 to 95 percent of young people
about the dangers of AIDS and how to avoid becoming infected.
The 5 percent of children who do not attend school may be at even
greater risk and will require special efforts through mechanisms
other than schools if they are to be reached by our efforts.

In 1987, we are initiating a comprehensive school health educa-
tion program. To supplement the Stete and local efforts, we will be
working with national organizations to help schools provide effec-
tive AIDS education. To round out our program, we will be under-
taking a number of other activities designed to assist State and
local education agencies, such as establishing an annotated, com-
puterized bibliography of relevant AIDS education materials, sum-
marizing the private sector development of effective school health
education materials, assessing the impact of national, State, and
local efforts, and establishing a national coalition for AIDS school
health education.

Prevention and control of AIDS will depend upon successfully in-
terrupting the transmission of the virus among those persons
whose behaviors or their circumstances put them or others at risk
of infection. The major element of our efforts to prevent sexually
transmitted AIDS is the provision of assistance to the States in
conducting AIDS prevention programs, which include health educa-
tion risk reduction programs and counseling ard testing.

Currently, we are funding six demonstration projects designed to
implement and evaluate intensive comnunity level programs to
prevent the transmission of HIV infection. Two of the projects have
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program elements directed toward reaching minority populations
at risk.

CDC, working with the Health Resources and Services Adminis-
tration [HRSA] and the National Hemophiliac Foundation, is sup-
porting the development and delivery ofP health education and risk
reduction counseling programs for hemophiliacs.

We will be continuing our joint venture with the Conference of
Mayors that is designed to help stimulate information and educa-
tion programs at the community level. In 1987, we will be initiat-
%:f pilot projects to develop and test approaches to prevent perina-

transmission of the AIDS virus.

The two major problems confronting this area of public health
are (1) how to reach uninformed groups—adolescents, ethnic mi-
norities, drug abusers, and women—with the message on risk re-
duction, and (2) how to surmount resistance of persons toward
changing their behavior. Thus, the National Institute of Mental
Health also has funded research into these areas.

Targeted AIDS community demonstrations will be awarded as
demonstration research contracts that focus on specific prevention
initiatives. Health workers also will be stimulated and involved to
belp decrease the risk of transmitting the virus to others; they also
represent a major channel for providing adequate AIDS informa-
tion.

NIDA'’s educational activities are focused on providers who come
in contact with drug abusers, such as drug abuse treatment pro-
gram staff, pri health providers, and social service personnel.
Emphasis is placed on biilding State and local training capacity,
developing educational and training materials, and training train-
ers to facilitate such capacity building.

The National Institute of Mental Health is striving to overcome
a_ shortfall of funding for academic institutions throughout the
Nation to train all types of AIDS health care providers to recog-
nize, refer, or treat the mental health elements of this disease.

The National Institute of Dental Research is developing posters
and leaf'ets for use in dental offices, clinics, and schools to increase
awareness of the need for the use of barrier techniques for dental
care providers.

In fiscal year 1987, HRSA will award grants to develop three re-
gional AIDS Education and Training Centers to provide education
and training for health care providers. HRSA is also supporting

service demonstration projects in New York, San Francisco,
Los Angeles, and Miami, which provide extensive information re.
lated to the prevention of further spread of the AIDS virus.

CDC has engaged in a wide varie% of activities, ranging from the
issuance of guidelines in the to distributing slide series in
response to nearly 4,000 requests.

In conclusion, sir, I have been hi hlighting the work of our
Public Health Service agencies, and I am proud to be associated
with all these dedicated people in the Public Health Service who
R%escommitted so much personal effort to the battle to prevent

But it must be emphasized that we are not working in isolation.
We must recognize the role that the media has played in helping to
create the information base among our population upon which we
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will be able to build, and it is important that we recognize the hard
work and the invaluable efforts of the many voluntary organiza-
tions that have been such a major part of this national effort to
deal with this modern-day scourge.

As I stated at the onset, to meet the AIDS challenge will require
an all-out effort by the whole of our society.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My colleagues and I will be happy to
help answer questions that you may have.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Windom follows:}
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee-

I am pleased to have this opportunity to discuss the public Health Service's
(PHS) response to the acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) epidemic with

emphasis on education and prevention activities

With me today are Dr. Lowell Harmison, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Health,
Dr. Gary Noble, the PHS AIDS Coordinator, Dr. Walter R. Dowdle, Deputy
Director (AIDS), Centers for Disease Control (CDC); Dr Juan Ramos, Deputy
Diraector for Prevention and Special Projects, NIMH; Dr. Roy Pickens, Director
of Clinical Research, NID® Tr. Samuel Matheny, Director, AIDS Office, Bureau
of Resources and Development, HRSA; Dr James H1ll, Assistant to the Director,
NIAID; and Mr. Harell Little, Chief, Budget Branch, OASH.

In & few short years, AIDS has grown from a rare and unusual health problem to
an epidemic of major proportions It is expected to continue to grow. More
*nan 31,000 cases of AIDS have been reported to date; 16,000 of these patients
have already died. It is estimated that by the end of 1991 the cumulative
total of AIDS cases 1n the United States will reach 270,000 and result in
nearly 180,000 deaths. In 1985, AIDS became the eleventh leading cause of
potential years of life lost before the age of 65 and, when the data has been
compiled on all other diseases, the statistics will show that in 1986 it
became one of the top ten leading causes of potential life lost. Cases of
AIDS have been reported in all 50 States, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, and

the Trust Terratories.
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Although the majority of cases continue to occur among homosexual and bisexual
men and intravenos drug abusers, the infection is also spreading among non~IV
drug abusing heterosexuals and from infected mothers to newborn infants.
Nearly 1,200 cases of heterosexual transmission and more than 450 cases of
AIDS in children have been reported. In addition, most infected 1V drug

abusers are heterosexual and can sprexd the virus by their sexual contacts.

There is no vaccine against AIDS and only & few drugs with very limited
therapeutic potential. Complicating the picture is the fact that infected
persons are capable of spreading the virus to others for years before
experiencing the sign+ or symptoms of AIDS. At this time, information and
education, which provide opportunity for individuals to eliminate or reduce
high-risk behavior, are the only means we have to prevent the spread of AIDS

infections.

From the beginning, providing information has been an important part of our
work. Our early efforts concentrated on the dissemination of scientific
information to America's health community. For example, COC has published

22 recommendations and guidelines since 1981, and the National Institutes of
Health (NIH) has spensored through the National Institute of Alleray and
Infectious Diseases (NIAID) 10 large AIDS related conferences for health care
professionals and support personnel. They have collaborated with & number of
professional societies by sponsoring workshops on AIDS during national or
regional meetings, and two international conferences on AIDS have been held,

and & third is planned for 1987,

':7 A

RIC

74-444 O - 87 - 2




E

O

RIC

30

Recently there have been significant changes in direction and momentum to the
efforts. Eighteen months &go, among our primary concerns were the safety of
our blood supplies and the provisior of alternate testing sites for people who
believed they may have been exposed to the AIDS virus. Since then safeguards
have been put in place to ensure the safety of our tlood supply; the alternate
test sites have become a nationwide counseling and testing program; and ¢:DS
health education/risk reduction (HE/RR) programs are in place across the
Nation. We now have further evidence that AIDS is not just a disease of white
homosexual males. It is spread heterosexually; it is being transmitted by
mothers to their infants; and it is occurring disproportionately among Blacks

and Hispanics.

The report of the PHS meeting in Coolfont, West Virginia last June and the
Surgeon General's Report on AIDS that was issued in O tober together mark the
beginning of & more intense phase in our information and education efforts.
The American public is ready to learn more about how they can protect

theaselves and others from AIDS.

Within PHS, I have taken steps to enhance the effectiveness of our fight
against AIDS. I have strengthened the position of the PHS AIDS Coordinator
which is being ably filled by Dr. Noble. I have continued to rely on the PHS
AIDS Executive Task Force which meets weekly and is supported in its work Ly a
series of subgroups, cne of which focuses on information/education and health
education/risk reduction. I have assigned lead agency responsibility for this

activity to CDC, and they now chair that subgroup. Dr. James O. Mason, COC's
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Director, has also taken steps to strengthen the management of AIDS
activities. He created the position of Deputy Director (AIDS), with full
authority and responsibility for all of COC's AIDS activities, and appointed

to that position Dr. Dowdle who is with me here today.

Also, we initiated the Federal Coordinating Committee on AIDS Information,
Education and Risk Reduction which brings together Federal officials to
coordinate the Federal Government's AIDS information/education efforts. I

serve &s Chairman of that Committee.

At my direction, CDC is coordinating the development of the "Information/
Education Plan to Prevent and Control ATDS in the United States.” This is a
comorenensive FYS Plan for informing and educating the American people about
AIDS. The Plan spacifies the audiences to be addressed, the basic elements of
AIDS information and education, and the outline of strategies by which this
education can be accomplished. The Plan draws upon the knowledge and
experience PHS har gained since AIDS was first recognized, and it incorporates
the contributions of many experts in the PHS agencies: Alcohol, Drug Abuse
and Mental Health Administra%tion, Centers for Disease Control, Food and Drug
Administration, Health Resources and Services Administration, National

Institutes of Health, and tha Office of the Surgeon General

Successful implementation of this Plan depends upon action and collaborative
efforts among State, county, and municipal governments; professional and

service organizations; the private sector; and the Federal government. From
1983 through 1966, PHS spent $40 million to inform and educate the pudblic in

groups at high risk of acquiring infection; in fiscal year 1987, we are

)
¥,

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




E

RIC 37

82

planning to spand more than $79.5 million; and in fiscal yaar 1988 more than
$103.9 million. Howevar, it is axpectad that funds appropriated by Congrass
in any given year for information/education will be multiplied manyfold by the
afforts and rasourcas of other public agencies and the public sactor. This
combined cooperative effort, in the long term, will have a much greater impact

on changing public behavior then the efforts of the Federal Government, alone.

Under the Plan, our efforts are targeted to certain populations The first is
the ganeral public. In order to control transmission of AIDS virus, everyone
must be aware of behavior that puts them at risk of infection They must

laarn how the virus is and is not spread.

A second special population 1s school and college-wy d youth  Schools,
collages, and family institutions pr. de an effective channel for
appropriately instructing the young people of our Nation about AIDS before,
and as, they reach the ages when they might practica behaviors that put them

at risk of infection.

A third target population is those persons at increased risk or who are
infected. Our highest priority is informing and educating those groups at
increased risk of acquiring or transmitting the AIDS virus because of certain
behaviors or circumstances, such as homosexual and bisexual men, IV drug
sbusers, hemophiliacs, femsle sex partners of those at risk (of special

concern because of potential pregnancy), and prostitutes and their clients
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The fourth target population is our Nation's health workers. Members of this
group have direct responsibility for patient care; for counseling AIDS
patients, persons with laboratory evidence of infection, or other concerned
persons; and for providing leadership in informing and educating the pudblic.
Now I will highlight the activities that are being directed toward each of

these populations.

THE PUBLIC

An informed public provides the basis upon which other information/education
programs operate. Individuals need further information on the steps that can
be taken to protect their health. Special efforts are needed to provide
information through a variety of channels—television, radio, press,
advertisements. and personal appearances. The program must be closely
coordinated and sustained over a long period of time in order to adequately
inform the public. Now that we have taken steps to protect our blood supply.
we will be concentrating on preventing the sexual transmission of AIDS
virus—primary Federal responsibility for this aspect rests with COC, and with
preventing the transmission of AIDS among IV drug abusers--the National

Institute for Drug Abuse (NIDA) has this responsibility.

The Food and Drug Administration has worked with blood banks and plasma
centers on programs: (1) to infoirm persons at increased risk for AIDS that

they should refrain from donation, and (2) to test all blood and blood product
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or the presence of AI0S antibody to reducs the risk of transmitting

AIDS virus through the transfusion of blood or plasma




Preventing Sexually Transmitted AIDS

Infermation/education efforts to prevent the sexual transmission of AIDS will
encompast &8 number of major activities. This fiscal year we are planning to
conduct a mnjor national public information campaign This mass media
campaign will reach the public through television, radio, and the various
print media at the national and local levels. It wil provide the broad
backdrop for intense State and community efforts that will be carried out
across the country. We will be contracting with a national communications

agency to assist in the planning and design of this multimedia campaign.

We are continuing on other fronts to get information to people who need it
In September 1986, uo‘ contencted with the American Social Health Association
to take over the operation of the national AIDS Hotline. Service has been
expanded to a full 24 hours of daily operations. The Hotline offers a tapaed
sessage and referral to an operator for further information. The number of

calls steadily increased with taped messages.

We are continuing to distribute PHS—developed public service announcements as
well as publications and other materials preparad in collaboration with the
Mmerican Rod Crosi and other organizations To date, we have distributed
about 325,000 copies of the Surgeon General's Report on AIDS, and other
private organizations have reproduced thousands of copies for distribution
COC, which has taken over most of these activities has sent camera-ready

copres of the report to al) AINS progras coordinators

ERIC 5

J




35

This fiscal year we will be establishing a national AIDS information
clearinghouse system designed to facilitate access to information needed by
the public at large and by State and local AIDS program personnel engaged in
developing or conducting AIDS prevention and control programs. The
clearinghouse will develop and maintain inventories of availadble AIDS
information and assist State and local AIDS Program psrsonnel in obtaining,
developing, and using information about AIDS. It will {uentify and assist in
filling information gaps through the development or identification of needed
iaformation for such grcups as minorities which require specialized emphasis
and culturally sensitive materials. Lastly, it will provide a mechanism for
the distribution of PHS information materials. We expect to award a contract

for this project in August 1987.

Se plan to bring together ma, . public and private sector organizicions that
are currently actively involved in the fight against AIDS or which could make
significant contributions to our Nation's effort to stem the epidemic Our

goal i3 to provide a continuing forum for the exchange of information and the

coordination and stimulation of voluntary information/education programs

AIDS/IV Drug Abuse

sorking at the community level, the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA} is
utilizing mass media and special print media to inform the genecral public and
special target audiences Market research has been conducted to determine the
best means of reaching th target audience of intravenous drug abusers, tt r

sex partners, and othe: -lose associutes, such as family members, with mass
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media messages sbout AIDS and drug use Based on this research, radio and
television, as well as print, matarials are being developed to intervene at
the different stages of drug use in order to halt or slow the spread of AIDS.
Messages are encouraging the drug abusers to seek treatment or to stop sharing

needles if treatment is not possible.

Ltocal communities are being encouraged to undertake public education
programs  Community contacts in target cities are being helped to develop

local coalitions among organizations concerned about AIDS in IV drug abuse.

We are working with the entertainment community—including the film,
television, and music 1ndustries—to encourage the industry to undertake
activities to educate the public about the threat of AIDS in IV drug abuse and

to comrunicate an anti-drug message to preteens, teens, and young adults.

A national toll free telephone service has been established which directs drug
abusers to treatment programs in their communmity. This Hotline serv ce is
being heavily promoted in advertising which promotes treatment for intravenous
drug abusers. The drug Hotline is linked to the AIDS Hotline to assure

appropriate handling of special requests and neceds.

These media activities have until now been focused at the community level.
Given the urgency of the AIDS epidemic and the growing public concern
regarding the relationship of AIDS and drug abuse, the climate is improving
for getting public service announcemen*s on television NIDA is considering
the need for a broader public service campaign including a full range of

television, radio, and print advertisements on the AIDS and drug abuse issue.
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SCHOOL AND COLLEGE-AGED YOUTH

Every day more than 47 million students attend 90,000 elementary and secondary
schools in 15,500 school districts across the United States. Schools
efficiently can inform 90 to 95 percent of the young people about the dangers
of AIDS and how to avoid becoming infected. Our youth and young adults mus*
understand that sexual activity and IV drug abuse can lead to AIDS. The

5 oercent of children who do not attend school may be at even greater risk and
will require special efforts through agencies other than schools if they are
to be reached by our ~fforts. To educate our Nation's youth about AIDS, we
must be su-e that there is a broad base of national, parental, and community
support and that school officials, especially classroom teachers, are well
prepared. We must be sure that curricula about AIDS are scientifically
accurate, culturally sensitive, and developmentally appropriate for students

in each community.

In 1987, we are initiating a comprehensive school health education program. A
principal fealure of the program will be the provision of fiscal support and
technical assistance to about 10 State and 12 local education agencies in
areas with the highest incidence of AIDS to rapidly implement effective
education about AIDS for students and for school-aged youth who do not attend
school. The scope and content of these AIDS school health education programs
will be determined at the local level with assistance from the health agency.
Training and demonstration projects will be ertablished in three metropolitan

areas and in one State School officials and teachers from around the country
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will be able to attend training sessions in order to learn firsthand how to
develop and implement effective AIDS education in the schools. In this way we

can assist school systems that do not receive direct funding.

To supplement the State and local efforts, we will be working with national
organizations to help schools provide effective AIDS educatiosn Through these
organizations, we hope to stimulate, reinforce, and assist State and local
efforts to reach students, school-aged youth not attending school, college

populations, Black youth, and Hispanic youth.

To round o':t our program we will be undertaking a number of other activities
designed to assist the State and local education agencies, such as
establishing an annotated computerized bibliography of relevant AIDS
educational materials, stimulating private sector development of effective
school health education materials, assessing the impact of national, state and
local efforts, and establishing a national coalition for AIDS school health

education.

Our work with the State of Indiana provides an example of beneficial results

that can come from the collaborative approach we are taking. Indiana State

AIDS school curriculum guide called AIDS: What Young Adults Should arow. It

is a companion to an excellent curriculum on sexually transmitted disease
education. This AIDS school health curriculum was recently completed and
offered to the Indiana's local school boards We were told that even before
it was off the presses nearly every State in the Union had requested a copy of

the curriculum.

Board of Health, with funds and technical assistancz from COC, developed an
-11 - I
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PERSONS AT INCREASED RISK OR INFECTED

Prevantion and control of AIDS will depend upon successfully interrupting the
transmission of the virus among those persons whose behaviors or tiear
circumstances put them and others at risk of infection. Here again I will
discuss our activities in terms of two broad categories: those people at risk
of infection through sexual transmission of the virus and those at risk

because of IV drug abuse.

Preventing Sexually Transmitted AIDS

The major element of our efforts to prevent sesually transmitted AIDS 13 the
provision of assistance to States in conducting AIDS prevention programs. CDC
will be awarding 55 cooperative agreements totaling more than $22 million to
States, territories, and selected cities for this purpose. In response to the
States requests for streamlining and simplifying the bureaucratic process, COC
has collapsed the two previously separate health education/risk reduction
programs and the counseling and testing program i1nto a cingle a<ard for each
participating State. In mid-1985 funding was provided for 50 counseling and
testing projects covering nearly 900 sites through which more than 79,00
people were tested Of these, about 17 percent wese seropositive. In 1986
testing sites funded by these projects increased to almost 1100 through which
more than 150,000 people were tested Preliminary reporis indicate that
nearly 19 percent of those tested were seropositive Prelest ccunseling
sessions increased 89 percent, and post-test counseling increased by 118

percent in 1986 over 1985.

-12 -
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The health education/risk reduction projects have been more recently funded,’

and {t is too early to report significant results from these efforts. 1In all
of the 55 participating States and metropolitan areas information and
education activities have been initiated and work has been started on
defining, in detail, their 4IDS problems. To date, 21 projects have targeted

informational services to black communities and 15 have activities aimed at

their Hispanic populations

Concurrently, we are funding six demanstration projects designed to implement
and evaluate intensive community level programs to prevent the transmission of
HIV infection. These projects are being carried out under a strict protocol
that is designed to permit evaluation of the activities in terms of their
impact on the disease. Two of the projects have program elements directed
toward reaching minority populations at risk. In a further attempt to fird

effective risk reduction approaches, we have been supporting eight innovative

projects that are evaluating risk reduction approaches directed toward

homosexuals, IV drug abusers, and minorities.

CDC, working cooperatively with the Health Resources and Services
Administration and the National Hemophiliac Foundation (NHF), 1s supporting
the development and delivery of health education and risk reduction counseling
programs for hemophiliacs Their particular health problems are being

addressed by the NHF through a network of service centers

We will be continuing our joint venture with the Conference of Mayors that is
da2signed 2o help stiaulate informat.on/education programs at the community

level.
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In 1987, we will be initiating pilot projects to develop and test approaches
to prevent perinatal transmission of the AIDS virus. The focus will be on

preventing infeccion among reproductive age women.

The two major problems confronting this area of public hes'Lh are how %o reach
uninformed groups (adole:cents, ethnic minorities, drug abusers, and women)
with the message of risk rveduction, and how to surmount resistance of persons
towards changing their behavior. uidS is so pernicious chat the National
Institute of Mental Health (NIMH) believes it must go beyond campaigns to
inform persons about the need for and the techniques of risk reduction. Thus,
it also has funded research into identifying elements which infl. nce
non-compliance of behavioral changes, and has funded evaluation studies to

determine the effectiveness of various intervention techniques.

Persons with AIDS need the support of families and friends. In turn, families
and friends of persons with AIDS need help in dealing wirii ihe situation.

Recognizing this need, the NIMH has prepared publications directed towards the
aspropriate groups and has incorporated psycho-social considerations into its

training programs.

AIDS/IV Drug Abuse

In order to help communities develop AIDS prevention programs and to assess
the effectiveness of prevention initiatives, NIDA is implementing two
demonstration programs in fiscal year 1987, comprehensive AIDS community

demcnstration projects and targeted AIDS demonstration projects.

- 14 -
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Comprehensive AIDS-comunlty‘deuonstntion grants will be awarded to five

communities that have a high prevalence of AIDS associated with IV drug

abuse. The focus of these grants wiil be outreach services to recruit drug
abusers into treatment, to educate intravenous drug abusers and their partners
regarding the risks of {nfection and transmission, and to mae antibody
testing available to intravenous drug abusers, their sexual partners, and
children This effort is complementing the $252 million substance abuse
research, prevention, and treatment program expansion that 1s a part of the

war on drugs.

Targeted AIDS community denonstrations will be awe ~jed as demonstration

research contracts thav focus on specific prevention i1mitiatives, including

the use of indigenous outreach workers, outreach to sexual partners and
prostitutes associated with IV drug abusers, outreach in emergency rooms and
drug abuse deto. rfication units, case finding in high drug use areas, and

increasing the AIDS prevention capabilities of methadone mairntenance programs.

HEALTH WORKERS

Health workers must be prepared to address infected persons health needs and
to counsel, or refer for counseling, those :nfected with AIDS virus to reduce
the infected person's risk of transmitting the virus to others. Our Nation's
health workers represent a major channel for provading accurate AIDS
information to the patient, sex partners of the patient, friends and family

members of the patient, allied health care workers, and the public

Additionally, some health care workers by virtue of their occupation nc 4 to

- 15 -
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be informad that there is some vary small risk of infection and how to avoid
it. A number of the PHS components have been actively involved in this aspect
of our information/education strategy, and I will highlight some of their

activities

>
g
>

. NIDA’s educational activities are focused on providers who come in contact

with drug abusers such as drug abuse treatment program staff, primary health
care providers, and social service personnel. The activities include the
development of training manuals for service providers; training workshops for
drug abuse treatment program counselors, administrators, and health care
workers; technical assistance to treatment programs and drug abuse
suthorities; and development of video tapes and other materials in English and
Spanish for intravenous drug abusers and their sexual partners. Emphasis is
placed on building State and local training capacity, developing educational
and traiming materials, and training of trainers to facilitate such a capacity

building

The suddenness of AIDS precluded sufficient numbers of care providers trained
in 1ts mental health aspects The NIMH is striving to overcome the shortfall
by funding academic institutions tnroughout the Nation to train all types of
AIDS health care providers to recognize, refer, or treat the m«ntal health

elements of the disease. The traininc institutions are linked to one another
and to research centers 1n order to thare the best educational techniques and

most current research findings.

- 16 -
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Earlier I mentioned some of the NIAID past accomplishments. This year NIAID

will sponcor regional conferences in Nashuille, Atlanta, Minneapolis/St. Paul,

Seattle, Denver, and San Diego. These conferences will provide information to

nurses and social workers.

The Kational Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute (NHLBI) is initiating an
educational program about blood donation in collaboratior with the American
Red Cross, the American Association of Blood Banks, a~d Community Council of
Blood Centers. Fear of AIDS and other transfusion related diseases has led to
a decrease in donations at the same time the use of blood has continued to
increase. The educational program will be directed to the medical profassion
to prevent excessive use of blood for therapeutic purposes and to the public

to dispel incorrect beliefs about acquiring AIDS through donating blood.

The National Institute of Dental Research is developing posters and leaflets
for use in dental offices, clinics, and schools to increase awareness of the

need for and use of brrrier techniques for dental care providers. 1In

addition, a collaborative effort with NIAID is being developed to design
conferences aimed at dental caruv providers, similar to those sponsored by
NIAID in the past, and to provide workshvups at professional meaetings of dental

care workers,

-17 -
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HRSA

In fiscal year 1987, HRSA will award grants to develop three regional ALJS
Education and Training Cente:s (ETC). Program objectives for each ETC will be
to provide, in collaboration with health professional schools, local
hos2itals, and health departments, education and training to primary care
providers on the treatment and prevention of AIDS and AIDS infection, to
provide updates on new and timely information about HIV infection to
approximately 1,000 primary and secondary health care providers; and to serve
as the support system for area health professionals through the AIDS Hotline,
clearinghouse, and referral activities In 1988, there are plans to add

additional ETCs.

HRSA is also supporting AIDS service demonstration projects in New York,

San Francisco, Los Angeles, and Miami. While the grants are intended to
dem>nstrate the creation of ~omprehensive, cost effective ambulatvry and
community-based ealth and support systems for gersons with AIDS, each grant
does provide extensive information related toc the prevention of further spread
of the AIDS virus. Buring 1987, approximately seven rdditional such

demonstration grants will be awarded.

CDC has been engaged in & wide variety of activities ranging from the issuance
of guid~® _.es 1n the MMR, to distributing slide series in response to neariy
4,000 request , to the prov’'sion of cw.2ra-ready copies of the Surgeon

General's Report on AIDS to rll AIDS program ..ordinators and conducting

- 18
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courses for latoratory workers in the latest techniques. This fall thay
picked up on the activitics that were started at the Public Health Service
level involving the devalopment and distribution of educational materials in
cooperation with the American ked Cross and distribution of the Surgeon
General’s Report on AIDS. In 1987, COC will provide additional spacialized
training to program coordinators, AIDS health educators, AIDS antibody test
counselors, and other health providers. They will also be developing training
modules and educational materials to train both practicing dental
professionals and dental students about infection control procedures with an

emphasis on AIDS.

Conclusion

I have been highlighting the work of our PHS agencies, and I am proud to be
associated with all the dedicated persons in the Public Health Service who
have committed so much pessonal effort to the battle to prevent and control
AIDS. But it must be emphasized that we are not working in isolation We
®us. recognize the rle *hat the media has played in helping to create the
information bas2 amorg our populations upon which we will be able to build.
And, it is important that we recognize the hard work and invaluable efforts of
the many vo’untary organizations that have been such a major part of this
Nation's effort to deal with this modern day scourge. As I stated at the
outset, to meet the AIDS challenge will require an all out effort by the whole
of our society. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be happy to answer any

questions that you may have.

-19 -
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Mr. Wrss. Thank you very much, Dr. Windom. What we will be
doing during the course of our questioning is to attempt to deter-
mine to what extent the various proposals or programs which you
have w%utlined bave in fact been implemented or are being imple-
mented.

Because we will have, I think, extensive questioning, I will be
breaking off my part of the questioning from time to time to allow
my colleagues also then to their questions.

Dr. Windom, several years ago, HHS Secretary Heckler an-
nounced with great fanfare that AIDS treatments and vaccines
were close at hand. Those predictions, I believe, were extremely
misleading, and may have lulled the general gublic into a false
sense of security about the seriousness of AIDS. These may also
have lulled the Federal Government into a false aense of security.

How would you now characterize the likzlikood that we will have
an effective vaccine and treatment in the near future?

Dr. WmnooM. Mr. Chairman, a number of vaccine programs are
underway where testing is being done within the laboratory, in ani-
mals. It is anticipated that if p continues as it is estimated
based on today’s circumstances, there is hope that a vaccine may
be available within 5 to 10 years. No one can say that definitely.
It’s just not possible because of what has toc be done at various
stages in order to get a final product. This is just a projected esti-
mate.

Mr. Weiss. I appreciate that. Then Secretary Heckler's projection
was that within 2 years, we would have a vaccine. Many scientists
suggested that that was just an unrealistic statement, but coming
from Secretary Heckler it was believed. I think that your state-
ment i8 a very realistic one. I applaud it because it demonstrates
why we have to be focusing, as you said in your statement, on edu-
cation/information efforts.

Dr. WinDpoM. Yes. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Wess. Did you review the Surgeor General’s report on AIDS
before it was released in October 1986? Were you in agreement
with its findings and recommendations?

Dr. WinpoM. No. We did not review that document because it
was produced as a s .; of a direction to the Surgeon General for
him to provide the rvport and to present it as a response to the
President'’s reg:l;st It was Dr. Kuup's own document that was put
together and distributed without our having been involved in the
review.

Mr. Wess. He reports to you through channels; isn’t that right?
That's the way the system works?

Dr. WinDoM. Yes, sir.

Mr. W_1ss. He receivad a directive from the President to prepare
this report; is that correct?

Dr. WiNDoM. Yes, in January 1986, I believe, President Reagan
asked him to prepare this report and to re:ease it to the Nation.

Mr. Wess. He did that, and was not asked to submit it to you
before it was released?

Dr. Winbom. No, sir.

Mr. WEss. Was the Surgeon General’s report presented to the
President before it was released?

Q :
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Dr. WinpoM. I understand it was prerented to the Domestic
Policy Cabinet Group end I presume to the President. I do not
know that for sure, sir.

Mr. Wrss. Has the President made any public statements on the
regrt or on AIDS, since the report was issued in October?

. WinpoM. No, I have not heard any public report on that
from the President.

Mr. Wss. Indeed, I just saw a recent copy of the Department’s

n sheet, the compilation of stories relating to AIDS. In a story

ted March 5, 1987, I read that Koop has urged Reagan to take a
lead in the war on AIDS.

Have there been discussions within your Department or with the
President urging him to take a lead in the war on AIDS?

Dr. Winpom. No, not that 'm aware of, sir, any personal con-
tacts or expressions; not that I'm aware of.

Mr. Wss. Your testimongex;eﬂects that 325,000 coFies of the Sur-

eon General’s report have been printed. Can you tell us how many
ve actually been distributed to date?

Dr. Winpou. I do not know that total number but I know there
is an ongoing distribution process. We are continuing to have the
report distributed because it has been a very well received and is
an important document. I do not know the exact number that have
been distributed, sir.

Mr. Wriss. Dr. Dowdle, would you have that information?

Dr. DowpLx. Yes. In fact, that's very cloee to the number. It’s
over 300,000. I think, more to the point, that copies have also been
provided in a camera-reactl‘{soform to all the States and to many
other organizations. They are distributing copies of the report.

Mr. Wriss. There have been some discussions, I understand, of
having that report mailed directly to every home in the country.
Do you know how much it would cost to do that?

Dr. Winpoym. That proposal, Mr. Chairman, has been raised, and
we will be talking about that. I will be conveni.ntgha group of mem-
bers of our staff to look at the questions of whether a direct mail-
ing would be feasible, what type of document would be appropriate
for a mass mailing, the size, and the cost. That is a concern of ours
and we are in the process of evaluating it.

Mr. Wrss. Dr. Koop is quoted in & Sacramento headline, dated
March 6, saying that the Public Health Service is considering mail-
ing a simplified version of his widely publicized AIDS report to
every household in the country. When do you expect to have a deci-
sion on that?

Dr. Winpom. We would hope probably that by about the middle
of April we will come up with something to resoive that question.

Mr. Weiss. At about the same time as the Surgeon General's
report in October, the National Academy of Sciences released its
comprehensive AIDS report. Have you read that document? Are
you familiar with its detailed recommendations?

Dr. Winpom. Yes, sir.

. Mr. V{?mss Arc you and the Department in agreement with its
in

Dr. WinpoM. We feel it makes a very significant contribution to
the subject and we have listened to and met with members of the
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Institute of Medicine and discussed their findings even prior to
their releasin%ltlwt report.
thMr' W:;’ss. id the Department prepare any type of response to

e report?

Dr. Winpou. No, officially, no one asked for a response to the
report, sir.

r. Wriss. How about unofficially? Did you have an analysis?

Dr. Winpom. Within our Public Health Service, we asked our
various agencies to look at the report and give their opinions to us.
That was just in-house.

Mr. Waiss. Can you make copies of those reports available to us?

Dr. Winpou. Yes, sir.,

[On June 2, 1987, the Department advised the subcommittee that
“none of the nﬁncies have started the reports.”]

Mr. Wiss. Did you eﬁ;:resa any disagreements? Were any dis-
agreements expressed with the report?

Dr. Winpou. I think the question that has been raised most has
been about the figures for 1991. We feel they are estimations, but
we want to try to approach them. We fe. we are making progress
along the line, and with the budget increases from year to year,
particularly in the education area, are a;zgroaching the total that
they mentioned, Federal combined with other sources, of $1 billion
for education. I would say that very likely this target may be met,
indeed may be exceeded.

Mr. Wess. Last month, the Department scheduled a press con-
ference to finally announce a major new AIDS Information/Educa-
tion Plan. Later, we were advised by your staff that the plan would
be released around t: e ist of March. In fact, Dr. Mason testified at
an Appropriations Committee hearing 2 weeks ago that the plan
was complete.

Why was its release uelayed?

Dr. Winpom. In order to come forth with a plan of this type, and
in the process to respond to all people and groups involved, a con-
siderable amount of time was needed for the plan to be reviewed
and for input to be received. As you can recognize, this ‘s a most
sensitive matter, and it is best to react to the concerns of all the
individual participants. It has taken tinse. wWe are Jjust about ready
to go to press. We anticipate that very, very soon.

Mr. Weiss. Dr. Dowdle, when did CDC begin working on this new
major information/education plan? When was the plan first re-
quested, by whom, and why?

Dr. DowpLE. Well, CDC was given the responsibility for warking
on the plan in November, about the time we were given the respon-
sibility for an information education program. However, it was
gt:rt.ed a few weeks or months earlier within the Public Health

rvice.

Mr. Weiss. Who first requested it and why?

Dr. DowpLe. Dr. Windom requested it.

Mr. Weiss. What was the basis ‘or the request, Dr. Windom?

Dr. WinboM. The basis, Mr. Chairman, was that I felt we needed
to develop a doc ment that would be available for many people in
the Nation to use and that it would be best, for this document to
come from the Public Health Service. In order * do this, I asked
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Dr. Mason and hi people at CDC to take the lead in putting it to-
gether.

Mr. Wess. When did you make that request?

Dr. WinpoM. It was in November, as I recall. I'm not sure exact-
ly what date.

Mr. Wxss. Dr. Dowdle has just indicated you began working on
it—the date actually is October 28, I believe. You had discussions
on it for some months previously. You must have made that re-
quest earlier.

Dr. Dowdle, what’s your recollection as to when you were re-
quested to start working on that plan?

Dr. Dowpte. Well, actually it emerged from other Fits and pieces
of work that was going on. It was weeks after the idea had started
at PHS that CDC was asked to put the plan together. Again, I
don’t know the exact date, but early October probably.

Mr. Wess. Was that before the Coolfont meeting in June 19867

Dr. DowntE. I think actually there may be a little misunder-
standing here. As far as the 7 ublic Health Service Information/
Education strategy goes, all of this evolved out of the meetings that
were held as early as 1985. In fact, the Public Health Service pub-
lished a strategy in 1985 in Puhlic Health reports. I+ was updated
in 1986 with the Coolfont report. Foth documents said that a major
inforpation/education effort would be required to combat AIDS.

This current document grew out of Dr. Windom’s request that
there be a specific document on infermation/education.

Mr. Weiss. The discussions had "»seen going on for the better part
of a year before you actuslly starced this final plan?

Dr. DownLe. That specisic document. Not only were activities dis-
cussed, but information eduration activities have been implement-
ed beginning as early as 1984 and 1985.

Mr. Weiss. When did you, or Dr. Mason, first review a draft of
this new plan?

Dr. DowntLE. The present pian?

Mr. Wgss. Yes.

Dr. Dowpte. The plan was reviewed over the Christmas holidays
and submitted on January 2.

Mr. Wess. We have a memorandum, minutes of a Public Health
Service task force, dated September 8, 1986, and this among other
documents will be entered into the record.

[The memorandum follows:]
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i'_ f DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Pubbc Health Servce
t

Memorandum

Ome -~ &P |8

from Assistant Secretary for Health

Sunect M{nutes of the September 8, 198€¢, Meeting of the PHS Eaecutive
Task Force on AIDS

To Mexbers, PHS Executive Task Force on AIDS

Attached are the minutes of the September B, 1985, meeting of the
PHS Executive Task Force on AIDS. The next nmeeting is gcheduled
for Monday, September 22, 1985, © to 10:30 a.m., Conference Room
729G, Humphrey Bullding.

%ch/

Robert E. Windom, M.D.

Attachments
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SRS Executive Task Force on AIDS
Septenber 8, 1986

Mimutes

Participants

Dr. Dickson, Acting Assistant Secretary for Bealth
Dr. Dowlle, PHS AIDS Coordinator
Ms. Gelberg, Executive Secretary, PHS Executive Task Force on AIDS

Mr. Artim, QASH Dr. Bopkins, CDC
Ms, Bart, OASH Ms. Kershner, OASH
Ms., Barth, OASH . Dr. Keop, SG

Ms, Brady, QRSH Ms. lengel, QASH
Dr. Bridge, ADAMHA Dr. McCarthy, NIH
Ms, @selberw' QASH Dr. Me!' DA

Ms. Donoghue, NIH Dr. Noonan, ERSA
Ms, Evert, QRSH Dr. Pickens, ADAMAA
Mr. Faming, OASH Ms, Pollard, OASH
Dr. mi' NIH Mr, Riseberg, [0 0 o]
Mr. Forbush, OASH Dr. Rodrigues, WIH
Dr. Galasso, NIH Dr. Fose, QASH

Dr. Goodwin, ADAMHA Jx. Samuels, OSG
Dr. Rardy, OC Ms. Segal, OASH

Dr. Harmison, OASH Mr. Smith, ACFA
Ms, Hassell, QASH Dr. Wyngaarden, NIH

Dr. Dickson opened the meeting bty moting the variable reporting of
figures for seropositive testing among the country's youth, Fifteen in
10,000 is the figure for Army recruits; in some areas Of Wew York City,
one in 50 test positive., Discussion centered on some of the reasons for
this disparity.

Dr. Dickson also reported that the Institute of Medicine (IQM) is
comoleting the analysis for its report cn AIDS and that it will be
presented and discussed at its anual meeting in October. Dr. Dowdle
irdicated that the draft report is still being reviewed ty IGM. Data
presented by PHS at Coo’lont are being uged.
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Report of the AIDS Coordinator

nz.wddlerepctwdﬁntnm‘.aﬂ(n:mmethgm

mutual activities on AIDS and IV drug abuse and will report to the Task
Focce shortly. In a meeting with the Swedish Mi

week, Sweden reportad nearly 100 cases of AIDS and 3,000 to 5,000
positive antibody tests. AIDS information has been delivered to every
home in Sweden. The country is donating about one millien dollars to
the World Bealth Organization 1o assist with the AIDS efforts in
developing countries.

Italy has reported 300 cases of AIDS as of July. Fifty-seven percent is
among drug addicts and addicts who are also homosexual and 29 percent
amng homosexuals. Of 28,000 convicts who have been screened, 4,727
test positive. About 6 percent of Italy's AIDS cases are among children

of d&rug abusing parents,
Reports of the six subgrowps

o  FEpidemioloqy and prevention

Dr. Hopkins reported: 1) the Epidemiology and Prevention
Subgrowp meeting scheduled for today is postponed and will
probably meet rext Monday; 2) he is expecting the MR
article on AIDS and Minorities by Friday and will circulate
it to the Task Force for comments before the next reeting; 2)
an up-dated status report on the Relle Glade investigation is
almost complete. The preliminary review of the data will be
presented at ICCAC three weeks from today. He will send out
the draft report to the Task Force for review within two
weeks; 4} the AIDS Hot Line is receiving 800 calls per day to
the tape and 300-400 callers are staying on to speak to
individuals; S) the latest draft of the agenda for the PHS
Conference on Promoting Public Realth Action: Use of HILY-
111/IA7 Antibody Testing for Prevention Programs was
distributed. The meetirg is scieduled for Wednesday and
Thursday, October 22-23. Comments an? suggestions on the
draft agenda should be made to Dr. Jim Allen at o, Frs 236-
3476. Ms. Lengel suggested a press briefing at the end of
the conference; 6) the ACIP is recommending that children
with known AIDS should not be given live virus vaccines.
Children who test positive, but are asymptomatic can be given
MR but not live polio virus. The ACIP statement on AIDS is
also swygesting that children of parents in AIDS high-risk
groups be evaluated befcre {mmmization.

Dr. Dickson brought up the issue of the recent press reports
about operational problems at the CIC AIDS laboratory. There
was some discussion of these reports and the distractions
they are causing at CDC. Dr. Dowdle indicated that a report
is being prepared for Dr. Windom. -

Q .
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Blood and Blood Products

Dr. Meyer will be 1¢ ing the Publi> Fealth Service in
October to take a new position in the private sector.

Dr. Meyer reported that FDA has licensed the 8th AIDS ELISA
test, using a different cell from both the Gallo cell and the
Genetic system cell, Be also reported that 20/20 is making
requests for information relating to blood safety and AIDS.

Behavior, Neuroscience, and Addiction ~spects

Dr. Goodwin reported that D=3. McFarland and Gibhs from
NINCDS have joined the subgrowp. A major focus of the
subgroup is the issue of IV drug abusers and coordination
between CIC and NIDA to avoid overlap. Be circulated a copy
of the agenda for the NIMH AIDS Research Methodology
Conference to be held at the Linden Hill Botel in Bethesda on
Septenber 18 and 19. Dr. Goodwin also discussed the David
Jenness' editorial in the August 22 issue of Science, about
the role of the social scientist in identifying special
populations, attitudinal changes and how to recognize
attitudinal changes.

Dr. Pickens reported that new Information on needle sharing
and IV drug abusers indicates ¢t needle sharing is more
prevalent than has been thought. Needle ghar..sg in shooting
galleries has increased substantially among heroin and
cocaine abusers. These hard core, chronic drug abusers are
the most difficult to treat. There was a discussion about
the difficulty in obtaining good hard data about how many
people atuse drugs intravencusly, and to what extent these
people know about the risk of AIDS, and the opportunities for
prevention. Dr. Pickens also reported that a list of
priorities €or NIDA has been developed and will be circulated
by the next meeting.

Vaccine and Therapy

Dr. Galasso reported: 1) all committees are meeting and
making progress; 2) three KFPs and RFAS on AIDS have been
announced, including KFPs on better methodologies to detect
the virus, better methodologies for markers of immunity and
an RFA on the pathogenesis of AIDS and associated factors; 3)
the animal model committee is looking carefully at protocols
regarding the use of chimpanzees; 4) the vaccine subgroup is
begiming to develop general clinical protocols for the
evaluation of vaccines. Dr. Jim Curran is joining the
subgrowp for this activity; ©) the international conference
plans are taking shape and the planning group is ready to
publish the call for abstracts. The length of the conference
will be four and cne-half days. .
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Dr. Dickson asked sbout the progress being mede at the
Primate Center at the hiversity of California at Davis in
the development of a vaccine for Simian AIDS, The general
consensus was that the report was encouraging, but that any
implications for AIDS vaccines in humans were unknown.

Dr. Dowdle reported that the Hastings Institute will host a
meeting on October 6 and 7 to disens drug availability for
more {ndividuals than is “irrently possible under protocol
studies. PHS's concern i: to maintain the scientific
credibility of treatment trials. pDrs. Dowdle, Fauci,
McCarthy and Meye: s representative, Ms. Donoghue and Dr.
Bill will participate in the meeting. Dr. Meyer suggested
that PAS begin planning for drug distribution in the event a
promising drug nears readiness for ipproval. He stressed
that the government will have a real status in working with
industry to make such a drug available.

Dr. Dickwon asked Dr. Fauci to ~omment on his work on the
effect of the AIDS virus on the B cells in the bone marrow.
Dr. Fauci indicated that, thcugh the B8 cells were stimulated,
the effect was that of immunosucpression.

o Patient Care and Realth Service Delivery

Dr. Noonan reported that the subgroup functioned as a review
parel for the HRSA applications. Five applicaticns were
reviewed and four were approved, all with conditions.
Negotiations are underway now regarding the conditions. It
is expected that the grants will be finded before

October 1. The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation (RWJF) had two
representatives on FRSA's review panel; 2nd there were two
representatives from PHS and one representative from HCFA on
the RUF's review panel in an effort to avoid overlap.

o Information and Bducation
=2ommacion and Zducatian

Ms. Lengel reported that: 1) a flyer on the availability of
the three 7RS video tapes has been sent to 30,000 grows and
organizations; 7) we are purchasing the master reel of 50
celebrity PSAs produced by XoIX—-"v in California, to which we
can add cur own tag line; 3) OGC has ruled to advise that we
can ugse paid advertising.

Dr. Hopkins reported on the draft AIDS Information and
Education Action Plan drafted by CDC and modified by this
subgroup. The plan examines the relationship of the ¢
information and education efforts to all others in PHS in
order to reinforce information and help avoid conflicting
messages. Comments on the action plan should be made to
Ms. lengel by Monday, September 1.

El{llC Gty
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Dr. Dickson asked Dr. Kop to discuss the status of the
Surgeon General's Report on AIDS. Drs. Koop, Mcmigue, and
Samue met with 22 growps for 2-4 hour discussicns.
They have received absolute cooperation from all of the

. According to Dr. Koop, we have the foundation for a

9
remarkable coalition of organizations reflecting the views of
large segments of the pcpulation on AIDS.

Dr. Goodwin suggested that more public information efforts be
made to descrihe the importance of animal research on AIDS.
He also suggested that any pwblicity on progress in research
include mention of the use of animals in the research.

Mr. Riseberg discussed the ruling of a three-judge court that
the animel rights' growp has mo legal standing to challenge
the use of animals In research and further that they should
not have such standing.

Dr. Foop suggested development of a formal liaison with the
entertainment industry to encourage writers, producers and
actors to focus on a nunber of health education issues vhich
could be addressed in scap operas, sitcams, and other
television entertainment.

pr. Dickson moting the presence of Proposition 64 on the
California ballot in November ard its quarantine
implications, asked Ms. Tengel about her view of its chance
for success. She indicated that though there was
considerable concern, the likelihood of its peisage remains
unclear.

Ms. Rassell reported that Congress returns today from its cne
month recess, MNo formal hearings have been scheduled yet for
AIDS for the month of September.

)
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Mr. Wass. It says that Dr. Hopkins reported on the draft AIDS
Information/Education Plan drefted by CDC and modified by this
subgroup. You had a draft plan as of the early part of September;
isn’t that correct?

Dr. DowpLE. That is what I was referring to earlier about earlier
work that was going on. The plan that has been submitted now ac-
tually was begun in early November.

Mr. Wrss. There is no correlation? There was no contiiuity of
these plans?

Dr. DowpLE. In fact, the work that was part of the earlier plan
was incorporated into the present plan.

Mr. Wass. It’s one continuing process; isn't that correct?

Dr. DowoLE. Yes, sir.

Dr. WinDoMm. Yes, sir.

Mr. Wess. What were described at tasi force meetings as “final
drafts” of the AIDS plan were circulated several times in the
months following that September 8t meeting. Yet, it still has not
been released and implemented; is that correct?

What was the cause for the continuing delay in issuing the pla1?
Dr. Dowdle.

Dr. DownLE. Well, again, there was sort of an evolution of think-
ing of what purpose the plan should serve. Initially, it was thought
that this was an internal working document as had been the Cool-
font report and the 1985 study. Later, the thinking was that this
shouldlt)e more of a public document. Then we took a little differ-
ent tack.

Mr. WEess. When was the Public Health Service’s Information/
Education document first submitted to the Department of Educa-
i:ion for review? I am referring to the plan which is about to be re-
eased.

Dr. Dowr 1t was in earlier November. There was a very early
draft of the ;.. .sent in the latter part of November.

Mr. Wess. By November, you had a draft proposal which you
submii ~d to the Department of Education; is that correct?

Dr. DowpLE. What we were submitting at that time was only two
sections of the plan, the introduction and what was called tt e basic
elements of information. We felt th.t this was an area that we
needed to get wide consultation ¢n, 80 we submitted that first
before submitting the second p- + ¢f tf plan dealing with soecific
activities.

Mr. WEiss. We have a copy of the: plan or proposed plan that you
submitted to the Department of Education dated November "14,
1986. It is entitled “U.S. Public Health Service Plan To Prevent
and Control AIDS Through Information Education and Risk Educa-
tion.” It is a very comprehensive proposal of some 17 pages. It was
not just a limited set of suggestions or proposals for Education’s at-
tention; isn’t that correct?

Dr. DownLE. Yes, sir, but the present ducument is about three
times thac length.

Mr. WEiss. Because of textual material or charts that have been
attached?

Dr. DownLE. Well, again, the idea was to get out concepts in that
first draft. Now the activities have been sharpened, and the time-

Q
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frame in which these activities are to be accomplished is detailed.
All of that was done for the document that we are now discussing.

= Mr. WEss. On December 3, the Department of Education sent
you their detailed comments and editing of the draft plan. That
né:?fmrandum was signed by Mr. Jack Klenk, identified as issues
staff.

Dr. Dowdue or Dr. Noble, do you know what this gentleman’s
background and training are? Is he a public health specialist?

Dr. NoBLE. I'm sorry. The question was?

Mr. Wess. Do you know what Mr. Jack Klenk’s background is?
Do you know if he is a public health specialist?

Dr. Notik. 'm sorry. No; I don’t.

Mr. Wess. Is he to your knowledge an expert on either public
health education or school curriculum?

Dr. NosLE. I have not inquired.

Mr. Weiss. In any event, he made extensive revisions in the doc-
uments and returned them. Were his recommendations followed in
the subsequent draft of the plan?

Dr. DowptLe. Well, we incorporated those which we felt were ap-
propriate; yes, sir.

Mr. Weiss. Dr. Windom, for the record, vould you please describe

the Public Health Service task force?

Dr. Winvom. The Public Health Service task force?

Mr. Weiss. Yes; please.

Dr. Winpom. Yes, sir. It was established in early 1984. It is made
u. of representatives from the five agencies of the Public Health

Service. It is broken down into working groups composed of repre-
sentatives of those ggencies who have various special interests that
relate to a certain area, such as therapeutics, vaccines, and educa-
tion.

Mr. WEiss. This is a Task Force on AIDS; right?

Dr. Winpom. Yes, sir. It has met every 2 weeks cver these last

91 years to update the group as to what progress has been made,
|
|
|

what committee action has been taken, what the status of the
whole program is at that time.

Mr. Wess. On December 15, after your November 14 proposal
had been analyzed and commented on and edited by the Depart-
ment of Education’s Mr. Klenk, there was another version of the
plan that was distributed to the task force. It had omitted from it
the so-called messages section.

Dr. Dowdle, Dr. Noble, wculd you tell us what the messages sec-
tion comprised and why it was deleted from the plan?

Dr. Downik. I don’t recall the specific document. I think you
may be referring to the change in the name of that section. In fact,
from the very first, it was changed to basic elements of informa-
tion, which had been referred to sort of loosely as mossages.
hMr. Whezss. The minutes of that December 15, 1986, meeting say
that:

Dr. Dowdle reported that the subgroup met during the past week and distributed
the cusrent draft version of the plan. Comments are due at the end of this week, the
mossages are not included in the plan. 1t was not intended that these elements be
the final messages.

Does that refresh your recollection at all?

Q
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Dr. DownLE. | think what that referred to, when we said “mes-
suges were not intended to be final messages,” was what we were
trying to convey in the plan. The basic elements of information
were concepts that we need to get across. Specific messages, and
how they would be packaged and what information would be pro-
vided, would be worked out for certain situations, certain geograph-
ic areas, and certain populations according to the recommendations
of our consultants.

Mr. Wriss. But those were then removed after the Department of
Education’s comments; is that right?

I’ Downrk. Well, the same, 1uote, ‘“messages,” are still in the
docwnent. They have not been lost. They have been modified as
other people have reviewed them, but they are still there.

Mr. Wgiss. BBrJanuary 12, the “final” plan was circulated to the
task force and Dr. Mason stressed it was then important to “imple-
ment the plan as soon as possible” and that he would like to re-
solve issues surrounding the plan by the end of that week so that
the important messages contained in it could get out to the public.

What were the important public health messages urgently
needed which the plan would help disseminate?

Dr. DowpLE. Well, the plan essentially, as Dr. Windom has out-
lined, is aimed toward the public, school-and college-aged youth,
those at highest risk, and health care workers. These were ele-
ments of information which we felt should be gotten out to those
four major groups.

Mr. Wrss. Dr. Dowdle, isn’t it true that in fact there were a
number of exchanges, written and oral, between you, Dr. Noble,
and the Department of Education, during which lyou were basically
attempting to complete this Public Health planning document
while the Department of Education was attempting to mold the
document into something altogether different?

Didn’t you have that kind of disagreement with the Department?

Dr. DownLe. We did have a memorandum from thep- and we did
respond to the memorandum from them and we did pr in changes.
I might add though, we also had suggestions from ouners as well,
both verbal and written.

Mr. Weiss. How would you characterize what the Department of
Education was attempting to do to the document?

Dr. DownLe. Well, I really can’t say what the Department of
Education was attempting to do. I think some of the points that
they made were good points. In fact, we took some of the points.
We did expand some of the elements of information to include
their suggestions.

As to some of the other points, we felt that they were not neces-
saﬁy appropriate for the document that we were trying to
produce.

Mr. Weiss. What were those?

Dr. DownpLE. These were points which we felt were more detailed
than we had initially considered. For example, we were trying to
create a more generic document, and we felt that some of their
comments fit best for certain populations and not for others.

Mr. Weiss. Dr. Noble, didn’t it get to the point that you were
forced to write to the Department of Education a very stern warn-
ing about their continuing delay of the plan?




Dr. NoBLE. We responded to the first set of comments with a
memorandum in which we urged the need for speed, since we felt
that it was important to proceea with the document as soon as pos-
sible.

Mr. Weiss. This is now the second plan. I have a memorandum
dated January 29, 1987, which is addressed to Mr. Klenk at the De-
partment of Education. Your closing two sentences are:

It is absolu critical that an information education effurt move forward in a

timely manner. The consequences of delayed action will be AIDS cases that might
have been prevented and no one wishes to shoulder that responsibility.

I assume that by that point, you were getting 1.d up by the con-
stant delays from the Department of Education; is that correct?

Dr. NoBLE. Democracy is a slow process. We wanted to have the
best dncument, and frustrations are inevitable whenever you try to
mold together comments e2ud viewpoints f~~m a wide variety of
sources. Nonetheless, I think the final document is the better for it.

Mr. Weiss. Well, democracy is indeed a slow process but at the
same time, as you indicated, the chief consequence was to delay ac-
tions, and that might have been prevented. And what you are
saying is that people may be dead because of the delays?

Dr. NosLE. One point I would like to make here is that despite
the absence of a formal published education plan, the workers in
the field have gone on unhindered, and the CDC, ADAMHA, HRSA
and others have been going full steam ahead. I think those com-
ments might be amplified by others.

Mr. Wess. Dr. Windom, you also recognized the need to imple-
ment this important plan in January, snd apparently directed each
agency under your directivn to immediately prepare new imple-
mentation plans which were due April 1. Is that correct?

Dr. WinDom. Yes, sir.

Mr. Wriss. Now, is that same implementation date still in the
current draft of the plan? Is that still operative? Is April 1 the date
for implementation?

Dr. Winpom. Yes, sir.

Mr. Weiss. So that it has not, the plan has not yet been issued?
Is that correct?

Dr. WinpoMm. That is correct.

Mr. Weiss. Dr. Dowdle, you then proceeded on February 9 to
schedule a press conference for the following week to release the
plan, indicating that it was complete. Why wasn’t that press con-
ference held?

_Dr. Dowpte. Well, I think it was Dr. Windom’s press conference,
sir.

Dr. WinpoMm. There was question about having a press confer-
ence. We discussed having one, but never made a definite commit-
ment.

Mr. Weiss. I see. In other words, you reported, but it was not
going to be your press conference, then it would be Dr. Windom's
press conference on that date?

Dr. DowbLk. That’s correct

Mr. Wgiss. OK.

~
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On Fetruary 11, in fact, the White House issued a memorandum
limiting the scope of AIDS education. Wasn't that the reason that
the press conference and the plan were again delayed?

Dr. DowpLE. No.

Dr. Winpom. No, sir. No.

Mr. Wriss. Now what specific role di%ur Department have in
the discussions and drafting of the new White House memorandum
on AIDS education?

Dr. WinpoM. Well, this was taken into consideration, Mr. Chair-
man, just like all the other irput that we had, and we discussed 1t.
We looked at how it could be fit into our program and into the doc-
ument. It was considered like any other response that we asked for.

And I might mention that you've been raferring to the Depart-
ment of Education all along, but we do have a Federal coordinating
committee, which I established last November. It's made up of
many Federal Government departments, and it meets every 2
weeks. Representatives of various Federal departments meet for an
mte on what has transpired and is in progress in the area of

. We aiso asked these representatives to look at the plan at
various draft stages, and they in turn gave back their responses.

Mr. Wess. Did you, Dr. Noble,v&)l?lrtici te in the White House
meetinﬁs or deliberations on that White House memorandum?

Dr. Nostk. I did not attend formal meetings, but we participated
in discussions.

Mr. Wess. Did any of the Denartment people participate in
formal mesotings?

Dr. Winnom. Yes, I attended two of the domestic policy group
meetings at the White House, and Dr. Koop also attended with me.
We presented the program at that point, and discussed various as-
pects of it. We also apprised them of our progress as time went on.

Mr. Wess. You had a reaction, you responded to that memoran-
dum, did you not, Dr. Noble? What was your reaction to it?

Dr. NoBLE. The point that I was attempting to make was that the
Public Health Service, traditionally, in its nearly 200 years, has
been strongest when it is attempting to do what we call risk assess-
ment. That is, we provide the best scientific information on which
judgments can be made and actions can be taken. My own personal
feeling is that the Public Health Service role is not to try to
manage risk, that is, risk management. That, in this particular
case, is something that is the responsibility of the local constituted
health and education authorities.

Mr. WEIss. And you have said that, in your response, “the Feder-
al Government should leave the job of molding the moral specific
message to the local educators, as recommended, and not try to
mold the message at the Federal level.” Is that correct? Because
you were concerned that we would be creating an impossible over-
sight responsibility for the Public Health Service?

Dr. NosLE. That's correct.

Mr. Weiss. Are you involved in any further review of Public
Health Service Jplans on AIDS now being conducted by the White
Housg, OMB, Justice Department, or elsewhere in *he Govern-
ment

Dr. NoBLE. As a J)art of the Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Health, yes, I would expect to continue to be involved.
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Mr? Weiss. Now is the plan undergoing review elsewhere at this
point

Dr. WiNDOM. No, at this point, sir, it is in our Department, and
we're awaiting the Secretary’s final review, and his clearance of
the document,

Mr. Wriss. We had some indication that under normal processes,
ycu'd have to have that plan submitted to the OMB or to the Do-
mestic Policy Council, or to the Justice Depart.nent. Is that not so?

Dr. Winpou. They have had an opportunity fo~ input, yes. They
have looked at this latest draft.

Mr. Wriss. And when did that take place?

D‘r‘. WINDOM. That was the latter part of last week, during last
week.

Mr. Wriss. Thank you very much. Mr. Frank.

_ Mr. Frang. Thank you. I should begin b' saying that in general,
i think, your Department deserves a lot of credit for doing a
nuraber of very useful things in fighting AIDS at a time when it
hasn’t always been easy. I dun’t think the overall Federal response
is what it ought to have been. I think your Department, I think Dr.
Bov:si: has done well, and I think Dr. Koop has been particularly
useful.

I'm not sure about elsewhere, I don’t know if the President—Dr.
Koop I guess called on the President to fight a war. Maybe it's one
of his covert wars, and that’s why we don’t quite know that—
what’s happening. But what has to be done still, and that's why I

ink these hearings, for which the chairman was, as usual, very
w¢ | prepared, are very useful.

A;.d I think he has documented .n important issue, which is that
wi€ good instincts of the medical pecgfle in your Department are
being somewhat diverted by political and ideological objections
elsowhere, and so I—the first question that I have to ask you is
that—is about the missing man at the table, Dr. Koop. 0id anybody
tell him not to come?

Dr. WiNpcM. No, he was aware of this hearing, but he said he
cmﬁ{ldn&lmk?ft' 1 d speaking righ

r. Weiss. He's traveling and s ing right now.

Mr. FrRANK. My understanding is that he was offered a choice of
four dates, and my sense is that somebody didn’t want him here.

Dr. Winbom. Oh.

Mr. FraNK. Will we, could we get a promise that he could testify
at a hearing on this issue, because it's been hard to get him, and
I—to be honest, I mean he wanted it—you know, we ought to be
explicit—he, in this, as well as in AIDS education.

e made a statement that politically angered a lot of J;:eople in
the administration. I'm struck, T just havgpened to be reading here,
and I get behind—the February 20th Washington Post is talking
about a conservative political conference. The Secretary of Educa-
tion, William J. Bennett, sensing the gloom in the room, said he
was making headway in his effort to instill values into teaching,
but there have been pockets of resistance.

I mean, I get the sense he thinks of several of you as a pocket of
resistance for which I congatulate you, but I think that’s been
part of the problem with Dr. Koop. I think Dr. Koop is getting
clipped a little bit, and my understanding is that we want him to
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testify. So you're sayinﬁ]:here’s no problem that he wanted—that
he is free to testify on this subject any time, any pace?

Dr. Winpou. Yes, sir. He would have been “2re today, except he
had a commitment of a speaking engagement today.

Mr. Frank. Well, again my understanding was that he had been
asked, he had been offered other dates, and that it was kinl of
hard to find one.

Dr. Winpom. I wasn’t aware of that. He was welcome to come.

Mr. Frank. We got the sense that, as I think, people were L-ying
get a date with Dr. Koop, he was following Dr. Bennett’s advice

uslt abstaining, and wasn't about to be—he wasn’t about to be
7 e.
I yield to the chairman.

. Wess. We try not to make Dr. Koop's life even more diffi-
cult than some other pegf)le in the administration have be~n doing,
and we did offer some alternative dates through kis congressional
liaison people, or the Department’s co: ion‘al liaison people,
and they indicated that he was not available, und then we were
never able to make sufficient contact with Dr Koop to really tie
him down to any specific date. And so we decided to go ahead, but
we welcome your assurance that in fact, you will helpful in
makinglsure that he is aot barred from participation.

Dr. WinpouM. Not a bit, sir.

Mr. Frank. Well, I appreciate it, and I don’t want to make a
big—I don't wan* to make trouble with anybody. No one suggested
to me that that was the case. I just came and didn’t see him, and
thought that was kind of unusual, so I initiated a conversation
with members of the staff of the subcommittee chairman, and
that's where I got the information.

And late” on I think ° will be important to have him here, be-
cause I do—ae I think t! chairman, in a very, very clear way, doc-
umented the point, whicn is that your willingness o go ahead with
what i8 medically indicated in this case as being somewhat contra-
indicated—bad word, I guess—counterindicated by the other people
in the administration, and that worries me, and I think that what
we want to do is to stress that that ought not to be that.

Let me just say in general, when you talk alFout the Education
Department, and I know democracy is a slow process, and all of
those things, but let's get specific. Is it the case? It seems to me the
case, but the general direction of the Department of Education, and
some others, 18 to say to you what you will do if you were making
medical judgments alone, based on the public healtl: menacz here,
has to be changed because of our ideological position about what is
appropriate human sexual behavior. Now is that an accura‘e char-
acterization of what you've been hea. ng from people in Eaucation
and elsewhere?

Dr. Winpou. Mr. Frank, I think that when you see the cocu-
ment, you will agree that it is a risk assessment, scientifically di-
rected to people in many, many sectors of our country who will re-
spond to it, and then take that information and use it in the best
way they feel they can to communicate to the peox;)le whom they
serve. I think the input we’ve had from everybody who has contrib-
uted has been meaningful and necessary for us to achieve the best
presentations.

to
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Mr. Frank. Thank you, doctor. Now would you answer my ques-
tion? And that was very nice of you to say that. Would you answer
my question now?

Dr. WinpoM. That this was held back or indifferent?

Mr. FraNnk. Yes. It’s always nice to talk to you—

Dr. WinpoM. No, I do not feel like that——

Mr. FraNK. For instance, I ask you if the {* rust of the—now for
instance, if I ask you if the—about the thrust of the advice you
were giving the Department of Education? Your response was that
everyging you heard was meaningful. Well, I'm sure it was mean-
ingful. I think it's very meaningful when Dr. Koop is forced by Sec-
re Bennett to dilute the quality of whai he wants to say, as I
would interpret it.

So, I'm not asking you if it was meaningful. I'm willing to stipu-
late that it was meaningful. What I was asking is, has there been a
thrust from the Department of Education in which ideological or
political, or however one wants to categorize it, 7alues have been
pu. forward?

‘You talk about democracy is a slow process, compromise. Have
they basically been indicating, it seems to us this way, that what
you would do on medical grounds alone, doesn’t reflect the proper
set of values; that it would appear to be condoning the sexual prac-
tices that oug.it not to be condoned? I don’t know how you condone
them by taking those facts I don’t understand, but—and that’s the
question.

It's the nature of the input. I mean, I'm sure the document, I will
stipulate, that the document will be a risk assessment. You told me
that, and I'm sure it will be, and that education was meaningful.
Now let’s get beirond that to my question. Have they been giving
you kind of ideological or value-oriented suggestion to change the
nature of what you would do medically?

Dr. WinpoM. No. I do not feel that—no. It will not change th»
nature of our program.

Dr. HarMisON. Congressman, I think one of the most important
parts in addressing this disease i8 getting behavioral changes; med-
ical judgment is not the only avenue through which those changes
occur.

Mr. FraNk. I think so—I agree with that too. But sooner or later
you come to these hearings you're going to be told things that ev-
erybody knows, and I appreciate that. It has always been true, and
surely you have to do that.

But since you volunteered, will you answer my question?

I didn’* ask you to talk, but if you want tc, that’s perfectly OK if
you would answer my question as part of what you have to say.

Dr. HarmisoNn. I think the answer to the question is no. The De-
partment of Education, through Secretary Bennett, has provided
input to look at the full spectrum of issues as viewed by the De-
partment of Education. We Put the same emphasis on timely re-
sponse that was in Dr. Noble's——

Mr. Frank. I didn’t ask you about time of response. It shouldn’t
be that hard. I didn’t ask you about time of response.

Dr. HARMISON. We got valuable information from the Depart-
mer;lt ofl Education. We did not compromise our medical judgment
in the plan.

ERIC 6
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Mr. FRANK. Was the agreement between Dr. Koop and Dr. Ben-
nett—it looked like some changes in what Dr. Koop had originally
said. Is that accurate, or am I misreading that?

Dr. Winpom. Well, I talked to Dr. Koop and to Mr. Bennett. 1
met with them because there was a great deal of publicity out
there that they were having a fight and disagreeing. They spoke
out aud, I think, i.ave very similar thoughts about how to approach
tnis subject. That’s why they came forth with that statement.

Mr. FRANK. These series of events, Dr. Koop’s statement, the
statement between Bennett and Koop doesn’t reflect any disagree-
ment between them?

Dr. Winpou. No, it was a combined statement.

Mr. FRang. I understand that, Doctor. Do you believe it?

Dr. WiNnoouM. Yes, sir.

Mr. FrRank. You may be the only person in this room who does.

Dr. Winpoz4. Is that right?

Mr. Frank. And I don’t think you do, but I understand the con-
straints you’re under. That’s why I didn’t——

Dr. HarwvsoN. Well, there’s a benefit of having first-hand knowl-
edge of those discussions. I think the discussions were very amica-
ble, and the dimensions of what each was saying were very careful-
ly understood.

Mr. FrRank. Well, again, you kiniow, peop'e can disagree without
yelling at each other, as I hope we are manifesting today. But the
questiou—you're telling me that there was no disagreement be-
tween Dr. Koop and Mr. Bennectt? That Mr. Bennett didn’t feel
that Dr. Koop, in {alking about sex education at an early age, or
any of these things, was doing anything wrong, or was not properly
value, maybe?

Dr. HarMIsON. Well, I think there were perceptual views of what
possibly each had said.

Mr. FRank. Perceptual views? What'’s that?

Dr. HarmisoN. Well, I think that there were a lot of things re-
ported about what each had said, or had not said.

Mr. FrRang. Well, you mean Koop and Bennett were reading
about each other in the paper, and incorrectly inferred that there
were? disagreements when they were really in agreement all the
time?

Dr. HarmisoN. All I can address i3 the direct discussions.

Mr. Frank. All right, you're not under oath, Doctor. You can say
whatever you want.

Dr. Harmisor. All right, I think that the point here was demon-
strated by the chairman. I don’t expect you to talk openly about
the se disagreements. I don’t think we ought to pretend that they're
~at there, and I think we have a real problem here, that we have
political and ideological agendas which are slowing things down
and, as the chairman says, when you slow things dowr,, you are
causing deaths, not intentionally.

People are well intended, but the fact i~ that the later this infor-
mation comes—if you believe education has any value, then in this
area you kelieve in saving lives—the more people who don’t read it
and do something that they could have been deterred from doing,
and they die. And maybe they spread the disease to other people.

7
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And secondly, 1 think we are getting a dilution, and I think that is
unfortunate.

Mr. FrRaNK. I've been arguing—I would tell you, I would like to
think that the Feveral Government is capable of doing the job of
educating, but—and I am not suggesting that it's the Federal role
to tell people that cert 1in kinds of sexual practices are good or bad.
I'm a little surprised frankly, to have conservatives announce that
it's their job—I thought these were people who believe in a limited
role of the Federal Government. When they want to set the Feder-
al Government up as the arbiter of truly consenting private sex
fantasies among adults, I guess I don’t understand limited Govern-
ment very well.

But they have the constitutional right to do anything witn that
they want. But when it retards medical people giving the best
advice, and that seems to be clearly happening, then I think we
have a problem, and I think the chairman did 2 good job of demon-
strating that, and I think the hearing is important for this reason,
and I don’t rogllll{ expect you to say very much, except that we
hope that we will be demonstrating by these hearings, that there
are people in Congress, and I thini: in the majority in Congress, if
you lovk at the way we have voted on these things, who under-
etand that the dest possible medical information is what people
ought to have and want to have, and those who think that particu-
lar individuals don’t behave in the proper way are free to say so,
but they shouldn’t be retarding medical information when they do

it

Thanks. T have no furthe: questions.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Frank.

We will move on to another area, but related.

Dr. Windom, I understand that the Government’s public informa-
tion program was originally coordinated out of tne Office of the As-
?istant Secretary for Health and was transferred to the CDC in At-
anta.

When was that done and why?

Dr. WinpoMm. The education plan?

Mr. Weiss. The Government’s public information program was
originally coordinated out of your office.

Dr. Dowdle, Dr. Noble, do you know when that was transferred
to Atlanta, to CDC?

Dr. Winpom. In late November last year, when I directed them
to go ahead and deve!  ..e plan. And that included the produc-
«ion of it, implementstion, and followup.

Mr. Weiss. We have memorandums indicating that that was
done sometime in 1984 or 1985. Why it was moved from Washing-
ton to Atlanta?

Dr. WiNpom. If it was done in 1984, it was done, I'm sure, with
the idea in mind that CDC had within it the people who would best
be able to put the plan together and carry it out, because they deal
with disease control and prevention activities already.

Mr. WEeiss. OK. In August 1985, the Director of the Department’s
Office of Public Affairs, a person named Shelly Lengel, the Chief
Public Health Service Informatic Officer, expresses serious con-
gems about the status of the Government’s AIDS information ef-
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Dr. Dowdle, were you and Dr. Mas.. .°ware of her concerns or
any other problems in the program 2 that time? And to refresh
your recollection, let me indicate tha’ .2 a memorandum that she
wrote to Dr. Mason on August 26, she said:

As you know, you and I discussed, and it was my idea to move the public informa-
tion program to Atlanta. However, it has not worked well.

For instance, it took 9 months to update “Facts About AIDS.” Our three video-
tapes are outdated and have been shelved, and there has been no new project under-
taken. With a subject like AIDS, I don’t think you can be reactive. You mast be
aggressive in getting information to the public.

I assume that Dr. Mason got that letter. Were you aware of it, or
that memorandum?

Dr. DowpLe. Yes.

Mr. Weiss. And what was your response to that?

Dr. DowpLe. Well, I think we need to recognize that the first ef-
forts of the Public Health Service in the information and education
area were directed toward those at increased risk, and most of that
effort was directed through the States in assisting them in develop-
ing their own information and education programs, includinz later
demonstration projects and innovative risk-reduction projects.

What she was referring to was the specific activities in the public
area.

Mr. We:ss. Yes.

Dr. DowpLe. CDC's activities to that point represented primarily
providing information through the Morbidity and Mortality
Weekly Report and developing guidelines. What she was talking
about was the need to get more information out into the public
area. We quite agreed with her commerds.

Mr. Weiss. Well, again, this is not an outside critic. This is the
Chief Public Information Officer for the Department of Health and
Human 3ervices.

Dr. DowpLk. That'’s correct.

Mr. Weiss. Who is saying that “it was my idea to get it down to
you guys in Atlanta, because I thought that it was centralized
there, you could do a better job, and it took you nine months to
update the Facts About AIDS pamphlet.” She then goes through
another series of things that you did not do or had gotten outdated.

It seems to me that that’s somebody above you expressing con-
~:rn of implementation of programs that were already in place.
Never mind w~ cher tl.ey were sufficient, but they were in the
place, and, in fact, nothing sufficient was being done to keep them
operative.

Dr. DowpLe. Well, I think that Ms. Lengel’s point was a good
one. She also did ar excellent job in developing materials—as well
as in collaboration with the other agencies—and getting these out
in collaboration with the Red Cross. Many that you see here, in
fact, Ms. Lenge! was instrumental in doing. Other agencies were
also assisting.

Mr. WEeiss. Now that same memorandum, that August 26 memo-
rendum, urged that an ad hoc advisory group on AIDS information
be created and that members all be communications specialists, not
program people.

When did that ad hoc group first meet?

»y ey
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Dr. DowpLe. Well, there were actually several groups. I don’t re-
member the exact time.

Mr. Weiss. We have a date indicating that it was November 19,
1985. Do -rou have any reason to disagree with that?

Dr. Cownte. No, that'’s correct.

Mr. Wamss. OK.

Dr. DowpLk. That’s right.

Mr. Weiss. Who particip ted in that ad hoc group?

Dr. DowpLe. There were a number of outside organizaticns. I
was not present, but largely these were people who were experts in
public informatios types of activities.

Mr. Weiss. Right. According to the November 4th minutes of
1985, the ad hoc group was comprised of four advertising agencies,
the Red Cross, the American Public Health Association, the AMA,
gay rights organizations, and others.

The ad hoc group was presented with a new AIDS information
plan at its November 1985 meeting. As you’d indicated, that plan
had gone back to November, snd in addition made some specific
recommendations for immediate action.

Do you know what those specific recommendations were?

Dr. DowpLe. Those recommendations again related to the need
for public information, and if I recall them correctly, they were for
specific activities. I don’t remember the exact details.

Mr. WEiss. One of the recommendations was for the creation of a
coordinating council.

Do you know if that coordinating council wa- ever created, and if
80, is that Coordin~ting Council for AIDS Information the same as
what you now call she National Clearinghouse?

Dr. DowbLE. No, sir, that’s not the same.

Mr. Weiss. Tell us when the Coordinating Council was created.

Dr. DowbLe. Well, the Coordinating Council was to be an out-
growth of that ad hoc group that got together. There were several
meetings of that group which expanded to an even larger meeting
in the srring of 1986 at NIH. That meeting consisted of representa-
tives of a still larger number of groups that were working on AIDS
information and education programs.

Mr. Wass. Is it still in existence?

Dr. DowpLE. No, sir.

Mr. V.E1ss. When was it disbanded?

Dr. DowbLE. It was not actually a formal group. It was never a
formal group. .

Mr. Wziss. Has the Natior ' Clearinghouse on AIDS Information
been yut into operation?

Dr. DowbpLe. The National Clearinghouse on AIDS is now in the
form of a request for a contract. It's u “or revicw at the present
tﬁef:ﬁd should be—the clearinghouse shoulc be ins force sometime
thi .

May I point out, though, that clearing..ouse activities are taking
place right now. In fact, the hotline does also provide information
on a when-requested basis.

Mr. Wriss. Right. The request for proposa's was icsued when?
March 4, I understand; is that correct?

Dr. DowpLE. I’'m sorry, sir?
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Mr. Weiss. The request for proposals for the National Clee ing-
house on AIDS Information was issued on March 4.

Dr. DowpLe. Well, it hasn’t been actually issued yet. It's in
review right now.

Mr. Wess. It's in review?

Dr. DowpLe. Yes, sir.

Mr. Weiss. I understand, according to the contract proposal, that
it will not start operating until 6 months after the currently pro-
posed contract date, which is June 30; is that correct?

Dr. DowbpLE. That's correct. We still hope we caa hold to that
date, right.

Mr. Weiss. That means, then, that the earliest operation date is
December 30 1987, if all goes well; isn’t tha* correct?

Dr. DowpLE. That's correct.

Mr. Wriss. That’s an awfully long gap, don’t ycu think?

Dr. DowbLE. But I would like to point out that clearinghouse op-
erations are in place by a number of differert organizations, as
well as States. In fact, CDC supports clearinghouse operations
within States.

Mr. Wess. I know. But you were calling for a national clearing-
house; isn't that correct?

Dr. DowpLE. That's correct.

Mr. Wess. Right.

Dr. Dow. k. That’s correct.

Mr. Wriss. You still think that it’s important to have the nation-
al clearinghouse?

Dr. DowpLE. Oh, absolutely.

Mr. Waiss. Is the delay due, at least in part, to the fact that the
OMB initially rejected the proposal for the AIDS Clearinghouss?

Dr. DowpLE. Well, not this parti .ar clearinghouse that we're
discussing here; no, sir.

Mr. WEiss. We have a memorandum indicating that, in fact, you
won an appeal from the OMB when they had rejected the clearing-
house request.

g)r. DowbLE. Jh, is that the 1988 budget request you're referring
to?

Mr. Werss. Yes.

Dr. DowpLE. Well, that's not the present one and, in fact, that
has not affected the present one at all. That referred “c 1987
money.

Mr. Weiss. Also that OMB approved the 1987 clearinghouse?

Dr. DowpLE. Yes.

Mr. Weiss. But they rejected cox:tinuation of it for the fiscal 1988
budget; is that correct?

; Dr. DowpLe. Yes. Dr. Windom, would you want to say some-
Dr. Winpom. I asked Mr. Harell Little, our budget analyst, to
comment,

Mr. Weiss. What is your name again, sir.

Mr. LirriE. Little, L-i-t-t-l-e.

Mr. Wess. Right, Mr. Little.

Mr. Lrrrie. The situation with our requests, 1987 and 1988, to
OMB, is this. they did not include funds for a clearinghouse, based
on our recommendations that came out of Coolfont.

ry.;
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Subsequently, the Congress passed an appropriation in 1987 for a
clearinghouse activity at CDC. The OMB passback, of course, did
not include funds for the clearinghouse, although funds were in-
cluded in 1987. It did not include funds in the 1988 budget, because
we hadn’t asked for them.

We then went back and appcaled to the OMB for the continu-
ation cost of that clearinghouse. "herefore, it is included in both
the 1987 and the 1988 budget.

Mr. Wess. Right. But it is true, is it not, Dr. Dewdle, that the
clearinghouse concept—while it may not have been formally re-
quested by the agency because of internal discussions in the vari-
ous levels of the Government—originally emanated from within
the Public Health Service; isn’t that correct?

Dr. DowpLE. Yes, sir.

Mr. Weiss. And when the administration rejection came through,
Congress, based on this knowledge of what had been requested in-
ternally, decided to give you the money; it that correct?

[Pause.]

Mr. WEiss. Yes, that is correct.

Now the 1985 plan called for formation of an ad hoc communica-
tione group to advise the Public Health Service on need and meth-
ods fc . reaching various segments of the public.

Has that been done? Have you created an ad hoc communica-
tions group?

Dr. DowpLe. That was the group that Ms. Lengel was referring
to, the ad hoc group, which did meet on several occasions.

Mr. Wesss. Is there an ongoing group in existence currently?

Dr. DowpLE. Actually, the present plan involves looking at this
in a different way. It's become a much larger type of operation, and
particularly now with CDC having responsibility for being the lead
agency.

Mr. WEsss. The 1985 plan also called for the creation and imple-
mentation of a “Master Distribution Plan” for all AIDS materials
in fiscal year 1986. Has this been done?

Dr. DowbLE. The effort= on the distribution of the materials that
you see here were actually carried out in collaboration with the
Red Cross and with the States, as well as with other community
service providers.

Mr. Weiss. What does that mean?

Dr. DowpLe. All these information/education materials were pro-
vided to the States. They were provided to anyone who had an
AIDS information/education progrs 3, and also were made avail-
able through the hotline to anyone who wanted tlhiem.

Mr. Werss. Is it your answer that the “Master Distribution
Plan,” which was called for in the 1985 plau, was achieved?

Dr. DowpLe. I think what was achieved was through utilization
of as many channels as possible. We did that, short of the clearing-
house we're talking about now.

Mr. Weiss. The 1985 plan reflects that the Public Health Service
lé::d undertsken a small media campaign with the American Red

088.
anogv murh Federal support was involved for that grant; do you
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Dr. DowbpLE. We can get the sums fc- you, sir. I don’t have the
exact figures.

Mr. Weiss. Our information is $100,000. Do you har .ny reuson
to disagree with that?

LCr. DowpLe. That’s probably about right.

Mr. Weiss. The November 1985 plan also included < half million
doars to produce and distribute videotapes through the National
Institutes of Health outreach programs.

Was that done at any time in 1986, Dr. Hill?

Dr. HiLL. We have not done that yet, sir, but we are planning a
larger program to di. ribute tapes of this type, perhaps through
medical schools and universities.

Mr. Wesss. You are planning to do that?

Dr. HiL. Yes. We have not done that.

Mr. Weiss. You have not done that, although that was a 1985
proposal.

CDC had its own title, “Separatz Plan for Community Level
Health Education,” at that point.

Dr. Dowdle, do you have a copy of that plan with you, the “Sepa-
rate Plan for Community Level Health Education”?

Dr. DowbpiLe. No, sir, I don’t. But what that consisted of was the
information/education grants which were Frovided to the States.

Mr. Wess. In January 1986, a revised “Facts on AIDS” was ap-
parently available for distribution.

How was that distribution accomplished?

Dr. DowpLe. Well, there is an organization which distributes
these facts under contract with the Public Health Service, and I
have the address of the organization here. It’s InterAmerica Re-
search. The address goes out in the Surgeon General’s report and
in other information provided by the Public Health Service. An in-
dividual may write to this organization and get copies of AIDS ma-
terials. We’ve also sent these materials to all the AIDS organiza-
tions and &ll individuals with information/education activities.

Mr. WEeiss. When was that contract entered into?

Dr. DowpLE. Perhaps a year and a half to 2 years ago.

Mr. WEiss. And how much is that contract for, do you know?

Dr. DowbLE. I really don’t know. It’s a contract #» distribute to
the public publications provided by the Public Health Service.

Mr. WEeiss. Can you tell us how many copies of the publications
were distributed by tiiem?

Dr. DowpLE. We can tell you what items are being distributed;
yes, sir. I can’t tell you the exact number of how many have been
distributed right now, but we can provide that to you.

Mr. Werss. So you don’t know whether a million copies or 15
copies were distributed?

Dr. DowpLE. Over time hundreds of thousands of copies have
been distributed.

Mr. Wgiss. Over the years. Over how many yea.s?

Dr. DowbLE. Over a year to a year and a half.

Mr. Weiss. We have an indication with regard to the “Facts on
AIDS” pamphlet, that photostats were given to each Public Health
Service agency and the 10 regional offices, so that they could print
(l:gglses for distribution. This comes from the minates of January 13,
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thVa;, that a method of distribution for the “Facts on AIDS” pam-
phiet?

Dr. DownLE. Yes.

Mr. Wemss. Kow =any copies of the brochure were sent out in
this manner by the regional offices and the Public Health Service
agencies?

Dr. DowpLE. Well, I :hink it's very difficult to get an aztual
number of these, because we often provide camera-ready copy to
other organizations and ask them to reprint them themselves. So tc
get a precise number on how many have . en distributed would be
virtually it mossible.

Mr. Weis. You'd ki »w how many copies your 10 regional offices
distributed, would you aot?

Dr. DowpLE. They would, yes, but +e States do their own re-
printing and distribution, so we woulc ..ot know the exact number
unless we asked each individual State for this information.

Mr. WEiss. Is there an ongoing mechanism by which the regional
offices report in regarding the distribution of materials during any
particular timeframe?

Dr. DowpLE. We have not put such a reporting mechanism in
place. I'm sure we could go back and try to get some estimate of
how many have been distributed.

Mr. Wess. In January 1986, HHS Secretary Dr. Bowen indicared
that he wanted to personally initiate a weekly radio show on AIDS
information.

Was that done?

Dr. DownpLE. I'm sorry, sir. I missed that point.

Mr. Weiss. In January 1986, Dr. Bowen indicated that he wanted
to personally initiate a weekly radio show on AIDS information.

When was that done, if it was done?

Dr. DowpLE. We were involv:d in developing the script for that
show, but I think it’s actually planned later on this spring or
summer. I'm not certain of the time.

Mr. WEiss. Dr. Windom.

Dr. WinpoM. There were a number of those programs in early
1986 and throughout the year. But I'm not certain of the regularity
of them, sir, and exactly how many dealt with AIDS. He covers
many different health issues.

Mr. Weiss. No. The January 13, 1986, minutes indicate that “Sec-
retary Bowen has indicated his interest in weekly radio news mes-
sages wherein reporters could p' one him and obtain information
on AIDS.”

Could you, for the record, submit {0 us what was done to imple-
ment that interest on the part of the Secretary?

Dr. Winbom. Yes, sir.

[The information follows:]
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Office of the Secretary
Wazhngton DC 20201
.
MEMORANDUM
TC: Bob Irwin

Public Health Service

FROM: James A, Miller
Office of Public Affairs

SUBJECT: “Housecalls" series

Dr. Bowen has been doing a weekly radio series of messages
"Housecalls™ for 15 months. The very first "Housecalls®
program aired, in February 1986, talked about the nationwide
shortage of blood ca.se) by tr2 fear of AIDS. Subsequently
the Surgeon General began development of his report on AIDS
which was i{ssued last October. It is felt that it would be
premature for the Secretary to make pronouncements on
thisimportant subject yhile that report was still in
Preparation. 1In the months immediately following the
issuance of the Surgeon General's report Dr. KoopP was the
point person for the Department on this subject. y1pn January
of this year, Dr. Bowen spoke about AIDS at the National
Press Club, a speech carr.ed on national public radio to
hundreds of stations and .ne which received wide public
nNotice.

As we 2iscussed, Secre-a* : Bowen plans to record a special
"Housecalls® series on M.y 26, 1987, At the same time, we
will videotape two television spots and record two or more
radio spots for the National Association of Broadcasters.
NAB will satellite teed them to R0O TV stations and 4,700
radio stations early in June.

I hope this helps you. If there is any more information you
need please let me know.

’) -
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Mr. Wemss. In February 1986, another AlDS public information
program was prepared. Among its many recommendations were
the following: “at this point, a primary need for fiscal year 1927 is
sophisticated market research.”

. Windom, in the course of your prepured testimony you talked
about marke. research. Specifically, what market research was un-
dertaken at that time and what were the results?

Dr. WiNDOM. I'm not aware of early 1986 research efforts.

Mr. Wetss. You said for fiscal year 1987. We are now halfway
throug‘% fiscal year 1987.

Dr. WinpoM. Well, in the program that is beiug planned, further
media involvement in disseminating our information is underway.
Dr. Dowdle may comment on that.

Mr. Wriee. Dr. Dowdle.

Dr. DowpLE. Weil, that is of course part of the ad agency Cu.-
tract. There would be an evaluation before any campaign would be
conducted and after the campaign.

Mr. WEiss. But so far, nothing; right?

Dr. Dowbpie. I might also point out that with the information-
education grants thai uave been given to the States, most States
have been requested and have compliea with evaluation before and
after their programs. We have information coming in now from the
various States which is quite helpful in determining what the level
of knowledge is within those particular areas.

Mr. WEiss. P'm nol a market research expert and I suspect you
may not be eithez, but I think both of us know that evaluation of
programs after presentation is not the same as market research.

Dr. Downte. I agree, sir.

Dr. HarmiIsoN. Mr. Chairman, I might point out that the Nation-
al Institute on Drug Abuse let a contract in 1986 to look at how v~
get the message out on IV drug abuse and things of that nature,
which is a part of this overall effort. We can supply for the record
the contract and its objective and what it has accomplished.

Mr. Weiss. Say that again. You had - contract?

Dr. Harmison. £ vontract explorin, how to move the message
out on IV drug atuse was let by one of the institutes within
ADAMHA for exploring that question. The contract was let in
early 1986. I don’t have the details at my tingertips, but we would
be pleased to provide that for the record.

Mr. Weiss. It would be worthwhile and helpful to have it.

[The information furnished is in the appendix, see p. 193.]

Mr. "erss. The February 1986 plan also called for ‘a mass media
campaign with particular emphasis cn young peo;;)le who have not
been specifically addressed by our previous efforts.”

I'm sure there were earlier calls for mass media campaigns. Why
we » it that only 2 weeks ago, at least a year after the recognition
or the need, that a proposal to do a mass media campaign was fi-
nally issued?

Dr. Wrvpom. Well, this is part of our centinuing development of
that program. Of course, many in the school systems have been in-
formed and we have responded to their requests. It is part of the
implementation of our plan tc do it in a more organized way.

r. Weiss. No, we are talking about the mass media campaign.
Again, my understsading is that part of it—the request for propos-
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als for a mass media campaign—was prepared at lea: . as late ay
January 12 of this year.

Dr. DowpLe. That's why we are hiring the ad agency. That’s part
of the total package.

Mr. WEiss. We have not been able to find a dollar amount in
that contract proposal. When our staff inquired about it, we were
told that the contract for mass media campaign was planned to be
$1 million this year; is that correct?

Dr. DowpLe. That’s for the ad agency, sir. That wouldn’t be the
entire cost of the campaign.

Mr. Wgss. What do you have in mind for the cost of the cam-
paign itself?

Dr. DowpLg. Well, in tho area of public information, we have set
aside something like $6 million now to cover all of that.

Mr. Wriss. t would be for what year?

Dr. DowpLE. For 1987.

Mr. Wriss. For fiscal 1987.

Dr. DowpLe. Yes. But I should %gnt out though, as Dr. Windom
saia earlier, that our efforts will be multiplied manyfold by other
organizations, both private and public, and the media in getting
out these public messages. We would anticipate that we wculd be
working with others in getting these messages out.

Mr. Weiss. I know, but in this hearing and our series of hearings
we are discussing as to the Federal response. I know thank good-
ness, that there are other people out there doing things. Our con-
ce: n is what and through what agency the Federal Government is
comng things.

Under that new contract proposal, how long will it be until ads
actually appear in newspapers or on TV?

Dr. DowpLE. We should let the contract sometime in June. We
are hoping to get the program moving sometime this fall.

Mr. WEeiss. Again, the question is when will the ads actually
appear? According to the provisionc within the proposed RFP, it
will be 40 weeks after the contract date of June 21, 1986. Forty
weeks is next March or April. At the earliest, it seems to me,
under a best case scenario, those ads will not actually appear until
around March or April 1988; isn’t that correct?

Dr. Dowpre. No, sir. We expect to have something before then.
Even in the process of replying to the RFC, the companies that will
be responding will have given considerable thought to the final
product. We feel that we certainly should be able to get somethin
from that contract by the fall.

Mr. Weiss. Again, I have before me in the request for proposal,
the plans for TV and radio Tﬁroductions, and pretesting and cam-
paign planning workshops. These datc™ range from 26 to 30 weeks
after contract award. One is for 26 to 30 weeks after contract
award. The last is for 40 weeks after contract award.

i don’t know on what basis you are projecting early fall or any
time in the fall. According to those contract provisions, it seems to
me you are talking about 1988.

There was also recognition, at about the same time in February
1986, of the need to bring in groups such as the National Education
Association, the Americon Federation of Teachers, the National
PTA in the AIDS information activity. Has that been done?
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Dr. DowbLE. We heve brought in a number of organizations. I
can’t tell you the ¢ ._fic names of those organizations, but they
are in the education field. They have met with CDC and have
worked with CDC in developing draft guideli.ies and broad ouwlines
of what an education program ought to consist of. That has been
done; yes, sir.

Mr. Wgiss. The February 1986 (Flan suggested the need for infor-
mation specifically geared toward students on college campuses to
be done In conjunction with the American College Health Associa-
tion. What is tne status of that program?

Dr. DowpLE. That has not been don > yet.

Mr. Wriss. On March 26, 1986, you conducted a Public Health
Service conference on AIDS information and education activities.
Who was invited to that conference and what were its recommen-
dations?
edWe have the recommendations. I don’t have a list of who attend-

it.

Dr. DowbLE. I'ta sorry. I'm not aware of what you are referring
to

Mr. Weiss. I'm going to ask you to look at a copy of it and to
respond for the recorg after looking at it. I'm going to ask you
some specific questions about it.

One important recommendation at that meeting was that the
Public Health Service should develop a national strategy for edu-
cating health care providers. What has been done in that area, and
sKeci ically, what did the conference attendees think was needed at
that point?

Dr. DowbLE. For health care providers?

Mr. Weiss. Yes.

Mr. HiLL. I don’t recognize this, Mr. Chairman, but the National
Institute of Allergy ana Infectious Diseases as a part of this out-
reach effort did convene a consultant group at about that time. We
asked for advice on our outreach efforts, which have been a series
of conferences in the past for health care providers. We have asked
for their advice on how we should target our populations and our
conferences for the next year to include nurses and social workers.
I'm not sure whether this is it.

If I could just back up on the previous question. that I didn’t
answer as far as the videotape, our plan at that time had been to
videotape our large conferences for health care provicers, and we
did in fact videotape them. They turned out to be abo'it 8 hours of
fairly boring didactic-tw)e presentations, and they weren't felt suit-
able for distribution. We have not backed up and made plans for
more appropriate tapes.

Mr. Weiss. The memorandu’'n that I asked you to ook at, Dr.
Dowdle, is from Shelly Lengel, Direc'~r of the Office .f Public Af-
fairs. It is to attendees of the Public tHealth Service conference on
AIDS information and education activities, on March 26, 1986. It
says:

Thanks to all of li'ou who took time from your busy schedules to meet with us on
this important subject of AIDS information and education efforts. The Public

Health Service «:tendees I have spoken with who attended the meeting thought it
was worthwhile . . . et cetera.

Do any of you have any recollection as to what——
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Dr. DowpLE. Yes, I'm sorry. I misunderstood the date you were
referring to.

Mr. WEiss. March 26, 1986.

Dr. DowpLe. Yes, that's one of the groups that I had referred to
earlier that had been convened by Ms. Lengel. What you have
there are the recommendations from that group. These were indi-
viduals who were invo! /ed in information/education programs.

Mr. WEiss. One suggestion of that March conference was that a
followup assessment take place at a similar meeting in the fall of
1986. Do you know if that second conference was ever held?

Dr. DowpLE. No, sir I don’t think it was.

Mr. Weiss. Dr. Dowdle, 1 am now turning to CDC’s School Health
Education Initiative. Give us some idea of how that preject got
started and when you and Dr. Mason first reviewed any plans for
it.

Dr. DowpLE. Recalling anything in AIDS is a major problem. Ev-
erything runs together as far as time.

Mr. Weiss. We have a May 15, 1986, memoraadum which indi-
cates that by at least that date, Dr. Mason had made specific
changes in a draft initiative. You may be able to give us an earlier
time.

[The memorandum follows:)
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Note to: Joho Besnert, CID
Don Berreth, OPA
James Curres, CID
Donald Hopkins 0D
Marths Katsz, OPPE
Steve Margolis, CPS
Cene Matthevs, 0GC
3111 Muldoon, OPS
Clevde Pickelsime~. THO
Kathy Rufo, OD
Sue Tosl, CPS

Attsched 1is our ent draft of so initistive for School Heelth Educstion to
Preveot AIDS. We lw. L m_ 0 io
the Mondsy, Msy 12, AIDS budget meeting. Tt is coxprehensive 1n that it .
covers the risks of sexual behavior ss well ss IV drug use sud it builds oo
CDC*s existing capsbility in the field of school health ss vell as vell
Tecognized nationsl professional netvorks and cuiriculs.

Ve would sppraciste Your couments directly to Lloyé Kolbe, ext. 3923, either
1o writiog (margin sozes or othervis * or by phooe br noon Fridsy, Fay 16th,
1 possidle. 1f major rethioking of the propossl is mot required, ve would
thes incorporste Decessary changes and be ready to fizalize the laizls:tive
early oext week,

1f there sTe others vho should see this drsft, plesse lec me know.
Thank you,

-

Ciony Bales
CHPE
Ext. 2836
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SCHOOL HEALTH EDUCATION TO PREVENT AIDS (FY 87)

Every school dsy, more than 47 million students attend 90,000 elementsry and
secondary schools in 15,500 school districts scross the Nation. A large
proportion of these studmt: will be at increased risk for contracting and
spreading HTLVIII/LAV, the virus that causes AIDS. Most males and females
will experience interconru before they graduate from high school, and nost
will engage in sequential monogamy or nonmonogsmous relationships for several
yesrs before marrying. Severel studies suggest that a sizable sroportion of
young people will experiment in at least one homosexual activity before
rcaching adulthood. Many students will discover their bisexual or homosexual
orientation. HMany ¢ her students will experiment with intravenous drugs
during late adoleicence and early adulthcods By reaching 90-93% of our young
people, the Nat{an's schools could provide an appropriste and efficient
vehicle to educate s critical segment of the public about AIDS, and about
means to reduce spread of the virus that causes ir. Indeed, several studies
indicate that people have changed or are willing to change their behavior in
response to fear of acquiring or transmitting STDs in genersl (1-3). and AIDS
in particular (4).

Adainistrators in each of our nearl 16,000 school districts largely are left
srithout public health leadership and resources, and must rely on sketchy
inforaation about AIDS provided by the medix, as they each autonomously
struggle to develop school policies and educstional programs sbout AIDS for
their respective faculty -tudents, and parints. These school officials are
far less effective, and become confused and discouraged, when they are
required to seek and integrate inforwstion about Intrsvenous drug use and A.DS
froa one Federal agency, information sbout means to reduce sexual transaission
of HTLVIIT/LAV from a second Federsl agency, and assistan.e in formulacing
policies sbout students or fsculty who may be infected from a third. They
becone further discouraged when they must seek and coordinste opinions and
asgistance from State and local health depsit-: :ts as well as from State and
locsl educstion depsrtments; and when they sre reqnired to seek and integrate
opinions and resources of relevant professional and voluntary heslth and
education :rganfzations in the private sector.

The Office of School Health Programs (OSHP) in the Division of Health
Education (DHE), Center for Health Promotion and Education (UHPE), at the
Centers for Disesse Control (CDC) proposes to easble the Nation's schools to
substantielly contribute to the primary prevention of AIDS by educazing a
critical segment of .he public about AIDS, and sbout specific means to reduce
its spresd. The OSHP wiil utilize the school health net.orks, relationships,

and experience it has established in nstionslly developing and disceminating
its elesentary and secondary school health education curricula, and other
schocl health curriculs scd interventioas, during t!e past 20 years. More
specifically, the OSHP proposes to simultaneously conduct the six
compleaentary activities outlined below.

s,
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1. D"H“l m‘ni“n and Mational Lesdership for School Heslch Educstion

A nstional coslition of relevant sgencies and leaders periodically will be
convened: to provide geveral direction and technical sssistance for the
{nitistive; to coordinate and integrste relevant plsces, aciivities, and
resources of ‘mportaat jublic and privste sector sgencies; and, to ensure
that the initiative is scceptable to various constituencies. Illustrstive
of Fedstal agencies that could contribute to such s coalition are the U.S.
Department of Educstion, the’ Center for "revention Services and Center for
Infectious Disesses, CDC, ADAMEA the National Institute on Drug Abuse, snd
the Divisior of Msternsl aod Child Bealth (HRSA)-

Professional snd voluntsry organizstions that havs expressed interest in
providing school educstion about AIDS faoclude the American School Kealth
Associstion, the American Associstion of School Administrstors, the
Aserican Red Cross, the Nationsl Center for Health C.acstion, the Kr ‘onal
Associstion of Sch ol Boards, the Associstion of State and Territorial
Health Officers, the Nationsl Zongress of Psrent and Teacher Associstions,
the American Academy of Pedistrics, and the Nstional School Health
ziycstion Coalition. Most of these nstioral privste sector educstion and
health organizstions have Stste and local sffiliates that consequently cso
z1p schools {n comaunities throughout the U.S. to provide effective
education about HTLVIII/LAV infection snd AIDS. Tbe OSHP has
vell-estsblished working relationships with esch of the public and privste
sector orgsnizations listed sbove.

7 principal associstions @ $50,000 esch, plus 10 secondary sssocistions &
$25,000 each = $600,000 + 20% indirece = $720,000

2. Develop and Dis‘eminste Educstional Msterisls and Curriculs to Prevent AIDS
There is an ur,nt nesd (1) to develop and sspidly disseninate relstively
brief and high focused information about AIDS to schools that want to
provide such fnformation quickly; and, (2) to develop more curricula for
schools that want to assure that their students are smore thoroughly
informed sbout AIDS and means to reduce the $pread of these virus that
~suses {it.

Hithin the first year of the proposed initistive, velstively brief and
highly focused educstional materisls about AIDS will be prepared or sdapted
and disseainated to: (a) elementary, secondary, and co’ ege students, (b)
teachers, (c) school sdministrstors sod bosrds, (d) parents and other
concerned cosaunity members and (e) young people who msy not be attending
schools or colleges.

Within the second year, more sophisticated and extensive curricula about
AIDS will daveloped: by Tevising the OSHP's elementary school Growving
Health curricnlum to sddress AIDS; by adding s ncw module sbout AIDS to

the OSEP's secondary school Teenage Hsslch Tesching Modules; aad, by
expanding the Center for Prevention Services’ curriculum on STD: A Guide

85




i

81

Page 3 - AIDS Education

for Todays's You:g Adults. These materfala and curricula will be deaigned:
(a ) to focus on those specific populations end behaviors that asost
influence the transmisaion of AIDS (as suggested by Che firat paragraph of
this proporsl); (b) to incorporate our understandings about educa®for °
techniques cthat heve proven mosp successful in modifying auch beh.sfora
(e.g., increasing decision-making skilla and resistance to persnasion);
and, (c) to enaure that the materials and curricula are acceptable and
feasible for schoola to adopt and safntain. Equally if not more important,
umodel teacler training proceducres that school districta can use to help
school Jai-ity understand and teach about AIDS will be developed
(incorporating the brief educational materials aa well as the xore
extensive curricula descrided above). Furtb -, means to disseminate the
teacher traiuing procedurea and edvcationa. iterials will be
systems~icslly developed. 1In addition, techniques will be developed to
enable school faculty and other youth woriers (e.g., Job Corps and
recreation staff) to tariet and provide edrcation about AIDS to school-ige

youth who are not attending school. Relatedi~, the OSHP A1l wopk wit
vjtious Mational television radigrbro. vera’ rifocisticns to ghi-ign

ajf messages/that wvil couragé€ yo people - ‘seek conyf‘\(th
inf recgnfiedations 40 avoid VI2i/LAV infection.

¥inally, fastrunents that already are being used tn provide data sbout
important student health knowledge, attitudes, and risks will be expanded
to addreas AIDS. New instruments also will be devised to enable schoola
and colleges to specifically assess che AIDS knowledge and risks of their
respective student populations. These instruments can be u<ed b; schools
to focus the.s educational programs on priority AIDS knowledge and risks;
they can be used to evaluate the outcomes of such prograas; and they can be
used to assess State and nat’onal improveaents in studect AIDS knowledge
and risks over time.

To rapidly develop and disseminate brief education materials, to revise
Groviag Healtay, to develop a new Teenage Health Teaching Module on AIDS,
to expand STD: A Caide for Today's Young Multz, and to revise and develop
fastruments to measure siudent knowledge and risks related to AIDS = $1.45
willion + 20T Ladirzct = $1.74 aillion.

3. Increase the Capacity of States to Provide Education About AIDS

A cooperative agreemeat will be swarded to each State department of
education to work with i°s respecrive State departaent of healt! to
increase their collatorative capacity to encourage and enable a1l schools
in the State to provide effective educ.tion adout AIDS. The OSEP will use
its close workiog relationships with (1) the Society of State Directors of
Health, Physical Education, sad Recreation (in State departaents of
educatiorn), and (2) the Association of State and Territorfial Directora of
Realth Pzonotfion (in State departments of health) to plan, coordinate, and
inplement these activities. As part of its cooperative sgreement, each
State will be asked to systematically delineate the extent to which
students in that State were provided education about AIDS from year to year.

54 States and tersitucies @ $60,000 each = $3.24 million + 20% !ndirect =
$3.888 million
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Page 4 - AIDS Education

4. Increase the Capacity of Colleges and Trade Schools to Provide Education

6

about AIDS for Schcol Teachera, School Adainistratora, Coamunity Youth
Pertonnel, and College snd Trade School Students

A cooperative agreement will be avarded to organizationa that represent and
{nfluence colleges snd trade schoola {e.g., American Association of
Colleges for Teacher iZducation, American College Health Association,
Associstion for Supervision and Curriculum Development, Phi Delta Rappa) to
help collegea and trade school: imsedistely provide inservice (i.e.,
continuing education) training ibout AIDS for curreat school faculty and
community youth wvorkers; and to provide preservice training about Ax.3 for
future school faculty and cowsunity youth workera. These organizations
also collaboratively will design and encourage colleges and trade schools
to provide educatica about AIDS for their students.

S organizations € $100,000 each = $500,000 + 20X indirece * $600,000

Accelerated Resp for the Primary Frevention of AIDS in Ten High Risk
Cities

Incorporating each of the four activities outlined above, imzediate and
intensive prograzs "o prevent the spread of HTLVIII/Lav azong school-age
and college-age populations will be planned and implemented in each of ten
high risk cities (as cetermined by the afze of the infected reservoir, the
size of the school-age population, the ptovalence of intravenous drug use,
etc.). OSHP staff will work with relevant public and private health and
education agencies in each of thess citles to plac and implement these
intensive primary prevention programs. Th .se programs will enable the
educational institutions in high risk cities to collaboratively focus on
those who are not identified as seropoai :ive; and vill complement the
intensive community~based prevention prograzs currently being planned and
iaplemented by CDC.

w}
10 cities & $400,000 ~ & uillfon + 20X indirect = $4.8 oillion g /

Core Support to lzplement and Menage the Projects Listed Above

A seali nuuber of core staff will be required to implement and manage the

* five component orograms listed above. Staff will be required wvho are

trained and experfenced: in designing and isplementi, broad-scale schocl
and ity health ed fon programs; ia developirg and evaluating
school and comaunity programs to influence health bebaviors of childrea and
adtlescents; in disaeminating and ma2naging health education interventions
.n State and locai health and educatioo agencies; (¢ Although scientific
and technical assistance aoout AIDS will be sought from CDC ataff (rather
than being duplicated at CHPE), employment of core staff with the skills
suggested above will be critical to enable CDC to help coordfnate this
inftiative among participating national public and private sector agencies;

8
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to direct extraaursl developsent and dissemination of educationsl msterisls
and curricula; to provide sssistsnce and stewsrdship for developing
intarventions is the fifty States and in the ten high risk cities; sad to
monitor 40d ensure the quality and effectiveness of sll sctivities
associsted wvith this initistive.

10 FTE @ £75,000 each = $750,000 + 20% indirect = $900,000

Summsty of Resources Required

1.
2.
3.

[N

5.
6.

Develop & 4 -tfonsl Coslitfon and Leadership.... eeess$ 720,000
Develop & Disseminate Educational Msterials.... eeses$ 1,740,000
Increase the Capacity of the States to Provide cececesescecese$ 3,888,000
Education
Increase the Capacity of Colleges and Univarsities ssesesesscel
to Train Teachers .
Accelerated Response In Ten High Risk CitfeSecsccceeccenecnss.$ 4,800,000
Core Support for ine Inftfistiveeeeccesssessscsccccscsacocoaned 900,000

600,000

Total $12,648,000

(including 10 FTE’s)

M.
~




CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL
School fitaith Education to Prevent AIDS

(dollara in rhousandas

1986 1987 1987 1988
Projects Planned Plenned Asendmt  Request
1. Develop a8 Nationsl Coslition and ~ - - -
Leadership N
a. 7 principal associstion cooperad~ - - 420 420
tive aggreementa
b. 10 secondary association cooperd~ - - 300 300
tive aggreesenta
2. Develop and Disseminate Educational
Materisla
a. rapidly develop and disseminate - - 960 960
brief educationsl mater.als
b. revise Growing Healthy to address - - 120 120
AIDS
c. develop s new Teenage Health - - 30¢ 300
on AIDS
d. expand STD: A Guide for Today's - - 120 120
Young Adults to address AIDS
e. develop instrucents to measure - - 240 240
student AIDS knowledge and risks
3. Increase the Capacitiss of States to - - 3888 2388
Provide Education
- 54 States and territories
4. Inccesse the Capacity - - 600 600
of Colleges and Trade
Schoola to Train Teachers
- 5 cooperative aggreezents
S. Accelerated Response in - - 4800 43800
Ten High Risk Cities
- provide technical assistance to
high risks citles
6. Core Support to Implemeat and Mansge - - 1050 1050
the initiative
Total - - 12798 12798

o ‘
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CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL
School Heslth Educstion i0 Prevent AIDS

1986 1987 1988

Projects Planned Planned Asendat

1. Develop 3 Naticnal Coslition § Leadership - - 720

2. Develop & Disseainate Ld .r{onal - - 1740
Materials

3. Incresse the Capacity of Colleges - - 3888
and Universities to Train Teachers

4. 1Increase the Capacity of the States - - 600
to Provide Educstion

5. Accelerated Response in Ten Righ - - 4800

Risks Cities
6. Core Support for the Initiative - - 1050
Total - 12798

1989
Request

720

1740

3888

600

4800

1050

12798




Dr. DowDpLE. It was in t} at year; that’s correct. I'm
not certain of the exact date ~ten essentially all the dis-
cussions took place.

Mr. Weiss. When was that Schoo! Health Education Initiative fi-
nally issued and how much has been spent on it to date?

Dr. DowbLE. About $11 million has been set aside for the school
initiative in fiscal year 1987. All of that, in one way or another is
now planned. RFC’s have been written and are in clearance.

Mr. Weiss. So far, none of that has been spe.t?

Dr. Dc 7pie. The intent is to have all of that oui by this fiscal

year.

Mr. Weiss. That again takes us from May 1986.

The figure we have ‘s $13 million. As you say, that ..as nt been
spent yet.

The May 1986 draft of the School Health Education Initiative in-
cluded the following quotation.

There's an urgent need to (1) develop and rapidly disseminate relatively brie( and
high focused information about AIDS to schools that want to provide such ‘aforma-
tion quickly, and (2) to develop curricula for schools that want to assure that their

students are more thoroughly informed about AIDS and means to reduce the spread
of the virus that causes it.

Here we have what is perceived by the Government to be an
urgent nee ., almost a year ago, and the Federal Government has
been unable to get the initiative started.

Do you find that acceptable?

Dr. Downik. Well, I think we have to reco .ize that ° ~oups have
been called ‘ogether to begin discussions as to what constituted a
program I mentioned that earlier. Also we have to consider that
funds were appropriated in November 1986 and we are now talking
about getting the contracts ou. in the next month or so. That’s not
as jong as it mizht appear.

Mr. Weiss. The sense that I get is that we are almost at the
stage, in regard to information/education, that we were in 1983, in
regard to research, even though information/education had been
pressed just as urgently since 1983. It really is troublesome, be-
cause of you at the CDC and the Public Health Service have
had a recognition of the urgency of the problem, the critical nature
of the problem and the need to move forward. Yet there seems to
be no driving mechanism to put any of these programs for broad
educational outreach and a?peal into effect.

My question is, who should be providing that drive? Is there any-
body in the Federal Government who is providing that drive?

I assume you all may be frustrated. I'm frustrated More signifi-
cant than that, we have people who are already infected with the
disease. We have people "vho could be prevented from being infect-
ed. We are now talking about hundreds of thousands of cases
coming at us. Perhaps almost 2 million people already infected and
carrying the virus.

I don't see the organizaticnal effort and the drive within your
agencies to intervene, to do anything. It’s ail plans and it is all sug-
gestions and the plan is followed upon by a plan and nothing ever
seems to really happen. Other people are doing some things, yes,
indeed, they are. Thank goodr:ess they 1re.

What do you say sibout that?
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Dr. DowpLeE. Mr. Chairman, I'm very pleased that you raised
that point.

Mr. Wess. Dr. Windom, would you like to respond, sir?

Dr. Winpoxi. Thank you. Mr. Chairman. I do think much has
been going on. You say it is not evident, but when it comes to the
reality of the situation, for months and even the last 2 or 3 vears,
many have been speaking about the problem of AIDS and try.ng to
educate the public in many forums. We are continuing ¢ggressively
to do that. I think the focus on this document possibly has made it
look like that is the only way in which we are going to solve the
problem. There has been an ongoing public affairs activity within
our department and all the agencies have played a part. For sever-
al years now, the word has come forth through the scientific com-
munity about the disease. Information has been spread through
medical centers, medical schools, local forums. and so forth.

I think there has been a very active program. It's just a matter
that it is not in the form of one document.

Mr. Wriss. The program may be there. The planning may be
the. & It sure as heck is not working——

. e.

Dr. DowbLE. I'd like to respond, if I may, just to say that I really
can’t let this go by without responding, considering the number of
hours put in by the people who are responsible for getting out the
RFP’s and developing the education/information program for the
schools. It's an exceptional bunch of people, very hardworking, who
have spent many, many hours of consultation.

Mr. Wess. I don’t question that at all. And that, I think, is part
of the frustratiun. They meet, they plan, they propose, and ulti-
mately nothing or very insignificant——

Dr. DowpLz. But it's in the pipeline now. It’s in progress. And I
think they’ve done a remarkable job getting it out as soor as they
have. There is nothing we can do to speed up that procuss. The
RFP’s will be out on the street and it will be bid on.

Mr. WEiss. Well, it seems that one of the things that can be done
to speed it up is to recognize the kind of moneys that need to be
spent on it. You can’t get any of this with just a wish and a prayer.
It’s going to cost a lot of money, and we have, thankfully, because
of the commitment of both Houses of Congress, forced and thrust
money upon the administratior, which you people have spent well.
Each year, except this year, you are forced to come back asking us
for less than what we gave you the previous year. Ther. we find out
that the administration is trying to rescind some of that and cut
back some of that.

I can see that by 1991 you could be meeting the billion dollar
goal that the National Academy of Sciences has set forth as far as
research and health programs are concerned. But I don’t see how,
given the present rate of spending that the Federal Government is
going to come anywhere close to the billion dollars for education
and information recommended by the National Academy of Sci-
ences,

Unless that kind of commitment is made, then you can ha: all
the good ﬁ:z:ple in the world meeting all the long hours ~at
they're willing to contribute, and ultimately you’re not goi..s to
have mass education programs. Somebody someplace in the admin-
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istration ought to be driving this effort, otherwise all you have is
words. The words sound pretty. If you dcn’s remember what w-s
~aid a year ago, they sound great. But we’ll come back a year from
.ow and they will be the same words, and lives will have been lost.

T know that you all are concerned about that. What I'm asking
1, how can you get the people who control the purse strings to un-
derstand that these programs you're talking about cannot take
effect unless money is spent and ccmmitted?

Dr WinpoM. Well, we are urging more money. As you know, the
President’s budget contains a request for 28 percent more than this
year for 1988, I think that escalation is evidence of the fact that we
do r>ognize the needs that must be met. I am going to be out more
and more speaking about this issue. I want to give you the good

' news, Mr. Chairman, if I may, that I just got the message that the
Secretary has signed the document, and therefore it will be at the
printer verg soon. I am hopeful that we’ll have that printed copy
out within 5 to 10 days.

Mr. Weiss. Dr. Harmison, you had wanted to say something. Do
you want to add anything?

Dr. HarmisoN. Yes. Thank you, sir.

I think as one looks back at it, the capacity for the research on
AIDS was laid during more than 10 years of molecular biological
work. The same basis has been laid for the AIDS education activi-

Beginning in June 1982, documents issued on how to recognize
the disease, long before we knew what the cause was—I'd be
pleased to provide for the record material beginning in March 1983
on prevention of acquired immune deficiency—laid the framework
for formulating the education message that has gone out through
scientific journals and through the efforts of our Public Affairs
Office that was headed by Shelly Lengel.

In mid to lete 1984, we informed che education effort in a more
concise way within the Office of the Assistant Secretary of Health,
following the identification of the AIDS etiological agent.

There has been an enormous framework. I certainly can agree
with you that more has to be done, and that it should be more
timely, but we are ve concerned that a solid, sound information
base be laid. I think there has been no effort left unaddressed in
creating that solid foundation of information, and we hope to reach
out through this plan as another step in trying to solidify our edu-
cation efforts.

Mr. Wesss. Tell me precisely what your title is.

Dr. HarmisoN. I'm the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Health.

Mr. Weiss. And what falls within your area of responsibility?

Dr. HarMisoN. Well, I assist Dr. Windom in carrying out his re-
sponsibilities. My role in this effcrt has been to take the blood test,
when il was initially identified in Dr. Robert Gallo’s laborucory,
and carry it through various stages of getting it tested and devel-

oped.

Mr. Wess. Well, I would suggest that on public and mass educa-
tion, you might want to do a little bit more research into what ac-
tually hus been done. Never mind wl.a. the framework was that
was accomplished 4 or b years ago.
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Dr. Dowdle, I assume that you attempt to keep apprised of what
other rountries, especi-1ly Englancd and Western Europe, are doing
in the AIDS in‘ormation/education area.

Would you give us some idea of the prograras undertaken in Eng-
land and France and what you understand to be the cost of those
campaigns?

Dr. DowpLe. Well, perhaps the most aggressive campaigns in
Europe are in Great Britain, and they have . t aside $20 million
for that purpose. Their program has consisted of mailings to all
households, as well as radio spots, television advertising, and even
special television programs for the youth.

Denmark has had a similar type of program, with increased _m-
phasis on television.

hlSr;v;it:zerland and the Netherlands have done much the same
thing.

Mr. Wess. Why do you think it is that those foreign countries,
all of which have far fewer cases of AIDS than we do, have spent
so much more per case or per capita and are so much ai:ead of the
United States in information efforts?

Dr. DowbLE. I really can’t answer that, except I think that when
we've asked them this, before, “how can you get out the informa-
tion messages so quickly?” We have received several answers. For
example, Denmark feels that they are much more of & homogene-
ous group in terms of thinking. Therefore, it’s easier to get out
these types of campaigns. In this country, we’re a much more di-
verse group, and there are many, many different ideas and many
different backgrounds that have to be taken into consideration.

Mr. Wess. In fact, you've been urging within the Department
that we undertake exactly that kind of campaign that has been un-
dertaken in Europe or England; isn’t that correct?

Dr. Dowmn Y-, sir. It’s something we should be considering.
And, as Dr. .m pointed out, we will be.

Mr. Werr st June, the Public Health Service held a major
planning con.erence at Coolfont, after which a new Public Health
Service plan for prevention and control of AIDS and the AIDS
virus was issved. Two of the recommendations issued on informa-
tion and education were: (1) the need for a major national informe-
tion/education campaign, and (2) to explore the use of paid media
advertising.

Was the Coolfont conference recommendations the besis for
drafting the AIDS informatior/education plan that you just said
Dr. Bowen has signed off on?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.

Mr. Weiss. What other implementation activities were begun as
a result of that Coolfont meeting and report? Dr. Dowdle?

Dr. DownpLe. Well, I think that basically the Coolfont report put
in perspective what the predicted caseload would be in 1990 and
1991. It also pointed out that those at risk sexually in the hetero-
sexual population should also be targeted for information/educa-
tion programs.

Mr. Wess. I have a few questions about some of the specific on-
going items reflected in the post-Coolfont plans.

Q
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One, information and education program grants for high-AIDS-
incidence areas. How much was budgeted, and how much was actu-
ally speut in fiscal year 1986; do you know?

Dr. DowpLE. In 1986?

Mr. Wxiss. In 1986, yes.

Dr. DowpLe. We would have to sub.nit that for the—are you
talking about total?

Mr. WEss. Well, your budget person, I think, is here. Maybe he
can respond.

1918\11'. Lerrie. P'm not sure I have the exact amount for CDC in
1986.

Mr. Wgeiss. Pardon?

Mr. LirTiE. In total, we will spend $26.9 million in 1986. I'm not
sure exactly how much of that went to CDC's high-incidence areas.
In total, the Public Health Serv®  will spend over $32 million in
information and education activity. .

I can supply that—or CDC can @~ that . r the recurd.

Mr. Weiss. Will you please suppsy ti:at for the record?

Mr. LrrTee. Yes, sir.

[The information follows:]

In FY 1986, approximately $17.9 million was awarded to high incidence areas.

Mr. Weiss. How about in 1987 so far? Do you know how much
gas ‘l))een budgeted and how much spent in fiscal 1987 up to this

ate?

Mr. Lrrrie. For 1987, $80 million has been budgeted.

Mr. Weiss. For high-AIDS-incidence areas is the question.

Mr. LitTee. P'm sorry. This is for the total information, health
education, risk reductior ~ 1dget. I do not have the answer for high-
insidence areas.

Mr. WEeiss. Thank you.

Dr. DowpLe. We can give that to you, sir, the breakdown by
State and by location.

Mr. Weiss. I .vould welcome that.

Dr. DowpLe. We can provide that.

[The information follows:]

o
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AIDS Prevention projects were dwarded on Apri) 30, 1987, for a total of
&pproximately $24.4 million, of which $14.3 million went to high

incidencn &reas. The breakdown for high incidence areas by project area
is as fo.lows:

Area of FY 1987
High AXDS Incidence funds Awarded
California $ 2,607,184

(Includes separate
&ward to Los Angeles
and San Francisco)

Colorado 744,375
Connecticut 480,262
Florida 1,425,213
Georgia 489,915
Louvisiana 569, 484
Massachusetts 648,206
Michigan 575,321
New Jersey 969,931
New York State 2,654,664

(Includes separate
avard to N.Y. City)

Ohiu 607,284
Pennsy _vania 716,342
Texas 978,291
Washington 492,978
lehington, D.C. 371,221

—_—_—
TOTAL FY 1987 funds 14,330,673

High Incidence Areas

o 0.
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Dr. DowpLE. I might also say that the new funding for all loca-
tions in the States will actually not come out until May. The States
are still operating on the previous allocations.

Mr. Wess. The U.S. Conference of Mayors, to aid community-
based groupe, was funded at $250,000 in 1986. How much has Leen
budgeted and spent on this in fiscal year 19877

Dr. Winpom. I can’t give that to you at the moment, sir. I will
have to try to supply that for the record.

[The information follows:]

.?pmﬁmtely $250,000 is budgeted for FY 1987, and is expected to be awarded
on June 1, 1987.

Mr. Wezss. Our information is that, in fact, there has been zero
spent in fiscal 1987 for the U.S. Conference of Mayors’ eight com-
munity-based groups program.

Dr. Winpom. That we would have to check, sir.

Mr. Weiss. All right.

Dr. DowntE. It is budgeted, sir, for 1987 and 1988.

Mr. Weiss. How much was budgeted for 19877

Dr. DowbLe. $300,000.

Mr. Weiss. Can you tell us how much of that has been spent in
fiscal 1987?

Dr. DowpLe. No; I really can’t speak to that; no.

Mr. Weiss. You will supply that for the record.

[The information follows:)

Approximately $250,000 is budgeted for FY 1987, and is expected to be awarded
on June 1, 1987.

Mr. Weiss. And now I would like to ask about the community-
based capacity project in 37 low incidence States. How much of the
budgeted $5 million was actually spent in fiscal year 1986? Does
Budget have that? Do you have that breakdown?

Dr. Winpom. We don’t have that breakdown, sir.

Mr. Weiss. Will you give that information as well as how much
has ‘I;een spent so far in the first 5 months of the current fiscal
year?

Dr. Winpom. Yes, sir.

[The information follows:]

In FY 1986, $4,5680,744 was spent on Community-based capacity building projects.
In FY 1987, the funds for these projects were consolidated with the funds for the
Augmentation projects and the (_)ounseling;and Testing projects, and were awarded
on April 30, for a total of approximately $24.4 million.

Mr. Weiss. The AIDS prevention augmentation projects were
funded at $5 million for fiscal year 1986. Can you tell us how much
was actually spent in fiscal year 1986 and so far in 1987? Again, if
you don’t have that, please submit it for the record.

Dr. Winpom. We will submit that, sir.

[The information follows:]

In FY 1986, $6,611,095 was spent on the AIDS Augmentation projects. In FY 1987,
the funds for these projects were consclidated with the funds for the Capacity build-
ing projects and the Counseling and Testing projects, and were awarded on April 30,
for a tota' of approximately $24.4 million.

Mr. Weiss. Finally, the community-based demonstration projects
were funded at $4 million in fiscal year 1986. How much was actu-
ally spent in 2986 and how much was spent in 1987?

.
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_Dr. WinpoM. That again will have to be submitted for the record,

sir.
Mr. Wess. I am distressed that we don’t have that information
available since these are your major information education pro-
grams that are currently ongoing. I would think that somebody
would have that information.

Dr. WinpoM. We do have it. We want to give it to you exactly,
sir, and we just don’t have it right at our fingertips.

[The information follows:]

In FY 1986, $3,732,152 was spent on the AIDS Community based Demonstration

projects. In FY 1987, no funds have been obligated to date. The projects are
to be renewed no later than September 29, 1987, for an estimated $4,006,098.

Mr. Weiss. All right. I am going to ask you a summary question.
Excluding funds for testing for other risk reduction projects, how
much was appropriated and how much was actually spent by the
Federal Government in all of fiscal year 1986 for AIDS information
dissemination and education?

Dr. DownLs. For 19867

Mr. Lrrree. Excluding testing, but including the health educa-
tion, risk reduction activities?

Mr. Weiss. Right. Would you come closer to the microphone so
that we can hear you?

Mr. LrrTLE. $26.9 million, excluding—

Mr. Weiss. Say that again.

Mr. Littie. Excluding the alternate test site activity that oc-
curred in 1986, the total in 1986 was $26.9 million, including the
health education and risk reduction activities in the State health
departments.

Mr. Wriss. For this year, Dr. Windom, you stated in your testi-
mony that the Public Health Service will spend more than $79.5
million solely for education. Is that correct?

Dr. WinboM. Yes, sir.

Mr. WEiss. Again, that is solely for education, not for the risk re-
duction programs or the testing programs; is that right?

Dr. WinpoM. That includes risk reduction which is part of the
education packet, the program is education and risk reduction and
dissemination of information. That would be $79.5 million.

Mr. Werss. How much is it just for education and information?

Mr. LirTLE. Approximately $15 million, sir.

Mr. Wgiss. Approximately?

Mr. Lrrrie. $15 million.

Mr. Weiss. Do you have any idea how much has actually been
spent so far within the first 6 months of fiscal year 19877

Mr. LirToLE. Sir, since the appropriation was only enacted in No-
vember and many of these programs are new, the $80 million total
for 1987 compares to approximately $30 million in 1986. The RFP’s
we discussed earlier have not all been finalized, and much of the

money has not been awarded. I would estimate that the awards to
date would be very small, but that is due in large part to the fact
that we had such a large increase in 1987 compared to 1986.

Ican v}'ive you the exact numbers for the record.

Mr. Weiss. I would appreciate that.

Q IThe information follows:]
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Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome Information Dissemination/Public Affairs
[Total 1987 obligations as of Mar 31. 1987}

CDC... $475,000
NIH.....ooooiens st . 360,000
ADAMHA ..., . 236,000

Total PHS........ 1,071,000

Mr. Weiss. For fiscal year 1988, which as you all know, begins
October 1 of this year, and again, exclusive of moneys for testing
and other prevention activities, how much has been requested by
the Department just on information education?

Dr. Winpom. $15,900,000.

Mr. Wess. That will include the total major media campaign
that you just issued the request for proposal on; is that correct?

Dr. WinpoM. Yes, sir.

Mr. Wriss. Dr. Dowdle, last summer you said, and I quote, and I
hope accurately, “It's very clear we haven’t done everything in the
education field that we would like to do and should be doing” and
“The’ , money is not here for a large educational program right
now.

As the Federal leader on AIDS, can you tell us what is needed by
way of dollars? What should we be looking for, for an education
program that in fact would do the job?

Dr. DownLk. I don’t know that I could give an exact figure, sir.
Quite frankly, there are a number of different opinions and a
number of different ideas. I'm sure a number of different experts
have different ideas on how the information education program
ought to be run at a national level.

One of the reasons for getting the ad agency involved is to get
experts together with other consultants to determine the most ef-
fective way that we can run this campaign, what is the most effec-
tive way not only to get information out—which, by the way, is
considerable at the moment—but to have it out in such a way that
we can effectively change behavior.

Mr. Weiss. Late last year, you contracted to have a management
consultant firm, Coopers & Lybrand, review CDC’s organization
and management of AIDS activities. Why was that undertaken at
that time?

Dr. Dowpre. Why, sir?

Mr. WEiss. Yes.

Dr. DowpLe. Because the feeling was that CDC'’s earlier role had
been in epidemiology and in laboratory research, leading to preven-
tion, but that now, we were going to be involved in a much differ-
ent and much more extensive way in information and education
E;eograms. In short, this was a different mode than what CDC had

n involved in up to now. That was the reason for the review.

Mr. WEiss. I have the memorandura concerning their findings
and recommendations. I will ask you to tell us what the findings
were rather than mlir %uotéxalﬁ them.

Dr. DowpLe. Well, basi , they recommended that there be a
central office for AIDS within CDC, under a Deputy Director of
CDC, and that that office should have line responsibility. I was ap-
pointed to that particular job. Second, they pointed out that there
should be consolidation of CDC contracts with the States. That con-
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solidation is well underway. They were talking about consolidating
three grants, and consolidation of at least two of the three grants is
in process.

They also referred to different ways in which the organization
within CDC should lead to enhanced communicatior. That too is
ﬁgw in effect through the organizational arrangement that we now

ve.

One of the other points was to emphasize the need for CDC to go
out into further types of information education responsibilities.

Mr. Wriss. The findings that we have indicate the folloving:
First, that AIDS has placed a severe strain on CDC, and second,
that major changes should be given serious consideration.

Dr. DowpLE. Yes.

Mr. Weiss. Major State and local discontent with CDC regarding
grant programs and management exists.

Dr. DowbLE. That’s correct.

Mr. Wess. Third, that the traditional CDC response to crisis has
apparently not worked well and places great strains on the agency
personnel. They say that the single greatest scarcity is personnel.
The number of people allocated to CDC to perform the new duties
expected of it clearly does not allow the agency to fulfill its new
responsibilities.

Dr. DowpLE. That’s correct.

Mr. WEiss. Finally, AIDS has consumed considerably more time,
not only of people assigned to AIDS, but of others; right? Then they
made a number of recommendations based on that. One was to re-
quest needed personnel; two, to contract out some activities; three,
to simplify grant and cooperative agreement processes and miscel-
laneous others.

Dr. Dowdle, last December 1, you expressed again the need to
mobilize the non-Federal sector into the AIDS information effort.
Before I get into that, what has been done to follow up on the find-
ings and recommendations hesides, I guess, your work and your co-
ordinating role which is an important step? Beyond that what has
been done to get additional personnel and so on?

Dr. DowpLE. Well, as I've indicated, all of the recommendations
with one exception—that we look at other ways of contracting out
in-house activities have been implemented. The one reason vwhy we
have not gone further in contracting out is because we think we
have explored this quite thoroughly. All of the recorr -nendations of
the Coopers & Lybrand group essentially are in place.

Mr. Wess. Have you requested auditional personnel?

Dr. DowbpLE. Additional personnel?

M.. WEeiss. Yes.

Dr. DowpLE. Yes. We are getting additional personnel for the
Office of the Deputy Director; yes.

Mr. Weiss. Is that the only area where the consultants thought
you needed personnel?

Dr. DowbpLe. No. There are other areas, too, in which additional
FTE’s were thought to be needed.

Mr. Weiss. Have you made the request for those?

Dr. DowbLE. Yes, sir, we have.

Mr. Weiss. To whom?
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Dlr. DowpLe. The requests have been made in the usual funding
cycle.

Mr. Weiss. Have those requests been made to the Appropriations
Committee?

Dr. DowbLE. They are part of the 1988 request.

Mr. Wriss. On the non-Federal sector mobilization in the AIDS
information effort, you proposed a meeting in Janvary or February
of private sector organizations which are already involved in AIDS
activities. What was the purpoese of the meeting?

Dr. DowbLE. This was a private sector—

Mr. Weiss. Again, according to Decembe 1, 1486, minutes of the
task force, Dr. Dowdle proposed convening a meeting in January or
February of private sector organizations who are already involved
in AIDS activities.

Dr. DowbLE. Yes.

Mr. Weiss. What was the purpose?

Dr. DowbLE. The purpose of this was to try to encourage the for-
mation of a coalition of private and public organizations, which we
are very much interested in supporting.

Mr. Weiss. Was that meeting held?

Dr. DowbLE. There have been several meetings, and we believe
we will have such a coalition this summer.

Mr. Wess. It is not { oing to be January or February, it is going
to be sometime around o.ae, July, or August?

Ir. DownLE. I can assure you that it i8 in progress and we are
certain that it will be done.

Mr. WErss. Dr. Windom, in your testimony you state that Federal
funds appropriated for AIDS will be multiplied manyfold by other
public and private agencies. The National Academy of Sciences’
report stated that the leadership and major portion of the funding
for AIDS education must come from the Federal Government.

Are those views compatible? Can we depend on the States to
have the expertise and the funds to do the job that is needed?

Dr. WinpoM. We feel they will be able to complement and help
supplement the Federal funds and, as we progress from year to
year, we anticipate they also will participate more

Mr. Weiss. What proportion of the education and information
funds—say that $1 billion that you think might very well be reach-
able by the target date—will have to come from Federal sources
and what proportion from other sources?

. Winpo™. There is a great deal of speculation about that
ratio, sir. I think if we look now to see what is going on out there
in the public as far as dissemination of information, there lias been
a substantial but indefinite increase. I think the recent survey in
the Washington Post showed significant evi _..ce in 6 months of
public awareness, lifestyle changes and so forth. The information is
getting out, but I don’t know that we can pinpoint the exact per-
cent or dollar increases there are.

Mr. Wess. You do agree with the NAS that the major portion of
that funding for AIDS education will have to come from the Feder-
al Government?

_Dr. Winpom. Yes, I think it will and we are working toward that,
sir,

ERIC Lo
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Mr. Wgiss. The budi:ait information supplied to us last week in-
cludes au indication that OMB has approved and has or will re-
uest $100 million additional supplemental for AIDS to be trans-
erred from other HHS accouints.

What accounts will it be transferred from and for what AIDS

urposes?

Dr WmnpoM. That has not been decided yet. We will look closely
at which agencies could contribute and how much could be ob-
tained from each. No definitive action has yet been taken.

Mr. WEiss. It is under discussion between you and OMB?

Dr. WinpoMm. I'll have Mr. Little please comment on that.

Mr. Lirree. The 1987 portion of the President’s 1988 budget pro-
posed that authority be provided to the Secretary to permit him to
transfer up to 1 percent of any funds appropriated to the Depart-
mﬂgnt for cﬁscre tionary programs from such programs to the AIDS
eftorts.

At this point there has been no discussion of such a transfer to
AIDS being necessary. And we, of course, would have to have the
approval of the Congressional Appropriations Committees before
we could implement such a proposal.

Mr. Weiss. Well, did you request that authority from OMB to
begin with? How did it come about? How did that $100 million sup-
plemental discussion start?

Mr. LrrrLe. It came back as a part of the OMB allowance. It was
not re(ﬂ;xested, to my knowledge, by the Department. I believe it re-
flects the President’s and the Secretary’s position that AIDS is the
No. 1 vgublic health priority, and as such it warrants special atten-
tion. We want to give the Secretary as much flexibility as possible
to respond to any emergency or unique opportunity by a shifting of
funds to AIDS.

Mr. Weiss. I have no further questions at this time. If any of you
want to make additional comments before we close out this panel,
please feel free to make them at this time.

Let me just state that, we know that you have a very, very diffi-
cult, but also, a very, very heavy and important responsibility.

What you do, Dr. Windom, and what your associates, Dr. Dowdie,
Dr. Nobﬁa and the others in the Public Health Service do, can and
will determine whether literally hundreds of thousands, perhaps
millions of Americans will or will not fall to this dread epidemic.

So, 1 hope that in the course of the inhouse bureaucratic discus-
sions that will be ongoing, that 3'011 will take with you the assur-
ance that Congress has been and will continue to be supportive of
your efforts. But you have to provide the thrust and the lead. It's
your ball game, really. And that is the purpose of these hearings
that we're holding: to try to get a continuing update as to where
we are in various aspects of the struggle against AIDS, and to what
we need to do, we on our side, you on your side. If nothing else, I
hope you walk away from these hearings with a sense that we’re
really concerned about the sense of urgency which has to be inject-
ed into this fight.

Dr. WinDoM. I want to thaank you, Mr. Chairman, again, for the
opportunity to be here and to express our views and to hear yours
and those of others in Congress. We realize the magnitude of this
problem. And I'd like to point out that we're very thankful that
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this happened now rather than 10 or 20 years ago, because we have
been able to move more rapidly than ever befure. We have a great
challenge ahead of us. It's going to take the cooperation and in-
volvement of every sector, and we're going to work hard to lead
that movement and continue to be actively involved.

Mr. WEeiss. Anykody else?

[No response.]

Mr. Weiss. Thank you all very, very much for your participation.

Dr. WinpoM. Thank you.

Mr. Weiss. I assume we'll be getting a cony of the plan just
signed off by Dr. Bowen——

Dr. WinpoM. Yes, sir.

Mr. Weiss [continuing]. In time for inclusion in this record.
Thank you.

[The AIDS information/education plan is in the appendix, p. 255.]

Mr. Weiss. This brings us to our third panel consisting of wit-
nesses; from agencies which are directly involved in providing es-
sential servicer to persons with AIDS, and the information/educa-
tion needs at the State and local level.

And, so, if Ms. Gebbie, Dr. Joseph, and Ms. Stroud will come for-
ward, I think we can proceed with this panel. Would you please
remain standing and raise your right hand?

Do you affirm that the testimony you are about to give will be
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

Let the record indicate that all three of the witnesses responded
in the affirmative.

Dr. Joseph, I understand that you have a difficult transportation
schedule, and so we will hear from you first. If you have time to
stay for your part of the questions before we hear from Ms. Stroud
and Ms. Gebbie, that will be all right. If you have to rush off we
will understand, and we’ll submit questions to you and have you
respond in writing.

Dr. JosepH. Thank you very much.

Mr. Weiss. We have your prepared statements which will be en-
tered into the record in their entirety, and we would appreciate
gi)ur limiting your oral presentations to about 7 minutes, if possi-

e.

Dr. Joseph, We’ll start with you.

STATEMENT OF STEPHEN €. JOSEPH, M.D., M.P.H., COMMISSION-
ER OF HEALTH, NEW YORK CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Dr. JosepH. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, thank you for
your courtesy. I appreciate the opportunity to be here today to talk
about the AIDS epidemic as it appears on the line in New York
City. Although I must say, some of the things I've heard in the last
several hours make me wonder at times whether we're talking
about th: same epidemic.

But & view from New York City with particular raference to our
education and health promotion activities really must start from
the fact that we have seen, as of the end of February 1987, approxi-
mately 9,200 diagnosed cases of AIDS in the city, 58 percent of
those people are dead, and AIDS is currently the leading cause of
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ggath 2151 New York City for men age 25 to 44, and for women age
to 29.

Half a million New Yorkers are estimated to be infected with the
HIV virus. Gay and bisexual men make up the largest percentage
of cases, although their proportion f AIDS cases has fallen from 73
percent in 1981 to 55 percent in 1986, while the proportion of cases
among intravenous drug abusers or IVDA’s has risen from 22 per-
cent to 36 percent in 19¥6.

We have some 200,000 people in New York City who shoot IV
drugs, and from 50 to 60 percent of them are thought to be HIV
virus infected. The growing numbers of IV drug abusers who are
infected K;esent unique froblems in controlling the spread of the
disease. And had I time, I would refer you to one of the charts that
I gave you in my prepared testimony that I think indicate the mag-
ixitude of the problem and the multiple complexities of the prob-
em.

IVDA's have been and will likely continue to be the major source
of the spread of infection to women and children. We've had 932
women with AIDS in New York City diagnosed since 1981; 80 per-
cent of these women have been intravenous drug users or the part-
ners of IVDA’s. We have 178 of those, some 400 cases of AIDS in
children that were described in the last igti)nel, and the vast majori-
ty of those children have been infected from their mothers; 92 per-
cent of the mothers who infected those children were either IV
drug abusers or the sex partners of IV drug abusers.

Of great concern is the increase of AIDS and HIV infection
among New York City’s minority communities. More than half of
all AIDS victims in New York City are black or Hispanic; 86 per-
cent of male IV drug users with AIDS are black or Hispanic; and
91 percent of mothers of children with AIDS are black or Hispanic.

You perhaps have seen our projections, that by the end of 1991
we will accumulate something like 40,000 cases of AIDS with per-
haps 30,000 deaths. I think one of the things that needs repeating,
when we talk about health promotion and risk :‘eduction, is that no
one knows what the cumulative burden will be more than 5 or 6
years out in the epidemic; we do not know what the 10- or 20-year
clinical horizon is.

Well, against this background, and as the epidemic spreads in
New York City, let me mention a number o J)ublic policy and
publi:;1 health policy issues that are emerging and seem to us to be
critical.

First, intensive and explicit public education efforts need to be
implemented without creating irrational anxiety and hysteria.
Presently, the only feasible way to alter the AIDS epidemic is by
education of the public, training health and social service profes-
:i(;nals, and counseling for personal risk reduction and antibody

ting.

In my written testimony I've listed the various groups ranging
from the sanitation workers to policemen and parole officers that
we have been working with, and the general education programs
and specialized training programs throughout the city. I have also
submitted for the committee’s interest a packet of the various bro-
chures, flyers, and wallet cards that we've produced in recent
months and years, and our subway cards. The poster that you have
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which is entitled, “Women Can Get AIDS, Too,” has just gone up
within the last month. It will be viewed by an estimated 5 million
subway riders, something like 120 million times.

We’ve been working with two advertising agencies for a multi-
media public health advertising campaign that will run this spring.
This will focus on the two issues of IV drug use and heterosexual
transmission risks. And I would just like to accentuate what you
and Dr. Fraser said about the importance, the critical importance
of getting moving with mass media activities.

Another one of our major health education and promotion activi-
ties is a campaign to promote condom use, educate about condom
use, and distribute condoms. We have a midyear funding initiative
which will allow us to distribute 1 million condoms in New York
City this year as part of a broader based educational campaign.

We’re increasing our outreach and education to higher risk popu-
lations. I go back to my comments about the intravenous drug
abusers. This is a group of people where we do not have the cohe-
sive base that I think was found in the gay community, particular-
ly in San Francisco and New York, that has led to such success as
we have had so far in behavior modification. I think there’s a long
way to go before we're able, with confidence, to have in place risk
riduction strategies that we know will work with the IV drug
abuser.

I've listed in my prepared testimony some of the activities that
we have, working on the street, working with community-based or-
ganizations that are actually in the shooting galleries. And you
may note that we are proposing in New York City a small, careful-
ly controlled experiment to distribute clean needles and syringes as
part of the risk reduction effort.

We believe that much more work needs to be done with physi-
cians, through our hotline activities and directly. I've distributed
for you our new counseling and testing policy in which we state
that there needs to be much more access to information and activi-
ty by private physicians.

The second critical public health policy issue is that vigorous
public health actions need to be increased while resisting ineffec-
tive measures of social control. There has been much discussicn re-
cently, as I'm sure you are well aware, of the issue of keeping test-
ing in a voluntary, confidential, and counseling-based mode. We’ve
been moving aggressively in New York City to make testing in this
context more widely available.

In addition to the physician-based testing of the past, we have
now opened two anonymous test sites run by the city. The State
has also opened five anonymous test sites in New York City. We
are offering counseling and testing in half of our sexually transmit-
ted disease clinics. We'll increase that to 100 percent in the next
fiscal year. We also are permitting teaching hospitals to be sites for
performing the laboratory tests.

We are now recommending that physicians should actively con-
sider if their patients may be at risk of HIV infection, discuss risk
avoiding behavior as a part of routine medical care of all patients,
end offer counseling, and if appropriate, HIV testing to patients
considered to be at risk.

r
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We have begun a program that we call, “Contact notification,”
rather than the old term of, “Contact tracing.” We believe that it's
critical for infected persons to notify their sex and drug partners of
the risk. And where an index person requests us either to help in
this process or to undertake the process for him or her, we will di-
rectly and actively do so.

The third critical public health policy issue is that increases and
available resources for research and education must support the
broad range of clinical public health and social service needs.

I commend you, Mr. Chairman, for your bill to waive the 24-
month waiting period for Medicare eligibility. All across the service
front, whether in the development of community-based organiza-
tions or in making more help available for the homeless, we need
vostly increased resources.

In fiscal 1987, New York City will spend approximately $258 mil-
lion on programs in AIDS treatment, human services, public health
initiatives, and human rights discrimination; $78 million of those
dollars are city tax levy. Next year we will spend $385 million, and
I would anticipate a good deal more than that, of which some $90
million or more will be city tax levy. These kinds of numbers un-
derscore what I find very discouraging: The reluctrnce and slow-
ness with which the Federal administration has recognized the
true dimensions of the AIDS crisis, and their slowness in moving to
su&)ort us adequrtely with resources and leadership in that area.

e have had tne forthright statements of Dr. Koop and echoed
elsewhere in the administration. We have the CDC shouting alarm.
But no one really has been willing to send us a fire bucket.

I would associate myself entirely with the comments made by Dr.
Fraser, and we'll skip the of my testimony related to the Na-
tional Academy of Sciences’ report.

Let me just end by mentioning some things that I think in-
creased Federal support could translate into, in terms of specific
measures for controlling the spread of AIDS in New York ity. It
would provide us with funding to enable us to rapidly increase con-
fidential, voluntary counseling and testing. I would anticipate that
we will see the demands for counseling and testing multiply many-
fold within the next 12 months.

We desperately need increased fundilr‘xg to provide access to sub-
stance abuse treatment programs for addicts; waitti:g time for
methadone maintenance in New York City is estimated to be as
long as 3 months, and 6 months to get into drug free rograms.
We've got to have more help both from the Federal and State level
to increase our access to the addict community.

We continue to need funding for increased efforts to expand the
knowledge base, both directly in New York City and nationally. In
my testimony you will see a description of the research activities
that we are currently cs -ying on.

There needs to be, as . think everyone has said this morning, a
massive increase in public health education and risk reduction ef-
forts; much of that leadership must emanate from the Federal Gov-
ernment. One thing that made my life easier over the last 12
months, and there haven’t been many things, was the NAS Com-
mittee report. If we could have that kind of clear thinkit;;f, direct
and explicit leadership, as I think Dr. Koop has attempted to give
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us, if we could continue to see that from a Federal level, it would
enable us at a local level to do much more, to gain more credibility,
to garner both the resources and the support that we need.

And finally, we need Federal support to really underscore that
we must eliminate the false dichotomy between civil liberties and
public health. Stands on issues such as contact tracing and manda-
tory antibody testing have at times been portrayed as sacrificing
public health in the name of civil liberties. But I believe that all
the localities that are of high prevalence really are combining in
their insistence on voluntary, confidential testing, and the other
voluntary measures, which are based on sound public health princi-
ples, as well as a concern for civil rights and civil liberties.

I think we need leadership from the Federal level to get the mes-
sage across that this is not an either/or affair. The kinds of
damage done by the ill-considered Justice Department opinion on
discrimination last summer created enormous problems for us in
New York, and I think throughout the Nation.

Finally, the AIDS epidemic and our understanding of it is grow-
ing and changing constantly. Responsible policy must be continual-
ly reexamined against these changes in conditions; and it must be
modified, if necessary, to reflect current knowledge of disease
transmission, and at the same time remain flexible enough to ac-
commodate important discoveries.

There are few, if any, certainties in this crisis, and we must be
willing to change course as the data warrant it.

Biomedical research cannot eliminate the problem of AIDS in
the short run; education, health promotion, and risk reduction will
remain our critical weapons in the fight against AIDS for at least
the next several years.

I do apologize, thinking I had an earlier morning testimony. I
have a meeting with the board of health and the mayor on AIDS,
as a matter of fact, at 3:30. But I'd be pleased to answer any direct
questions you have, and certainly happy to respond to any written
que:tions that the staff or anyone else on the committee wishes to
send us.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Joseph follows:]
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Nowhere in North America is the relentless tragedy of
AIDS more starkly felt than in New York City. As of the end of
February 1987, 9,188 people have been diagnosed with AIDS in
New York City since 1981; 58 percent have died. AIDS is the
leading cause of death in New York City for men 25 to 44 years
of age, and women 25 to 29.

Half a million people are estimated to be HIV-infected in
New York City today. Gay and bisexual men make up the largest
percentage of cases, though their proportion of AIDS cases has
fallen from 73 percent in 1981 to 55 percent in 1986, while the
proportion of cases among intravenous drug abusers (IVDAs) has
risen from 22 percent in 1981 to 36 percent in 1986. Fifty to
60 percent of the City's estimated 200,000 heroin users are
thought to be HIV-infected. The growing numbers of infected IV
drug abusers present unique problems in controlling the spread
of the disease (Chart Ij.

IVDAs have been, and will likely continue to be, the
major source of the spread of HIV infection to women and
children in New York City. Of the 932 women with AIDS
diagnosed in New York City since 1981, B0 percent have been
IVDAs or the sex partners of IVDAs. We have seen 178 cases of
AIDS in children, the vast majcrity infected from their
mothers; 92 percent of mothers who infected their children
were IVDAs or the sex partners of IVDAs (Chart II).

AIDS is also increasing among New York City's minority
communities. Thirty-one percent of AIDS cases in New York City

are among Blacks, and 23 percent are among Hispanics;
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together, Blacks and Hispanics represent more than half of all
people with AIDS in New York City. Eighty-six percent of male
IV drug users with AIDS are Black or Hispanic; 91 percent of

mothers of children who have AIDS are Black or Hispanic.

By the end of 1991, over 40,000 people will have
developed AIDS in New York City alone; 30,000 will have died
(Chart III). Our projections are based on a five-year
horizon; no one knows the 10- or 20-year clinical outlook for
those now infected. Nor do we know what long-term burdens will
be posed by HIV-associated illness, for example, tuberculosis.
The impact of HIV-immunodeficiency on the trends of other
important diseases is under study and as yet is incompletely
understood.

Against this background, and as the epidemic spreads in
Rew York City, a number of public health policy issues are
emerging as critical.

First. intensive and explicit public edycation efforts
. . . : s s

h!é&sxig. Presently, the only feasible way to alter the AIDS
epidemic is by educating the public, training health and social
sérvice professionisls, and counseling for personal risk
reduction and antibody testing. The New York City Department
of Health program for AIDS education and counseling is a
multifaceted prevention and risk reduction effort that on the
one hand directs education at the general public, health
providers, social service personnel, and community

organizations, and on the other hand targets information and

outreach for people engaged in high~risk behavior.
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Our campaign to educate the general population about AIDS
includes information in a variety of formats, such as
brochures, flyers, videotapes, wallet cards, and posters in
English and Spanish. The first in a series of bilingual
posters for City subway cars appeared in early 1986. The
second poster, entitled “Women Can Get AIDS Too,” has just gone
up. The posters will appear in subway cars for approximately
three mont..s, during which time they will be viewed an
estimated 120 million times by some five million subway
riders. We have also jeen working with two advertising
agencies for a multimedia public health advertising campaign
that will run in the spring, hitting the issues of IV drug use
and AIDS, and heterosexual transmission risks.

The Health Department has launched an educational
campaign, on which we will spend $1 million this year, to
promote latex condom use. This includes distributing a million
condoms next year, with educational material, through clinics
and education and counseling programs, pregnancy testing sites,
and oth.. places where we find people who need to change their
behavior.

For community and professional groups, the Department
provides specialized training programs to help people
incorporate AIDS information into their community and work
lives. Professional groups that Health Department educators
have trained include Board of Education personnel; Sanitation
workers; health care and social service workers; drug

treatment professionals; and police, probation, and

corrections officers. Our public health educators reach over
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3,000 people per month; they receive more than 20 requests for
educational sessions per week, per educator.

To provide the medical community in New York City
accurate, current infcrmation about clinical research and
disease surveillance, the Health Department holds monthly AIDS
Clinical Investigators Meetings. An AIDS Forum is held every
month four city officials, representatives of voluntary
organi:zations, and others concerned about AIDS.

We are increasin? our outreach and education to high-risk
ropulations. Special eftorts address IV drug users and their
sexual partners. Public health educators are assigned to local
areas with the highest incidence of IV drug use to raise
community awar-:ness of AIDS prevention. To educate IV drug
addicts on the need to use clean drug injection equipment, or
"works,” Health Department brochures, including one entitled,
AIDS and Druags, caution that "the best protection is no
injection,” and describe itethods of cleaning "works.®
Videctapes and posters as well as training for drug counselors
and socia! service workers target people at risk because of
drug use. The Department cooperates with many city-wide and
local organizations, including supporting the community group
ADAPT (Association for Drug Abuse Prevention and Treatment), to
reach those at risk through IV drug abuse. The Department 1s
working with ADAPT on AIDS outreach projects such as doing AIDS
prevention and education programs in high risk areas, even
within shooting galleries themselves.

The January 1987 Financial Plan for New Vork City

includes additional City funds for concracts with
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community-based agencies for further AIDS educational programs
directed at minorities, homos2xuals, and IV drug abusers.

Fo: members of high-risk groups as well as the general
and professional public, the Health Department AIDS Information
Hotline gives anonymous and confidential counseling and
information about AiDS and risk behavior, as well as referrals
for persons wishing antibtody testing. Last month the number of
lines increased from four to seven, with four lines to handle
physicianq‘ questicns. Increases in the pubaic health

education ¢ 1aign on subways and in the mass media, in the

numbers of physicians involved in testing and counseling, ir
the counseling and testing sites, and in the number of peorle
who are becoming aware of their risk, al’ point to a continuing
increase in the demand for the Hotline. We need to expand
Hotline days and hours to improve access to this most important
source of anonymous, confidential information and counseling
for people who are ut risk, as well as who are at the point
where preventicn agdaiast infection is still possible.

The sec~nd critical public health policy issuve is that
vigorous public nealth actions need to be increased while
resistine ineffective measures of social control. Virtually
all public health officials from areas of highest AIDS
prevalence agree that mandatory HIV-antibody testing when no
treatment is available, and unless confidentiality can be
assured, would be unwise and counterproductive. HIV-infected
people -- already facing devastating discrimination in housing,
employment, and insurance -- would not cooperate with our

counseling, education, and testing if they feared that society
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was considering measures that could lead to quarantine,
isolation, and additional forms of discrimination.

New York City is moving aggressively to make voluntary,
confidential counseling and testing much more widely
accessible. We have just published a policy regarding the
increased availability of voluntary, confidential HIV antibody
testing and counseling. The policy contains guidelines for
health professionals on preventing and treating HIV infection,
as well as education of those at risk.

In New York City, our policy is that anyone who wishes to
know his or ker antibody status should rave access to this
information, provided the test results are confidential, tests
are voluntarily undergone, and counseling is available before
and after testing. We recommend that physicians should
actively consider if their patients may be at risk of HIV
infection, discuss risk-avoiding behavior as a part of routine
medical care of all patients, and offer counseling and, if
appropriate, HIV testing to patients considered to be at risk.

Testing in New York City is available through free,
anonymous test sites established in the City by the City and
State Health Departments; through any licensed physician in
New York City, using a laboratory with a special permit issued
by the New York City Health Department if counseling, consent,
and confidentiality are guaranteed by the lab; and at five of
our Sexually Transmitted Disease clinics in New York City.

To support the confidential, voluntary aspects of
counseling and testing, we have adopted a course of action

known as contact notification. With this approach, the Health
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Department is urging, and directly and actively assisting when
asked, people who are seropositive to notify their contacts.

The third critical ounlic health policy issue is &)

inc ava L re
the ! 1 € clinical. public healtt 3
social service needs. In Fiscal 1987, New York City will spend

approximately $258 million on programs in AIDS treatment, human
services, public health initiatives, and human rights
discrimination. The City share of this figuvre is $73 million
in tax levy dollars. Next year, we will spend $335 million, of
which $90 million is City tax levy dollars.

The seral administration has br.en very reluctant to
recognize the true dimensions of and propose an adequately
funded federal response to AIDS. It must do much more to
support the unprecedented demands for AIDS treatment, human
services, public health initiatives, and human rights
discrimination resources, without sacrificing the research and
education efforts that are so necessary.

A milestone in our efforts to increase federal funding
for AIDS research, care, and education was the report of the
National Academy of Sciences, calling for a $2 billion AIDS
research and education effort. The Academy recommended that $1
billion a year be newly appropriated for extensive basic and
applied biomedical investigations of the disease. Another $1
billion would go for a massive, continuing education campaign
to increase public awareness of the ways of protecting against
infection. The money would also be applied to other necessary

public health measures, such as screening the blood supply,
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voluntary confidential testing, and increased efforts in
treatmeat and prevention of IV drug use. The Academy’'s call
must herald an increase in the national commitment against the
massive problem of AIDS.

Increased federal support would translate into measures
for controlling the spread of AIDS in New York City in the
following ways. It would:

o ide fundi bl idly i
mmmﬂwﬁm By the

beginning of this year, over 17,000 people had used these
counseling and testing services. We will continue to make
voluntary, confidential counseling and testing sites more
widely available -- though expanded testing requires
substantial investments in money and trained personnel.

® Provide funding to increase access to substance abuse
treatment proarams for IV addicts. This is one of our most
critical options for halting the spread of AIDS among addicts
end to women and children. Currently, New York City has long
waiting lists for methadone maintenance; drug-free
rehabilitation programs are full to capacity. The federal
government must consider drug rehabilitation programs as one of
our important priorities, and provide more federal dollars
through states and communities so that more addicts may find
treatment for their addiction.

The Department of Health, in conjunction with the
Division of Substance Abuse Services of New York State, has
developed a proposal to explore an additional strategy for

reducing the spread of Hlv among drug users: a research
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project to determine the effect of the exchange of clean
needles to a small, carefully selected and monitored group of
IV drug addicts awaiting entry into drug treatment. If
approved by the State Health Commissioner, the research study
will serve as the basis for evaluating the efficacy of this
approach in halting the further spread of the AIDS virus, while
avoiding promotion of IV substance abuse.

e Provide funding to increase efforts to expand our
knowledge base. Research needs to be expanded to investigate
the nature of HIV and its transmission. Currently, Health
Department researchers are collecting data for two studies, a
survey of hospital patients suspected of having AIDS to

identify associated risk factors, and a study of risk factors

for transmission of AIDS in heterosexual couples in which one
partner contracted AIDS from a blood transfusion. In another
project, Department researchers and five participating
hospitals are studying HIV transmission f:om infected mother to
child. A series of blind and anonymous serosurveys are
planned, to shed greater light on current infection patterns,
especially among women of childbearing age.

e Provide funding to increase massive public health
education risk reduction efforts. We must have more support
for the programs we are a8lready operating: the Hotline,
training programs, community-based presentations, counseling
and testing. Additionally, we need more funding to allow more
community-based groups to take on more responsibilities for

continuing the educational programs we have established. We
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desperately need more madia vrogrims on ATDS services and risk
reduction. .

e Support policies that eliminate the false dichotomy
betwaeen civil liherties and public health. Stands na issues
such as contact tracing and mandatory antibody t:st.ng have at
times been portrayed as sacrificing public health in the name
of civil iiberties. vYet the approaches taken by New York City
are based on sound public health principles; wvirtuaily all
public health professionals agree that public health would be
hindered by control measures such as mandatory testing -~ as
well as by ill-conceived judicia® opinions such as the Justice
Department’'s opinion last year, although the Supreme Court
decision in the Arline case takes a substantial step toward
cverturning the inuppropriate Justice Department decision.

The AIDS epidemic, and our understanding of it, is
growing and changing constantly. Responsible policy must be
continually reexamined against these changing conditions, and
be modified if necessary to ieflect current knowledge of
disease transmission while at the same time remain flexible
enough to accommodate important discoveries.

Biomedical research cannot eliminate the problem of AIDS
in the short run. Education, health promotion, and risk
reduction will remain our critical weapons in the fight against
AIDS for at least the next several years. Those of us in a
position to influence policy must do all we can to advance
these weapons against this major and mounting health problem in
New York City, across the United States, and around the world.

- End -
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Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much, Dr. Joseph. To a significant
extent, I think you have responded in your testimony to the ques-
tions that we have prepared. I welcome the material that you have
supplied. While we can’t include all of it in the record, because of
the volume, we will keep it in our archives and use it that wml
want to make special note of the subway and bus posters t
m'vzserggerred to. Will you show that, Jim? How long has that

n

Dr. JoserH. That went up last summer, I believe in May or June
1986. The other one, “Women Can Get AIDS, Too"—both of these
are in English and iganish. You're showing the English versions—
this went up a month ago. I think, you know, these are important,
but there’s no single channel answer. We need mass media activity,
we need a great expansion of our hotline.

In my written teetimonfy, I talk about our hotline being expanded
from seven telephones—from four telephones to seven. Since that
testimony was written at the end of the last week. we've expanded
from 7 to 14. You'll hear from others about voluntery hotlines in
the city. I think we’ve got to move on the educational front, com-
Pletely across the board. In the schools, with the hotlines, commu-
nity outreach, one on one on the street and in the galleries, mass
media on TV, subway posters. We really have to go with every
weapon that we have.

r. WEss. Are your mass media efforts based on contributed
time and talent, or are you eg;ymg"

Dr. JosEPH. The mass medi campaigns that I mentioned are pro
bono efforts on the part of the advertising agencies, but the produc-
tion costs, as you know, need to be paid for. We received $300,000
specifically for mass media efforts from the city council in this
bndget, and those moneys will be used up in the two campaigns
that I'm describing for the spring.

Mr. Weiss. You have our gratitude and sincere appreciation tor
taking the time to come down for this hesring today, and for the
%ngcl)(ing tremendous work that you are doing in the city of New

ork.

Dr. JosepH. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I do apologize
fﬁuini‘both to you and my colleagues on the pane' for deshing off.

ank you.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you.

Ms. Gebbie, we'll hear from you next.

STATEMENT OF KRISTINE M. GEBBIE, RN., AN., ADMINISTRA-
TOR, HEALTH DIVISION, OREGON DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RE.
SOURCES

Ms. GeBBIE. Mr. Chairman, | appreciate the opportunity to be
here, and to represent particularly the AIDS education concerns
and interests of the parts of the country other than those with the
highest incidences of the disease. I come rot only as the head of the
health division for the State of Oregon, but as the chair of the
AIDS Committee for the Association of State and Territorial
Health Officials. One of our major efforts has been to provide some
policy guidance for our member States, being particularly interest-
ed in States which had a low incidence of the disease early on, and
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were able in part to insulate themselves from working on this epi-
demic early because of a broad public perception that this disease
would not cross—in our case, the boundary of California—an invisi-
ble barrier.

Because of the difficrit nature of this epidemic, the fact that you
cannot talk about it iong without talking about death and sex;
without talking about homosexualit‘y, which is waboo in many
areas; it was easier for many parts of the public to say “not me,’
rather than to say “what can we do to grevent it from becoming a
high incidence disease in our locality?” For that reason I differenti-
ate the educational campaign into two components. One is the fac-
tual educational campaign apout the disease, what it can do, and
what should be done about it. And then the second part, that
which goes beyond that, to teach the behavior change necessary to
prevent spread of the disease.

The first part, just the basic education is necessaglto get people
interested in what they need to do, and also to allay the panic
which complicated our educational efforts at the beginning. The
second part, the behavior change, is necessary for anyone who is
putting themselves at risk of the disease, in order to reduce spread.

A major ga.rt of the problem with this educational effort is the
luxury we have not had, of testing what to do first, seeing what
really, really works and then &utting it into effect in an crganized,
very slowly developed way. We've had to leap in and do things,
testing them as we go, operating out of the best informed estimates
of public health workers, who are familiar with epidemics, out of
the efforts of those familiar with people at high risk, and then to
put our evaluation campaigns in place as we go along.

Oregon is typical, I think, of most States, in that our educational
activities are organized at a statewide level, providing resources,
materials—printed materials, videotapes and the like—but carried
out at the local level, through community-based groups, and
through our local health departments, who can tailc~ activities to
the experiences of each separate community. That experience at
the State level I think, is a parallel of what happens nationally.
We need to be able to tailor our educational programs to the differ-
ent demographics, the different social attitudes, the different vo-
cabularies of each area of this country, or of each State.

T'd like to go through some of the separate target audiences that
we have focused on within Oregon, again because I think it’s typi-
cal, and because it illustrates the diversity with which educational
materials need to be developed.

The first target audience are public health officials. We needed

{)eople in every single one of our 35 local health departments, at
east 1 person who could respond to public questions, who could co-
ordinate alternate site testing activities, field questiom about that,
and who can provide the public speaking that's needed on a regu-
lar basis in every part of the State. We did that through a program
of training trainers in every local health department, major educa-
tional efforts that were undertaken before any Federal funds were
available to a State like ours.

A second major target audience for us are all other health pro-
viders. Physicians, nurses, dentists, emergency medical services
providers, you name them, they’re on our target list. We have tried
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to work with their own associations. For example, the Oregon Med-
ical Association has sponsored a road show education program to
reach family practitioners and other primary care providers out-
side of the metropolitan area. The Association of Practitioners in
Infection Control provided a ready to move road show that will
go into any institution receiving its first AIDS patient to go over
attitudinal information, and to go over basic infection control infor-
mation for the nursing or housekeeping or other staff as they have
their first encounter with this disease. We need to continue to
repeat that kind of program. As has been referenced several times
earlier today, many health care providers have yet to see their first
patient with , have yet to really take on their responsibility
for education, and it will take continued reinforcement from public
health officials and from professional associations to get all of tho
health providers participating in this.

A third major target audience for us has been school officials. We
started with them by developing policies for school practices, trying
to have policies in place prior to a first public confrontation on ad-
mission of a child to school. We have yet *o have such a public con-
frontation. I'd like to believe it’s because we won’t ever have a
mhﬂ'or public confrontation, that the policies are in place, and a
child’s first enrollment in school will be very quiet. But in fact, as
is true of many States, we do not yet have school age children of
any number with this disease. That foot in the door of developing
policies with the school board, with the school principals, with the
school superintendents, with the PTA, was also our starting point
for making schools aware of the need for education, and provided
us with a foundation of a relationship that then lets us come back
and say, “now what are you going to do about curriculum? You've
got the policies, now you need the knowledge.” And we have been
nble to move on to that.

A fourth target audience, current high risk groups, are being
reached as much through the counseling and testing programs as
they are through any form of mass education program. We see
those groups needing much more personalized education. We are
using our community-based groups, such as our AIDS networks,
and our drug abuse treatment programs to reach out to the identi-
fied high risk groups.

Our fifth major target audience are young people not g:: experi-
menting with drugs or sexual activity. References have been made
earlier today to curriculum activities in the high school and in the
Jjunior high school. I want to emphasize that that education has to
g0 down to the grade school level. I only have to look at the girls
who are 11 who get pregnant every year in Oregon to know that
waiting until junior high school is too late to teach people about
safe sex activities. And we have in fact got schoecls down to the
grade school level in Oregon providing educational materials on
AIDS. 1t is specifically tailored in each case to the abilities of that
student group, and it is not uniform across the State. We have a
high school curriculum available across the State, that’s in place in
50 schools—50 school districts, out of our 300. We hope to have it
statewide within another year. We have a middle school -urricu-
lum available and taking it statewide. It has helped break the bar-
rier of many discussions of sexually iclated activity in the schools.
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You have heard much mention already this morning of sexually
active heterosexuals, and the need for a broad based public educa-
tion campaign, so that all people who may be at risk of this disease
grasp that the threat is outside of the previously talked about high-
risk groups, and that anybody is at risk. Women are a special
target in this group in our State as elsewhere, and we do see the
mass media as a major participant here. We have, like other
places, had the donation of public advertising firms to help us with
that campaign.

1 will add, anybody else who doesn’t fit in the above groups as
our final target audience. There are people who may not be sexual-
ly active today, or who may be in a mutually monogamous relation-
ship since prior to 1977, who still need all of the basic information
to support the activities. One of our goals is to have every single
service organization in the State of Oregon, the Lions, the Kiwanis,
the Rotary, the PTA, to have an AIDS topic on their regular pro-
gram sometime in the next year, so that we really reach out to a
broader audience. That helps break the barrier of talking at at
things like sexual activity. It gets people thinking about what they
need to do in the school, in the workplace and other places.

Let me close with a brief reference to resources. I concur with
the thrust of several things that have been said this morning, that
a bigger Federal investment is necessary. I think we could easily
double the Federal investment in education, and spend the money
wisely, particularly on dissemination of information, and on the
evaluation of what works and doesn’t work. I think that can best
be done nationally.

But I want to underscore the need for continued State and local
resources because that’s what promotes ownership of the program,
and allows the tailoring of the program to what works in the com-
munity, and gets around that barrier of denying that this is a par-
ticular local problem, not just in New York or San Francisco, but
in Portland and John Day, and Halfway, Oregon, and all those
other places that I'm trying to reach, and my counterparts in every
other State are trying to reach.

We need the national leadership, but we need to collaborate, and
that will expand the dollars exponentially to what we can do.
Thank you very much.

Mr. WEeiss. Thank you very much, Ms. Gebbie.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Gebbie follows:]
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AIDS KDUCATION

A major component of each state’s public health Program in response to
the epidemic of Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS) and infection
with Human Ismunodeficiency Virus (BIV) 4is education. This is an

tial coap t b lack of information about the virus, the
disease it causes, its method of spread, the ability of individuals to
choose behavior which can eliminaze or greatly reduce the risk of
infection is one of the major weapons available to combat both the
spread of the disease and spread of the panic which has complicated our
public health effort. Any educational program has two components,
education about BIV infection and AIDS and education to prevent the
spread of HIV infection and therefore AIDS. The factual information
about the disease, its methods of spread, its effect on the body and the
complex of social reactions which surround it are necessary for health
providers to accurately deal with their patients or their communities
and to dispell the myths and rumors that have complicated our effort.
Education to prevent spread of the virus must not only include the facts
and figures but be capable of motivating people to change their behavior
or to majntain a behavior pattern which can protect them from the
disease.

.In all parts of the education we have been putting programs into
¥vractice without the luxury of carefully controlled test prograas to
identify exactly which form of education, which style of presentation,
what level of detail, or other variables will affect the learning which
takes place, the retention of that learning, and the actual effect of
the learning on behavior. We are using the best informed estimates of
axperienced public health workers of those familiar with groups at high
risk of this infection and implemsnting evaluation programs as as we 8o

along.
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As with a large number of public health programs in this country, AIDS
Prevention education is being organized at the level of state public
health agencies but is further particularized and carried out by local
health agencies. In some jurisdictions, very large local health
departments are carrying out programs which may be bigger than the state
programs with which they relate. Thia is particularly true in those
large cities which have very high rates of infection and of the disease
and have had substantial public health rescurces available in general.
Oregon is typical of many states in which the profram development and
general framework are being organized at the statewide level with the
day to day activity carried out at the local lavel allowing materials
to be tailored to the experiences, attitudes, and resources of the local
community.

TARGET AUDIENCES

For a variety of reasons, the educational programs are targetted at
several different audiences, sach of which need different levels of
detail on the virus, its spread, its effect on individuals, the methods
of preventing infection, and methods of dealing with those who have been
exposed, who have been infected or who are experiencing illness
Briefly, important audiences include:

(1) Public health officials - each public health agency must have
staff who are knowledgeable about this disease.
can coordinate efforts at the local level and participate
in the educational program. In Oregon, we havc prepared
local health officials in two ways, first with a basic
education program that prepares them to participate in
our alternate site testing program and in epidemiologic
activities, and second , through a train the traine:
srogram which prepares them to provide educatiorn=l
programming within their local jurisdiction.

(2) Other health Providers - this target audience is
important (1) because they will be caring for or
responding to infected individuals or ill individuals
and (2) because they are looked to as a resource by the
worried members of the community seeking accurate
information about the disease. In Oregon, Providers have
scheduled AIDS related programs onto regular meetings
of their associations. The Association of Practitioners
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in Infection Control have provided core training

for health care institutions regarding infection control
practices and appropriate response to hospitalized
infected persons. The Oregon Medical Associatior has
cooperated in an educational program geared at the
practicing physician who is not specializing in
infectious diseases but may be seeing the worried well
or the exposed person seeking testing or information.
This program has been well received and will be
repeated in various geographic areas of the state.

School officials - because of the major public

policy problem caused with the admission of

children with AIDS in other states, school officals
were an early target of education, primarily througn
the development of policies regarding the admission of
children with AIDS to school. Working through
associations of school *»>ards, school administrators,
educators, the State Department of Education, sufficient
information was provided to facilitate the adoption of
the policies. Work is now going on with the Departaent
of Education regarding implementation of an AIDS
curriculum in all schools. A high school lavel
curriculum is available and is being utilized in many
schools. One of our next targets is to adapt this
curriculum for use with younger students. As schools
become interested in use of the curriculua, teachers,
admiristrators and pareots must be educated so that
implementation of the program goes smoothly. In each
school district, there are unique resources and needs
which must be taken into account in planning and
presenting the material.

Current high risk groups - this is the area of education
that has probably received the most attention and of
which many people are aware. Education within the gay
community and within ‘he drug using community is being
done utilizing the resources of those already familiar
with these communities. In Oregon, as elsewhere, the

ity-based AIDS organizations which have grown out of the
8ay community have been particularly active and effective and
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have brought rescurces and capacities to the program vhich
could not have been quickly developed, if at all,

within the public health community. The programs

working with drug sbusers have also becoae actively
involved in identifying ways of reaching out to their
group.

Youn& p=cFle not yet experimenting with drugs or sexual
activity - this is the target audience for the school-

based progran. The middle school and upper grade school level
is key to stopping spread of the disease in the next
generation of adults. We have not got comprehensive materials
available yet. As school officlals, which were montioned as a
target audience earlier, become informed, they will be able to
work more actively with the health agencies in designing
materials. This program particularly must be geared to the
individual attitudes and experiences of each local conmunity
because of the history of concern about any infcrmation

on sexuality in the schools.

Sexually active heterosexuals - this group has until very
recently succeeded in denying the risk for AIDS and HIV
infection and is one of the groups with the fastest growth of
rate of infection. While general media attention has

made some members of this group aware of their potential
risk, we have not yet got clear programs which we can

assure ourselves are changing behavior. Approaches

will have to be on a large scale using general public
education and advertising techniques.

Anybody else who didn’t fit into the above groups -
This includes, for example, all employers In order
to prepare them for their first experience with a known
infected person in the worksite to improve infection
control practices in first aide stations, to encourage
consideration of issues related to continued employment
and insurance coverage for those with AIDS.

RESQURCES FOR_EDUCATION

Education is one of the most important components of the attack on HIV
infection,

In response to recent questions about a much broader use of
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the HIV antibody test, I and many othe. public health officials pointed
out that ax weapons to fight this infection, each antibody tast done is
a tradeoff against dollars that could be spent on education and in many
cases, the tradeoff to use of the test is not a wise investment of
dollars. I believe education programs must be “owned" by the public

their public health agencies at all levels. This allows the
Particularlization of the program to local needs, the involvement of a
broader group of people in preperation and delivery of materials and a
much botter funded program than we probably would have if any ona level
of government were totally respbonsible for it.

Up until the present, the State of Oregon, both at the state and local
level, is spending at least one dollar of local resources for evaery
dollar of federal funding available for AIDS education. This is, in
fact, probably more likely to be one and a half to two times but it is
impossible to fully calculata the dollar value of the volunteer hours
which have been utiliied. Budgatting for the next two years, it looks
more likely that local resourceds will be three timer what we are
currently anticipating from the federal effort. More federal dollars
certainly could be used tat as indicated earlier, fully funding
education federally a) may not be affordable and b) may not be the bast
because it couid reduce the 1local owmership and comeitment to the
program.

Thera are some things that can be best bought at a nationwide lavel and
could support local activities. From my perspective, a aajor one is the
evaluation of our educational efforts. We have been implementing
programs based on intuition and experience with other diseases. We know
this disease is different. The sociai response has made that clear. We
are implementing what is our best shot but we must have extensive
avaluation of our effectiveness. That avaluation must be long term and
must allow comparison of different groups and experiences 1ir different
areas. Such evaluations are, I think. best developed and supPorted at a
national lavel. That would also allow a fedsral role in communicating
quickly across the country the results of work and experiences so that
adaPtations can be made based on emerging knowledge.

Another major role for the federal agencies and ona that is being
developed well in the new plan for education is that of preparing the
national leadership in key areas regarding AIDS so that they can.
through their own networks, prepare local groups to be responsive to
local education. An example of this is work with national school-
related asscciations and organizations so that when a local school
district is approached by a local health department they not only get
the message about AIDS and its preven.ion at that level but can look to
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their national association of educators, of PTA's, of school Principals,
for reinforcesent. 1 want to emphasize that the national work loes not
replace the local efforts. Kducation must be organized and delivered
locally but the national work is reinforcing.

It ia difficult to put a speciiic dollar amount on the need, but
experience in Oregon would indicate that amounts of money spent on
education could be doubled effectively for the next several years to
allow for &d te devel t of the teaching materials needed and
outreach to all target audiences. State and local health officials are
eager to continue collaborating wit. their federal colleagues in
preventing further spread of HIV infection. Education 1is one of the
most potent weapons.
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Mr. Wriss. Ms. Stroud.

STATEMENT OF FLORENCE STROUD, RN, M.P.H., DEPUTY DIREC-
TOR FOR COMMUNITY PUBLIC HEALTH PROGRAMS, SAN FRAN-
CISCO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Ms. Stroupn. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My comments today are
going to be focused on our efforts with adolescents, but I wanted to
take the opportunity to second a couple of comments Dr. Joseph
made, with respect to needed funding for expansion of testing pro-

grams.

We believe both in our alternative test sites, as well as our pro-
vider-based testing, that more Federal money is needed not only for
the analysis of the tests, but for some of the kinds of education and
counseling that have to go on with individuals who come for the
test, and community residents from where they come. So I would
certainly echo the need in the high prevalence area of San Francis-
co, for increased money for alternative testing and provider testing,
and increased money for methadone treatment of our IV drug
users.

There’s been a great deal of discussion today about the National
Academy of Sciences report, and I wanted to start my testimony
with one of its recommendations as it related to young people. Spe-
cial attention must be paid to AIDS education for young people in
schools and colleges, many of whom are entering periods of experi-
mentation with sex and drugs. Frank discussion of behaviors that
do and do not transmit HIV has become an urgent necessity for
this target population. I think it’s within the spirit of that recom-
mendation that we in San Francisco decided that we must move
quickly to provide public education to our adolescents and to our
preadolescents living in San Francisco. I would like to describe
three specific programs or projects for you today.

The first has to do with a school-based education. In the fall of
1985, a survey was conducted among high schoolers in San Francis-
co, primarily to find out what they knew about ATDS, whether they
wanted accurate information about the disease, and whether they
believed that it ought to be a part of their school curriculum.

Many of us working in San Francisco were really kind of sur-
prised that there was 80 much misinformation among our adcles-
cents who really were exposed to a media that talked about AIDS
all the time. However, the reality was that there was a lot of mis-
information. Students wanied accurate information, and they
almost unanimously agreed that it ought to be a purt of the regu-
lar school curriculum.

A joint task force was formed, including teachers, parents, health
department staff, and school board staff. And that group developed
a joint policy not only in management of children with HIV infec-
tion, but it also developed a plan on how youngsters in the district
ought to be educated.

We came up with what we felt was a short-term and long-term
strategy. The short-term strategy was that in May of last year, all
students, grades 9 through 12, 25,000 of them, would not leave
school that year without having participated in a one class session
on AIDS. We now call it AIDS-101 for kids.
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The longer term stra required that we needed to run—train
a core of teachers who felt comfortable, who were well informed,
and who could teach in the district about AIDS, and to develop a
curriculum for the middle schoolers, grade 6 through 8, as well as
the high schoolers.

The one class session response was gratifying from students.
They learned informationl,ﬂyou had a pre- and post-test, so we knew
what they learned, or could remember at least at that point, and
they were able to transfer the knowledge very well. But more im-
Rortant, we provided for them an opportunity to call our public

ealth centers if they had need for answers to other questions. We
were very gratified that a number of the students, very sexually
active students, who felt they could not discuss some of their own
concerns in the classroom, availed themselves of our health cen-
ters, where they could discuss one on one, what the da.nier of con-
tracting AIDS was, how they could prevent it, and how they might
protect themselves, We decided that one session experience was 80
good, that we’re going to do it again this year in May.

In the meantime, during the summer of 1986, we were able to get
money from CDC to train a core of teachers, and that began last
summer and fall. We now have 130 teachers in the San Francisco
unified school district who are trained, £~d I must say that it’s im-
possible for school districts to release teachers for training without
some kind of outside funding, Most of our districts are very
strapped in terms of funds for education, and unless there is out-
side funding to relieve teachers who can be trained, and they can
be adequately trained in 5 days, then we’re not going to have
people who can competently implement the kinds of curriculum
that are being desifned.

We've just completed the curriculum. It will be out in print, in
fact it probably was on Friday, for the middle school and the high
school students, and I've included an outline of that curriculum, so
that you get a little flavor of what is included in the curriculum.
. The elementa.r;\;—l mean, also, to agree with Ms. Gebbie that it’s
important that the elementary age youngsters know about human
reproduction, disease control, and self-esteem. And the later ele-
mentary age youngsters need more explicit information, I think,
about human sexualli‘tly.

Let me move quickly to a second effort that we’ve been involved
in, and it was one using a medium that is a part of the adolescent
culture, icularly the black and Hispanic culture in our commu-
nity. And we were very alarmed at the high rates of STD’s among
blacks and Hispanics in San Francisco.

We decided to borrow from the whopping medium that is so pop-
ular among our kids, and we initiated a rap contest. The purpcse
was, not only to have the kids develop messages in their own lan-
guage that they could give to their peers, but we also did it because
we wanted to get a foothold in youth serving agencies in San Fran-
cisco, so that we could go back time and time again to reenforce
the message about prevention. The contest, we felt, was a
monumental success. We offered the kids money for the first three
winning raps. They grasped the information very well. They put it
to poetry and a beat. And we used local media folks who agreed to
produce PSA’s out of the winning raps. And they’re in the process
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of doin% that. The winning mpiel‘)iy the way, was held on Monday,
March 9. So, we’ve just completed that, and we’re really delighted
at how adolescents grasped this information, and how they can
convay it.

We don’t know whether or not it was enough to change or
modify people’s behavior. And again, we believe one of the roles
the Federa.r Government can t‘l;;lay is to assist those of us at the
local level who come up with innovative programs, to help us
evaluate which strategies seem to be effective in modifying behav-
ior of kids who are already sexually active; which strategies seem
to be effectiva in helpinf kids delay initiating sexual activity.

And the third thing I'll briefly run through is a series of radio
messages. We are not unaware of yo rs in our community
who are almost always with their little boxes. And they listen to
the radio, and we re that some 80 to 1,000 of our kids listen to
the radio daily. And we decided to develop a series of radio mes-
sages at times when they listen, when they’re not in school, for
those who are in school, but in the early evening and in the early
morning. These messages will be aired twice a day over ethnic sta-
tions in San Francisco. And after each message, those listening to
the messages will be given two or three phone numbers of places
they can go, should they like to discuss further the messages that
they've heard.

I also would like to reemphasize the fact that, 1 believe, for the
adolescent, any kind of educational program has to be multidimen-
sional in order to reach our youngsters. And I also would like to
reinforce that it is important that teachers be trained, that teach-
ers can, with intensive training, deal with some of their own hang-
ups about human sexuality, learn about AIDS, and be as effective
in providing education, as many of the health providers that we
work with.

Another thing I wanted to say, and I think it’s critical as we
impact on minority communities, that there has to be an attempt
to educate at the infrastructure of each of those communities.
We’ve begun workinﬁ in churches and community groups because
we know the kids who get our information go back to those com-
munities, and go back to those churches. And it is very difficult,
when you’re talking about a disease like AIDS, and you come
smack into some religious beliefs that will not allow people to
really hear you.

And I believe in the future we will need more funding to really
work with those community groups, and wtllH' to change some of the
religious attitudes that really, I think, will at some point impede
our ability to get the information where it ought to be.

It is critical at the local level that there be coordination and col-
laboration between local governmental entities, as well as collabo-
ration and coordination amo rivate agencies. We would not
have been able to produce the PSA’s that are now in process had
we not been able to find a production company that gave us, not
pro bono, but at a marked glsco unt their time and their skills to

shake these PSA’s, so that th? would really ap to teenagers.

That kind of collaboration and coordination, I think, is essential.
And the last thing I want to say is, I do support the National
Academy’s recommendation that for public education there is a
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need for a total of $1 billion from Government and private sources
in public education through the year 1991 or 1990.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Stroud follows:]
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One of the recommendations on public education made by the National Academy of
Sciences' Committee on a National Strategy for AIDS reads as follows:

"Special attention must be paid to AIDS education for young
pecple in schools and colleges, many of whom are entering
periods of experimentation with sex and drugs. Frank
dis-ussion of behaviors that do and do not transmit HIV has
become an urgent necessity for this target population.”

It is the spirit and substance of that recommendation that has guided and

informed our educational efforts with youth in San Francisco. I would like to
deacribe three separate but related projects in which we are involved that are
designed to educate our youth who are in school, as well as those who are not.

I. School-based Education

In the Fall of 1985, a survey was conducted among high school students in

our public school system to determine (a) what they knew about AIDS, (b)
whether they wanted accurate information about the disease, and (c) whether
they believed it ought to be a part of their school curriculum. The results
revealed that students had a lot of misinformation about AIDS, that they wanted
accurate information and that they believed it ought to be a part of the
curriculum.

A joint task force including teachers, parents and Health Department staff wus
formed to develop a policy and plans for educating students. This policy was
adopted by the School Board and Health Commission. The program that grew from
this joint policy had a short-term and long-term strategy.

The short-term strategy required that during the Spring of 1986, students would
have at least one class session on AIDS. The longer-term strategy required the
Gevelopment of a curriculum on AIDS for middle school and high school students,
and special training of teachers. .

Students' response to the one-class sessions was very gratifying. Students
really wanted information and, after some initial uneasiness, asked excellent

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




133

Questions about the disease, how it was spread and how they could protect
themselves. Parents were given the opportunity to review materials and to
attend special evening meetings to discuss the classes.

We have just completed three separate, four-day teacher traiuing courses for
middle achool, high school and elementary teachers. The middle and high achool
curriculum has been completed after piloting it at several sites, and is now in

Funding for these activities was provided by the Health Impartment and the
School District with the exception of a $63,008 grant frce (DC for teacher
training and curricu'um development. The pro..‘t could have moved more
expeaitiously had more federal funding been z ‘lable, e.g. we would have
developed a more creaible evaluation methodoiugdy for documenting and evaluating
our efforts in a stepwise fashion, and we could have invested more time
working with private achools in our city.

II. Rap'n Contest

A second program we 1nitiated was 2 rap’n contest - geared to youth from 13 to
19 years of age. This Program enlisted youth who were in school, as well as
those who were not. Since rap'n is a contemporary form of communication among
adolescents, we felt it would be an effective medium to use for youth educating
other youth about ways tO protect themselves about AIDS and prevent its

spread. The contest was followed by a series of meetings with those who
particizated so we could learn what they learned, determine whether it
modified their behavior, or helped them think more critically about the
consequences Of cervain sexual behavior and use of drugs. The winning “rape"
are being developed as television and radio PSAs. Staff from owr Department
and several comunity agencies continue their work wath the diverse youth in
our commnity to reinforce the learning that has already occurred, and to
assist youth to maintain more healthy behaviors (I've attached some of the
“raps" that the youth developed). We wish that we had the funds to follow a
cohort of these young people over time to determine whether our efforts, and
which educational strategies in particular, were effective in helping our youth
adopt more healthy behaviors. This would assist us and others in choosing
those coonmnity programs more likely to influence their behavior.
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III. Radio Messages

A third program developed to appeal to youth in school and out of school was a
series of radio messages about AIDS - what it is and how it can be

prevented. These one-minute information spots are being aired on key stations
that appeal to youth and are aired during those day and evening hours when
youngsters are known to tune in. Each message ends by directing the listener
to contact their local health department for more information and/or a physical
examination. We believe this technigue has the potent:ial for reaching
thousands of young people in a repetitive way. We will monitor inquiries to
our facilities that were prompted by the radio messages.

Our efforts to educate and change behavior of cur youth were based on several
principles:

1. Didactic education, while necessary, was not suificient to change
their behavior;

2. Educational strategies must be multifaceted if they are to appeal to
youth;

3. Programs gmust involve youth as teachers, and employ their own methods
for transmitting information:

4. There have to be ways, at a famly and/or commmity level, to reinforce
learning in culturally sensitive and linguistically appropriate ways;

5. Programs will succeed only if there is viable collaboration between
local governmental entities and commumity agencies.

Local governments do not have the funding to mount the kinds of programs needed
to reach our youth. Local governments also can benefit from direction from

the federal government with respect to general kinds of programs that are
likely to succeed. This direction can and must be modified to local
environments. Again, I would support the Academy's recommendation that the
Federal government needs to develop a massive campaign to implement the
educational goals enuncicted in their report. A budget of $l1-billion dollars,
annually, by 1999 is a reasonable estimate for the multidimensional programs
that are warranted if we ae to prevent the transmission of this lethal disease.
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AIDS EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM
POR
SCHOOL~AGED YOUNGSTERS

January 29, 1987

The Teacher's Curriculum Guide on AIDS has been designed and developed tc
prepare middle high achool teachers to provide current and accurate
information on AIDS for classroom instruction. This curriculum development is
part of a pilot project, a joint effort between the San Francisco Unified
School District and the San Francisco Department of Public Health. The pilot
project also includes a comprehensive Family Life Education/AIDS Teacher
Training program for elementary, middle, and high school teachers, as well as
monitored field testing of the curriculum guide by trained teachers. Funding
for this project has been provided by a grant from the Centers for Disease
Control. This collaborative endeavor has served to strengthen the efforts of
the School District and the Health Department to educate youth about AIDS and
related risk behaviors.

The Teacher's Curriculum Guide On AIDS is divided into four units and
presents infovmation about AIDS within the context of other commmicable
drseases. I 1s designed to be taught as either part of a comprehensive health
curriculum or i1n social studies, civics, history, contemporary social prcblems,
and/or acience class. It has been written with a special focus on factual
information, as well as a focus on prevention behaviors and cognitive
processes. The prevention behaviors are identified and reinforced through the
use of age-appropriate activities. There will be both a middle school and high
school edition of this quide.

Teachers held responsible for delivering lessons based on this curriculum
guide require adequate preparation. Preparaticn should provide a background on
teachirg human sexuality, responsible decision-making and specific strategies
for the reduction Of risks associated with particular incimate { person-to~
person) activities.

Regardless of the prevailing social mores, it must be acknovledged that,
in any given adolescent population, some are likely to be sexually active or
approaching sexual activity which places them at risk for sextally transmitted
infections. Conssquently, AIDS education in schools should be designed to
cover basic factual information to add to the srudent's kncwledge base, and
elucidate specific behavioral strategies for avoidance of infections
transmitted through sexual and parenteral means. Tae specific strategies
should include, but not be limited to, choices such as abstinence, muenal
monogamy, and the use of condoms as barriers to infected sexucl fluids.

On the following pages, you will find a detailed Qescription of the Table
of Contents, as well as examples of two activities from the Teache? 'z
Curriculum Guide on AIDS.
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Introduction

The Introduction defines the particular problems and issues that this
teacher's curriculum guide 13 designed to address and provides the reader with
an understanding of the need for such a guide.

Purpose: of the Guide

This section identifies the overall goals of the g''ide as providing
teachers with practical and creative lesson plans for:

1) teaching adolescents basic information about AIDS; and
2) assisting adolescents in understanding their personal

responsibility for preventing HIV infectionm.

Suggestions for Using the Guide

This section offers specific strategies for utilizing the teacher's quide,
with special attention to the flexibility of the lesson plans. Teachers are
encouraged to yse their discretion, in accordance with local guidelines, for
the selection of activities for particular classes or age groups.

Teacher Background Information

This section provides a comprrhensive overview of the AIDS epidemic, with a
detailed descviption of how AIDS is transmitted, how it 18 not transmitted.
This section provides a comprehensive overview of acquared immunodeficiency
syndrome, including the current status of, and future projections for, the
epidemic. This section, along with the rec~~wended resources, is intended to
serve as a basic primer on AIDS for those teachers who use this curriculum.

Srecial Considerations for Teaching About AIDS and Human Sexuality

Ia this section, the various psychosocial issues which impact the AIDS
eprdemic are identified and discussed. These issues are placed in the context
of rzaching ahvut AIDS in the clasaroom and the range of emotional responses
that may be experienced by the tescher and/or that can be expected from the
stidents. In addition, some basic guidelines for teaching human sexuality are
described and suggested for use in classroom presentations.

Un:it 1 - Linking AIDS as a Communicable Disease

3118 unit is de31gied to d~velop an understanding of communicable diseases
and to place AILCS withiu the emntext of other commumnicable dfseases.

14}
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Unit 2 ~ ATDS as a Communicable and Sexually Transmitred Di

This unit is designed to offer basic informetion about AIDS, AIDS virus
transmission, symptoms of AIDS, transmission categories and risk behaviors.

Unit 3 - Risk Reduction and Prevantion of Ai1DS

This unit is designed to intrcduce risk reduction and prevention concepts,
tdentify risk reduction and prevention behaviors, and promote discussion of
these behaviors,

Unit 4 ~ AIDS and Our Commmity

i

This unit 18 designed to enable the student to understand the impact of J
AIDS in his/her commnity a4 to learn hew to locate and utilize commmaty :
resources and services.

Resources

This section will need to be adapted for each city. The guide w11l
describe AIDS-related resources locally and nationally, and provide an
explanation of how to develop this section for a particular area.

Recormended Readings

Suggested readings on AIDS and reiated risk behaviors, sexually (canscitted
diseases, family life education, sex education in the schools, and special
concerns for adolescents will be included in this section for the teacher
requiring zire background on these subjects.

RIC 12 ‘
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EXAMPLE ACTIVITY (high school)
Unit 3

Video - Sex, Drugs and AIDS (high school)

Purpose

To introduce age—appropriate behavioral strategies for reducing or preventing
the risk of infection with AIDS and other sexually transmitted diseases.

Time

One claas period

Video viewing time: 20 minutes
Discussion: 30 minutes
Materials

Video camera recorder (VCR)

Monitor
Video ~ Sex. Drugs and AIDS (nigh school)

Pl‘eEl‘athﬂ

Review the lecture on Risk Reduction and Prevention.
Preview the video to be used in your class.
Developing the activity:

1. Explain to the class they will be seeiny a video which will present
informatinn on AIDS and highlight thke essential points. Explaia that
some of the people in the video are actors, but the representation of
people with AIDS is accurate.

2. MAfter the screening, discuss the concept of risk as it was demonstrated
in the video.

Suggested questions for Sex. Drugs, and AIDS

1. Think about the first montage of clips showing people sharing food,
lipstick, hairbrushes, and soft drinks, using a pay phone and massaging
—are people at any risk for AIDS with these activities? What
activities do put people at risc for AIDS?

2. In the scene with the two people using intravenous needles, what could
they do to avoid getting AIDS or an: other bloodborne disease?

3. For the woman whn passed AIDS on to her baby, how might she have
prevented getting infected before she got pregnant?

4. The other people with IIDS - what can they do to protect their sex
partners?

5. How would you describe this video to a friend? What information would
you want to be sure to include?

S8
o
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EXAMPLE ACTIVITY (middle school)
Unit 3

Dear Abby-Dear Me letters.
Purpose

To provide students with an opportunity to practice using Al1DS information as a
tool in prevention and fur structured problem solving.

Tiwe

One class period

Materials
Dear Abby - Dear Me

Preparation
Copy Dear Abby - Dear Me examples for each student

Developing the Activity

1. Distribute copies of the Dear Abby letters.

2. Instruct students to write brief responses to each letter. Allow 15
minutes for writing time.

3. Have students share and discuss their suggested solutions in pairs,
amall groups or in a large class group.

4. Bwphasize the prevention and risk-reduction aspects of the answer.

ERIC
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Dear Abby,

I've had it with my boyfriend. I'm afraid to break up with him because that
means I'll have to find someone else. How will I be able to find someone who
won't give me any diseases?

Signed, Dear Me!

Dear Abby,

I've been seeiny this person for a long time. I've gone out with other people
all along, but this guy 1s special and I want to make a commitment to him. Do
you think that I should tell him about the other guys?

Signed, Dear Me!

Dear Abby,

What &m I going to do? I really like this new girl ir my class. We have gone
out a few times and I can tell she likes me, too. Do we have to talk about
having sex? What should I say to start the conversation? Help me soon — we
have a date Friday night!!

Signed: Dear Me!

Dear Abby,

I have 2 friend who told me she has been shcoting up. I heard a person can
get AIDS from using IV drugs. Is this true? What should I tell my friend?

Signed, Dear Me!

[y
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D+ Print RAP Neatly Below—Good Luck!
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Carlos DuBose (16)

308 EGdy Street #6026

San Francisco, CA 94112
6733758

People in the world you've got to understand,

the life that you lead is beheld in your hands.

I know you like big things the life that is yours,
there's nothing here bigger, close to or more.

There's organs in your body that must be used right,
your brain is the first it controls all your might.
It's captive educavion that all people need,

it wouldn't want cocaine, heroin or weed.

You like to get high it makes one be:z
foolish in the mind unable to work.

You see every day in life's society,
tt destroys and voids your immunity.

The next in line the vagina and the penis,

these parts of the body shculd be kept the cleanest.
And the fellas when your horny and usin'’ your erection,
the condoms in the world are ueant for protection.

Birth control stops babies for unanting mothers,
rubber stope diseases carried by others.

AIDS a disease by sex it's transmitted,

sharing needles with another is how it's permitted.

So I've said my rhyme so very well,
I'm not playin' whon I'm sayin' - in life don't fail.

T
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MY MISSION

My ¥-I-S-5-I-O0-N is to make sure you never use drugs again.
But that's not all that I'm gonna say,
I'm gonna talk about the ways that you can catch AIDS.

Listen up people this is not a game,

I'm gonna put it to you straight and very plain.
See we got a problem going on in the world,

and it's killing young boys and lots of young girls,

It's drugs and AIDS they kill everyday,

and to catch the AIDS virus you aon't have to be gay,
Drugs can kill you hope your hearing me well,

all drugs will do for You is put you in jail,

So don't shoot up and least of all share,

I'm tellin' you this cause I really do care,
because it's only two ways that you can catch AIDS,
by sharing needles and unsafe sex play,

Sex, respect it, 8o before you inject it,
you should wear a condom so you don't get infected
with the AIDS virus that's easily collected.

This rapp is fact not intuition,
and I'm tellin you this because it is my mssion.

He's master "D™ and I'm rappin "J"
and on the microphone now I'm Easy Drea
and we're the RUSH - IT CREW rappin hear today.

[ 25y
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Mr. Weiss. Thank you very muck, Ms. Stroud and Ms. Gebbie.
Your testimony was very impressive and comprehensive. We're
grataful to you both for taki.ngbzhe time to travel all the way from
;‘,‘hne wlest coast to give us the benefit of your experience and your

owledge.

I have one question for each of you.

Ms. Gebbie, as of March 2, 1987, the State of Oregon has had a
total of 126 AIDS cases; and yet, you've been active in setting up
State education programs. Have you had any difficulty gaining
public and financial suy;)port for these gvrograms?

Ms. GeBeiz. Yes, we've had some. We started asking for AIDS
programs at a time when Oregon as a State was still barely recov-
ering from a very deep recession. We've cut into State government
prog:am.minf over the last 5 years, and it is very awkward to show
up between legislative sessions, when agencies are pinching, and to
say, “And by the way, I'd like some additional general funds to
fight this disease at which we have barely yet seen in our State.”

Fortunately, we've had a lot of cooperation from the community-
based AIDS organizations, from the gay community, from our local
health departments, so it i8 not just me delivering that message.
And I think we've been quite successful in the message that we can
keep Oregon a low State only if we invest in education. And
even the shysicians in Oregon who are caring for our AIDS pa-
tients, and might be expected to plead first for research or treat-
ment money, almost always preface their speeches with a plea for
education funding within the State. That kind of support acroes the
community did make it ible for us to get some State economic
support. It's still not sufficient for what we want.

d I suspect if I can accurately count our budget, it would come
close to increasing between 50 and 100 percent h the volun-
teer hours that have been spent by community-b groups, pri-
vate practitioners of medicine an numix%, public health people
working far beyond whatever paid hours they put in. It's irapossi-
ble to calculate what effect that has. But in a relatively smail State
where you can almost get everybody—in numbers not necessarily
geography—where you can almost get everybody in the same room
ace to face when you need them, you develop a personal commit-
ment to conquer a problem that expands the dollar resources con-
siderabvlav.

Mr. Wxiss. Thank you.

Ms. Stroud, hav}tlaﬂparents generally been receptive to AIDS edu-
cation for their children? Have any asked that their children be
kept away from AIDS curriculum? &Jhat has been the parental re-

sponse
Ms. StrouD. Very few parents. In May of last year when we did
the one class sessions we had three parents who decided their chil-
dren should not participate in that session. There were 24,000 stu-
g?;t: mo participated in the session, and only three parents who
1)

I might mention, also, that we sent our materials and have been
in communication with the Catholic Diocese of San Francisco, as
well as independent schools in San Francisco; and they—the inde-
pendent schools have asked for our consultation. And so far with
the Catholic Diocese they have been attending our joint meetings,
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but we have yet to learn whether or not the materials are being
implemented. T would anticipate more resistance there than we ex-
perienced in the public schools.

Mr. Wiiss. I thank you both very, very much, and want to com-
pliment you and your respective governmental organizations for
the work that you've been doing in this area.

ou.

Appearing on our fourth and final panel will be individuals
whose organizations provide a range of services including health
care, housing, public education, and counseling for persons with

and our coramunities. They are Richard Dunne, executive di-
rector of Gay Men’s Health Crisis, New York City; Gilberto Gerald,
director of minority affairs, National AIDS Network; Dr. Michael
J. Rosenberg, executive director of American Social Health Asso-
ciatiou; and, George Swales, master of arts, director of Sunnye
Sherman m Education Project, Whitman Walker Clinic, Wash-

mgo’ n, DC.

leagse remain standing and raise you right hand. Do you affirm
that the testimony you are about to give will bc the truth, the
whole truth, and notKing but the truth?

Let the record indicate that all the witnesses have responded in
the affirmative.

Let me welcome each of you and express our appreciation for
your participation and for having the commitment to stay on
through the earlier panels’ testimony.

We will start with you, Mr. Dunne, and then go on to the others.
We have your prepared statements and they will be entered into
the record in their entirety. ’lease summarize them or present
them as you think most appropriate.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD DUN ., EXECUTIVE DIRECTCR, GAY
MEN'S HEALTH CRISIS

Mr. DunNe. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the apportunity to
testify this afternoon before this subcommittee and for your leader-
ship over the years on this issue.

I would like to talk today about AIDS information and education
and the role voluntary community-based organizations such as Gay
Men’s Health Crisis have played and continue to play in this im-
portant activity.

I believe that when future historians look back on this period, it
will be the consensus judﬁment that AIDS was the most important
event in this country in the second half of the century. Barring one
or more medical miracles, by the year 1991, there will be 270 00o
cumulative cases of AIDS; 180,000 people will have died of AIDS by
then. Eighty percent or more of these cases have already been diag-
nosed or are already infected. For almost all of those 300,000
people, in other words, it is already too late. Those 180,000 almost
certain fatalities by the year 1991 are more than three times the
number of Americans who died in the Vietram war.

I also believe that this epidemic has been ahead of us and cer-
tainly ahead of the Fede-3al Government since the moment this
virus arrived on these shores some 8 years or more ago Despite

remarkable progress on the biomedical front, despite changes
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in the sexual behavior of the primary risk group, and despite the
heroic effort of many individuals, this epidemic is still out of con-
trol more than 5 years after it was first recognized.

One need only look at the mortality figures in New York City
where AIDS is now the leadir.g cause of death for all men between
the ages of 25 and 49 and for women between the ages of 25 and 29,
In certain health districts in New York City, as many as one of
every four deaths in the last 5 years was caused by AIDS.

Even after nearly 6 years of an epidemic, we still look for nation-
al leadership from the administration. We have heard today, as we
have heard in the past, of the administration’s plans to begin 1 na-
tional education campaign. Yot, despite the best efforts of the sci-
entific community, biomedical research cannot eliminate AIDS in
the short term and education is the only preventive tool.

The fact is, however, that we require no new technological break-
throughs to limit the spread of AIDS. We already understand
enough about the cause and transmissio of the AIDS virus to give
people the knowledge they need to protect themselves.

Every segment of society needs to know enough about AIDS so
that each individual can make informed decisior's about his or her
behavior. We have had considerable success in informing health
care workers and gay and bisexual men and yet compared to what
needs to be done, we have only really begun.

Every youth old enough to engage in sexual relationships or to
experiment with intravenous drugs needs to be educated about
drugs. Every adult sexually active outsiae a mutually monogamous
relstionship, every gay and bisexuial man, every intravenous drug
user, needs to know the tools that can protect them and others,
and vhose tools are the condom and the sterile needle.

Special efforts need to be made in minority communities. We
usually perceive AIDS as an illness that mostly affects gay men
and intravenous drug users. From ancther perspective, AIDS is an
illness of people of eclor. Blacks and Hispanics represent 53 per-
cent of the cases in New York City and 45 percent nationally. Ac-
cording to a recent report from the Centers for Disease Control,
biacks and Hispanics are overrepresented in every single risk
group for AIDS except hemophiliacs. Clearly, the minority commu-
nity should be targeted for special education efforts.

T would like to outline for you some of Gay Men'’s Health Crisis
education and information programs. We established the first tele-
phone hotline in the world which answers questions and provides
counseling to over 60,000 people every year. About 40 percent of
the callers to our hotline are not gay.

We have a wide range of literature in English, Spanish, and Chi-
nese, targeted to the general public and to specific populations.
Over 38 different brochures are distributed through the mail, the
public library system, churches, schools, street fairs, hospitals, and
outpatient clinics.

In 1987, GMHC will reach 2.5 million people with our literature.
Note that in contrast with Dr. Dowdle’s statement, that he thought
their brochure would reach some 100,000 people around the coun-
+
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Outside of the New York metropolitan area, GMHC's brochures
are distributed by a number of voluatary and Government agencies
throughout the country.

We have an active speakers bureau that addresses Government
employees, professional associations, businesses, nurses, home care
workers, students and other groups. In 1986, GMHC reached over
11,000 people through our speakers bureau.

We have specific risk reduction programs targeted to gay and bi-
sexual men. We take these programs to wherever the audience is,
bars, bath houses, college campuses, shelters for the homeless, sub-
stance abuse programs, and resorts. We have professional educa-
tion programs for mental health professionals, both in hospitals
and community-based clinics. These programs are designed to sen-
sitize and train social workers to the discrete needs of persons with
AIDS and their families and friends.

We have conducted behavioral research to find more effective
ways ¢’ communicating AIDS information in such a way that
people will understand and act on the information. Certain behav-
iors are associated with the transmission of the AIDS virus and we
need to understand how to motivate people to change behaviors
that pose the risk of viral transmission.

We have prepared public service announcements that promote
understanding of what AIDS is and what it is not, Together with
organizations such as AIDS Project Los Angeles and the San Fran-
cisco AIDS Foundation, Gay Men’s Health Crisis has produced and
distributed more than 60 different radio, television, and newsprint
public serv = anrouncements to major markets throughcut the
United Stat...

We have heard this morning of the administration’s plans to
fight the AIDS epidemic. Why has there been so little action in the
face of this mounting disaster? Part of the answer to that question
is that AIDS was first evident in gay men and intravenous
users. Part of the answer is that we had mistakenly come to be-
lieve that we had conquered infectious diseases in this country.
Part of the answer is that the focus of health policy and planning
has shifted from the provision of comprehensive services to the con-
tainment of health care costs.

I believe the ancwer lies deeper still. No one likes bad news and
the worse the news is, the less we like it. AIDS is the worse possi-
ble news. There is a natural tendency to deny what is a terrible
gty. The human suffering we see around us is often too much to

AIDS is not going away and every time we look, it looms larger
go that the shadow of this disease will darken all of our days. The
human tendency is to hope somehow we ourselves are going to be
spared, but the more we learn about AIDS, the harder it is to
maintain the fiction that AIDS is something that happens to them
and not to us.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Dunne follows:]
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Testimony before the House Subcommittee
on Human Resources and intergovernmentai Relations

March 16, 1987
Richard D. Dunne
Executive Director

Gay Men's Heaith Crisis

Thank you for the opportunity to testify before this subcommittee.

i would like to talk today about AIDS information and education and the role
voluntary, community-based organizations such as Gay Men's Heaith Crisis have
played and continue to play in this important activity.

i believe that when future historians fook back on this period, it will be the
consensus judgment that AIDS was the most important event in this country in
the second haif of the century. Barring one or more medical miracles, by the
year 1391 there will be 270,000 cumulative cases of AIDS in the U.S.; 180,000
people will have died of AiDS by then. Eighty percent or more of these cases
have already been diagnosed or are infected. For almost all of those 270,000
people, in other words, it is already too late, Those 190,000 aimost certain
fatalities by the year 1991 are more than three times the number of Americans
who died in the Vietnam War.

i believe that this epidemic has been ahead of us from the moment the AIDS
virus arrived on these shores eight years ur more ago. Despite remarkable
progress on the biomedical front, despite sea changes in the sexual behavior of
the primary risk group, despite *he heroic efforts of many individuals, this
epidemic is still out of control more than five ye s later. We need only look at
the mortality figures in New York City: AIDS is .ow the leading cause of death
for men between the ages of 25 and 49 and for women between 25 and 29. In
certain health districts of New York, as many as one of every four deaths in
the last five years was caused by AIDS.

Even after nearly six years, we stiil look for national leadership from the
Administration. We have heard today, as we have in the past, of the
Administration's nians to begin a national education campaign. Despite the best
efforts of the scféntific community, biomedical research cannot eliminate AIDS in
the short term. The fact is, however, that we require no new technologicai
break-throughs to limit the spread of AIDS. We understand enough about the
cause and transmission of AIDS to give people the knowledge they need to
protect themselves.

Every segment of society needs to know eriough about AIDS so that each
individuai can make informed decisions about his or her behavior. We have had
some success in informing heaith care workers and gay and bisexual men. Yet
compared to what needs to be done, we have only begun.
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Every youth old enough to engage in sexual relations or to experiment with
intravenous drugs needs to be educated about AIDS. Every adult sexuatly
active outside a mutually monogamous relationship, every gay and bisexuai man,
every intravenous drug user, needs to know the tools that can protect them
and others -- those tools are the condom and the sterile needle.

Special efforts need to be made in minority communities. We usually perceive
AIDS as an iliness that mostly affects gay men and intravenous drug users.
From 270ther perspective, AIDS is an iliness of people of color. Blacks and
Hispanics represent 53 percent of the cases in New York City and 45 percent
nationally. According to a recent report from the Centers for Disease Control,
blacks and Hispanics are overrepresented in every single risk group fcr AIDS
except hemophiliacs. Clearly, the minority community should be targeed for
special education efforts,

| would like to outline for you GMHC's education and information programs:

- The first telephone hotline in the would which answers questions and
provides counseling to over 60,000 people every year. About 40% of the
callers to GMHC's hotline are non-gay.

= A wide range of iiterature in English, Spanish and Chinese targeted both
the general public and specific populations. Over 38 different brochures
are distributed through the maii, the public library system, churches,
schols, street fairs, hospitals and outpatient clinics. In 1987, GMHC will
reach 2.5 milllon people with our literature. Outside of the New York
metropolitan area, GMHC's brochures are distributed by a member of
voluntary and government agencies throughout the country.

- An active speakers' bureau that addresses government employees,
professional associations, businesses, nurses, home care workers, students
and others. In 1986, GMHC reached over 11,000 people through our
speakers' bureau.

- Specific risk preduction programs targeted to gay and bisexual men. We
take these programs to wherever the audience is -- bars, bathhouses,
college campuses, shelters for the homeless, substance abuse programs and
beach resorts.

- Professional education programs for mental health professionals in
hospitals and community-based clinics. These programs are designed to
sensitize and train social workers to the discrete needs of persons with
AIDS and their family and friends.

- Behavioral research to find more effective ways of communicating AIDS
information in such a way that people will understand and act on the
information. Certain behaviors are associated with the transmission of the
AIDS virus and we need to understand how to motivate people to change
behaviors that reduce the risk of viral transmission.

ERIC
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- Public service announcements that pronote understanding of what AIDS
Is and what it is not. Together with AIDS Project Los Angeles and the
San Francisco AIDS Foundation, GMHC has produced and distributed more
than 60 different radio, television »nd news print pubiic service
announcements to major markets ii. ‘he United States.

Why has there been so littie action in the face of a mounting disaster? Part of
the answer to that question is that AIDS was first evident in gay men and in
intravenous druG users. Part of the answer is tha’ » > had mistakenly come to
believe that we had coriquered infectious diseases in this country. And part of
the answer is that thz focus of heaith policy and planning had shifted from the
provision of comprehensive service: to the containment of health care costs.
But | believe the answer lies deeper still.

No one jikes bad news and the worse the news is, the less we like it. AIDS is
the worst possible news. There is a natural tendency to deny a terrible
reality. The human sufteriry we see around us is often too much to bear.

But AIDS will not go away. Every time we look, it looms larger so that the
shadow of this disease wili darken all our days. The human tendency is to hope
that somehow we ourselves will be spared. But the more we learn about AiIDS,
the harder it Is to maintain the fiction that AIDS is something that happens to
"them," not to "us."

voloff(qq)
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Mr. Weiss. Thank you, Mr. Dunne. Mr. Gerald.

STATEMENT OF GILBERTO GERALD, DYRECTOR OF MINORITY
AFFAIRS, NATIONAL AIDS NETWORK

Mr. GerALb. Mr. Chairman and members of the Human Re-
sources and Intergovernmental Relations Subcommittee, my name
is Gil Gerald and 'm the director of minority affairs for the Na-
tional AIDS Network. I appreciate this opportunity to present my
views on how the Federal Government should respond to the need
for educational programs on AIDS prevention, targeted toward mi-
nority communities.

I have professional experience with the desverate need for educa-
tional efforts on AIDS and AIDS p-evention for minority communi-
ties. I wish to convey to the Ch ir and the subcommittee the
thanks and appreciation of ~ommunity-based AIDS service provid-
ers for your recognition of che seriousness of the AIDS problem
early in the crisis and for having continued to pursue an end to
this health probiem.

As this committee knows, AIDS does not discriminate. Neverthe-
less, the minority community has been disproportionately affected
by this devastating health crisis. The AIDS weekly surveillance re-
ports for the Centers for Disease Control show that while blacks
make up only 12 percent of the Nation’s population, blacks com-
prise 25 percent of all people with AIDS. Similarly, Hispanics make
up 6 percent of the population yet represent 14 percent of all
people with AIDS. Minority children represent 80 percent of all
children with AIDS in this country and black women constitute
one-half of all women with AIDS—statistically, a black woman is
13 times more likely than a white woman to contract AIDS.

These staggering statistics have led more than one observer to
note that among minorities, AIDS is a heterosexual disease. This
pattern combined with a health sysiem that puts minorities at a
great disadvantage is documented in the Federal Government’s
report of the Secretary’s Task Force on Black and Minority He :1th
of January 1986, creates a very bleak picture for the future of the
minority community with respect to the AIDS crisis.

Fears of increased societal stigma and discrimination and the
persistent myth that AIDS is a white gay male disease reinforces
the perception within the minority community that AIDS is of no
particular concern to people of color.

Homophobia and racism and the resulting lack of adequate fund-
ing for minority targeted AIDS education efforts prevent access
within the community to desperately needed risk reduction infor-
mation. Even in the face of statistics found in their own investiga-
tions, the Federal Government’s response has been, as stated
before, woefully inadequate to meet the challenge to stop the
spread of the Aﬁ)S virus within the minority community.

Several corrective measures can and should be undertaken in re-
sponse to the situation as I havz outlined it. In the time allotted to
me, I would like to elaborate on three points. Firet educational
strategies must accoun* ‘or specific linguistic, cultural, and ethnic
characteristics. As well, these campaigns must be sensitively waged

to account for various literacy levels among audiences if they are
Q
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to be effective in changing behaviors within minority communities,
which like in other communities, places individuals at higher risk
for AIDS.

Funding must be specifically allocated for targeted campaigns,
otherwise affected minority communities will not be reached.

Second, too few community-based minority institutions are re-
ceiving Federal or State support for AIDS prevention programs.
Minority AIDS service providers are among the poorest organiza-
tions affiliated with the National AIDS Network. Yet they have
the best access to their respective communities.

For the health of the community, the Government must find cre-
ative ways to see that minority organizations with broad access to
their community receive support for their work.

Third, the Federal Government should monitor the impact and
efficacy of educationai programs with respect to targeted groups in-
cluding minorities.

The National AIDS Network has just completed a study that
demonstrates there is practically no evaluation of the effectiveness
of existing educational programs in terms of their ability to reach
minority communities to change high risk behaviors.

The AIDS crisis poses an additional burden on minorities who
are already economically, politically and socially disadvantaged. It
will teke concerted and immediatc action by the Federal Govern-
ment to insure that these factors do not contribute to the contin-
ued spread of the AIDS virus in our society, but it will first require
understanding.

For this reason, the National AIDS Network appreciates the at-
tention that you are giving the matter today and calls upon you to
take the necessary steps to respond to this epidemic. We csk you to
hold hearings in congressional districts where minority people are
disproportionately affected by this virus. In order to understand
the importance of education, we feel it is important for you to hear
firsthand the human suffering brought on by AIDS.

Thank you.

[The preparea statement of Mr. Gerald follows:]
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Statement by Gilberto Gerald
Director of Minority Affairs
NATIONAL AIDS NETWORK

Mr. Chairman and memhers of the Intergovernmental Relations and
Human Rescurces Subcommitte , my name is Gil Girald, and I am the
Director of Minority Affairs for the National AIDS Network. I
appreciate this opportunity to presant my views on bow the Federal
Government should rzspond to the need for educational programs on
AIDS prevention targeted towards Minority Communities. 1 have
professional experfence with the desperate need for educatijonal
efforts on AIDS and AIDS prevention for minority communities. I
wish to convey to the chair and the subcommittee the thanks and
appreciation of community based AIDS service providers for your
recognition ¢f the seriousness of tle AIDS problem early in the
crisis and for having continued to pursue an end to this health

problem.

As this committee knows, AIDS does not discriminate. Nevertheless,
the minority community has been disproportionately affected by this
devastating health crisis. The AIDS Weekly Surveillance Reports
for the Centers for Disease Control show that while Blacks make up
only 12% of the natfon's population, we comprise 25% of all people
with AIDS. Similarly, Hispanics make up % of the population, yet
represent i4% of all people with AIDS. Minority children represent
¥8% of all children with AIDS in this country and Black women
constitute fully one half of the women with AIDS. Statistically, a
Black woman is thirteen times more likely than a white woman to
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contract AIDS. These staggering statistics have led more than one
observer to note that among minorities AIDS is already a

hetarosexual digease. <this pattern, combined with a health systenm
that puts minorities at a great disadvantage, as documented in the
federal government's Report of the Secretary's Task Force on Black
and Minority Health (Jan 86), creates a very bleak picture for the

future of the minority community with respect to the AIDS crisis.

Faars of increased sucietal stigma and discrimination, and the
peraistent myth that AIDS is a wh;te, gay male disease reinforces
the perception within the minority community that AIDS is of no
particular concern to us. Homophobia and racism and the resulting
lack of adequate funding for minority-targeted AIDS education
efforts prevent access within the community to desperately needed

risk-reduction information.

Even in the fsce of statistics found in their own investigations,
the Federal Government's response has been woefully inadequate to
meet the challenge to stop the spread of the AIDS virus within the
minority community. Several corrective measures can and should be
undertaken in response to the situation as I have outlined it. In

the time allotted to me, I would like to elaborate on three rints.
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First, educational strategies must account for specific linguistic,
cultural, and ethnic characteristics. As well, these campaigns
must be sensitively waged to account for various literacy levels
among audiences if they are to be effective in changing behaviors
within minorities communities, which like in other comunities,
place individuals at bigher-risk for AIDS. Funding must be
specifically allocated for targeted campaigns; otherwise, affected

minority communities will not be reached.

Second, tco few community based minurity institutions are
receiving federal or state support for AIDS prevention progranms.
Minority AIDS service providers are among the poorest organizations
affiliated «* . the National AIDs Network, yet they bave the best
access to t! r respective communities. Por the health of the
community, th ve ‘nment must find creative ways to see that
minority organizations with broad access to their community receive

support for their work.

Third, the Federal Government should monitor the impact and
efficacy of educational programs with respect to targeted groups,
including minorities. The National AIDS Network has just completed
a study that dewonstrates that there is practically no evaluation
of the effectiveness of existing educational programs in terms of
their ability to reacb minority communities to change high risk

behaviors.
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The AIDS crisis Poaea an additional burien on minorities who are
already economically, politically, and socially disadvantaged. It
will take concerted and immediate action by the federal government
to inaure that theae factora do not contribuire to the continued
apread of the AIDS virus in our society. But {(t will firat require
underatanding. For thia resaon, The National AIDS Network
spprecistes the attention that you are giving thia matter today,
and calls on you to take the neceasary atepa to respond to thia

epidenic. We sak you to hold hearings in congreaaional djatricta

where minority people are dispropertionately affected by thia

virus. 1In order to underatand thc importance of education, ve feel
it is important for you to hear firat hand the human suffering

brought on by AlDS.

Thank you.
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Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Gerald. Mr. Swales.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE SWALES, M.A,, DIRECTOR, SUNNYE
SHERMAN AIDS EDUCATION PROJECT

Mr. Swares. Mr. Chairman and members of the Human Re-
sources andi Intergovernmental Relations Subcommittee, good
afternoon.

My name is George Svales. I am the director of the Sunnye
Sherman AIDS Education .’roject of the Whitman-Walker Clinic lo-
cated in Northwest Washington, DC. The Wkitman-Walker Clinic
is pleased and honored to have been asked to participate on a
panel to provide information and perspective on the subject of
AIDS education. On behalf of the president, Dr. Mary Jane Wood,
and the ariministrator, Mr. Jim Graham, I thank yov

The Whitman-Walker Clinic is a community-based, nonprofit
clinic organized in 1983 to respond to the specialized health needs
of members of the gay and lesbian community. It has won local,
regional, and national awards aid recognition for its service to the
community as a whole. It is operated by a total of 650 people, only
32 of which are paid staff. It is financed by the generosity of the
community, contracts for service, and grants; successfully raising
onsvg:'ivate dollar for each public dollar or grant dollar.

ile AIDS program work is by any measure the largest share
of our v ' at this time, the Whitman-Walker Clinic delivers a full
array of . . -ialized services to its constituent community.

The V' ** 1an-Walker Clinic AIDS Program consists of four serv-
ices: A..  viedical Services, AIDS Support iservices, the Robert N.
Schwartz, M.D. Housing Services for Persors with AIDS, and the
Sunnye Sherman AIDS Education Project.

The AIDS £ducation Project is the educational arm of the cliric.
In May 1986 under contract with the District of Columbia Depart-
ment of Human Services, the Whitman-Walker Clinic undertook a
much expanded health education program. The expansion in this
project came about as a result of the Whitman-Walker’s and D.C.
Commission on Public Health’s recognition and perception of an
urgent need for expanded educational efforts towards people who
are at high risk for AIDS. The project, then, represents a multifac-
eted approuch to health education among gay and b.sexual men, in-
travenous drug abusers, and prosti.utes in Washington.

That element of our service, which has as its target IV abusers
and commercial sex groups, is the focus of my testimony today, the
AORTA Project, the AIDS-education Qutreach to the Alienated.

The AORTA Project is funded in part by the District of Columbia
Commission on Public Health, by a grant from Montgomery
County in Maryland, by community-based fundraising efforts and
by individual donations. Me.ny of our visions for risk reduction edu-
cation, aimed at stigmatized and alienated populations ave limited
by lack of financial resources. The AORTA Project’s major focus is
to educate persons who are drug abusers, drug and substance abus-
ers, especially IV abusers, but also persons who are alcoholics and
oral drug abusers, prostitutes—females, males, transpersons, cross-
dressers—homeless persons who have been displaced and are now
“ving on the strzet and from time to tim. in shelters, incarcerated
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men, women, and youth in prisons, jails, detention cente 3, and
community-based helfway facilitizs and youth who are on the
streets o> in restricted institutional settings.

Beyond education, we hope to brin% about chanie: in attitudes

ing at-risk behaviors, which will result in pehavior changes,
safer sex, and non-need!e-sharing.

There are several means used in the AORTA Project to reach the
alienated, one of which is the Community Street Outreach Effort.
We contract with men and women who are of the streets, some-
thing that Heath and Human Services now calls cloqueatly “indige-
nous personnel.” These are people who live on the streets, wto ar~
from the streets, ex-abusers, ex-ﬁnl;oetitutes, ex-offenders, who know
what they're talking about and know their way around the streets.
It is their job to get information to the abuser population or prosti-
tute population, whatever population they are attempting to reach.
They are very effective at it.

ey have 3 to 6 quick minutes to a group who live fast and
travel light. If you get 3 minutes of their time, you've had a lot. In
that 8 minutee, they are to give the message ofy what the potential
dangers are to the individual, that he or she as a result of their
vrehavior may be at risk, what they can do about it. They are left
w.th a piece of literature, two condoms, and the hope that they will
{pok at their lives and look at their style to take control of their
ives.

The first message in each case is, that your first option is to get
off of drugs. But if you are not yet ready, if you cannot get off of
4rugs, your second message is, you must nct share needles.

Wherein our street outreach efforts are having an irapact on
thoss who are alienat~d, such a pr- ram cannot be maximally ef-
fective unless some eucational foc . is also in place at all the in-
stitutions and systems that those who are alienated are likely to
encounter—court and probation outreach efforts. We have devel-
oped and are now delivering educational seminars for probation of-
ficers, judges, and court personnel to focus on AIDS and seroposi-
tive issues in relationship to persons they are lil2ly to come in con-
tact with.

We are entering an agreement with the District of Columbia Pro-
bation Department and the District of Columbia courts to refer per-
sons who are identified as engaging in at-risk behavior, drugs, and/
or prostitution to an AIDS education seminar, which will be con-
ducted by the Sunnye Sherman AIDS Education Services at the
Whitman-Walker Clinic.

It is anticipated that several ongoing monthly seminars will be
developed to accommodate persons’ schedule.—evenings, days,
weekends. The seminar pregenters will certify that persons re-
ferred to the education seminars did indeed attend.

In incarceration outreach efforts, we have developed and are now
implementing AIDS education seminars for uniformed and nonuni-
formed corrections staff and for inmates. Currently, we have ongo-
ing monthly AIDS education seminars in the District of Columbia
correctionaf' facilities, the District of Columbia Jail, Lorton, half-
way houses, the Montgomery County Detention Center in Mary-
land, and the Arlington County Jail in Virginia.
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All of our AIDS education seminars included not only informa-
tion about AIDS, but also information apout subsiance abuse and
human sexuality.

Becnuse we live in a tristate area, much of our focus beyond the
streets of Washington, DC, includes the institutions in Maryland as
well as Virginia. Once we have delivered AIDS educat’'n seminars
to the staf in correcticnal facilities, we then set up ongoing AIDS
education seminars for the inmates.

Because some jurisdictions are isolating inmates who merely test
HIV-positive, w2 set up special education seminars for seropositive
inmates to focus on such anxiety issues as education. The outcome
of focusing on this population is thas b'1ddy systems are established
that enable us to provide community resources to people who need,
upon release, medical fcllowthrough, housing, employment, and
other support services.

We also have plans to deliver AIDS education seminars to the
metropolitaa police department personnel. We have inciuded per-
sons from various I;:ﬂioe precincts and divisions in our training ses-
sions ~1d have scheduled meetings to discuss conflicts with the
police department.

In our residential drug treatment outreach, we have developed
and are now delivering AIDS education seminars at private and
governmental residcntial and alcohol treatment programs in
northern Virginia, southern land, and the District of Colum-

ia.

Because of the transition of residents and staff, we often agree to
set up ongninyg AIDS ecucation seminars for the residents and sev-
eral sessions for the staff at 6-month intervals, thus allowing us to
keep the staff updated on whatever new information or media
focus that may be circulating and to address anxiety issues.

We do ongoing educational seminars twice a month to the Dis-
trict’s detoxification program and the District's 28-day residential
treatment program.

We are also providing quarterly AIDS seminars to residents in
the District's long-term residential treatment programs. All of
these programs are part of the Alcohol, Drug and Substance Abuse
Adminmstration under the Commission on Public Health.

The District ¢f Columbia is the home of thousands of homeless
women and men and youth, who because of mental illness, sub-
stance abuse, chemical dependency, or economic hardship, find
themselves without shelter and/or the means to support them-
selves. This popul.tion of peoFle is at high risk for contracting and
transmitting AIDS because of poor health care, poor nutrition, ex-
treme psychic and environmental stresses, lack of rest, and chemi-
cal dependence. Thesz cofactors to HIV infection make the home-
less a particularly vulnerable group of people.

There have been cases of homeless persons who have been diag-
nosed with or who died from complications related to AIDS.

Outreach to prostitutes. Within any given month, it is estimated
that there are 500 men, women, and transpersons who are on the
streets of Washington, DC, involved in commercial sex. In the com-
mercial sex industry, in teams of two, outreach workers approach
Fersons working in the streets, talk to them one on one, give them

it srature and free condoms, and provide them with intervention
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and referral information for AIDS services, drug and alcohol treat-
ment services, and other community or public social service agen-
cies, such as STD clinics.

We have found that most of the prostitutes are very receptive to
our efforts, say they are using condoms—and there is evidence that
they are—ancu are concer..ed about AIDS. Many of the street pros-
titutes ard hustlers are also IV drug abusers. In the District of Co-
lumbia, that is estimated to be 40 percent.

Beyond the streets, the AORTA Project has attempted outreach
to male prostitutes who work independently or through model/
escort services and advertise in the classified sectic1s of selected
publications. By the fall of 1987, we hope also to implement an out-
reach to women who are in the commercial sex industry, but are
not working on the streets.

Male prostitutes who advertise have been surveyed via teie-
phone. We use a 12-item questionnaire which is attached to deter-
mine the level of knowledge about AIDS, safe sex behaviors, and
corpliance with safe sex guidelines. Initial data gathered indicates
a high level of awareness, but only a moderate level of compliance
with safe sex behaviors.

The rule-of-thumb seems to be, quote, “If the client is willing to
pay for anything, that's what the client gets,” unquote. The same
seems to be true for most men, women, and transpersons weking
on the streets. Crients sometimes pay more to engage in unsafe or
u'lfnsky sexual activities which may expose both participants to HIV
infection.

A more concerted outreach to male model/escorts is planned for
the spring of 1987. Those male prostitutes who do participate in a
safe sex seminar will be granted a safe sex certificate and may use
%l:it :dl:.l negative antibody test information as part of their classi-

That concludes my oral presentation.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Swales follows:]
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Mr. Chairman, HMembers of the Human Resources an. Intergovernmental
Affairs Subcommittee - Good Morning.

My name is George A. Swales. I am the Direstor of the Sunnye Sherman
AIDS Education Prolect of the Whitman-Walker Clinic, located In
Nor thwest Washington, D.C.

The Whitman-Walker Clinic is pleased and honored to have been asked to
participate on a panel to provide information and perspectives on the
subject of AIDS education.

On behalf of the President, Mary Jane Wood, her officurs, and the
Administrator, Mr. Jim Graham, I thank you.

The Whitman-Walker Clinic, Inc. is a community based non-profit,
organized in 1973 to respond to specialized health needs ocf members of
the gay and lesbian community. It has von local, regional, and
national awards and recognition for its service tdo the community as a
whole. It :1s operated by a total of some 630, only 32 of which are
paid. Is is financed by the generosity of the community, contracts
for services, and grants; successfully raising one private dollar +or
each public (or grant) dollar.

While A.1.D.S. Program work is by any measure the largest share of our
work at this time, the Whitman-Waiker Clinic delivers a full array of
specialized services primartly to the gay community. Other services
are: (1) Gay Men’s “Varneral Disease Clinic, (2> Alcoholiem Services,
(3) Lesbian Resourr.e and Counselling Center, (4) Counselling Group.
and (35) Gay Hotline.

The unhitman-Walker Clinic A.1.D.S. Program consists of four services;
(1> A.1.D.S. Medical Services, (2) A.l1.D.S. Support Services, (3>
Robert N. Schwartz, M.D. Housing Services, and (43 the Sunnye Sherman
A.1.0.S. Education Project.

The Sunnye Sherman A.1.0.S. Education Project is the educational arm
of the Clinic. In May 1984, under contract with the District of
Columbia Department of Human Services, the Whitman-Walker Clin:c
undertook a much expanded health education program. The expansion and
this project came about as a result of Whitman-Walker’s and the D.C.
Commission of Public Health’s perception of an urgent need for expaned
educational efforts toward pecple who are at high risk for A.I1.D.S.
The project then represents a miltifaceted approach to health
education among gay and bisexual men, intravenous drug ab/users, and
prostitutes in Washington.

That element of our service which has as i ts target [.U. ab/users,
commercial sex Qroups 1s the focus of my testimony today; the
A.N.R.T.A- Project.

)
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WERVIEW OF THE A.Q.R.T.A., PROJECT

The AIDS-educatioy Out Reach To the Alienated (ADRTA) Project was
established 13 June, 1984 as an education project of the

Whi tman-Waiker Clinic’s educational services (Sunnye Sherman AIDS
Education Services). The AORTA Project 1s funded in part by the D. C.
Commission of Public Health, by a g ant from Montgomery County of
Marrtand, by community bused fund ruising efforts, and by individual
donations. Many of our visions for risk-reduction education aimed at
stigmatized and alienated populations 1s 1 ;mited by 1ack of financiai
resources.

The AORVA Project’s major focus is to educate persons who are:

==drug and substance ab/users (especially IV users, but
als0 persons who are alcoholics or orai drug users)

==prostitutes (females, males, and transpersons (cross dressers who
may be trancsexuals, transgenders, or transvestitss)

==homeless (persons who have been displaced and are now living an
the streets and from time—to-time in a shelter)

——incarcerated men, women, and youth (prisons, jails, detention
centers, and community based halfway facilities)

==youth (who are on the streets or in restricted i1nst;tutionalzed
settings)

Berond education, we also hope %o bring about changes i1n attitudes
(regarding st-risk behaviors) which will resulit in behavror changes
(safe sex and not sharing nredles).

In addition to the ALJTENATED populations of drug and substance
ab/users, prostitutes, incarcerated, homeless, and youth, we also
focus on:

-=family, partners, friends and neighbors of the ALIENATED
-—persons 1:ving and working with the ALIENATED

-=professiOonals who are most likely to be i1in touch with the
ALIENATED (police and correctional officers, probation and
parole officers, substance abuse counselors, ministers, UD/STD
workers, et al)

—--butinesses, churches, and community based agencies which are
physically 1n the commercialized sex districts and drug "strios”
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There are several means used by the AORTA Project to reach the
ALIENATED:

~ Commynity/Street Qutresch Efforts

We “contract® with men and women who are recovered substance ab/
users, former prostitutes, and ex-offenders. These *outra2ach
workers® are instructed by the co-directors/health educators of
the W-W Clinic’s Sunnye Sherman AIDS Education Services on issues
of AIDS, substance abuse, and human sexuality. The ou each
workers are also trained in skills of peer counseling and commu-
nicaticn.

In addition to "contracting® w.th sone outreach workers, we also
train and educate volunteers, aporopriate court referrals, and
student interns. We are considering the merits of having youth
outreach workers from the District of Columbia’s Suwmer Youth
Program.

[SEE INSERT--PERSPECTIVES)

Wherein our street outreach efforts are having an impact on those who
are ALIENATED, such a program cannot be maximally effective unless
some educational focus is also in place at all of the institut:ons and
systems that those who are ALIENATED are likely to encounter.

- rt/p i ffor

We have developed, and are now delivering, educationa! seminars

for probation officers, judpes. and court personnel to tocus on

AIDS and seropositive issues 1n relationship to persons they are
likely to come 1n contact with.

We are entering an agreement with the . C. Probation Depar*ment
ard the D. C. Courts to refer persons who are i1dentified as
engaging 1N at-risk behavior (drugs and/or prostitution) to an
AIDS education seminar which will be conducted br the SSAES of
the W-W Clinic.

It 13 anticipated that several on-going monthly seminars will be
developed to accomodate persons’ schedules (evening and days;

a weekend; and varying the week day)>. The seminar presentors
will "certify® that persons referred to the education seminars
did indeed attend.

~- ]Incarcergsion r h
We nave developed, and are now implementing, AIDS educational
seminars fo~ unitormed and non-un:iformed correctional staff and

for inmates. Currently, .e have on~g71ng monthly AIDS education
seminars 1n the D. C. Correctional facilities (D. C. Jail,

o 7y
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Lorton, halfway residents), Montgomery County Detention Center n
Maryland, and Arlington County Jail/Detention Center 1n Virgin:a.

All of our AIDS education saminars jnclude not only information
about AIDS, but also i1nformation about suostance abuse and human
sexuality.

Because we live 1n a "tri~state” area, much of our focus beyord
streets of WDC includes the institutions 1n Maryland as well .s
Virginia. Once we have delivired AIDS educational seminars ‘o
the staff in correctional facilities, we then set up on-going
AIDS education seminars for the inmates.

Because some jurisdictions are isolating inmates who merely test
HIV positive, we set up special education seminars for seroposi-
tive inmates to focus as much onh anxiety issues as education. The
outcome of focusing on this populatron 1$ that a "buddy® system
Is establ ished that enables us to gi/cuvide commun: ty resources to
oersons who need, upon release, med.cal follow-thru, housing,
employment, and other support services.

We also have plans to deliver AIDS education seminars to

the Metropolitan Police Department personnel. We have i1ncluded
persons from various police precints and divisions 1n our trarn-
ing sessions, and have scheduled meetings to discuss zonflicts
with the police department (i.e. “Jump outs,” need ‘or ID for
outreach workers, police taking condoms from prostitutes or
poking holes in them, etc.).

We also focus our educational efforts on juvenile detention pro-
grams i1n WDC, Southern Maryland, and Northern Virgimia.

-~ Residen<i13' Dryg Treatment Qutreach

: +ave developed, and are now delivering, AIDS education sem:-~
nars at private and gQovermental residental drug and alcohol
treatment programs 1n Northern Virginia, Southern Maryland, and
the District of Columbia.

Because of the transition of residents (and staff), we often
agree to set up on-going AIDS education seminars for the
residents and several sessions fo~ the staff at six month inter-
vals (thus enabling us to keep the staff “updated®” on whatever
new information or media focus that may be circulating and to
acdress anxiety i1ssues).

We do on-going educational seminars (twice a month) to the
Districts’ detox program and the District’s 28 day residential
treatment program. We are also providing quarterly AIDS seminars
to residents in the District’s long term residential treatment
programs (CADAC, ADERO House (for youthl, ATPT, et al). A1l of
these programs are part of ADASA under the Lommission of Publc
Heal th of DHS.
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We have also set up quarterly AI1DS educational geminars to al®

of the residential and non-residential drug treatment prooar

of KNLMAC, RAP, Second Genesis, and Phoenix House. We al:

do seminars for tte staff before we do seminars for the per ons
- in treatment.

- r I H 1

The District of Columbia is home to thousands of homeless women,
men, and youth who because ~f mental illness, substznce abuse/
chemical dependency, or ecc wmic hardship, find themselves w)th-
out sheliter and/or the means to support themselves. Th:s popu-
lation of people is a high risk for contracting and transmitting
AIDS because of poor health care, poor nutrition, extreme psych:c
and environmental stressors, lack of rest, and chemical depen~-
dency. These co-factors to HIV infection make the homel ;33 a
particularly vulnerable group of people. There have been cases
of homeless persons who have been diagnosed with (or who died
from) complications retated to AIDS.

The AORTA Project of W-W Ciinic’s SSAES has 1dentified over 30
homeless shelters, half-way houses, drop-=in centers and trans:-~
tional homes for homeless women, men, and youth. Since October
of 1984, ocver 340 women, men, and youth who are staff or resi-
dents of these agencies have participated in AIDS educational
seminars developed and delivered by staff and/or volunteers of
the AORTA Project.

The staff of homeless facilities in Metropolitan WOC have receru—
ed a basic itntroduction on Hlv infection, HIV symptoms, risk-
reduction activities regarding sex and drugs, and intervent:on/
referral for those homeless who manifest symp toms of HIV
infection. Ue also distribute risk~reduction 1) terature and

free condoms for the residents of the shelters and return tor
seminars as often as the staff requests follow-up visits,

~~ Qutreach To The Prostitytes

Within any g-ven month, 1t :s estimated that there are about 509
women, men, and transpersons who are on the streets of WDC and
1nvolves I1n the commercial sex industry as prostitutes (women and
transpersons) or hustlers (men and transpersons).,

!n teams of two, outreach workers approach persons workingo cn the
streets, talk to them one-on-one, give them literature and tree
condoms, and provide them with intervention/referral information
for AIDS services, drug/alcchol treatment services, and cther
communi ty or pubilc social service agencies such as STC cliinics,

We hz » found that most of the prost:tues are very receptive to
our e,forts, say they are using condons (there 1s evidence that
they are), and are concerned about AIDS. Many of the street
prostitutes and hustiars are also IV drug ab/users.

Q 1 7
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[See Attached--Ferspectives)

Beyond the streets, the AORTA Projec. has attempted outreach to
male prostitutes who wark ndependently or through model/escort
services and advertise i1n the classified section of select publi-
cations. By fall of “B7 we hope to also implement an outreach to
women who are in the commercial sex industry but are not working
on the streets.

Male prostitutes who advertise have been survered via telephone.
We used a twelve-item questionnaire (see attachec to determine
the tevel of knowledge about AIDS, safe sex behav 3rs, and com=
Pl ..ice with suf' sex guitdelines. Initial data gathered ind:~-
cates a high leve <f awaren 38 but only a moderate level of
compliance wi th save sex beh. riors. The rule of thumb seems to
be, *If the client is williny to pay for anrthing, that’s what
the client will get.® The same seems to be tr e for most men,
women, and transpersons working on the street. -clients sometime
pay more to engage in unsafe or risky sexual act:vities which may
expcse both participants to HIV infection.

A more concer ted outreach effort to male model/escorts 1s planned
for the Spring of “87. Those male prostitutes who do participate
in » safe sex seminar will be granted a safe sex certificate and
may use that and negative antibody status information as part of
their classified ad.

03/13/87
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STREET OUTREACH STATS

December 1986 to February 1987

Eebruary 1987
1,043
440
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639
&3%

384

374

732

71%

203

19%

108
10%

3 month
fummylative

3,244
2,452

47%

3,207

1%

2,037

39%4

4,106
76%

927
16%

211

YA

3 month
average

1,748
817
a7y

1,067

&1%

&79

39%

1,369
76%

309

18%
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A.0.R.T.A. PROJECT - OUTREACH TO HOMELESS

SHELTER / HOME Male / Female #TRAINED
CC  ien's Shelter M 4 (3taff)
La ... ada (Irving St.) ¥ (Latino) 36 (S & Residents)
Coalitio. for Homeless M/F 35 (S)
Isatah House M 17 (5&R)
Calvary Baptist (Women) F 4 (s)
Allison Home F (teenagers) 7 (S)
Luther Place F 8 (s)
Dorother Day Catholic Worker F/M (Familties) 12 (S & R)
Park Road (CFH) M 8 (R)
Rachel House F 25 (S&R)
Webster House (CFH) M 8 (R)
Florida Ave. Women's Cente: F 8 (R)
CCNV Women's Shelter F 26 \S & R)
Efforts for Ex-Convicts M 48 (S &R)
Hannah House F 20 (S & R)
Mt. Carmel House F 26 (S &R)
Health Care for the Haneless M 10 ()
Calvary Drop-In Center F/M 3(s)°
Christ House M 15 (S)
Sasha Bruce F/M (Youth runaways) 21 (S&R)
TOTAL # TRAINED (3/12/87) 342

o o
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A0 .D.S, INFORMATION
ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE

Hello! My name 1s e 1’m a staff worker/volunteer with the
Wh i tman-Walker Clinic’s A.1.D.S. Education Projoct. We are trring to
educale people at high risk for exposure to the virus that causes
A.1.0.5. to help them lower their risk of getting the disease by
knowledge of and practice of safe sex and safe 1.V, drug methods. UWe
do not need your real name, and all the information you Qive will be
Kept i strict confidence. We are concerned about your health and
that of rour customers. We are not cencerned about the legal 1ssues
of your lifestyle.

Would you be willing to answer a few questions so we can find out
what we can do to help you protect yourself and your customers.

1> Have you heard of the A.1.D.S. (aL~uired immune deficiency
syndrome) disease?

/ / YES / /7 NO

2) UWhat does the disease do to a person who Qets 1t? (Check the
answer that most corresponds to their response)

It kills them.

It causes swollen lymph nodes in the neck, armpits, groin.
It causes them t/ 100se weight.

Thc; get pneumonia (Pneumocystie cariniid.

They get some kind of skin cancer (Kaposi’s Sarcoma).
They Qet fevers, night sweats and have diarrhea,

Other

3) Have you ever taken the HTLU-III Antibody Test in a hospital,
doctor’s offize, or clinic to see 1 you have been exposed to the
A, 1.D0.8, virus?
/ / YES / / NO
4) 14 yes, what result did you receive?
/ / Positive / / Negative / / No result

5) D¢ you u.e rubbers (condoms, tr.jans) when you have oral or
anal 3ex (blow Jobs, sucking, ass fucking) with your partners?

/ / YES / 7/ NO / / SOMETIMES / / ALMOST ALWAYS
é) Can you tell me what "SAFE SEX" means and how is 1t practiced?

/ / YES (record response) / / NO

O
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Have you ever used drugs 11 eroin or cocaine that you i1nyected
with a needle?

/ / YES / / NO
IF YES, ASK THE NEXT TWO QUESTTONS

a) When was your mos: recent use of intravenous drugs?

b) How long have you use< i1ntravenous drugs?
¢?» How often did you or do you shoot up?

/ / davly / / ohce a week / / once a month / / other

8) Do you use alcohoi, marijuana, poppers or other drugs when you are
having sex with your partners?

/ / YES / /  NO

If the Whitman-Walker Clinic offered a safe sex/safe [.V. drug
program for you and your friends at one of the local bars (Bracs
Rail; Chesapeake House, LaCage Aux Follies, Lone Star, Shooters)
or at the Clinic, would you attend?

/ / YES / / NO (Record reasons why not)

Would you use rubbers (condoms, trojans) and ask your clients to
use them 1 they were provided at low cost or free of charge?

/ / YES / / NO

11) Would you purchase your own rubbers 1f they were not available
free?

/ / YES / / NO / / 1 alreedy purchase them

12) Would you be willinyg to distribute a small, wallet-sized card
to your customers tnat describes safe sex methods and would you
ask them tc use these methods n their gexual encounters?

/ / YES / / NO / / 1’d have to think about i1t some more

Thank you very much for your time 1n answertng this questionna:ire.
Would you be willing to give us a fake or real name and your mailing
address so we could send you some materials about safe sex/safe l.\.
drug use?

ERIC
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Mr. Wgiss. Thank you, Mr. Swales. Dr. Rosenberg.

STATEMEN: OF MICHAEL J. ROSENBERG, M.D., M.P.H., EXECU-
TIVE DIRECTOR, AMERICAN SOCIAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION

Dr. RosenBERG. Thank you, Mr. Weiss.

My name is Mich. el Rosenberg, and I am executive director of
the American Social Health Association. I'm also a practicing phy-
sician and researcher.

The American Social Health Association is one of the oldest non-
profit organizations in the country. Qur programs focus exclusivel
on sexually-transmitted diseases and include the National
Hotline, the National VD Hotline, ‘e He Resource Center, the
Sexually-Transmitted Disenses Research Fund, and a variety of
public and school-based educavinn programs.

We have cperated the National AIDS Hotline for about 2 months
now, &nd with little advertising, we receive an average of 800 calls
a day to live operatore snd about twice that many for reco~ed iu-
formation. Based on that experience, we have some insigh. about
the public’s need for AIDS information.

First . all, there is a great lack of information and preponder-
ance of misinformation which desperately needs to be corrected.
This points up one component of the need for education.

The second Y:n,lthmk, of that is that we need to reach a great-
er audience which is not presently served, not presently motivated
enot;il;nto 80 to the trouble of calling an AIDS hotline.

I think a point for both of those, however, is that the Govern-
ment’s response to the need for educziion is clearly inadequate at
this point. We are dismayed, in fact, that £ years into the epidemic,
we still haven’t seen the long;?romised plan for AIDS education.
The fiscal year is almost half finished, and we hesrd Dr. Windom
this merning testify to the fact that nearly $80 m.llion will be
made available for educational efforts. But I think that problem is
that none of that money or very little of that is on the streets, and
I think it's very unlikely that the Goveinment will be sble to spend
all of that money this year.

The second point I'd like to make is that the Centers for Disease
Control's track record on public education regarding sexually
transmitted diseases is really a rather poor one. I think in contrast
to the exemplary job they've done with getting our state of knowl-
edge about to where it is coday—at least from the scientific
and epidemiologic perspective. There are project grants, for exam-
ple, which the CNC go to the States for sexually transmitted dis-
ease control. Those include a component of put *ic education, but as
Mr. Gerald said earlier, there’s really no provision for assessin,
how well those work, in other words, do they meet the =eeds’
There’s no feedback loop; there’s no componen: to say, ‘7’s e are
the Problems, and here's what we need to make them mv.ro effec-
tive.”

A few pilot stndies have been conducted regarding education, but
there has really been no effort to institute these programs an a
wider scale.

There are about 14 million Americans in this country who ac-
quire a sexually transmitted disease evory year, and I think it's
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gaﬁr :oi)sceharactenze the Federal public education response as virtu-
nt.

e CDC’s approach to sexually transmitted aiseases so far has

really been a very traditional one. It's been based on individuals:

You find an individual, you test them, you treat them, and then

you try to find their sexual contacts.

The situation that we have today, thou%x, is very clearly differ-
ent than that which has existed, which the CDC follows and has
followed since the introduction of antibiotics. They are different for
two reasons. One is that like AIT:3, there are a number of untreat-
able sexually transmitted diseases—I'm referring primarily to the
viruses such as AIDS and herpes. The second reason is the unprec-
edented magnitude of the number t:’f;geople who get these diseases.
And I think clearly that calls for a ditferent kind of response.

In the last year, the CDC funded only two sexually trans-
mitted disease public education projects. One wes assistance to the
VD Nationa! Hotline, which the American Social Health Associa-
tion now subsidizes heavily, and the second was a $12,000 continu-
ation grant.

One of the remarkable things that have happened in the last few
months is that we have made remarkable strides in our ability to
educate the tﬁgbﬁc about STD problems. Specifically I am referring
to the fact that condom advertisements are now openly permitted
on network television, that cor.dom advertising appears in major
nagiﬁnal magazines, that safe sex messages are commonly seen in
public.

The private sector and voluntary groups have brought about
much of this progress, and that has been helped, certainly, by the
Surgeon General’s report and the report of the National Academy
of Sciences.

I think the areas of education, a couple of them have been under-
scored fairly heavily in testimony referred to earlier. T v ould oniy
like to add to those the need for education for teenagers, which has
been discussed caclier, that we need to include older adults in
those, and particularly health professionals.

I don’t want people to forg- - that 2.5 million teenagers in this
country every year get a sexually transmitted disease and about 1
million t+e .gers become pregnant. So to advocate abstinence or
marital monogamy is the only preventive measures for young
peop:e is, I think, to put our heads in the sand. In fact, it is easier
toc e behavior than it is 1norality.

The second group, though, is older adults, and I don’t want us to
forget that it is not only the teenagers we need to get to, it is older
adult: or parents who not only need to know how to talk to younf-
er people but a lot of those older people find themselves single
again after years of having been married, and it is important that
th%r‘not be overlorked in these messages.

e third component of education is also one that has been re-
ferred to bui I think deserves a little greater attention, and that is
professional education. Our efforts at professional education, I
think, are one of the cornerstones which need to be examined.
There was a studi in the Journal of the American Medical Associa-
tion a few years back in which 127 medical schools were surveyed
in the United States and Canada. Of those, 54 percent had no sexu-

178




175

ally transmitted disease clinic available for teaching, 69 percent of-
fered no clinical training in sexually transmitted diseases to medi-
cal students, and 76 percent offered no training to residents.

The report also showed that instruction in sexually transmitted

i within schools had actually declined over the previous 15
years.

I think there is another compelling reason for public education.
That is what I referred to earlier. Fourteen million people in this
country every year get sexually transmitted diseases. Like AIDS,
some ofthose,infact,allofthemcanbetransmittedsexuallyand

SYPhil's o wremen d tal syphilis d

yphilis in women and congenital syphili are increaging, an
you might refer to the charts which I have included with my testi-
mony. Since 1979, cases of gonorrhea which are resistant to antibi-
otic have increased thirtyfold. In fact, they have increased 90 per-
cent just in the past year. There are 4.5 million new cases of chla-
mydia every year, which, like gonorrhen, can lead to pelviz inflam-
matozy disease or ectopic pregnancy.

Herpes 'nd human papiloma viruses affect millions of women
and millions of men. Approxim iely 110,000 women are left sterile
inthecountryeachyearfromsexuallytransmi‘:heddiseases.lbe-
lieve that if we had had effective public education programs 7or
gexually transmitted diseases in the past, we would likely have pre-
vented at least some of those sexually transmitted diseases, and I
include AIDS, in that category.

At this point I think it is clear that the Government peeds to
make a clear commitment to public education for AIDS as . 2ll as
other sexually transmitted diseases. The private sector has set the
stage, the public health leaders have provided the script, the Amer-
ican nublic awaits in the audience, the curtain is up, and at this
point we are all waiting for the action to begin.

I thank you for the opportunity to express our views.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Rosenberg followr]
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m.dnimn,mynmeisuidnellbse\he:g,arﬁlm
BecutixrebirecmroftheherimSocjalBealmAssociatimasveuas
a practicing physician and researcher. The American Social Health
Associatimismeoftheoldmtmrpmfitorganizatimsinthemtty.
mrm,mid:ﬁowsmclmivelymaenauytranmitteddiseass,
m&mmmm,aemﬁmmm, the Herpes
mm,aemnuywwmmesmm,ma
varietyofphlicar_:dsdnol—basade&mtimpmgms.

ibhavemtedtheﬂstianlﬁusmﬁmﬁo°mﬂxs,
andwithlittleaiwrtisinghemcei\emavemgeofaoowlsmday.
Welavegaimdsmeimightabwtttepuhlic'sneedﬁornminﬁouatjm.
Alnd(ofinﬁonmtimaxﬂap:quﬂerameofndsinﬁomtimmmdto
concern, same of which appr..ches hysteria, A strong need exists for very
tmdcinﬁomatimaboutthediseaseitseli—datwmsit,kwitis
tranamitted, how it can be diagnosed. People also need to know how to
mmicainﬂeircmmxﬁti&,awasﬁemtesdngisavailahle,
msemmmﬂswg:c@,micem,mﬂodum. The
lbtlinecanonlyhelpmetsmeofthem,butitisjwtadmpin
the ocean. Thus far, however, it is one of the few AIDS education
Projects funded by the federal government.

We are dismayed that six years into this epidemic the
Adlﬂnistratim'slumniaedplanformedwatimhasstillmt
materialized, mefiscao.yearisalmsthalfover,mfmﬁsamopriated
ﬁorAnBaiucat'.imhavemtbeenspmt.
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The Centers for Disease Control's track record on public
education regarding sexually transmitted diseases is a poor one. Although
project grants to the states for sexually transmitted disease ocontrol
include a component for public education, there is little monitoring of
the projects, and no evaluation of their effectiveness, A few pilot
studies have been conducted requrding education, but there has been
no effort to institute these programs cn a wider scal?. Although 14
million Americans acquire a sexually transmitted disease each year, I
think it is fair to characterize the federal public educational response
as virtually absent.

" oC's approach to sexually transmitted Siseases has been
Airected at individuals: testing them, treating them, and finding their
se<ual contacts. This strategy has been used since the introduction of
antibiotics for the control of the classical sexually transmitted diseases,
syphilis and gonorrhea. But the problemr today are different and of
unprecedented magnitude that sexuallv transmitted diseases, including AIDS,
must be considered from a larger perspective. There are othe. sexually
transmitted diseases, such as chlampydiz, herpes, and human ps~illoma
viruses, which are far more prevalent than syphilis and gonorrhea, but
CDC has neve. initiated national education programs. In £-7t. in FY 1986
oDC funded only 2 sexuzlly transmitted disease public education projects—
assistan @ to the VD National hotline and a $12,000 continuation grant.

We cannot cure AIDS, we can only prevent it, Bducation is the
most important tool we possess. Tn the past few months remarkable strides
have been made in our ability to commmicate preventive messages regarding
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AnBaxﬂoﬂnrsenmuytransrdtteddiseases. Condoms are openly
disa&eedmneucdctelevisim;cmdanadvertisingappearsinmjor
natimalmgazi:u;saf:sexmssag&samcmnmlyseeninpublic. The
private secto:arﬂwlmtarygm:pshavebzmxghtahoutmd:ofﬂ\is
progress, 'll’e&quamG"eral'sRaportandthereportoftheNatimal
Amdmyof&imhawsmrﬁedﬁ&eeefforts.aswellasnajor public
education initiatives,
’me.teareﬂxreeamasofedmatimlm\ﬂdliketoaddms:
reenagers, older adults, and health professionals, Although we all agree
hewuldl’opeteenage.rsdelayse:mlactlnty,the reality is tha. sex
isoccurringatymmgeraqwa:ﬂnarriageocctningat later ages. Another
reality ig that 2.5mi11$mtemaqetsgetase:m11y transmitted disease
eadmyeararﬂaxemillimbea:repzegxmt. To advocate abstinence or
mritalmngauyas:ﬂeaﬂyp:mtivemms for 21 young people
is to put our heads . amly in the sand. ‘It is easier to change behavior
than to change moralities,
Ymmgp&pleinhighsdml,muege,andﬂnsewhodomt
attendsc}nolaxemttl'xeoxﬂypeoplebemedtoedxmte. Their parents,
many of whom £ind themselves single after divorce, need to know no. only
how tc Uk to their children but need to deal with these new social
realities themselves,
‘Iheﬂx.i.tdcarpotmtofri\x:atimlwuldliketrstrssis
professional education. A study published in the Journal of t' - American
HedicalAssociatimslnwedﬂxatofthelZ?uedicalscrmlssurveyedin
the United States and Canada, 54% had no sexually transmitted ¢:sease
clinic avallable for teaching, 69% offered no ¢l .nical training in sexually
trmlstdtteddiseasestonedicalst\dents.mﬁ%%offeredmtmhﬁngto
resilents, ‘n:esm'veyalsos)nuadmatimtmctioninse:muytranmdtted
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diseases in medical schools has actually declined over the past fifteen

years.

Finally, Mr. Chaimman, there is ancther compelling reason
for public education. Fourteen million people in this country each year
get diseases which, like AIDS, are transmitted sesually and can be passed
on to newbomns. Syphilis in women and congenital syphilis are again
increasing. Since 1979 cases of gomorrhea resistant to antibictic have
incmeased 30-fold, increas’ng 90% in just the past year. There are 4.5
mi.Jlion new cases of chlamydia each year, which like gomorrhea, can lead
to pelvic inflammatory disease or ectopic pregnancy. Herpes and human
papilloma viruses affect millions of Americans. Approximately 110,000
women are left sterile each year from sexually transmitted diseases. 1
pelieve that had effective public education programs for sexually transmitted
diseasesbeminplace,wewmﬂd}avehadﬂeuedxanimarﬂmtise

. to initiate AIDS education and we prcbably would have prevented some
cases of AIDS.
mgovenmtnustnakeaclearmnimttopubliced\x:atim
for AIDS and other sexually transnitted di-eases. The private sector
hassettt!zstage;wblicmalﬂlleadershavepmovidedthescript;ﬂe
Merimpublicavaitsinmea\ﬁience;meamtainisup;mﬂweareall
waiting for the action to begin.

o

Thank you, Mr. Chainman, for this opportunity to express

our views.

O
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THE NEVWY YORK TIMES, SATURDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 1986

Letters

AIDS: Opportunity for Wider Public Education

TR T o & v
‘reeon veret
Koop, is «_be m&mded “for- his
{o! report 1o the nation on ac-*
rihright 0

The traditlonal podlic response to

such diseases hast ..~ one of indif-.

ference because “no one “ver dies

(Top Halth Official Urges Frank
Talks to Young on AIDS,” news story
our young not recelving informa-
tion that {s vital 1o theif future heal
and

&

we

ter red to deat with AIDG, If the
'camptrg;ad fated the probiem of sex-
ually transmitted diseases with suffl-
clent funds and perhaps

:

from V.D* AlLs, howjm. 13 not the

mkm'mam.cau;‘}mum
that

ia, diseases that fafect
Toughly six million Americans annu.
Ally, cause approximately half of the
75,000 ectopic eachyear,
termal Gent. Congentnl o
which is again on the rise, kills in.
f s, as can Papiiloma vi-
1508 u'uhz‘sml:‘t’“:m mother 1
babycan have reatening conse-
quences for the baby. Papilloma vi-
ruses have also been agsociated with

§§

some cases of AIDS could even have
been

At least 25 million American teen-
agers will contract a sexually trans-
mitted disease this year. At least
50,000 youig wimen under the age of
25 wiil be rendered sterile this year
by sexually transmitied diseases.

O

Weagree with Dr.
tives must be begun to adequa
form the pudlic, including
about AIDS. But AIDS s just the tip
of the lceber% There are 10 million
new cazes of sexually transmiited
discases each year. Many of those
cases 2o untreated; others are dis-

m:  d diseases except hepa

#ases for which there I8 no cure. No
vaccine exists for any sexually ;snns-
titls B,
We must not lose this important op-
portunity to educate the pudlic, es-
peciaily young people, about the ful} .
spectrum of sexually transmittes dis.
eases for which they might be at
risk.’ WENDY J. WERTHEIMER
"MICHAEL J. ROSENBERG, M.D,
Washington, Nov, 1, 199
The writers are, respectively, direc.
tor of public policy, American Socfal
Health Assn, and director of the
Reproductive Epidemiology Division,
Family Heaith International,
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Mr. Wess. Thank you, Dr. Rosenberg. I want to thank all of you
not only for you:r testimony but also for the tremendous work you
are doing in the field.

Mr. Dunne. I understand that you brought a few of your public
< -~7ice announcements to show. We are going to see those now.

Mr. DUNNE. There are two sets, Mr. irman, one that is run-
ning currently that was gr‘::‘;.wed by a television station in San
Francisco along with San cisco Foundation a. 1 is being
distributed, at least in the major markets, and then a second one
that was done over a year ago funded jointly by AIDS Project Los
&g‘eles, San Francisco AIDS Foundation, and Gay Men’s Health

is

Kli‘deo presentation.]

. DUNNE. Those are four 30-second television PSA’s. There are
also radio and newsprint ones. They ran in the New York City. Los
A%eles, and San Francisco marketplaces. .

“here is a second set of 64. We are not going to show you ali of
them, but there will be representative spots that have been dor.e
and are now running in those marketplaces and are beiny distrib-
uted ttll'ynder the auspices of the National AIDS Network around the
country.

qrideo presentation.]

Mr. DUNNE. If I might, Mr. Chairman, I find it interesting that
the Centers for Disease Control a few weeks ago released a nation-
al media campaign, RFP. We found it absolute y easy to get the co-
operativn of people like Bob Hope and the President’s son, who
were more than willing to come forward and do these public serv-
ice announcements for us. So frankly, I think that they have cre-
ated the resistance in their own head.

I think when a friend of the President and when the President’s
own son are willing to ~ome forward and to do these public service
announcements for ¢o «dty-based organizations, I can’t imagine
that they would tur M a request from the Department of
Health and Human £  ,ces.

Mr. Wrss. Will pubic service announcements be enough? What
are Mg'.our thoughts on thr. mass media campaign?

. DUNNE. No. I think in response to tmt, I have the same
answer that Dr. Joseph from New York City gave, which is that it
is one piece of a very large and very complex mosaic. It certainly
ought to include public service announcements, and we ought not.
to have to depend on them being contributed by the networks and
by the stations; we ought to be prepared to buy time for them. But
it certainly also has to include education that takes place in the
schools, at the workplace, at colleges and universities, in shooting
galleries, indeed wherever we can find an audience that needs
either targeted or general education.

In New York City, for example, the Gay Men’s Health Crisis is
distributing millions of pieces of literature through the public li-
brary system. I fina it curious that we are doing that without any
Government support whatsoever, although most people would
think of libraries as a kind of a public service, and it certainly is a
wonderful place to engage people and to give them information.

Mr. Weiss. Approximately a year and a half ago, your organiza-
tion was awarded a grant of $240,000 from the Centers for gxsease
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Contro!, which was subsequently held up due to Federal concern
with che e:lplicit sexual content of the printed and video materials
wnich would be developed. Would you please describe what oc-
curred and what was the resolution?

Mr. DUNNE. Yes. It was in A 1985 that v'= submitted a pro-
posa! along with a number of other organization:. around the coun-
try, and it was announced shortly after, that the Gay Men’s Health
Crisis pro had been approved but that the funding would be
held up. We went, then, from August until April of the following
year before we received additional information. Obviously, there
were a lot of phone calls back and forth in between, but we never
reaily got a response.

FinaTlx we did get a response and there were essentially two sets
of conditior 3. One was that any 1¥rap.lucal material we used had to
be such that it would not be offensive to the general population.
The materials we were.preparin? were nov_ ‘tended for the geners!
po%t:latlon. They were intended for a specifi. peoulatic

e second condition was that we ha advisory grov.}s to
rev=~ « all of our materials ard approve it before it was used. Now,
¢ «s.-usly, we had already put together an advisory group because
that, frankly, makes sense, but there was an adcitional element to
that, and that was that once again the members of that advisory
group not come predominantly from the community for whom the
educational message is intended. In essence, it would be the equiva-
leat of putting together a program to educate black Amcricans and
saying that a majority of your advisory group must be white Amer-
icans. What they said to us in essence was that you need to have
an adviscry group but it cannot be made up of gay men, it must
consis:]fredominantly of nongay people.

So all of these things slowed d¢ . our progress and became ele-
ments that we had to work arounc.

Mr. Wkiss. Thenk you very much.

Mr. Gerald, up to this time what has been the Federa) response
to ﬂ?f AIDS epidemic occurring among black and Hispanic Ameri-
cans

Mr. GerALD. I would say practically nathing. The problem is that
there has been no «verall coordinated program. There are bits and
pieces, a project here, a project there. 6ur survey of our comniuni-
ty-based organizations show that money has trickled down, per-

haps, through scme of the States, and you can uncover a pisce of

literuture here, and a video elsewhere.

The Government E‘Ig‘l%e earlier today about specific components
of NIMH programs, A programs, and HRSA programs, but ba-
sically the Government is just not up to the work that we need to
get done in this country as far as educating the minority communi-

ty.

. The results have been that there has been ver¥ little minority
input into the design or control of these projects. I think that the
analogy that Mr. e just made about community input into
these programs is appropriate—it 15 even worse when it comes to
minorities. There hus been a lower priority for such programs be-
cause of the little funding that has gone out to the community tor
education, little to no for targeted program s, and very lim-
ited materials.
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We get calls from community-based service providers across the
country askinf us for materials that have been proven to be effec-
tive. They tell us _hat the materials that they have on hand are
not adequate in serving the nee 18 of minority communities or to
get the word acroes.

The vernacular or language of the community is ignored. Literal
translation into Spanish or other languages is made, and that is, of
course, inappropriate. As a result, there is a perpetuation of myths
and misinformation.

There is use of more general materials, and prograins in minori-
ty communities. The agencies have to scramble for funds in the pri-
vate sector, and of course, again here, there is a lower priority in
terms of the funds that are made available.

Mr. Weiss. What do you think are the specific types of programs
that have a chance of reaching that segment of the minority com-
munity which seems to be most at risk, that is, the IV drug users?

Mr. GeraLp. I first want to say that while it is true that the IV
drug use does exacerbate the prob! m in the minority community,
minonities are disproportionat. ; affected in terms of all risk
groups, and that {lere are geographic differences. Take this local
erea of the District of Columbia. It is different than, let’s say, Balti-
more, or Newark, or New York. Still, when we talk about the
transmission of the HIV virus in this particular area, for example,
bisexual and gay men still account for the majority of the black

cases.

So that there is no one model program in the ide ! sense that
will work in any community. What we need to have is funding to
minority organizations that are set up and are being set up across
the country to respond to this issue. We need to have within local
community-based AIDS service providers more staffing of these
kinds of targeted programs—dollars.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you.

Dr. Rosenberg, you said in you, : ony that CDC'’s approach
to handling 'emaﬁy transmitted dise._e has been testing, treating,
and finding r-sxual contacts. Obviously, you cannot treat and cure
AIDS. Howeer, does it seem that CDC is approaching AIDS wi
testing and tracing as if it were curable syphilis or gonorrhea?

Dr. RosENBERG. I'm sorry. I missed the last part of that.

Mr. Wriss. Is it your impression that CDC is app:oe ching AIDS
with te;tmg and tracing as if it were curable sexually transmitted

Dr. RosenBERG. I think the limited etforts that they have made
have been in that direction. The initial s. ggestion of contact trac-
ing was offered by the CDC in a conference a few wesks ago about
mandatory testing. I think that has been—at least if that was a
suggestion, I think that has been largely overruled by the public
health community.

I think the problem is really that they are not doing mu-". on
AIDS br‘iaght: now. I think that they do recognize that contact tracing
18 probably not the most effective means of getting at AIDS, but at
the same time, I think that there are fairly clearly other means—I
am tta‘}gmg about education—that are, and those have yet to be in-
stituted.

Q
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Mr. Werss. On February 11 of this year, Attorney General Meese,
as Chairman of the Domestic Policy Council, issued a memoran-
dum which stated that any health information provided by the
Federal Government that might be used in schools should teach
that children should pot engage in sex. In light of your knowledge
of S’l;D rates in adolescents, is this a realistic position? Is it suffi-
cient? '

Dr. RosENBERG. I certainly think it unrealistic to believe that
solely that ap&roach will work. I think it is a reasonable starting
point, but at the same time, you cannot write off the other people
who choose not to subscribe to that viewpoint.

Mr. Wrss. Mr. Swales, Dr. Windom's testimony indicates that
the Public Health Service plans to reach IV drug abusers, their sex
partners and other close associates with radio, television and print
media techniques. In your experience, how effective will this be in
educating and ¢ ing behavior?

Mr. SwaLes. Wi to Dr. Windom, I think that the
effect will be moderate, at This population is affected by a
range of factors which make it very difficult to reach them because
they are not reliable readers of the Washington Times, nor are
they rehable viewers of channel 4, nor sse they reliable, in many
instances, anything, and therein may lie one of the problems.

As I said in my earlier testimony, which might have sounded like
a smart remark, these people move fast and travel light. If we are
going to conduct information to them, we had better be prepared to
move fast and travel light, and we had better be prepared to pack a
wallop with the information that we intend to give them. That
needs to be in the shape that those people are accustomed to find-
ing their information: the language, the sounds, the smells, the en-
vironment, the whole 9 yards.

One of the problems as I see it, quite obviously, is—and as I ob-
served, largely these people are people of color—it is interesting to
note that people of color start to occur down here at the functional
levels. When we were up at the policy and planning levels earlier
this morning, I did not see us. I think that may have somethinéoto
do with the way information is put into the system from the Gov-
ernment’s perspective.

One of the ways we like to look at ourselves at Sunnye Sherman
is as a proactive star in a tia.lr;\xy of reactivity. We cannot afford,
from where I sit, to take the time or to be led down in the
policy development and the planning. There is work to be done. We
operate basically on the motto of ‘Lead me, follow me, or get out of
mwa : there is work to be done.”

. Weiss. What role might the Federal Government provide in
helping to educate high-risk groups such as the arug addicts and
street geople that you have described?

Mr. SwaLzs. I missed the very early part of é'gvur question.

Mr. Wrxiss. What do you think the Federal ernment could ap-
propriately do to provide help to those high-risk groups you are
working with?

Mr. SwaLes. To begin with, the people of the Federal Govern-
ment could provide leadership that is obviously outspoken, forth-
right leadership. While it was music to our ears to hear Dr. Koop

O respond in October, and a very effective response it was, Dr. Koop
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is an employee of the leadership that we have elected and set in
place and designed as an emblem of what we represent.

Second, where I am in the business of delivering information, I
have tc deliver information on the street presently with two paid
teams of outreach workers, I would love to have 22 teams out there
in all sectors. The concept of voluntsrism isn’t very prevalent in
the population of people that I have to reach and draw from to give
education to that population: Prostitutes, I’/ substance abusers.
They need to be paid. That is the system that they operate on.
They need to be paid something akin to respectable wages. We
presently pay ours $7.50 an hour. The Government or somebody
could provide funding for that.

We hear all manner of people who can—I heard one man in mar-
keting boast about how he could “sell twe milking machines to a
guy who only had one cow, and then take the cow in downpay-
ment.” Where are those marketing skills when it comes to market-
ing health education and the preservation of life in the face of a
threat from AIDS?

Somebo%g needs to do the research around the issues of commu-
nication. The majority group has a responsibility here, since it con-
trols the resources, to effectively learn how to communicate with
the minority group because the minority groups, whether they be
abqset;s, people of color, sexual minorities, are a part of the whole
society.

Mr. Wess. That's good. I thank you very much.

Within the context and as a followup to that last response, have
you seen anything by way of public education or mass education
efforts which has reflected the increased breakout of the disease
from the prime risk areas? Mr. Dunne, Dr. Rosenberg, either of
you.

Mr. Dunne. I wish I could say I thought there was, but I'm
afraid the news is discouraging. NBC commissioned a poll in Janu-
ary 1987, and among the questions that they asked is, “Since you
became aware of AIDS, have you changed your sexual behavior in
any way?’ They asked that question in January 1986 and they
asked it again in January 1987, and only 7 percent of the respond-
ents indicated that yes, they had changed their sexual behavior. I
would hazard a guess that probably the majority of those 7 percent
are gay or bisexual men, so it is clear to me that the message has
not gotten to heterosexuals that they are at risk, and we have cer-
tainly seen evidence in New York and other places where we have
scen a drematic decline in the gonorrhea rate for, again, gay and
bisexual men, but during that same period of time, it has either
stayed the same or rizen somewhat for heterosexual men and
women.

Mr. WEiss. Dr. Rosenberg.

Dr. RosENBERG. By way of agreeing with that, I think that the
calls that we get for the AIDS hotline, for example, are predomi-
nantly from heterosexuals. I think that, unlike the statistics for
the gay hotline that we heard earlier, I think that when people
perceive themselves to be at high risk is when they go ahead and
call in, and largely we have not impressed upon the straight com-
munity that AIDS‘ is a disease for which they are at risk as well.

EMC 74-444 0 - 87 - 7 19%
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Mr. GErALD. From the perspective of minorities, I am extremely
concerned. I was just in the State of Alabama 2 weeks ago, and 1
got information that 40 percent of the people with AIDS in the

tate of Alabama are people of color. You have the States of Con-
necticut, the District, Florida, Maryland, New Jersey, New York—
all of these States—reporting that over 50 percent of their cases
are people of color.

You have the States of Michigan, North Carolina, Pennsylvania
reporting thai more than 40 percent of their people with AIDS are
people of color. And again, in the States of Illinois, Delaware, Lou-
isiana, Virginia, more than 30 percent of their cases of AIDS occur
among people of color.

And again, there is a myth out there. There is a perception that
people are not at risk and that those at risk are confined to New
Yorx and San Francisco. I think that this reinforces the real need
for doing an effective and coordinated national camgaxgn

Mr. WEiss. I want to thank all of you very much for your testi-
mony because I think it underscores the tremendous gap that is
out there and the tremendous gap between what is suggested that
the administration or the Federal Government has been doing and
the reality of what, in fact, is happening.

Today we have reviewed what is being done to inform and edu-
cate the American people on how to protect themselves and others
from AIDS. We have heard about the creative work and the dedi-
cated workers trying to teach people, including San Francisco
youth, New York Citv drug users, Oregon migrant workers, the
alienated in Washington, DC, and gay and bisexual men in the
New York metropolitan area.

We applaud these efforts and hope that city and State agencies
and organizations around the country will follow their lead. How-
ever, what has been done up to now has been done with little lead-
ership, output or funding from the Federal Government. The Fed-
eral response in this crucial area of the fight against AIDS has
been slow, limited, and ultimately impotent. How many more
people must die before the administration takes heed and some-

ing really gets done?

Public health experts estimate that 74,000 new cases of AIDS
will be diagnosed in 1991 alone. Of these, 37,000, or half, are people
already infected with the AIDS virus. The other 37,000 are present-
ly uninfected. If a massive education campaign against AIDS began
this afternoon, many of these people and their family and friends
could be spared the suffering and tragedy of AIDS.

Unhappily and unfortunately, we do not see the beginning of
that massive effort this afternoon. We are pieased a long-delayed
superplan has finally been signed off on and released. However, we
have reviewed the various components of the plan this morning
and early this afternoon with the administration people. Tragical-
ly, it seems that many of the components of this plan are matters
which have been talked about for years and barely implemented.

Hardly any of these components sre ready to go into effect before
another 6 or 9 months or longer. There is a desperate need for a
sense of urgency. We hope that today's hearin? may have helped in
some small way to create a greater sense of urgency within the
Federal Government.
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We thank all of our witnesses very much for their participation
and all of their work.

The meeting of the subcommittee is now adjourned subject to the
call of the Chair.

[Whereupon, at 2:45 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-
venc subject to the call of the Chair.]
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SPECTAL 8(a) SUBCONTRACT CONDITIONS (APR 1984)

The Seall Business Adainistzation (SBA; hes entered into Contract

N.. 271-86-8408 with the National Institute on Orug Abuse to furnisn
the or services as described therein. A copy of the contract
is attacned hereto and mede a pert nereof.

Professionel Menasgement Associates, Inc. heresfter referred to as the
sucontractor, agrees and acknowledges as follows:

(1) That he will, for and on behalf of the SBA, fulfill and perfora
31l of the reqiirements of Contract No. 271-86-8408 for the
consideration stated nerein and that he nas resd and is familiac
witn each and every part of the contract.

(2) That tha SBA nes delegated responsibility for the administration
of the syocontract to the Naticnal Institute on Drug Abuse with
complete suthority to taks any action on bahelf of the Government
under the temms and conditions of this subcontract.

(3) That ne will not subcontract the performence of any of the
requirements of this suocontract to sny lower tier suncontractor
without the prior written apprnval of the SBA ard the designated
Contracting Officer of the Natlonal Institute on Orug Abuse.

Paysents including any progress payments under this subcontract will be
made directly to the suocontractor by the NIOA.
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SPECIAL 8(a) CONTRACT C "DITIONS (APR 1984)

The Small Business Administration (SBA) agrees to the following:

(a)

(o,

(e)

()

(e)

To furnish the supplies or services set forth in tnis contract
according to the specifications and the terms and conditions
heregf Oy suocontrec witn an eligible concem pursuent to the

provisions of section 8(a) of tho Small Business Act, as amended

(15 usc 637(a)).

Trat in the svent SBA does not sward a subcontract for all or a
part of the worxk hereundat, this contract may be terminated either
in wnole or in part without cost to either party.

Delegates to the National Institute on Drug Apuse (NIDA) the
responsibility for sdministering the su~contrec” to be awarded
hereunder with complete authority to take any sction on bemalf of
tne Govarnment under tne terms and conditions of the subcontract;
provided, however, that Nationel Institute on Drug Abuse shall.
give advance nctice to the SBA before it issues a final notice
terainating the right of a subcontractor to proceed witn further
performance, sither in whole or in part, under the subcontract for
default or /or the convenience of the Goverrment.

That payments to be made under any subcontrect awarded under this
contract will be made directly to the suocontractor oy the
National Institute on Drug Abuse.

Trat the suocontractor awarded a subcontract hereunder shall have

the right of appesl from the decisions of the Contracting Officer
cognizable under the "Disputes® clause of said suocontract.
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SECTION B
To conduct market research to ascertain oest means of reacning target
sxdience of 1V drug usars and close associates with messages apout AIDS
snd drug use, and to develop, produce and distribute materials to target
sudience.
A complete description of tre required services {s contained {n Section C.
Consideration

™is is an fully-funded, 1 year, cost-reimoursement completion type
contract.

@, Estimated Cost and Fixed Fee (APR 1984)

It is estimated tnat the total cost to the Government for full
pertcrmance of this cuntract will oe $165,786, of whicn the sum of
uss,sge represents the estimated costs and $10,118 represents tne
fixed fee.

b, Payment

For tne performance of tnis contract the Government shall pay to tne
Contractor:

(1) The cost thereof determined by the Contracting Officer to be
allowable in accordsnce with Clause FAR 52.216-7, "Alilowable
Cost and Payment,” (APR 1984).

(2) e fixed fes snall bx payable in accordance with Clause FAR
$2.216-8, "Fixed Fes” (APR 1984). Tne fixed fee is suwoject to
an equitable recuction in the event tne requirements of
Section F are not satisfactorily completed.

c. Indirect Cost

(1) Tne allowsdle indirect costs under tnis contract snall oe
established in accordance with the procedures set forth in
Clause FAR 52.216-7 "Allowable Cost and Payment™ (APR 1984).

(2) Unless otherwise specified by smendnent of tne contract, during
the first 90 days of this contract indirect costs shall be
reimbursed at the following rates:

Tyoe Billing Rate
*Fringe Benefits 25.45% (c)
sOvernead 50,00% (a)
*General & Adninistration 14.00% (p)
{) -
ke o}
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Bases:

(a) Oirect salaries and weges, 0id and proposal salaries, and
including spplicable fringe benefrits

(0) Total expenses less 0id and propossl and less fringe
benefits associated with 0id and propossl.

(c) ODirect salaries, ovprnead salaries, B4 sslaries, and GiA
salaries.

*The above rates are approved for oilling purposes only.

within the first 30 deys of this contract the Contractor sgrees
to submit 80 indirect cost sate proposal to the Finencial
Advisory Services Officer, ALWHA with the information required
to negotiate provisionsl indirect cost rates. The Government
will enter into negotiations with the Contractor for the purpose
of estadlisning provisional indirect cost rates.

Notwitnstanding the fotegoing, the Contractor shell, in the case
of an upward adjustment of the provisional rates, comply with
the requirements of Cleuss FAR 52.232.20, *Limitation of Cost”
(APR 1984) of the contract, end provide timely notification to
the Contracting Officer, where such increase in costs csuses
operation of that clsuse.

8.3 PROVISIONS APALICABLE TO DIRECT COSTS

Items Unallowable Unless Otherwise Authorized

Not

withstanding the clauses FAR 52.2i6-07, "Allowadle Cost and

Paymer 3* (April 1984), FAR 52.244-02, "Subcontracts Under
Cost-«almbursement end Letter Contracts® (APR 1984), and HGSAR
352.247-70, “Foreign Travel® (AR 1984), unless suthorized in writing

the Contracting Officer, the costs of the following items or

oy
activities shall De unallowable 8S dlirect costs:

)

2)

3
8)

Any fee or other payment for consultation in excess of
$150/dey/consultant or where the services of any consultant will
exceed ten days during the period of this contract.

Acquisition, by purchase or lease, of any interest in real
property;

Special rearrangement or alteration of facilities;
Purchase or lesss of item of general purpose office

furniture or offics equ. t regordless of dollar value
(General purpose office equioment is defined as any items of
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(S) Purchass of rental of any iteas of personal property having e
unit value of $200 or mors;

(6) Travel to ettsnd gensral scientific meetings;
(7) Foreign travel.

" Travel Costs

Travel expenses incurred by the Contractor exclusively in direct
perforsance of this contrect shall not sxceed:

1. Cost of air travel by most direct routs, *air coach® or
"air tourist™ (less than first class) unless it is clearly
unIeasonadle or impracticadle (e.g.,.not evellable for reasons
other then svoidable delsy in reservations, would require
circuitous routing or entall additional expenses offsetting the
ssvings on fare, or would not meke necessary connections); or

2. Cost of rail travel by sost direct routs, first class with lower
berth or nearest equivalent; or

3. Cost of mv.loyprinulyo-\odwtmu. However,
reinoursemant for transportstion by this means shall not exceed
the cost of 1. or 2. sbove, whichever is less,

4. The cost of mv.lbypuvuulyouumucs ond
susistence costs snell 08 reisbursed pursuent to the Goverrment
travel policy in effect et the time such costs are incurred.
mcwtrwmrnllcxulnmchhfotumtor
travel costs the source of the rates used

Any costs incurred prior to the sffective date of this contract shall
be considered unsllowedls end nct ceimburssole under this contract.
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SECTION C
Descr. ification/Work Statement

Baciground

AIDS (Acquired Imsuns Deficiency Syndroms) is & condition charsctstized
Dy & defect in the body's natursl immnity to disesss. ™e causative
of AIDS is the twmer Tl trophic virus or yTLV-II17. The

v, is trenemitted or y by saxual contact with infected
Mvmwwmmwoflntmmauwo:om
drug-relatad is. It cen also be spreed from sother to child
bafore, mu?.o:ntuyomxmmmmm:
transfusion of conteminated blood or blood products. Peple with AIDS
are vulnerabls to severs illnesses wnich are not typically & tnreat to
mnmi-msystuulnhct. Eighty percent of all AIDS
petients die within two years of dlagnosis. No patisnt is inown to
Nnmmmmdlmu

™e O-ntau for Disesse Control report ovet zo.uoo ceses of AI0S (Mey,
1986). Moreover, it has been estimsted thet there mey be one alllion
pecpls {n the U.S. who heve been {nfectsd with AIDS virus, tut are
currently ssymptomstic. Individusls with & history of {nttsvenous drug
use aaxe D BPPIoximatsly ruxentoftmtownmxofams
cases. Kl't.v-nl-ooutivo drwg uu:s are mwu tesponsinle
for heterossxuel transmission of the disesss. The vast ujouty of

tracesble to IV drug users. Concern with containing the sprcad of AIDS
within end from the IV commnity {s ooviously well founced.
Pedistric cases fepresent than 1 1/2 parcent of the total AIDS
cases; however, 52 percent of these children are the offspring of Iv
drug users.

Oofective

Tne objective of uus contract is rirst w cmt markpt research in
t to the Dest meens of resching the targst audience of

use. Second, in
contractar will develap, producs, end distrivute Wﬂu -urms

wnich will carsy the mssseges to the target audience in such @ way as
to halt cr slow the spread of AIDS. The Ststement of Work ifies
radio end print materisls for ses

sariet resesrch w be
. Thtemtnctmwimomtmrmpmm.
Haterisls Developent part

'.x)
H
2\;"

=
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St. Louis, and Washington/Baltimore. Most target guoierce members are
Black innexr-city IV heroin users. The exact meke-up of the target
varies somewnat from'city-to-city.

Ssrvices to be Performed

mﬂy. and mt as an agent of the lovernamt, the contractor
mun mry“ £ J.:nor. materiels ond fu:#utiesu‘to

unmt [ 8 arbrationel whaehh shall reflect

basic s ix?ieg!ity, pmlicmmeptm ond general

asppropriateness by which public service educational programs are judged

in deteraining their fitness for netional and local media supoort.

Specifically, the contractor shell perform snd complete tne follewing

Task A. Program Otientation; Market Research

ek 2
1. The Contractor snall meet witn the Project Of:i-es and otrer
Goverment personnal in order to discuss and «'arify the purpose of
the contract, and to orient the contractor in jenerai on the
relationsnip petween AIDS and IV drug use, 35 it Ielates to tne
contract.

Wee 3

2. Tne Contractor snall perform backj.ound research, in order to learn
m.umm emtlonoftmuzgetmnlmmuos The
A | M L. I¢ al A a

Thc Contractor shnll wusult witn the Netional
Assochtim of Broedcastsrs in wasnington, 0.C., to leam as far as
possible what radio stations would oe likely to reacn the target
audience. The Contractor snaell also consult with racio stations
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y channels of approach to the
t types of AIDS-related

y target audience; mewoers of
of AWLIC Affairs/olic — Kery Evert
and/or 1V drug users (names and Medowe

= o o
iate parsomel of NIDA . The work group

in detail the media hebits of the target audience in
these

H
of resching the target audiences; forwats and appinaches for radio
and print materials; and any otner topics to promote tne objectives
A of the contract. The Contractor shall psy for 10 attendees,
honarsria at $125, travel and per diem and meke all travel ok &
arrangements.

The Contractor shall summarize tne findings of the work grouwp
meeting and cosoine the informetion with tne preliminary report for

a flnal merket rzsearch report. This snall oe used as the
busis for deternining the specific nﬁm% to be deve@ E
ais Deve . Nerk. 4

Task 5. Mater]
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Task B. Materials Development

In sccordence witn tre results of the market researcn, NIDA in

consultation witn the contractor will determine the specific meterials
to oe developed, All materials to be developed will need to reinfarce
the tnemes of the caspaign,

Radic and print materials are included in the Statement of Work for
3 13 . ALl materials are suoJect to
Iev. I oy NIOK, and oy PHS anid DHIS.
It s expected that the radic spots and print materials will oe
relessed in two waves. Tne first weve will be released by the end of
weex 37 of the contract, and tne second, Dy the end of week 50. Eacn
wave will consist of nalf the total mumper of radio spots and nalf of
tne print items.

1. Tne Contractor snall crganize and lead tws focus group meetings, a
two si: the Project Officer. Thefowsgra’n'is'

tance

”

sessages concemning AIDS and IV drug use,.and (in perticular) —
M possiole rpfinements of of such messages, and tne pest
styles orﬁmwpmt materials to rescn the target audience.
he Contractor snell prepare a report of findings from tne
meetings; tnis report, togetner witn the marxet researcn report

tepared in Task A.5, snell serve as tne casis for discussion at

the Creative Development Meeting, Subtask 2 delow. o !g@éé

2. The Contractor snell arganize and lead a one-day Creati
3&-F%mumtuum.mmmaacm:mmm o

. ding,
{Qﬂd‘yu, l Rockville, Maryland. Up to 20 people snall attend. Participants
N Yl mimlnm&égrt%tsfmmmm(tmn.d);g
‘Nd-!‘l‘\' wr 20 four representatives o tadio and print media;
- . Tepresentatives of OPA/PHS, the Contractor’s creetive staff and
owe - o d}. staff mesber responsiole for creative and copy-test research; and
NIDA project personnel. The Contractor snall pey nonoraria for 6
participants at $125, travel and per diem for w to 14
7 participants. The basis for discussion shell oe the two reports
Pt fron Tasks A.5 and B.1. Werk 4

3. Tre Contractor shall develop a Creative Plan, incorporating the an
( ideas and concems expressed at the Creative Development Meeting , (& ' &>
&

p:

)" (Task B.2 avove), covering tne entire program, and outlining a
\l N0 a' schedule of production, launching, snd distrioution in two waves.
¢ ?0, r’" *  The plan snall ’~clude (obut not be restricted to):

YY1 L
a'mwlt"lw >

Q or
ERIC by
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Proposed themes and sub-thewes, and the rationsle behind each.

A plan for distrioution of rsdio materials to up to 500 radio
stations.

A plan for distrioution of print materials to organizations
:::):ﬂu fliers or handouts) or to the medis (such as print

A plan for writing and placesent of up to 10 sagazine and
newspaper articles on AIDS and 1V drug use, intended for
t reach to the target audience; the newspaper .rticles
De placed in tne target citles.

Tne snall be suomitted to the Project Officer. The Project

officer shall nave 5 working days to review and approve tne

Crestive Plan. Tne Project Officer snall alsc select one of the

propgsed themes and sub-tnemes to be tne theme for tne progrem. W._r;/@ >

mwmmg&ummwmmm-unmu
indicated below:

a. Develop treatments for 20 or more radio spots.
sufficient nuner of treatments to allow tne Government to
select and approve treatments for (total 12) eignt 30-second .
spots and four 20-second spots. Treatments shall oe ’WCL'P- 1€
sulticulturally sensitive.

Upon selection and approval oy tne Government of tne 20 radio .
treatments as specified in 1(a) above, write draft sceipts. (, ok =7

Undertake creative and copy-test research for the program, as
required to ensure attairment of program otlectives. Special
attention shell oe mede toward developing ways to ensure that
the program reaches tne primary target audience.

The researcn is to include informsl roundtable discussicns,
witn an unstructured format, to assess the effectiveness cf Lhe
progras.

Tne Contractor snall sumit the results of creative and
copy-test researcn to tne Government, and shall incofporate the
vest suggestions from tne research into the draft scripts ana
otner materials, acting on tne recommendations of the
Goverrment.

Concusrently witn Step c., suwomit draft scripts and live
announcer copy to the four {4) mespers of the worx group (see
Task A.4) for review. Contractor snall pay nonoraria to the
four work Qrou memoers. Tne work group will have five w~~<ing

ERI!
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days from receipt o” the materials, for review. The contractor
shall submit a sumeaty of the work growp's suggestions to tne
Coverrment. The contractor shall incorporate the best
suggestions of tne work group into the materials, acting on the
recommendstions of the Goverrment.

e. &Ntuﬂ\ewx&:mmumg X
suggestions from Steps c. d., to the Government for review
and approval. Wech 24

. 1. Upon review and approval of tne draft scripts by the
Government, write leL:nt_iﬁS'; develop descriptions of the
c3cground, chetacter, and protile of each person who will be
the ossis for the charscters; suomit a list of suggestions for
talent. In addition, submit specifications for recording
locations e a production schedule, write live announcer copy
in forwats of several lengths (e.g. 60, 30, 20 seconds);
precare live announcer cony in poth English and Spanisn as
necessacy. Suomit all material to the Goverrment. THESE
MATERIALS WItL BE THE BASIS FOR REVIEW BY PHS AND THE W?‘
DEPARTMENT AND MAY REQUIRE MODIFICATION.

G. Upon review and approval of tne spots by the Goverrment, select
the narrator of announcer, select the locations ‘for recording,
ard caxe all other preparations for actual production. Talent
fees fo- spots shall apply for a two (2) year period from the
recording date. Submit results of preparations to tne

Government.

h. Upnn review and approval Dy the Goverrment, perform sound
rocerding.

f. Upon review and app. 1 by tne Go it, edit sound track

«  for 8:30-second and 4:20-second radic spots. Suomit rough edit
to Project Officer fGr approval.

J. upon taview and approval oy the Goverrment, fine edit the
spots. Suomit to Project Officer for spproval. THIS MATERIAL
WILL % SUBXECT TO REVIEW BY PHS AND THE DEPARTMENT AND MAY
REQUIRE MODIFICATION.

Upon review and approval Oy tne Government, make discs and/or
tapes of the radio spots for two waves, not to exceed 500. The
first wave items are to be packaged appropriately and suomitted
to the Project Officer. ODeliver 50 coples to NIDA Project
Offirer, in addition to the 500 above; total, 550 spots.

1. Release the first wave radio and print meterials. It is

contemplated tnat all, or nearly all, tne materials will oe
racic pecavse of the time needed to print tne other materials.

ERIC y
: 200
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®. Release the second wave of materials.

n. Suomit the following items to the Government before the end of
the contract period:

1. Master mixed trak (megnetic) for radio
2. Final nacration scripts for escn of the radio spots
3. Talent and music releases

S. The Contrsctor snsll develop and produce print materials besed on

tne Creative Plan (Tasx 8.3). The print saterisls shell include:
(1) Pampnlets, fliers, posters, and hendouts (finel
product-casera-reedy copy); (2) Articles for megazines, and for
newspapers in the target cities; and (3) Materials for radio kits:
packages, labels, fact shests, cover letters, scripts and live
copy, and user reply cards, for up to 550 radio distrim tion kits.
THIS MATERIAL IS SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY PHS AND THE ODEPARIFENT AND
MAY REQUIRE MODIFICATION.

. The materials snall oe suomitted to the Project Officer.,

a. Rougn sketches and treatnent COpy; Wésh 20)
b. grr‘:ft laywttm:;cow of all materials including magazine

c. Final layout and final copy.

0. Mechanicals, —— [Wuk 37

Task C. Launching and Distribution

Since tnis program is targetted to a limited audience, a fuil-scale
"launcn event®, witn press conference, is not indicated, Marketing of
tne campaign will oe conducted under a separate contract, which will
involve reglonal meetings, treining of local drug abuse community
groups, and tne use of tne materials of tnis contract in conducting
AI0S and drug ause education programs at tne local level. The
contractor will work with the Project Officer to prepare for the
matketing activities.

Oistrioution snall oe in two waves. Thus, there will be two kits for
oroagcastars, each one containing half of tne radio materials, and two
sets of print materials, eacn set consisting of soout nalf the total
produced. The Contractor shall:

1. Meet with tne Project Officer to discuss marketing plans and
specific arrangements for launching the grogram. The Contractor
snall work witn the Project Officer to plan these activities and
have the materials ready for the marketing events.

il
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2. Develop kits of ~adio materisls and print materials for
distribution (550 radio <its and 500 print materials kits).

3. Distribute the radic kits to brosdcastars according to plan;
distribute tne print materials to cooperating groups according to

O

ERIC 2ii ™
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€.1 Inspection and Acceptance

s. All work under this contract is subject to inspection and final
scceptance by an authorized representative of the Goverment.

* b. Tre Government Froject Officer is responsinle for inspection and
scceptance of all items to be delivered under this contract.

c. " The Contractor's attention is directad to tne contract clause FAR
§2.246-5 "Inspection of Services® (APR 1984), whicn is hereoy
incorporated in tnis contract by reference.

Q
2i2 »
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F.l The Contractor snell supmit the deliverable items, described !.n tm Work

pi ]

1.
2.

10,

u.

12,

13.

1.

1s.

Statement (Section C), in accordance with the following schedul

Orientation meeting (Task A.l.)

Backgrourd ressarcn and consultation
(Tasx A.2.); preliminary report

Medis henits meetings (Tasx A.3.)

Work group meeting (Task A.4.)

Repotrt on merwet research (Task A.S.)
Focus group mestings reports (Task 8.1.)

Creative devalopment mee
(Task B.2.) H

Creative plan (Tasx 8,3.)

Radic and print treatments and rougn
sxetenes (Task 8.4.8.)

Oraft scripts and print texts and
art work (Task 6.4.b. and B.S.».)

Results of -test researcn
(Tasx B.4.c.

Results of work group review
(Task B8.4.d.)

Revised draft scripts, print texts,
etc. (Tasx B.4.e. and B.5.0.)

inel scripts, print texts, *cemsers-
ﬁ eopy. art work (Task 8.4.f.
and B.5.c.)
4 weoks for PHS and DHHS review
2 wooks for modification/reworking
and review

Radio preproduction preparations
(Task B.4.9.)

Quantity

N/A
5

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

2

i~

3

By €nd of
Weeks After

Contract Award

1
3

w o6 o 0w

18

24

26

32




18.

19.

2.

2.

2.

3.

28,

Page 16 of 25
By End of
#oeks After
- Quantity Contract Award
Radio sound NA 33
(Task B.4.n.)
Radio rougn edit (Tasx B.4.i.) N/A 3
Redio fine edit (Task B.4.J.) N/A 35
2 weoks PHS and DHHS review
¥inel radio spots; print mecranicals 1 each

(Task B.4.k. and B.5.d.) 38
Release first weve materials

(Task B.5.1.) N/A 39
Reloass second wave radio and
print miterials (Jask 8.&.m.) N/A 30
Master mixed track; scripts
releases (Task B.4.n.) 1 52
Finencial Report of Individusl 3 Quarterly. Delivery

Project/Contract - HHS Form 646
to prapared in accordence with
acconpanying instructions
(Section G) (Attachment 3)

to be witnin 15 dayr
after end of the
period reported. A
final report for tre
last three months dve
on or defore expiret:an
of the contract

Final report, to include a ] On or before
revien of the projec:; contract
expiration,

enalysis of impact o’ the first wave;
and recommendstions yor improvesents

Note: Five warking days are allotted to the goverrment for review and
soproval except for after Items 14 and 18, when aaditional weeks are
allotted for D6 review and possible modlrication.

#A camsra-ready original is specified to mesn a single spaced, reproducioie
originel typed on wnite paper with a caroon ripoon, complying with all
Goverrment Printing Office ortnographic requirements for printing oy NIOA
by the pnoto offset process.

Two copiss of the Finel Report shall oe forwarded directly to the
Contracting Officer.

F.2 Contract Expirstion Date

O
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MARKET RESEARCH AND HEALTH COMMUNICATIONS PLAN
ON AIDS AND IV DRUG ABUSE

1.° BACKGROUND AND EXTENT OF PROBLEM

The purpose of this bockground paper is 1o outline o communicotions plon oimed of
preventing ond reducing the tronsmission of Humon Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) within
ond from the intravenous (1V) drug abusing community. After Goy or Bisexual men, IV
drug obusers ore the second lorges risk group for AIDS. Sharing of contominoted needles
hos been implicoted os the likely means of HIV tronsmission within the IV drug abusing
populotion, 1V drug obusers ore o bridge to two other groups: children ond heterosexual
poriners. The majerity of reported heterosexual tronsmission coses have involved o link
1o IV drug obusers, most of them mole drug cbusers wha fronsmit the vi. us 1o non-drug

obusing females through sexual contoct.

Currently, 25 percent of the opproximotely 33,000 reported coses of AIDS ore
identified os being ossocioted with IV drug use as o risk behavior {os of March 23, 1987).
Of these coses, 32 percent (8% of the 33,000) were found to be Goy moles while 68
percent (17% of the 33,000) were heterosexu.. IV drug users. Tronsmission of the HIV
virus by heterosexuol contoct, believed to be mainly tronsmitted by those infected by IV
drug use, presently occounts for & percent of the coses. In vtero or perinotol
tronsmission 10 children has been determined to be the couse in obout one percent of the
existing soses of AIDS,

Toble | presents the growth of the AIDS problem relotive 10 the tronsmission
cotegories. This toble provides the yearly number of cases (December 9 of one yeor 10
December 8 of the following year) and percent increose from the end of 1982 1o the end
of 1986. According 1o these doto, the percentuqe increase of coses for overolt mole ond
femole IV drug users hos diminished in the 1986 period relotive 1o the cumporoble period
in 1985, (Moles: 78% increase in the 1985 period vs. 52% in the 1986 period; ond
fernoles: 82% increose in 1985 vs. 56% in 1986). The exception 1o this, in the IV drug use
{ronsmission cotegory, is omong Goy moles wha olso use drugs intravenously where the
yeorly percentoge increose is octuclly increosing (45% in the 1985 period vs. 61% in the
1986 period). This onomoly is understondoble, however, since thot group is ot risk
relotive 10 two of the primary high risk behoviors.

O
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TABLE {: Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS) Cases Reported for Three Tronsmission
Cotegories (iV Drug Use, Heterosexuo) Contoct, and Pediotric) with Percentoges of Yearly
Increcses (inc.) » United Stotes, through December 8, 1986,

Tranemission
Cotegory

ADULT MALE:
AlL IV drug!
(% inc.)®

IV drug user only
(% inc.)
IV drug user

homosexval
inc.)

All heterosexuvol

contoc!
(% inc.)

U.S. contoct

% incl

Noa U.S. born?
(% inc.)

Before
lpm

172

N

L1]

. Percent increase

ERIC
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am

(184)

295
(201)

194
(162)

34
(68)

0)

(20)

nhm.
Y

957
(%)

Includes both heterosexual ond homosexuol IV drug users.

(Toble continued)

‘ja

R N

1,708
(78)

1,132
(102)

576
(&8)

13
(24)

(100)

{R]]
(16)

2,599
(s2)

1674
(48)

225
61)

%9

49

(188)

(32)

g
2

5,925

3.760

2,165

542

includes persons without other identified risks who were born in countries in which heterosexuol
tronsmission is believed fo ploy 0 major role.
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TABLE | (Centd Acquired immwnodeficlency Syndrome (AIDS) Coses Reported for Three
Tronsmission Categories (IV Drug Use, Hetetosexuol Contoct, and Pediotric) with Percentoges of
Yeorly Increases - United Stotes, through December 8, 1984,

Trenemisslon Befors 12/3/92- 12/9/83- 12/9/0 - 12/9/85-
Category lpm A0 l2feh J2ppS 12fef TOTAL
ADULT FEMALE:

IV drug user 26 1] 152 2% 430 %3
% incJe (200) 02 (82) (56)

All heterosexve 16 n 60 131 275 514
contoct

(% irc.) (100) (68) (18 (t10)

U.S. contoct 7 20 W 100 230 404
% inc) (186 (135) (113 (130)

Non USS. born? 9 12 13 31 I3 1o
% inc.) (33 ® (138) 3]

PEDIATRIC 1 41 50 12 178 I
® inc) (4000) 2 (148) (44)

. Percent increase

2 Includes persons without other identified ritks who were born in L untties i which hete: osexval

transmistion is believed to ploy o mojor role.
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The apporent decrease in the year-to-year percentoge increase in the overall v
drug use cotegory is hardly o consolation, as the absolute number of cases continues to
increase.  Empirical models employed by CDC estimate that the proportion of AIDS
cases related to |V drug use wi . remain obout the some in 1991, Since the total number
of cases is projected to be 270,030 by 1991, this implies thot ove- 60,000 cases will be
related to IV drug use.

This degree of growth in the number of AIDS cases due fo tronsmission by IV drug
use is supported by other epidemiologic evidence. For example, CDC estimates thot
approximately 750,000 Americans injcct heroin or other drugs intravenously gt least once
o week with a similar number injecting drugs less often. 2 This estimated total number
of infravenous drug users (1.5 million) is independently substantioted using treatment
statistics ond other studies. Specifically, the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA)
estimated that more thon 305,000 clients were odmitted to State monitored drug abuse
treatment programs in the United States in FY 1985. 3 Of those clients in treatment,
over half (57%) report the use of needles as a route fo drug administration, 4 Combining
these data with findings in epidemiological studies which estimate thot nine to twelve
percent of all IV drug users are in treatment suggests that there are about }.45 million of
this type of drug user in the United States (using 12% in treatment). 3 Thus, it could be o
reasonable assertion that there are about 1.5 million IV drug users in the U.5.

Using this total prevalence as a base, seropositivity and infection con be used to
project the number of IV drug use related AIDS cases in 199). Studies of the rate of
seropositivity have shawn a range of prevalence rates, from 10 to 87 percent. 67 Byt
the most recent findings suggest that, overall, IV drug abusers have an infection rate
which already exceeds 50 percent 8, Seropositivity denotes exposure but not necessarily
the presence of the virus, althaugh the growing rate of seropasitivity probably reflects
the growth of infection. When blood somples of seropositive cases were ‘|tured for the
presence of the virus, at least 62 percent of the somples were found 10 contain the
virus. Given the limitation in the culturing technology relative to the HIV virus (e.g., it
would not identify the presence of the virus in the neural tissue in the brain), the true
rate of viral infection is probably higher in seropositive cases. ], However, using the 50
percent seroposi: -ity rate among IV drug users and a 62 percent rate of actual infection
in this group, one can conclude that about 31 percent of IV drug users are carriers of the
virus. Combining this infection rate with the prevalence of [V drug use (i.e., I.5 million
individuals), it could be estimated that there are presently about 465,000 IV drug users

“2-
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infected with the virus. Since CDC projects the 20 fo 30 percent of those presently
infected will develop AIDS by 1991, the foregoing data suggests that 93,000 1V drug users
will hove AIDS of thot time. This estimate could be seen a3 being high becouse oli of the
estimated 1.5 million IV drug users moy not hove the same degree of risk. However, this
estimate for 1991 (93,000) does tend fo substantiote the CDC estimate of over 60,000 IV
drug use reloted AIDS cases for that year. These are only the cases reloted to individuals
who are presently infected and does not consider the future spread of infection.

Results reloting behaviors to seropositivity are presently frogmented. This
fragmentotion should be soon remedied since NIDA and CDC ore sponsoring numerous
studies to investigate behaviors reloted fo virol transmission. In the interim, olthaugh
evidence is partiol, some ospects of behavior reloted transmission ore relatively v~
For example, in Son Francisco, where the rote of seropositivity among IV drug users wos
low (10%), seropositivity wos found to be clearly reloted to the oumber of individuols
with whom on IV drug users shared needles. 10 The toble presented below shows the
degree of seropositivity and the relotive risk perienced by 209 1V drug users in San
Froncisco.

Seropositivity Related fo the Number aof Persons
with whom Needles are Usually Shared (1984-1985)

Number of Relative
Persons Percent Risk
Sharing Needles N Positive (Odds Ratio)

Rorely 65 3% l
| 76 9 3.2
2 or more 68 15 5.4

These doto show that for those individuals who share needles with two or more people the
risk of being seropositive is more than § times thot of individuals who rorely share. This
tinding, however, should be considered as o description of relotive risk in o city where
infection is somewhat minimol (i.e., 10% seropositivity) compored to other communities
ond foctors which ore conducive to reduced tronsmission (i.e., o lock of shooting golleries
ond little overlap between the Goy ond heterosexual drug using populotion).

3.




E

221

217

Conditions for tronsmission are more present in the east. In New York, the pool of
infected IV drug users is over 50%; shooting galleries, where needles are purchased and
shared, are common, ond there is more sharing with the Gay population. In one study,
the majority of heterosexual IV drug users with AIDS or AIDS reloted complex hod shared
needles with Gay men. n In circumstances such as this, one would have to conclude thot
the relotive risk ossociated with multiple person needle sharing would exceed that
described in Son Francisco.

While needle sharing behavior has been studied among AIDS patients and clients in
treatment, as was stated, little comprehensive evidence is available for all IV drug users
both in and out of treatment. Relative to this, a study was conducted in Washingtan,
D.C. in 1986 where samples of IV drug users wha were in freatment and not in treatment
were surveyed, 12 The fallowing results were found:

Needie Sharing Behavior Among IV Drug Users
In and Not In Treatment - Washington, D.C. (1986)

No. Per.vons
Shared With In treatment Not in Treatment
(Last Month) (n=159) (n=63)

0 49% 39%

I 35 2!

2 10 24

3 2 9

4

or more 3 8

These two groups are shown to have marked differences in risk in two ways. For thase
nat in treatment, not only do they shore needles more often (61% in comporison to 51%),
but they share needles with more individuals (40% not in freotment share with two or
more persons in comparison ta |5% of those in treatment). While no clear data are
available describing seropositivity rates in Washington, D.C., preliminary information
indicates that the rafe is about 30 percent - somewhere between the rates in Son
Froncisco ond New York. Given thot there ore more individuals not in treatment than in
freatment, it couid be expected thot rates will rise, as the use of shooting galleries is
prevalent in Washington, D.C.
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While studies are underway fo determine more precisely the behovioral correlates
of infection, it Is not necessary to awoit their findings to understond how rapidly the
virus con spread among 1V drug users. Retrospective studies of blood somples from
various populations of IV drug users clearly indicote that once the virus is introduced into
o -community, it con diffuse fo infect o majority of users. In New York City, for
exomple, the prevalence of seropositivity in samples of IV drug users increased from 1
percent in 1877 o 27 percent in 1979, ond o 58 percent in 1984.13 In Edinburgh,
Scotland, o similor pottem was observed with seropositivity rising to more thon 50
percent among 1V drug users in o two yeor period.'“ In oddition, rapid rises in the
proportion of seropositivity have been documented in Spain and ltaly where rates among
tested oddicts have gone from zero to one-half to three-fourths in the space of several
years. With growth rates such as these which brooden the pool of infected IV drug users,
it may not ke o matter of haw often on individual shares a needle, nor with haw many
others, but if they share at oll. As the infected pool in o community includes the
majority of IV drug users, the probability of being infected in o single sharing experience
{without disinfecting the needle) becomes maximized.

As previously noted, there is grave concern that the pool of HIiV infection due to
transmission among IV drug users could oct as o conduit to spreod the virus to the general
heterosexval population. This concern is supported by the epidemioiogical data. As of
Moarch 23, 1987, four percent of the 32,696 coses of AIDS among odults and edolescents
reporfed heterosexual tronsmission as the probable couse for being infected with the
virus.!5  Of these 1230 cases, 608 persons (114 men, 494 women) reported having
heterosexual contoct with a person with AIDS or af risk for AIDS ond 522 (500 men, ond
122 women) were without other identified risks but were born in countries where
heterosexual tronsmission is believed to play o major role. The yeorly growth of
heterosexuaily controcted cases of AIDS from 12/9/82 to 12/8/86 is given in Toble I for
males ond females as oll heterosexual contact, contact omong thase born in the U.S., ond
confoct omong those not born in the U.S. Note that percentage increase in the last
period, for all heterosexual contact; either increases above the previous period (for
moles: 49% in the 1986 period versus 24% in the 1985 period) or stays relatively the
same (for females: 110% in the 1986 period versus 118% in the 1985 period). This type
of increose is on cnomaly ralative fo other fronsmission categories (IV drug use,
Gay/Bisexual) where the yeorly percent increases are diminishing. This anomaly is even
more pronounced if one examines the category of ULS. heterosexual contoct where for
both males and females the lost period increase is lorger than the previous period which
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was a decline from the period before that (males: 1984 - 900%; 1985 - 100%; 1986 -
145%; oand females: 1984 -135%; 1985 - 113%; 1986 - 130%). This data indicates thot
heterosexual tronsmission is the category which is experiencing the most ropid growth in
cases.

Linking heterosexual transmission explicitly to IV drug use is problematic since
individuals wha controct AIDS usually only report one risk foctor. As of the week of
March 23, 1987, 88.4 percent reported one risk fot:tor.I6 However, among the cases
which reported multiple risk foctors and one of them was IV drug use among
heterosexuals, €8 percent also reported heterosexual contact as another risk foctor. This
does not clearly demonstrote a link because the preponderance of those contracting AIDS
by heterosexua! transmission "don't report”, or "don't know", thot their partners were IV
drug users. Viewing this from a different standpoint, where among thase reporting
multiple risk foctors including heterosexual contact, only about 10 percent indicated
foctors other than IV drug use. Again, this does not show the link conclusively; but these
data together moke a rather compelling argument about the link between heterosexual
transmission and 1V drug abuse.

The final ospect of the problem involves transmission of the virus to children,
either as a fetus or perinatally, from mothers wha have AIDS or are ot risk of
contracting AIDS. The focus relative to this discussion has to do with the mother
controcting AIDS by IV drug use or heterosexual contact with on IV drug user. Here
again, there is no precise information describing the link between IV drug use ond
transmission fo children but the dota do indicate that the preponderant number of
children with AIDS contracted the virus as a fetus or during the perinatal period.
Specifically, as of March 23, 1987, 80 percent of the 462 children under 13 with AIDS has
a parent with AIDS or was ot risk.'7 Since 51 percent of the women with AIDS ocquired
the virus by IV drug use and 28 percent by heterosexual transmission, one would expect
these modes of transmission to ploy a corollary role in transmitting the virus to
chitdren.!8

IV drug abusers, therefore, occupy o pivotai position in the developing AIDS
epidemic, and efforts to control the spreod of the disease must focus, ot least in pe.t, on
this risk group. In the obsence of either effective treatment or vaccines, reducing
tronsmission-related behavior {in all risk groups) is the most practical means of trying fo
control the AIDS epidemic. Public health education has been suggested as o means of
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reducing the spread of the infections among IV ot sers, their children, ond sexual
partners, ond has been credited by mony with already having hod an impoct on high-risk
sexual octivity omong Gay ond Bisexual men,

An effective health education campaign should, therefore, be concerned with two
(2) types of risk behaviors:

° shoring of contaminated body fluids (i.e., blood) through the use of unclean,
shared needles and works, and

(] sexual tronsmission of HIV to uninfected partners.

Of the two, sharing of contaminated blood through the sharing of needles and/or
nworks” is the risk behavior most often associated with IV drug abusers. Both IV arug
abusers and the general public appear to perceive that IV drug abusers are among the
primary groups at high-risk for infection, due to shoring behaviors, The second risk
factor, sexual transmission from the IV drug abusing population to non-IV drug abusers, is
cleorly documented. The general perception of this "link" ond risk omong 1V drug abusers
and the general population is somewhat unclear. The obility to control and prevent HIV
infection among all population groups strongly depends upon the understanding of the two
risv behaviors, as well as on individual's ability fo respond te AIDS health messages
targetted to the modification of high-risk practices (e.g., ". ‘er" sexual practices,
disinfection of needles and "works", etc.).

Education campaigns aimed at eliminating or reducing HIV transmission through the
modification of, primarily, IV drug abuse behaviors, and, secondarily, sexual behaviors,
need 1o be directed to a brood range of individuals. Specific target populations include:

[ Current and ex-|V drug abusers

[ Sexual partners of current and ex-1V drug abusers

o Family ond significant others of current ond ex-IV drug abusers
[ All sexually octive heterosexuals

All target populations would benefit from AJDS education materials ond messages
bosed on both past and current 1V drug use and/or sexval behaviors, and those of their
sexual partners.

-7-
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In dev:loping on educotionol compaign for the torget groups mentioned above, it
will be necessary fo be sensitive to vcrious demogrophic aspects underlying the torget
groups.  In particular, it will be neressary fto recognize the disproportionote
representotion of minorities among those who may be ot risk. For exomple, omong AIDS
cases whase only risk foctor wos IV drug use, 5| percent are Block, 30 percent Hispanic,
with only 19 percent White. A similor disproportionality is found in relotion to
seropositivity. In o study conducted in San Froncisco, Blocks ond Hisponics were found to
have olmost three (3) times the risk of becoming seropositive even though Whites hod o
higher mean number of persons with whom needles were shored.'9 This difference was
olso found in New York and New JerseY.zo There wos no evident behaviorol or other
demogrophic charocteristic to exploin the higher prevolence of infection in this
population. While needle sharing is no more prevolent omong Blacks ond Hisponics thon
omong Whites, the risk of infection is clearly greater for individuols who share needles
with minority group members dve to the relotively higher seroprevoleice within those
populations.

Similar ethnic differences occur in relotion to heterosexuol tronsmission. As of
Morch 23, 1987, omong AIDS cases reported in thot cotegory, 74 percent ore Black, 13
percent Hispanic, and 14 percent White. In oddition, omong female AIDS coses, most of
which ore related ta IV drug use or heterosexual tronsmission (79% of oll femole AIDS
coses), 73 percent of these individuols are Black or Hispanic. Moreover, 8! percent of
childhood coses ore Block or Hispanic.

The other demogrophic focus is oge. The vorious torget groups discussed obove ore
most predominently betwen the ages of 20 ond the mid to upper 40's. Relotive to AIDS
coses virtually 90 percent of the individuols are between 20 ond 49 and the predominent
proportion of odmissions to drug abuse treatment ore between 2| ond M.zl

IV drug cbusers have o potentiol to practice both drug abuse ond sexual high-risk
behoviors in relotion to AIDS. This is not the cose with other high risk groups. Thus,
from on overoll educotion standpoint which will impoct ond effect both IV drug cbuse ond
sexua! high risk behaviors, there ore substontiol but different communicotion problems in
relotion to the compound risk behoviors associoted with IV drug abusers. In oddition,
imporiont questions remain on the effectiveness of educotional interventions, the
relotionship of krowledge to behavior change, ond the persistence or decline of risk
behavior in the IV drug obusing populotion.

8.
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A significont amount of future infection can be prevented through current
intervention ond educotion strotegies. It is in this course of action that the greotest
opportunities for oltering the course of the epidemic lie. Retrospective studies of blood
sero from populotions of IV drug abusers suggest thot once HIV Is introduced into o
community, it spreads rapidly to infect the majority of drug oddicts. The opportunity for
slowing HIV infection in the IV drug obusing populotion does exist through AIDS
educotion. A primary goal of AIDS educotion and intervention strotegies is to modify or
eliminote drug abuse and sexual high risk behaviors. Both behaviors ore difficult to
olter. Sexual behaviors are fixed early in life ond are rorely modified withaut some
external influence. Drug use behaviors ore olso difficult to modify, in greot port due to
the addictive process, the ritualistic noture of IV drug cbuse which encouroges needle
shoring, ond lows ogainst IV drug obuse which hinder occess to sterile equipment. These
ore just o few of the patentiol barriers to effesting behavior chonge in {V drug obusers
ond their sexuol portners. Borriers to educotion, behavior change, ond intervention lie on
numerous boses, such os the nature of the torget groups, effective moteriol and message
development, ond disseminction through the different communicotions chonnels which
ore most likely to reach the torget groups, os discussed below.

Il Barriers to Education and Behavior Change

@  Nature of Target Groups

The primary torget group for NIDA's AIDS educotion octivities should be current IV
drug obusers, to pusitively impact high-risk drug obuse ond sexual behaviors. This is not
to say thot the other torget groups (e.g., ex-IV obusers, sexual partners of current and
ex-1V drug obusers, efc.) ore less importont, but the current IV drug abuser is potentiolly
{ond directly) practicing high risk behaviors which ore both drug ond sexual behoviors. In
oddition, the foct thot one is on illicit IV drug obuser creotes problems such os
receptiveness and access fo risk-reduction messages, os detoiled below.

N Current IV drug obusers

Control of the AIDS epidemic omong drug abusers, ond subsequent sexvol
tronsinission to others, will be dependent upon an eliminotion or reduction of the shoring
of contomined needles and works by IV drug cbusers. "Troditionol" imoges of IV drug
obusers leods one to expect little oi no risk reduction. Although some reporrs indicote
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increased demond for sterile needles ond/or works, and o small number of IV cbusers
reporting regularly cleaning needies with alcohol, bleach, or boiling, significont high risk
drug behavlors are still prevalent in this population.

Recent literature, NIDA sponsorad research ond AIDS education publication
pretesting, ond surveys o IV drug abusers in treatment and not in treatment (r recently
conducted in the District of Columbio) provide Important insight info the level of
Kncwieage, attitudes, beliefs, ond behaviors of the IV drug abusing population concernine
AIDS and risk behaviors. This population generally knows about the high risk behaviors
associated with HIV fransmission, is knowledgeable af AIDS high risk group composition
ond etialogy, and is aware of preventive (risk avaidance and risk-reduction) behaviars.

Based on focus group and survey dota from Cleveiand, Detroit, Washingtan, D.C.,
Miami, Houston, and St. Louis, current ond former 1V drug abusers identified how they
believed "AIDS is spreod™.

Mode of Transmission % Responding Yes
o Sharing needles 92.8%
° Through sex 92.5%
o Semen 78.8%
] Getting blood ot hospital 78%
o Broken skin, such as sore, cut or tracks 46.8%
o Toilet seats 9%
o Casual contoct 3.5%

Respondents also occurately defined high risk population groups:

Gay men 71%
IV drug abusers 86.3%
Bisexual men 82.5%
Prostitutes 84.8%
Children born to mothers
with the AIDS virus 67.3%
-10-
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“rligh risk" behaviors were believed fa be sex with multiple partners (30.8%),
exchonge of blood or semen (86%), and IV drug abuse (85%). Behaviars which helped
prevent HlV-transmission were also relatively well known. Respondents noted that
preventive behaviars included "stop shooting drugs* (82.8%), engaging only in "safer sex"
(58.5%), restricting sex ta a closed relationship (58.5%), ond cleaning "works" (57.8%).

Despite knowledge of AIDS and high-risk ond preventive behaviars among IV drug
cbusers, however, personal behavior does not reflect this knowledge. Data fram a recent
survey af current ond former IV drug abusers in Washington, D.C., indicates that aver
52% ore shoring needles and/ar "warks", ond aver 22% did not consistently clean
barrawed warks prior fo using them. In oddition, among those who clean works
immediately prior ta personal use, aver 50% use ineffective cleaning techniques such as
rinsing in tap water only. Similar data on sexual proctices indicate cantinued high-risk
sexual practices with over 60% af survev respondents having continued sexual relations
with more thon one partner (10% having sex with six () or mare different partners).
Over 85% pavur use condoms during vaginal intercaurse.

Based on these findings, it con be noted that IV drug abusers recognize high-risk
behaviors in relation ta HIV-transmission, but continue ta practice high-risk sexual and
drug abuse behaviars. They recognize risk, but their actions da not refiect a personal
response fa this risk. 1V drug cbusers, therefore, camprehend the thearetical risk but do
not personalize the risk as indicated by the cantinued proctice of high-risk behaviars.
Cleariy knowledge alone does not tronslate inta behavior change. It appeors that the
lock af perceived risk, either due ta camprehension issues or personal denial, must also
be avercome ta effect behavior chonge.

Non-camprehension of the risk os oppaseo ta denial of the risk are thus twa
patential issues effecting behaviar change. One must undertand the risk, before denial of
the rik can occur. Based on IV drug user focus group pretesting af twa (2) NIDA
publications, the fallowing was determined in relation ta comprehension and
understanding of AIDS end AIDS etiaiogy.

Many iV drug abusers had reoding and camprehension difficulties with terms
which they felt were "100 technical™. These terms included "HTLV.NI/LAV",
"HIV", Kaposi's Sarcame, and *Pneumosystic Carinii Pneumonia”. Many
respondents stated that they wouldn't continue reoding written materials, ar
listen ta audia messoges, after being “ripped up" aver these terms.
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] There was aften confusion about the meoning of the AIDS onti-body test.
Respondents were confused about the differences between the AIDS virus,
HIV, HTLV-1Il/LAV, ond the AIDS ontibody, what the AIDS antibody test was
for, ond why someone shouid get the test.

] The link between AIDS virus troansmission via IV drug abuse ond sexval
activity was uncleor 10 many Tocus group members, Often, respondents felt
that it wos only possible ta tronsmit AIDS through one of these behaviors,
but not bath. in general, respondents understood how AIDS could be
transitted through the sharing of their works, but were unsure whot the rale
of specific sexual octivities was, and were relatively uninformed about high
risk sexual behaviors as o mode af AIDS transmission.

Denial is an Issue even when AIDS tronsmissior ond the role of high risk sexual ond
drug obusing behaviors is comprehended. Denial is a personal but undefined function
which is unique o eoch person. Given the foct thot the pre-test, survey, ond some
oncedatal doto reflect o relatively "sophisticated” level of knowledge about hiV-
tronsmission among IV drug abusers, denial is cleorly evident as evidenced by behaviars
as well as data on perceived personal risk for AIDS. Combined NIDA pre-test and
Washington, D.C. survey results indicate thot aver S0% af current and recent IV drug
abusers do not think that they are personally at risk for AIDS, with aimost 1S% unsure or
don't know. This is clearly inconsistent with dat . ‘rom the some respondents which
indicates o knowledge of haw AIDS is transmitted and personal proctices of continued
high-risk drug ond sexual behoviars.

Other foctars inherent In the "moke-up” af the IV drug abuser and the drug abusing
community must be considered in terms of knowledge, messoges receptiveness, and
personal denial. These foctars include:

] If drug abusers continued IV drug use but elected the risk ovaidance
behaviars (af nat sharing works, cleaning *borrawed” works befare personal
usoge, ar using condams), they would possibly alienate themselves fram their
suppart network. For drug abusers, altering social norms within the drug
cammunity would imply "mistrust®, or be contrued as a nega:lve reflection
on "drug buddies" or sexuval partners., Many IV drug abusers would not wish ta
practice "safer” behaviors if it would threaten the few support netwarks they
have af fellow drug users uad sexual portners, ond

Q IV drug cbusers ore troditionally nonreceptive ta all kinds of heolth
education messoges, The AIDS Issue is yet another af many problems which
they have avaided focing or denied by continuing the use of IV drugs. AIDS
moy simply be "odded to the list", along with averdosing, hepatitis,
endocarditis, etc. A 1986 California study conducted by J. Newmeyer and H.
Feldmon on IV drug user receptivity ta AIDS risk. "These individuals view
AIDS as just one of mony life-threatenting risks in pursuing a coreer In
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heroin use." Similor sentiments were expressed by Mr. Robert Baxter, on
epidemiology consultont ot the New Jersey Department of Health, wha Is
Quoted in the February 16, 1986 New York Yimes as stating, "The life of o
drug oddict is 30 frought with donger - overdosing, hepatltis, getting busted
or ripped off, AIDS is just one more hassle, on occupational hazard.*

The most effective strotegy o prevent HIV infection In IV drug abusers Is fo
eliminate 1V drug abuse altogether. For individuals who confinue to Inject drugs, o
cessotion of needle shoring and the use of sterile needles ond syringes, In oddition to
increased use ¢f condoms, os an example, is essentiol. The following charocteristics of

IV drug obusers olso hinder the odoption of these importont behaviors to stap AIDS
tronsmissions

Drug abusers in general (ond IV obusers in particulor) do not hove on
orgonized constituency, or support, self-help, or odvecacy groups.

IV drug cbuse iz traditionolly regorded as being associoted with self-
destructive octivities.

IV drug obusers are generolly recognized and identified only when they nioke
contoct with the criminal justice or drug treatment/rehabitotion systems.

They ore difficult fo reoch through troditional health communicotion
chonnels,

More specificolly, foctors inherent in the severely oddictive, illegol, ond ritualist
Process of IV drug obuse olso hinder efforts o get iV drug obusers to stop using drugs,
stop shoring works, or sterilize equipment used fo administer drugs. These include:

An inability to legally obtoin sterile equipment for odministroting drugs,
often resulting in sharing behoviors.

The expediency ond desperation to toke drugs, porticulorily In times of ocute
withdrowol, increosing sharing behavior or the use of non-sterile "works".

Misinformotion in the IV drug obusing community obout high-risk sharing
behoviors within o smoll or closed group, and sexual tronsmission of HIV.
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2) Ex-1V drug cbusers, sexual poriners of current ond ex-1V drug obusers, their
significont others, ond sexually octive heterosexuals.

These torget groups present some of the some issues regarding AIDS educotion ond
hi'gh-rkk behavior intervention thot are evident in current IV drug abusers. The most
significont borrier to education and behcvior change is providing accurote informotion
obout the sexuol transmission of AIDS, the “link" of high risk drug obuse behavior ond
sexuol tronsmission, ond overcoming misinformotion ond folse beliefs obout high.risk
sexual behaviors. In porticular, heterosexvols, particulorly those wi ) mwlitiple portners,
must be mode aware of the risk o themseives,

Borriers to educotion ond behavior chonge for these populotions gre often the some
as one would expect fo find for other issues of major public heaith concern. The some
problems of comprehension, deniol, ond sociol/personcl *pressure®, os discussed in
relotion to IV drug abusers, Is olso on Issve with non-IV drug cbusers. These borriers
include o lock of information, overcoming folse/incorrect information, ond overcoming
various movol, personal, ond often religious beliefs, os AIDS educotion touches upon mony
soclol ™taboos” (such as drug use ond sexual proctices) which ore often not well received
by mony people.

For populotions who are not in clecrly defined high-risk groups (such os non-1V drug
abusing heterosexuals), denlol is olso difficult to overcome. They must understand the
risk before they con clearly deny it. Blacks ond Misponics, os on example, comprise o
disproportionately high percentoge of AIDS cases, in spite of the medio's frequent
portroyol of the disease as o white, middiecloss, Gay male diseose. Mony of the ethnic
minority groups do not even recognize their risk, so therefore do not recognize the risk
reduction octivity. Similor problems are generolly reported omong women, ond non-drug
obusing heterosexuals of bath sexes ond oll roces,

The perception of risk due to heterosexuol transmission has heightened, but p=rhops
not as acutely os it should. Recent surveys of public ottitude seem to indicote than moavy
hove oltered thelr sexual behavior, and the use of condoms (os on exomple) is
increosing. However, the receptiveness of these populotions to the messoge, ond the
strength of the messoge, is still somewhat uncertoin.

b
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b Problems with Different Materials and Medio

Not oll medio reach olf potentiol torget groups for the AIDS messoges. Some
popt'=tions otc more receptive, os an exomple, to visual response, whire others ore more
receptive 1o, ot exomples, one-to-one counseling and educotion. Be Tiers 10 the use of
different AIDS educotion materiols and nedio cre on two levels:

(1) The receptiveness of different target groups to porticulor medio and
materiols, ond

(2)  An unwillingness (or refusal) of different medio to distribute, broadcost,
reproduce, etc., AIDS educotion moteriols (often due 1o the connection with
illegal drug use ond/or sexual proctices). These barriers not orly negotively
effect the patentiol o.:tribution of moteriols through oll availoble channels,
but hinders essentiol pre-testing {or "morket testing®) necessary for the
development of effective messages.

Cleorly, the materiols must be in o form that will be received by the potentiol
torget groups. Given the unique nature of these torget groups (most porticulerly current
IV-drug obusers), little research is avoil * "2 1o determine which moteriols ore the best”
for each populotion.

€)  Problems With the AIDS Message Focus and/or Form

As stoted, particulorly grophic or specific AIDS educotion messages and infor.
motion may be determined to be “inappropriote* for distribution or dissimenotion through
porticular communicotions channels or media. This clearly impedes the ability 1o torget
unique and porticular messoges. As on exomple, the message "Don*t Shoot Drugs” may be
deemed occeptoble or aeppropriote for posters on subwoys—but "Dont Come Inside
Him/Her* may be Inoppropriote for this medium. This exomple (olbeit simplistic)
illustrotes the barriers fo messoge development withou! even considering what the focus
of AIDS educotion messoges should be. More specificolly, the basic Question with regard
to the messoge is still uncleor--whot shoukd be advccoted? What shouid the "officiol
posture” be?

The AIDS high-risk behavic change messoges ole o subject of often heoted
debote. Some potentiol olternatives include:
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[ Risk-reduction messages--(i.e., get into treatment, clean works, reduce the
number of sexual partners, increase the use of condoms),
) Risk-avoidance messoges—-{i.e., don't use drugs, avoid sexual relotions).

° A "mix" of the above--generolly of the nature of “"don't shoot drugs, but, if
you must, don't shore works",

The messoges to be developed ond distributed will often be impocted by their form
(as moteriols), and their distribution through different health educotion/communicotion
channels ond media. This creates o barrier to messoge development which would not be
ot issue if they were not dependent upon the obility to use different moteriols and
chonnels of communicotion. Should the messages be “educoticnal” in o generol sense?
Strongly coercive? "Grophic"? or unique and directed to one target group only, ond their
specific behoviors?

The form, content, and desired output {as expected behavior change) of the messoge
or messages is not consistent omong the vorious groups wha ore currently developing ond
conducting AIDS educotion strotegies directed to these torget groups. This can crea*. o
problem of "mixed messages” perceived by the populotions wha need to practice high-risk
behavior changes the most. The present set of messages often include the concept of
"risk", but "risk" is comprehended differently by current IV drug abusers ond others in the
torget groups. There is often uncertointy surrounding the degree of risk given personol,
sexual, heolth and other practices. This, in turn, creotes o greot deal of confusion omong
the recipients of AIDS prevention messages.

d Problems with Channels of Communications (Dissemination Network)

There ore numerous potentiol means to reach the target populotions. Historicolly,
on occepted method of reoching IV drug obusers was through the drug
treatment/rehabilitotion network, Evidcnce seems to indicote that only nine to twelve
percent of this group ever enter the drug treotment system, with the remainder o largely
(and continued) hidden populotion, Clearly, large portions of the IV drug abusing
populotion moy be difficult to reach through traditic »al heolth communicotion channels.

L spite this low figure, there is still o strong reliance on the drug treatment system
to provide essentiol AIDS and other heolth eduotion. To confound this problem, the drug

treotment system is often quite seporoted from the more generol medicol/health/sociol
service delivery systems.
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Although there is expected 10 be "averlop®, the means to reach the current IV drug
abusing populations and athers defined as target groups for AIDS education messages will
be different. Certain modes of communication will not reoch certain groups; even if the
torget group "gets” the message, they may not be receptive 1a it.

AIDS messcges need not be directed only ta a defined audience, such cs Goy/
Bisexval males, moking all communication channels for the dissemination of AIDS
information potential channels for the messages. Al! channels are not "ready” for the
rale, hawever. The issues of AIDS and IV drug cbuse are not particular media "grabbers"-
~they are perceived to be prablems of a small (and "undesirable”) audience.

Despite the existance of national television and rodia netwarks, and newspapers and
inogazines distributed acrass the country, channels of cammunication and education are
strongly bosed on tne local level. Local communities have their awn forms of media, and
locally based organizations, which have a strong impoct in a smaller, defined arec. The
prablem is that local areas often da nat recognize the impartance of lorger cancerns such
as AIDS and IV drug obuse, ar do not even recagnize the prablem. Communications ond
orgonizational netwarks bosed at the communit; level con be an excellent vehicle for
fronsmitting health education messoges, but they are currently not performing that
function ta their highest patential.

) Barriers 10 NIDA in the Development/Disseminotion of AIDS Education

In the mast direct sense, the problems and barriers discussed above with respect ta
the torget audiences moaterials, messoges, cnd channels af communications ore the
ba-riers which NIDA foces in the development and dissemination of AIDS education
materials. Camplicating these prablems is the lock of available treatment pragrams ond
focilities for IV drug abusers. Drug treatment programs are currently aperating at, ar
aver capacity, and campaigns that inspire widespread efforts at treatment/rehabilitation
among IV drug abusers could swamp alreody strained focilities.

Fear af AIDS will undoubtedly leod significont numbers of IV drug abusers 1a seek
treatment far their drug cbuse. To some degree, on increase in treatment seeking
behaviar is alreody occurring. Unfortunately, mony wha seek treatment discover that it
is nat ovailable. Therefare, if materials developed far dissemination contain statements
urging cbusers 1o seek treatment, and it is not widely ovailable, then the recagnition of
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this by the target group could couse them to doubt the verocity of the entire messoge.
This moy seriously undermine the efficiency of the compaign.

Other borriers ore foced by NIDA in the development of o brood campaign fo
reduce the risk of tronsmission due fo needle sharing behaviors ond heterosexual contact
internol to and external from the torget populations. A significant first step will be the
overcoming of folse beliefs ond misinformotion held by mony and significant segments of
society about all facets of the AIDS epidemic. The problem is found everywhere in the
country.

Following is o discussion of the moterials, messages, and channels of
communicotions which may be potentially utilized in o NIDA compaign uimed at reducing
the risk of AIDS transmission for the defined target groups. Also included is a discussion
of the recommended moteriols, messoges, ond health education communications channels
which will best meet NIDA's mondate ond needs for on effective AIDS eduation
campoign.

. Materia ond Comnmunications Channels
a Types of Potential Materials

Nationol and local efforts specific to AIDS education for these target groups have
used o wide variety of different materials, with different degrees of success. These
include:

Pamphlets, brochures, foct sheets

Posters/billboards (in public locations such os the street, subways, busses)
Phato novels/comic books

Movies

Videotopes

Audiotapes

Newsletters

Wallet cards

T-shirts, lopel buttons, etc.

"Rap” (and other) musicol tapes/records

Magazines orticles ond news releases

Television spots

Radio spots

Print odvertisements

Discussion guides for talk shows ond group discussions

Training materiols for person-to-person risk reduction information diffusion

0000000000000 000O0
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] Documentotories
o Curriculum guides for courses

Moteriols hove been developed in response to various messoges, o utilize ol

passible communicotion channels, and oddress oll target groups. These *traditional” ond
*non-traditional” materiols meet the need for multi-directional commurications. All ~an
be adopted to be culturolly, ethnicolly, ond educotionolly-sensitive, and be developed in
different longuages.

b Typesof Potential Messages

In generol, the messoges :hat are currently being disseminoted, ond which

potentiolly could be disseminoted, olso show greot voriotion, showing significont
differences in tone, focus, level-of-detoil, "explicitness”, and use of "score toctics” or

coerciveness. Some generol types of messoges include:

o Generol informationol/educotionol messages

o Non-morolistic /non-judgementol messages

o Messoges which emphosize that AlDS is deadly, painful, non-curoble
o Messoges which emphasize risk-avoidonce: "Don't Shoot Drugs®

) Messoges which emphasize intermediote behavior change: "Sterilize Your
Works"

o Information oimed ot over-coming folse beliefs or misinformation

[} Messoges which emphosize the epidimiology of spread to orher populotions

o Messages specific to IV drug use and AIDS

o Messages specific to sexuol behaviors ond AIDS

o Messoges which are o "mix" of informotion about IV drug abuse and sexuol

tronsmission

Other messages are clearly directed specificolly to women, particular minorities,

families ond significont others of those in the target groups, or particuler geogrophic
regions. In foct, most messages contoin o variety of message:, and may be dire ted to

more thon one target group.

O
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<) Types of Potentiol Communications Channels

It is often difficult to clearly separate the moterial, ges, ond rication
channel as distinct entities. Certain communication channels lend themselves to
p.orﬁcuht messages and moterials. !t would be, as a simplistic examp'e, difficult if not
impossible to distribute video messoges in a street setting. Communication chonnels are
both notional and local in scope. To develop ond execute a brood compaign aimed ot
variety of ftorget groups (both specific ond broodly defined), a wide spectrum of
communication chonnels may be utilized. The scope of the chonnels could ronge from
nation-wide mass media o person-to-person contact, and ind lude:

o Television and rodio

] Newspapers, periodicals, and mogazines

o Specialized print medium (i.e., for ethnic groups or special interest groups)
° Public visual displays (e.g., billboards, bus posters, etc.)

o Telephone hotlines

] Public health organizational network (e.g., health clinics, V.D. clinics,
haspitals, drug and alcoho! obuse clinics, CMHC's, etc.)

o Community ond civic orgenizations (e.g., sports booster clubs and teams,
political-clubs, interest groups, business groups, eic.)

] Churches
] Schools
] Criminal justice system

[ Local merchondizing networks ond stores
[ Businesses ond corparations

] Ovutreoch into neighborhoods ond areas where hard-fo-reoch target groups
exist (e.g., IV drug users),

The media has been kcbeleC the most influential source of Information in this
country. Ad\ ntoges fo using media for health education Include Its immediate access to
0 mass media cudience that is comforiable with the medium ond may appreciate its
aneqaymity for some 17pes of health education. While its effectiveness may not match
ti'o  of more perscaal ed sation settings, the very size of the oudie~ce maokes media a
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highly effective approach is absolute numericol terms. However, there is no known
single medio channel powerful enough by itself to make on effective AIDS educotion
progrom. It has been shown that the most effective compaigns need o mix of medio
channels. In post communicotions, findings sunport the use of broadcost medio (radio and
television) for reoching people quickly with foirly simple ideas, and then use print medio
for providing complex inforimotion or informotion people may wont 1o rereod ot the time
it is actually needed. Interpersor.ol communication channels, group meetings, and
community orgonizations are best fcr reinforcing ond developing credibility for the
information, but o combination of broaduuz?, nrint ond interpersonol components are
needed to make o truly effective progrom. Lorge number of people need 1o be reached
quickly, they need a remiricer obout what they have been told, and they must believe in
the integrity and worth of the progrems if they ore to follow the recommendotions ond
informotion received.

The challenge in developing on effective communicotion methodology is to
orchestrote the various inputs to moximize their totol impoct and to minimize costs.
Not all channels con be used oll the time becouse ~osts would be exorbinant. Elements
must be selected from each of the medio groups or. .ntegroted in o manner thot results
in ochieving a totol itpoct that is greater than the sum of the individual efforts.

In mokirg o rotional combination of chaices, the following questions can be roised:
How muny people will be expased to the message {medio coveroge or reodership); to what
extent wil. porticulor target oudiences be reached; to v:hat extent will the prestige ond
credibility of the medio channel contibute 1o the effect of the messoge (medio
authority); ond whot ore the economic consequences of the use 0. certoin medio {cos’
effectiveness considerotions).

To further support recommendotions for an effective communicotions methodology,
doto collected directly from IV drug users in various cities oround the country have been
onolyzed to guide the mix of informotion chonnels oand messoges to be employed.
Communicotions dota were collected from 287 IV drug obusers in treatment «attings in
seven U.S. cities: Miami, St. Louis, Houston, Boston, Detroit, Clevelond, and the District
of Columbio. Dato were collected os port of o pretest of AIDS informational moteriols
developed by the Nationol Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA). As the following tobles
{Tobles 2 ond 3) indicote, additional dota were collected from IV drug users, both in
treotmen® ond not in treotment in the District of Columbia. In this cose, dolo were

=21-

O

ERIC 255{

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




235

collected for the District's Commission on Public Health as part of a research study on
attitudes, knowedge, and behaviors among AIDS high risk groups in D.C. In this lotter
study, a total of 159 IV drug users who were in freatment ond 63 not in treatment were
surveyed.
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TABLE 2

Former/Cun ent IV Drug Abusers Beliefs
Regarding Action That Would Help Stop

The Spread of AIDS
Combined NIDA DC RESEARCH STUDY
Pretest Dato n Not In
Treat- Treatment Treatment
Actions ment) N=2687 N=159 N=63
% % %
. More treatment for 71 60 27
drug users
T 2. Educating people on 9l 77 90
how to prevent the
spreod of AIDS
3. Having the government 29 49 3
provide free needles
4. Teaching IV drug users 37 59 18
haw to clean their needles
(works, rig)
5. Hove the government 1] 18 5
stop trying to scare
IV drugusers
6. Teoching people to 69 76 54
have sofer sex
7. Legalizing drug use 8 12 3
8, Having the govemment A 59 8
help people to stop
taking drugs with needles
9. Other - 5 2
.23
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I. Television
2. Radio
3. Gay Newspaoer
4. Newspoper
5. Magazines
6. Churches
7. Schools
8. AIDS Hotline

9. Community Groups

>~ _10. Friends

I1. Relatives

12. Health care worker/
professiona!

13. Other

14. Have not obtained
AIDS health information

O
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TABLE 3
Formes /Current IV Drug Abuser
Sources of Health Information

Cormoii ed NIDA DC RESEARCH STUDY

z:le ':’::'agm ¢ ?m’m’ il

mmg N=287 N- £9 &
84 89 89
€4 37 29
10 0 0
77 69 56
70 4i 13
24 2 0
37 4 0
3t i 0
38 3 0
48 28 14
42 20 il
58 12 3
5 0 0
I 0 0
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These findings, when viewed in the context of IV drug users generol knowledge, risk
behaviors, ond perceptions of their own susceptibility present a perplexing dilemna. iV
drug cbusers are knowlegeable about AIDS ond the general modes of transmission but c e
neither chonging their risk behaviors nor perceiving themselves ot risk. On the other
hond, as shown in Toble 2, of all the [V drug cbusers surveyed, the majority (on averoge
of 86%) felt thot education would be effective in preventing the spread of AIDS and thot
teaching people to have safer sex wos of porticular importance (on average of 66%).
Teoching IV drug users how to clean their needies appears o be of secondary importance
across oll IV abuser populations surveyed, (at on average of 38%). These finding present
serious implications for the content of the education messages.

Upon review of health information sources, (Table 3), we find thot television is the
most common source (with on averoge of 87%) across all surveyed. Newspapers are
second ocross oll groups showirg on average reodership of 67%. Health informotion
through rodio is third most common, showing on average of 43%, (with the greater
populotion being in-treatment, 64% and 37% vs. 29% not in treatment). Outside of D.C,,
it appeors thot interpersonal communicotion through churches, schools, and community
groups, friends, relatives and heolth core workers plays o role in health education for
ubout 40% of those surveyed.

An averoge of 11% of those in-treatment in D.C. reportedly receive neolth
information on on interpersonal bosis while 5% of ihose not in-treotment report these
sources. The lorge discreponcy in interpersonal communication os o source of heolth
informotion between the pretest and D.C. dota is possibly due to the fact that at the
time of the D.C. survey, street outreach fo drug abusers had only just begun. In many of
the orefest cities, howeve-, “freet out-each octivities as well as relotively sophisticated
AIDS education refer;c: «wz.wor' < weir operating during the time the survey was
odiministered.

a Recommended Materials. Messages, and Communications Channels

Suggested heines ond fones for raessages hove been developed bosed on the
consideration of » fallowing:

I How do drug cbusers fe:! about AIDS? H..s imoortant or serious do they
perceive it fo be? Ar¢ they ofroid to do anything about AIDS? Do they
believe that preventive ineasures are effective?
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2. Do the ftorget group members know their own degree of risk or
susceptibility? Does the target gr. 1 know what octions should be foken? If
so0, would toking action conflict with their personal priorities or self imoge?
Whoat are the major borriers to toking action against AIDS?

3. What do people believe 1o be the consequence of not acting? What do they
believe 1o be the benefits of toking action? Is Is for their future well.
being? For the well-being of their loved ones?

4. Whot ore the chorocteristics of each groups' present needle shoring ond
sexuvol behaviors, knowledge, and ottitudes respectively? Which behoviors
contribute to the spread of AIDS? Which ore most omenable fo chonge?

Some of the answers 1o these questions hove been discussed in the context of this
report. In generol it appecrs thot |V drug abusers do not ocknow ledge personal risk.
Furthermore, they do not fully understond the compound risk in needle sharing combir .d
with unprotected sexuol p.actices. It olso has be sgested thot drug users frequently
underestimote the threot of AIDS ond that they are o group who is least fikely to chonge
their behovior becouse of it.

Becouse IV drug cbusers have basic knowledge of the modes of tronsmission,
however, one is leod to believe that deniol ploys o large port in their not perceiving
themselves ot risk. This deniol may stem from o more immediote threot than A!DS-the
loss of friends ond possibly fomily. "Drug buddies" ond their fomilies ore, in generol,
their only support systems. To openly acknowledge that one is ot risk threatens those
people with whom they hove shored needles, ond oll those wha hod unprotected sex with
him/her. 1t olso means breoking long estoblished behovior patterns. Futhermore, to
openly acknowledge o loveu one it at risk reflects suspicion, ond fo refuse to hove
unprotected sex andfor share needles moy result in olienation. These lotter problems,
reflec ted in doto collected by Iv drug obusers, moy very well reflect those of the generol
public.

Messages directed foword the IV drug abuser need to breok through the deniol
borriers by crecting o less threotening imoge of safe sex ond reduced needle sharing.
Condoms have olreody token on o new imoge for mony, one of being smart, protecting
one's self ond sexual independence. For the Cay populotion, safer sex proctices hove
become o new and respected way of life for many in thot sofer sex demonstrotes sexuo!
responsibility.
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Although [V deus abusers ore troditionally o difficult group in which t- effect
behavior chonge, they, fike the general public, are influenced by the medla ond social
norms. Therefore, messuper must work fa change their attitudes taword unprotected sex
ond needie shoring; this Is a first step in creating new norms ond behavior change.

Fallawing is o synoptic overview af the recommended moaterials, messoges and
communications chonnels necessary for on effective NIDA compaign to combat further
HIV infection internol ta and external fram the IV drug abusing population. It should be
stressed that, in all coses, the materiols ond messoges ta be disseminated through the
communications chonnels have the fallowing charocteristics:

Be culturally ond ethnically sensitive.
Be updated continually to reflect current information.

Be toviewed by local area panels and committees ta assure that they are
sensitive .0 unique community choracteristics, needs, and "standards".

Be reinforced through constant use af different media and alternative forms,
{evel aof detail, etc.
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RECOMMENDED
MATERIAL ¢1

TELEVISION "SPOTS"/PSA'S
Primory Audience: oll current iV drug obusers
Secondary Audiences: sexuol portners of current or ex-lV drug obusers; fomily, friends,

ond significon? others of current or ex-IV drug obusers; sexually octive hetsrosexuois.

Recommended Recommended Chonnels
Messoges of Distribution

1) Specific, direct, correct Network felevision,
2)  Stop using dr gs locol television
3)  "Cotchy* slogans/phroses Timing: during music,
4)  Emphosize pain, suffering, sporis events, and/or
isolotion ossocioted with evening/lote evening
AlDS hours
People con be "asymptomotic®
carriers of HiV
Direct viewers to reolistic
places/resources for drug
freatment ond/or further informotion

Discussion:  Television stotions will not oir ol types of AIDS messoges, due to
“oppropriofeness” and “community stondords”. Potentiol roles of felevision include
generol educotion and increosing AIDS oworeness, ond directing viewers 10 sources of
drug treotment, medicol core, and further informotion.
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RECOMMENDED
MATERIAL £2

RADIO "SPOTS"/PSA'S
Prin.ory Audience: oll current IV drug abusers.

Secondary Audiences: sexual portners of current or ex-1V drug vousers; fomily, friends,
and significant others of current or ex-IV drug obusers; sexually octive heterosexuals

Recommended Rec ded Chaonnels

Messoges of Distribution

1)  Specific, direct, correct 1) Locol radio stotions
2) Stop using drugs 2)  Types: Urbon
3) “Cotchy" slogans/phroses contemporary,
4) Emphosize poin, suffering, Block contemporory
isolotion cssocioted with Album oriented rock
5)  People con be "osymptomotic”
corriers of HIV
6) Direct listeners to realistic
places/resources for drug
treatment ond/or further
informotion

Discussion: Rodio stations will not oir oll types of AIDS messages, tor reosons similer 1
those opplied to ftelevision. They con be used for generol pwlic information ord
educotion, ond some specific IV drug abuse 0:d sexual tehovior messoges. A strong
benefit to rodio will be directing viewers to sources of drug freatmeni, medical core, and
further information.
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RECOMMENDED
MATERIAL #3

»
NEWSPAPER ARTICLES/ADVEK FISEMENTS/PUBLIC SERVICE SPACE
Primary Audiences: "vetran abusers", "non/user users", "recreational ysers™.

Secondary Audiences: sexual partners of current or ex-1V drug cbusers; family, friends,
and significant others of current or ex-IV drug abusers; sexually octive hetersexuvals.

Recammended Recammended Channels

Messages of Distribution

1) Specific, direct, carrect 1) Local newspopers,

2)  Stop using drugs/Don't use drugs community newspapers

3)  "Cotchy" slogons/phrases 2)  Placement: community

4)  Emphasize pain, suffering, news, sports, enter-
isalation associated with tainment sections
AIDS

5)  People can be "asymptamatic®
carriers of HIV

6)  Direct reoders to realistic
places/resources for drug
treatment ond/ar further
nformation

Discussion: Newspapers can pravide very timely information about AIDS, ond qo into
further ond target group-specific detoil thon some other distribution chaonnrls. Local
newspapers (including "dailies” and weekly cammunity papers) have distinct advantages
over some other channels of communication: they can ke read and reread in privacy, they
reach most homes, and they can be "passed on" or r=main in one Jocation for use by more
than one person.
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RECOMMENDED
MATERIAL #4

AIDS PAMPHLETS

Primary Audiences: "veteran users®, active odult abusers”, "dual diognosis abusers™

Secondary Audiences: “non user/users”, sexual portners of current or ex-IV drug obusers;

fomily, friands, ond significant others of current or ex-IV drug cbuse-s; sexually octive
heterosexuals.

Recommended

Messages

1)  Informotionol/educotional

2)  Stop using drugs

3) Sex ond drug use behaviors

4) Specific, direct, correct

5) Emphasize poin, suffering,
and social isolation often
ossociated with AIDS

6) Direct reoders to reolistic

plo -</resourzes for drug
treasment andsor further
information

Recommended Chonnels

2)
k)
4)

5)

of Distribution

Medicol/sociol service
progroms ond focilities
Drug treatment
Churches

Civic groups, community
centers

Jails/criminal justice
system

Discussion: Pomphlets can toke mony formr ., be toilored to be culturolly and ethnicolly
sensitive, ond be prepared in different ionguoges. It is recommended that o "photobook™
or "comic book" style be compiled for use by those with reduced reoding abilities.
Pomphlets cen be grophic ond provide (if worronted) specific detoil on high-risk drug
obuse ond sexua. behaviors, HIV anti-body testing, etc., and be toilored to community
orgonizotions through the use of specific ond unique logos, telephone numbers, etc.
Pomphlets olso lend themselves to discussion, ond distribution to more thon one reader.

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

~3l-

248




245

RECOMMENDED
MATERIAL #5

TRAINING MATERIALS FOR ONE-TO-ONE COUNSELING AND EDUCATION
Primory Audiences: "veteran obusers", "active, odult obusers", "dual diognosis obusers"

Secondory Audiences: "hon-users/users®, sexual partners of current or ex-IV drug obusers

Recommended Recommended Chonneis
Messoges of Distribution
1) Coercive 1) Streets
2)  Stop using drugs 2)  Heglth foirs
3)  Getinto treotment 3)  Medicoi/sociol
4)  Specific, direct, correct services progroms
5)  Emphasize transmission 4)  Drug treatment
to loved ones
6)  Cover sex ond drug use
behaviors

7)  People con be "asymptomotic™
corriers of HIV

Discussion: Troining marerials for one-to-one counseling ond educotion are essentiol for
the conduct of street outreoch ond personolized informotion disseminotion in numerous
settings. They he!> the counselor/educotion provide informotion ond advice which the
person receiving the information con use in o procticol ond personol way. For mony
persons in these farge? groups, the "personal touch™ is perceived to be highly effective,
especiolly when provided by ex-oddicts, ex-prostitutes, ond/or respected community
members of similar bockground.
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RECOMMENDED
MATERIAL #6

POSTERS/BILLBOARDS

Recommended
Messoges

"Catchy" slogon/phrases
Stop using drugs
Get into freatment

4)  Specific, direct, correct

5) Emphasize t-ansmission
to loved ones

6)  Direct readers to realistic
places/resources for drug
treatment ond/or further
information

Discussion:

dissemination.

Secondary Audiences: all other target groups

Primary Audiences: "octive, odult abusers", "dual diognosis abusers”

Recommended Channels
of Distribution

n
2)
3)
4)

Public transportatioa
"Fast food", supermarkets
Streets
Prisons/jails/criminal
Justice system

Posters ond billboards are on established form of information
They work best when "catchy®, highly visual, and quick to reod and

vnderstand. A traditional use for posters and billboards is to engage the reoder's interest
enough so tho* they will find out more obout the subject of the materials. Posters and
billboards can also be used effectively to channel people to community resources for
further information,
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SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED MESSAGES AND MATERIALS
8Y TYPE OF IV DRUG ABUSER

"Veteraon Abuser”
MESSAGE:
MATERIALS

INTERMEDIARIC:

"Active, Adult Abuser"
MESSAGE:
MATERIALS:

INTERMEDIARIES:

"Non User/User”
MESSAGE:
MATERIALS:
INTERMEDIARIES:
"Recreatioal User*
MESSAGE:
MATERIALS:
INTERMEDIARIES:

"Duol Diagnosis"
MESSAGE:

MATERIALS:

INTERMEDIARIES:

Risk Reductica - Clean needles/don’t shore/seek treatment
Short pamphlets, training materials for one-to-cne
counseling, community newspapers/newsletters, television,
radio

Civic groups, drug treatmeat, criminal justice system,
street wutreoch

Risk Reduction - Clean needles/don't share/seek treatment

Short pamphlets, training materials for one-fo-one
counseling, posters/billboards, rodia, television

Drug abuse programs, medical/social service programs,
criminal justice system, street outreach

Risk avoidance - No further abuse/no experimentation
Rodio, television, magazin=~s

Community/civic groups, dr.g abuse prever. n pragrams

Risk Avaidance - No further abuse/no experimentation
Televisian, rodio, magazines/newspapers

Community/civic groups, drug obuse prevention pragrams,
professiano! arganizations/societies

Risk Reduction . Clean needles, don't share, seek
freatment

Radio, television, print, training materials for one-to-one
caunseling, short pamphlets

Medical/social/mental health system, street outreach,
neighborhood/civic/"block" associations

-34-

<51

—-




O

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

ERIC

48

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED MATERIAL, MESSAGES,
AND CHANNELS OF COMMUNICATION

MATERIALS
° Television “spots"/PSA's
° Radio "spots"/PSA's
[ Newspoper articles/advertisements/public service space

[ Pamphlets
o Training materials for one-to-one counseling and education
° Posters/billboards

MESSAGES

[ Risk Avoidance - no wrther drug cbuse/ no experimentation
o Risk Reduction - cleon needles/don't shore/seek treatment
o Combine high-risk drug abuse and sexua! behavior messages
[ Specific, direct, correct

CHANNELS OF COMMUNICATION

° Television, rodio

o Newspapers

[ One-to-one counseling and education

o Public areas - public transporation, streets, community centers

[ Drug abuse prevention programs, drug cbuse freatment ond rehabilitation
programs and settings.

~35-

252



249

IV. NIDA Role in Health Communications Plan an AIDS ad IV Drug Abuse

NIDA is inon excellent position ta act as o catalyst ta promote a national campaign
with local focuses. From an averall perspective, NIDA's rale in this campaign should be
both substontive ond supportive. This dual rale i3 necessary becouse there ore certain
fuctions which con be best perfarmed by NIDA, with athers requiring the active
participation af individuals and organizations in focal areos. Specifically, NIDA has the
expertise in plonning communication compaigns, conducting backgraund and suppartive
research, developing materials ond providing technical assistonce, among ather important
functions necessary far a successful campaign. However, it is nat recammended thot
NIDA be responsible for octually conducting the campaign, as the local, cammunity focus
requires the octive participation of local elements as o legitimizing ond strongly
suppartive foc tar.

Some specific recommended rales for NIDA with respect ta on AIDS education
campaign as described include:

a Background Research/Needs Assessment in  Collaboration With Local
Resources

NIDA has already perormed a good dea} of bockgraund research for this cumpaign
thraugh pretesting moterials with focus groups, cantocting lacal arganizatians ond
individuals, and by halding workshops with local representatives ond members aof the
medio. However, marc active and suppartive effart is necessary.

In relation ta IV drug users ond those associated with them, a range of information
hos been collecteda. For this target group, several mare focus graups should be conducted
ta refine information upon which messages will be developed. Far ather target graups
who are ot risk of tronsmission due 10 hetersexuval contact, a breodth of infarmation
describing beliefs, attitudes and knawledge is needed. Some of this con be taken fram
dota alrecdy callected of vorious sites ocrass the country. However, mare in-depth
informotion is needed fram the range of oge ond ethnic graups invalved, A series of
focus graups needs ta be conducted ta obtain this infarmation. Persons wha are best able
fo conduct these focus graup would be sex educatars who have dealt with the range of
graups under consideration. It is suggested that NIDA obiain the expertise of these
individuals, ta ¢~ " ect the information which will be a £minal part of various messages.

-36-
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b)  Messages and Materials Development

NIDA has significont experience In this orea. It should develop the messages, the
formats for the materlals, and in some cases produce the materials. The types of
récommend messoges ond materials were discussed earlier; however, all materials or
messages should be developed in partnership with expertise available ot the local ie/~l,
Alternative materials should also be developed as models or "templates” for local ares
use, so that they may tailor the materials and r ges for local area use, This could be
done simply with unique ‘ogos, specific information on "vere to get help or more
information™ avoilable at the local level, etc., or through more detailed modification of
the materials and/or messoges.

c)  Pretesting Materials and Messages

The pretesting of materials should be iritially conducted by NIDA, given its
expertise ond experience in this process., Technical assistance and trairing should be
made available at the local level, so that communities con assume ‘ome of this
responsibility in the future.

d Provision of Materials Clearinghouse

NIDA is the logical chaice for the collection, storage, and dissemination of
moterials. NIDA should assume the role of "gate-keeper™ of information about AIDS and
IV drug cbuse, and not only distribute moaterials tv locai areas, but collect local arec
materials as we This important resource wouid significantly assist areas which are
beginning to expe ~ problems with AIDS, and wha would not be able to develop or
research the use of urner moterials withou? a significant time delay. The clearinghouse
could provi a quick response of high qual:ty materials o meet local area needs.

c) Developing Communications Chonnels

The development of communication chaanels is an octivity that should be
performed by local organizations. Some arc  {e.3., S0 “rancisco) have shown that they
are very effective in doing this. However, many of the cities which are the focus of «ne
NIDA campaign are not progressing as ropidly ¢s they should. Where this is thc case
NIDA must provide supportive assistance,

<37-
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The development of local communication channels is o matter of interacting with
the media ond developing collaborative efforts involving local public ond private
organizations. As has been seen, some cities have not been oble to mobilize relative to
thxs heolth problem. The tachnical assistance that is required should be in the form of
ircumng those involved to do organizational, community, ond resource development.
Individuals wha provide this technical assistance should have experience in these
development processes as they relate to AIDS.

f)  Funding

To be successful the health communications campaign will require significant
funding. As important, if it is successful, there will be an increased demand for more
health education, HIV testing, and drug treatment/rehabilitation. With respect to drug
education and treatment, this financial responsibility will fall, in part, within the realm
of NIDA responsibility. NIDA con also assist local communities by identifying
alternative funding sources for the education and treatment initiatives, and potentially
provide technical assistance to local areas in seeking out and successfuily obtaining this
alternative source funding.

9 Maintain Local Support

NIDA should rely on local oreas 1o assist them with education on the local level.
NIDA shonid develop a newsletter aimed at Jocal supporting persons and organizations, 1o
keep them up to date on new information initiatives, research, etc. Regional or national
workshops and conferences involving loral area orqonizations and coalitions to share
information, expertise, and materials should be strongly considered as well. This will
help maintain the network developed, and allow local areas 1o feel that they are on
integral part 1o the important struggle to educate the public ubout AIDS and IV drug
abuse.

H  Mcaitoring, Feedback, and Control
Ti ¢ monitoring and control of the campaign in the cities is @ cammunication
research activity thot shouid be carried by local organizations. Past experience in some

of these cities hos shown that either expertise is not available in responsible
arganizations, or that it cannot be identified. This, therefore, is an area where NIDA can

~38-
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provide technicol ossistance. Assistonce shauld be in the form of troining responsible
orgonizotions how ¢> acquire cominunicotion Cuto in this setting, ond onalyzing it so os fo

enhance the effectiveness of messoge diffusion.

O -
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PREFACE

The most important public health problem facing us today is acquired immunodeficiency
syndrome—AIDS.

Nearty 32.000 Americans have developed AIDS, and mors than half of them have died. As
many as 1.5 million more Americans may aiready have been infected by the AIDS virus.
Even if they currently show no symptams, they can transmit the virus to others. The Public
Heslith Service estimates that by the end of 1991, total AIDS cases in the United States will
have risen to more than 270,000 and more than 179.000 people with AIDS wik have died.

The devastating efiects of AIDS also are being felt far beyond the boundaries of our own
country. indeed, AIDS alruady has been repo. ted from at least 90 countries throughout the
world, World Health Organization officisls estivnats that between 5 miltion and 10 million
people woridwide may have been infected by the AIDS virus. By 1990, according to WHO
estimates, conceivably as many as 100 million people worldwide may be infected by the
virus, and a number of these may have deveioped AIDS itsalf.

Clearly, AIDS represents a national and intemational emergency. For this reason, AIDS is a
top priority on my personal sgenda and on the agenda of this Administration.

This Department is conducting and supporting intensive researr h to develop effective trest-
ments for AIDS patients and » sate and effective vaccine that will prevent initial infection
with the virus. But no cure for the disease cumently axists, and if a successful vaccine can
be developed, it will not be generally available for some years to come. Our best hope
today for controlling the AIDS epidemic lies in educating the public about the senousness
of the threat, the ways the AIDS virus is transmitted, and the practicat steps each person
can take to avoid acquiring or spreading it

A massive, effective c- .paign to educar 3 public is in order The plan presented here is
8 blueprint for accomplish: 3 it.

This AIDS information/Education Plan is consistent with the following principles proposed
by the Domestic Policy Council and approved by the President:

© Despite intentive research efforts, preveniion is the only effective AIDS control strato-
@y at present. Thus, there should be an sggressive Federal effort in AIDS education.

@ The scops and content of the school portion of this AIDS education effort should be
locally .Jetermined, and should be consistent with parental values.

©® The Federa! role should focus on developing and conveying accurate health informa-
tion on AIDS to the educators and others. not mandating a specific school curniculum
on this subject. and trusting the Amencan people 10 use this information in a manner
appropriste to their comm--uty’s needs

® Any heal*h information devel.oed by the Federsl Govemment that will be used for

education should encourage res, onsible sexusl behavior—~based on fidelity, commit.
ment, and maturity, placing sexuali.v within the context of mamage.

Q
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® Any heslth information provided by the Federal Government that might be used in
schools should teach that children should not engage in sex, and should be used with
the consent and involvement of parents.

The Uspartment of Health and Human Services will apply these principles to the fuliest
extent, working with all other sectors of our society and cooperating w'.\ international ef-
forts to dafest this temible disease. Together, we wiil press forward on sl fronts—research,
information, education, and services to those afflicted—~and togethur we will win the battie

sgainst AIDS,
go~
C2TV29 Boerer. M,
Otis R. Bowen, M.D,
Secretary
i
O
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FOREWORD

The Public Health Service’s mission, broadly stated, is to protect and improve the health of
the Ameiican people. PHS is “~~ component of the Department of Health and Numan Ser-
vices with fes {responsibility fc research and education on AIDS.

Since AIDS cases ware first identified in 1981, informing and educating the public about
AIDS has been s primary part of our work. These efforts to inform and educate must be
greatly intensified, and their effests must be multiplied through the collaboration of many
other agencies and organizations in the public and private sectors.

This document presents @ comprehensive PHS plan for informing and educating the Ameri-
can people about AIDS. The pian specifies the audiences to be addressed by this effort, the
basic slsments of AIDS information snd education, and the means by which this education
will be accomplished {among them, mass media campaigns, health education programs,
demonstration programs, # clesringhouse of AIDS information, criticz! partnerships with
other agencies and organizations, and development of special infurmation for use by
educators).

The cooperation of State, county. and municipal governments, professional and service or-
genizstions, the private sector. and other Federal agencies will be crucial 1o ultimate suc-
cess of the Public Hezith Service’s plan. For these varied agencies and organizations, this
document provides an overview of the v ays in which their efforts contribute to the urgent
task of educating Americans sbout AIDS.

The plan draws upon the knowledge and experienca the Public Health Service has gained
since AIDS was first recagnized, 3nd it incorporates the contributions of many experts in
the PHS agencies: the Alcohol. Drug Abuse. and Mental Health Administration, the Centers
for Disease Controf, the Food and Drug Administration, Health Resources and Services Ad-
ministration, the National Institutes of Health, and the Office of the Surgeon General. It rep-
resents s tremendous amount of work by staff, laboring under many pressures.

1 am grateful for the contributions of those who have worked or: this plan, and | am proud

to be associated with ail the dadicated persons in the Public Health Service who have com-
mitted s0 much personal effort to the battie to prevent and control AIDS

%W«-d«\_

Robert €. Windom, M.D.
Assistant Secretary for Heaith

i

e
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As of March 2, .387, desths in the United States due to acquired immunodeficiency syn-
drome (AIDS), total simost 18,385. in 1985, AIDS became the 11th leading cause of years
of potential life lost, snd in 1986 it is expected to be eighth. Yhe report of the Public Health
Service (PHS) Coolfont Conference in June 1986 projected that by the end of 1991 the
cumulative totsl of AIDS cases would exceed 270,000, with more than 179,000 deaths.
AIDS will remain a serious problem for the nation for some time to come.

At this time, the best hopes .or prevention rest on a strategy based on public information
and education. Kr- aledge about AIDS has slready proved to be effective in changing beha-
vior smong homosexusl men.

The 22 Public Health Service (PHS) Guidelines on the prevention of AIDS issued between
1982 and 1986 have provided a foundation for informational and educational efforts to
pravent this disesse (see Appendices A & 8). The Public Health Service Pian for the Preven-
tion and Control of AIDS {1985). the Report of the PHS Coolfont Conference (1986), and
the Surgeon General's Repv.  on AIDS (1986) ait focus on developing information, educa-
tion, and risk reduction programs.

Successful implementation of L..is plan requires action from and cooperation among State,
county, and municipal govemments, professionsl and services organizations, the private
sector, and the Federsi Government. It is expected that funds aporopriated by Congress in
any givon yesr for information snd education will be multiplied manyfold by the etforts and
resources of others.

The information/education effort consists of four major companents:

1. The Public
Everyone must be aware of behavior that puts them at risk of infaction. -

2. Schoot and College Aged Populations

Sci-ools and colleges provide an effective channel for appropriately instructing the
young peopie of our nstion about AIDS before, and as, they reach the ages tuat they
might engage in behsviors that place them at risk of infection. The Public Health Service
will provide national, State, and local educators with up-to-date, factual AIDS informa-
tion. State and local school boards, slorg with families, community, and parent groups
have the primary responsibility for educating the young.

3. Persons at ncreaced Risk or infected

The highest priority for AIDS infor .. and education efforts are those groups at in-
creaseo risk of acquiring or transmi‘ting the AIDS virus because of certair wehaviors or
circumstances: gay and bisexual men, IV drug abusers, hemophiliacs, female sex part-
ners of those at risk and who may become pregnant and infect their offspring, and pros-
titutes and their cliants. Persons known to be infected must receive information 1o pre-
vent the:r transmission of the virus {0 others,

4. Health Workers
Members of this group have direct responsibility for patient care, for counseling AIDS ps-
tients or persons with laboratory evidence of infection, and for providing leadership in in-
forming and educating tiie public. By virtue of their occupations, there is some risk, albeit
small, of infection.
Iv
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Following are examples of some of the major projects include in the PHS plan:

The Public.

® Produce a mass media campaign under contract with a lezding advertising agency (TV
and radio spots, print materials).

® Form a coalition of public and private sector groups to exchange and coo-dinate AIDS in-
formation efforts.

® Set up a clearinghouse on AIDS information to serve State and local AIDS program per-
sonnel snd the public.

® Support toll-free hotfine on AIDS {since 1983).

School and Coliege Aged Populations.

® Convene national school health coalition on AIDS and work with national organizations.
® Stimulate the development of programs for Black and Hispanic youth.

©® Help State education &epmmcnts and colleges of education provide AIDS education.

® Work with State and local zreas with highest incidence of AIDS to assist in providing
educational programs in schools :

® Develop compendium of materials, programs and resources; instruments to measure
quality and outcomes of this education.

® Help provide AIDS education to college students, assist especially in areas where AIDS
incidenze is high, work with other groups te reach youth not in school.

Persons at Increased Risk or infected.
©® Demonstrate effective ways of educating those at increased risk.

® Help State< build their own capacity for conducting programs {counseling, health educa-
tion, minority programs, hotlines, coordination).

® Expand drug abuse treaiment services, counseling, and antibody testing and develop
new stratagies for preventing and treating drug abuse.

& Add educational programs to regional hemophilia centers.

® Provide information on behaviors that reduce perinatal transmission of the AIDS virus.
@ Demonstrato effective programs tu reduce perinatal trancmission.

Health Workers.

@ Survey physician counseling practices and develop appropriste materials.
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® Train physicisns snd other heaith workers through training center programs and ou.-
reach programs.

® Provide informatw.a and materisls to professional organizations.
® Provide iraining in up-to-date laboratory techniques.

® Educate heslth professionsis to sssess women and counse! them, including minority
women.

in .June 1988, the Public Heslth Service convened some 85 experts on AIDS to update PHS
plans fo, the prevention and control of the disease in light of new knowledge and of
demographic projections through 1991. A major section of the final rapost from this Cool-
font Planning Conference deait with nesded AIDS information and education initiatives,
The information/education plan summasrized here responds fully to these
recommencations.
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I. OVERVIEW

INFORMATION/EDUCATYION PLAN TO
PREVENT AND CONTRC . AIDS IN
THE UNITED STATES

I. OVERVIEW

Q
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A.INTRODUCTION

Deaths due to acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (A1DS) became the 11th leading
csuse of yesrs of potential life lost in 1935 in 1986, AIDS was one of the first 10
causes. The report of the Public Health Service (PHS) Coolfont Conference in June
1936 projected that by the end of 1991 the cumulative total of AIDS cases would
exceed 270,000, with more than 179,000 deaths. Most of these projected future
AIDS cases will bse among persons who in 1986 are siready infected. Current esti-
mates of infected persons in the United States range from 1 millicn to 1.5 million.
AIDS will re ~ain a serious problem for the nation for some tit::3 to ~ome.

The current data indicate that 97% of AIDS patients in the United States can be placed
in groups related to possible means of disease acquisition: men with homosexual or
bisexual orientation who have histories of using intravenous (iV} drugs (8% of cases);
homosexual or bisexual men who are not known [V drug users (65%). heterosexuat IV
drug users {+ 7%); persons with hemophilia (1%); heterosexual sex partners of persons
with AIDS or at risk for AIDS (4%); and recipients of t-ansfused blood or blood compo-
nents (2%). Insutficient information is available to classify the remaining 3% by the
above recognized risk factors for AIDS.

In Africa over 90% of cases have occurred through heterosexual transmission, equally
divided among men and women.

The Worid Heaith Organization estimates that 50 to 100 million persons worldwide
may be infected with the AIDS virus by i991. Based on current information, 20-30%
will progress to AIDS within 5 years of initial infection. This percentage is likely to in-
crease bsyond 5 years. Thus. AIDS represents a health disaster of pandemic
proportions.

The best hopes at this time for prevention rest on a strategy based on information and
evducation. Knowledge about AIDS has already proved to be effective in changing
behavior among gay men. The effectiveness of inform-~tion/aducation programs, how-
ever, remains to be demonstrated in populations wi.ose members have not been as
personally touched by AIDS and who do not perceive themselves to be at risk. The
ract that the AIDS virus can be sprezd by sexusl contact with p~sons who may other-
wise sppear heaithy adds to the complexity of the task.

Key to changing attitudes and behaviors is the provision of factual, consistent, and un-
ders’ - vdable information about AIDS by persons and organizations in whom the reci-
pient has confidence. Thus, multiple chaqnels must be used, including the Faderal,
State, andi local governments, medical professionals, teachers, parents, religious lead-
ers, voluntary organiz ations, employee organizations, State and local departments of
heaith and educatios, busines .es. commercial organizations, and public figures heid in
high estesm.
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information/education <fforts will be designed for the general public and for specific
groups based on the risks of AILYS, the messages to be provided. 2nd the chann "~ for
delivering those messages. The use of muiltiple channels will reintorce Jsasic
messages and increare the opportunities to inform and educate the U.S. p... sistion
sbout AlUS.

PLANNIG

In order to meet its responsibwty in controlling the spread of AIDS, the Public Health
Service creatad the Executive Task Force on AIDS in 1984. The Task Force. chaired
by the Assistant Secretary for Hes' h, serves as the mechanism by «hich AIDS related
iss2s are identified and addresse. in a coorZinated fashicn by the PHS constituent
agencies: aicohoi, Drug Abuse and Mental Haalth Administration (ADAMHA), Centers
for Disease Control {CDC), Food and Drug Administration (FDA), Health Resou:ces
snd Services Administration (HRSA), and the National Institutes of Health (NIH]).
Within the Task Force, CDC has been designated as the lead agency in the area of
AIDS informstion, education, and risk reduction.

The 22 Public Health Service (PHS) Guidelines on the prevention of AIDS issued be-
tween 1982 and 1986 have provided & foundation for informational and educational
efforts to pravent this disease (see Appendices A & 8. The Public Health Service Plan
for the Prevention and Control of AIDS (1985). the Report of the PHS Cuolfont Con-
ference (1985) and the Surgeon Gen=ral's Report on AIDS (1986) ail focus on devel-
oping information, education, and risk reduction programs.

From 1983 through 1986, the Public Health Service spent $40 million in direct ex-
penditures to inform and educate the public and groups at high risk of acquiring infec-
tion. In 1987, PHS will spend $79.5 million for AIDS education; the President’s FY
1988 budgat requesis $103.9 miticn for this activity. States, local governments,
voluntary organizations, and community service organizations have also contributed
significantly in information/education efforts.

This plan draws on the knowledge and exgerience gamned since the recognition of the
AIDS epidemic in 1981. Each of the PHS member agencies have contributed to the
pan. The plan will Le reassessed and revised on an annual basis. The revised plan for
1988/89 will be available in November 1987,

{MPLEMENTING

PHS has a responsibility to provide clear and accurate information about A°)S 1o alt
segments of cur society. This plan is designed to ensure that the necessary informa-
tion about AIDS will be transmitted in an efficient and efrective manner. Successful
implementation of this plan depat«ds upon action from and cooperatior among State,
county, and municipal govemments, professional and services organizations, the pri-
vate sector, and the Federal Govemment. It is expected that funds appropriated by
Conyress in any given year for information/education will be multiplied manyfold by
the efforts and resources of others. Those organizations dealing with specific iss.es
sre identified in the sectior . that fsiow.

The information/education plan addr-sses the following:

1. The Public
In oder to control transmission of the AIDS virus, everyone must be aware of beha-
vior that puts them at risk of infection. They must iearn how the virus 1s and is not

spresd.
3
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2. Schoot and College Aged Populations

Schools, colleges, and family institutions p: ovide an effective channel for appropri-
ately instructing the yu.'ng people of our nation about AIDS before, and as, they
reach the ages when they might practice behaviors that place them at nisk of
infection.

School and college aged populations who do a0t attend schools or colleges will be
informed/educated about AIDS through other agencies that cerve youth.

Persons at L:cr=ased Risk or Infected

The highest pric  for AIDS in srmation and education efforts are those groups at
increased risk of acquiring or tr.nsmitting the AIDS virus because of certain beha-
viors or circumstances: gay and bisexual men, IV d-1ig abusers, hemophiliacs,
female sex partners of those at risk (because of pot - .al pregnancy), and prosti-
tutes and their clients. Persons known to be infected must receive information to
prevent their transmission of the virus to others.

4, Hoaith Workers

Members of this group-have direct responsibility for patient care, for counseling
persons with laberatory evidence of infection or AIDS patients, and for providing
leadership in informing and educating the public. By virtue of their occupations,
there is some risk, albeit small, of infection.

D.EVALUATING

Evaluation is an integ:al part of the plauning and implementation process. Both quan-
titative and qualitative evaluation methods will be used to assess ‘actors such as:

® the effectiveness of the information and education materials and vanous taaching
«nethods for reaching the target populations

® the extant to which all appropriate organizztions and individuals are being made a
part of the prevention activities

@ changes in the benavior of the target groups tovsard reducing the risk of infection
and transmission

® change: in therate of virus transmission.

E. TIME TABLE
A beginning dateis indicated for each task.

Under this plan, each PHS agency will develor operational plans containing more
Cetailed descriptions of tasks and subtasks, mcluding responsible organizational
components, names of collaborating Jrganizations, beginning and ending dates, antic-
ipated outcomes, and methods of evaluation. These operational plans will be available
by April 1, 1987.
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The elements described below will need to be adapted to varying degrees of specificity
for different subgroups within the four major groups: the putlic, the school and coltege
aged, persons st increased risk or infected, and health workers.

Communities and their important institutions, such as churches, families, and voluntary
organizstions, will need to adapt the presentation of this information to fit within theis
valud systems. Within this framework, individual: will be able to determine responsible
behavior, thereby svoiding adverse hesith consequences 10 themselves and others.

The specific wording and style of presentation, once developed, should be pretested on
representative samples of the intended sudiences to ensure effectiveness. Expert advice,
consultstion, and crestive assistance can be provided by public and private hesith euca-
tion and communication experts.

A.INDIVIDUALS iN ALL GROUPT NEED TO KNOW;
1. Current information on the seriousn “ss of the disesse

2. How the Virus is Spread

® The AIDS virus has been shown to be spread from an infected person to an unin-
fected person by:

— sexusi contact (penis/vagina, penis/rectum, mouth/rectum, mouth/genital),
— sharing needles or “works"” used in injecting drugs,

— sninfected woman to her fetus or newly bom baby, and

— transfusion or injection of infectious blond or blood fractions.

® An individual can be infected with the virus that causes AIDS without having
symptoms of AIDS or appesring ill. Infected individusls without symptoms can
transmit the infection to others. Once infected, a person is presumed infected for
life, but actual symptoms may not develop for many ye~»rs.

® A single exposure to the AIDS virus may resultin infection.

3. Hew the Virus is NOT Known To Be Spread
® There is no evidence that the virus is spread through casusl social contact (shak-
ing hands, socisl kissing, coughing, sneezing, sharing swimming pools, bed
linens, eating utensils, office equipment, being next to or served by an infected
person). There is no reason to =void an infected person in ordinary socisl contact.

@ It is not spread by the process of giving blood; new transfusion equipment i3
used for each donor.

@ It is not spread by sexus! intercourse between individuals who have maintained a
sexuel relationship exclusively with each other assuming that they have not been
infected through contaminated blood, blood factors, IV drug abuse, or a previous
sexual partner.
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4. How to Prevent Infection in Yourself and Others

® Infection through sexus! contact can be avoided by practicing abstinence or
having a mutually monogamous marriage/relationznip with an uninfected person.

® If you suspect yuu or your sex partner is or msy be infected,

—the only certain way to protect yourself or your pattner is to abstain from
sexual intercourse with him or her. If it is not possible to practice abstinence
until infection status can be determined, aiways use condoms cu.ing sex be-
cause use of condoms can reduce the risk of transmission of ihe AIDS virus.

- avoid sexual activity that may damage the condom or body tissues. A condom
is offective only if it is used properly; it must remain intact and in place from
start to fiuisn of sexual activity to ensure that sem2n and blcod sre not avoida-
bly exchanged. Be aware that condoms somatimes fail. The failure rate may be
10% when used as @ contraceptive.

- seek counseling and AIDS virus antibody testing to be sure of v our own infac-
tion status. Be aware that waeks to months may elspse from the time of infec-
tion to the time that antibodies to the AIDS virus appear in the bicod. During
this time persons may be infactious but the test may be negative.

—sncourage you’ partner to obtain counseling and testing.

©® Be aware that muitiple se partners increase you: ' .sk of acquinrij the AIDS virus
unless you can be certain that each is uninfected. If you have more than one sex
partner or your partner has more than one partner, alwa&s use condoms because
use of condoms can reduce tha ris% of transmission of the AIDS virus.

— Avoid prostitutes; engaging in sexual activity with those who have mulitiple
sox partners increases the risk of contracting the AIDS virus.

® Do not use IV drugs; do not share needles or “works”.

5. How To Gut More Information About AIDS
® Call an AIDS Hotline numter {(local number(s) to be provided).

® Call your personal physician, health department, or an AiCS community service
organization.

6. information Which Will Emphasize the Seriousness of the Problem,
Yot Reduce nappropriste Fear

® AIDS is 8 ...uunsl emergency requiring sttention from all citizens.
® If people change their behaviors, the spread of AIDS virus can be reduced.

® Blo . for transfusion in the United States is screened for antibody to the AIDS
virus and is now essertially safe, but some risks cannot be eliminated.

® Everyone who engasges in high risk behavior is at risk for AIDS, regardless of age,
race, or socioeconomic status.

10
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8. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED BY THE SCHOOL AND CULLEGE AGED
POPULATIONS:

@ Saying no to sex and drugs can virtually eliminate the risk of AIDS.

® Instructions on how the virus is known to be transmitted and how transmission may
be prevented.

© Sexual transmission of the AIDS virus is not a threst to those unirfected individuals
who practice responsible sexus! behsvior. “.sed on fidelity. commitment and
maturity, placing human sexuslity within the context of marriage and family life.

C.ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NLED.D BY PERSONS AT INCREASED RISK OR
INFECTED:

©® Know where to get more information and help.

® Where t0 ssek counseling and voluntary testing.

© Do not donate blood. semen. tissues. or organs.

@ Know the signs and symptoms of AIDS infection.

@ For IV drug users, where to seek treatment for druq abusc.

© Infected women must l;now that the AIDS virus can be transmitted to unbom
babi¢ s and to newbomns. Female partners of those at increased risk or infected must
b¢ aware of the need to be tested to assistin family planning.

©® For those infected, inform past and present sexual partners Avoid sexual contact

that may transmit the virus to others. The only certain way to ensure that others witl
not be infected is to abstain from sex.

0. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED BY HEALTH WORKERS
(AS APPROPRIATE):

©® The basic facts about AIDS (transmission, diagnosis. signs and symptoms, high risk
behavior).

& Curre.at public health recommendatio.is.
® How to interpret the test.

® The need to hold test results and diagnosis confidential in accordance with relevant
laws.

#» How best to cooperate with local public heaith autho~ties in surveillance and pre-
vention of AIDS virus infections.

® How to manage AIDS patients clinically.

©® How to counsel persons about infection and where to refer high risk individuals and
people with AIDS virus infections.

n
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©® Curmrent resserch findings.

® Appropriste infection control measures, including nsks of needlestick injuries
which present a small but serious risk of virus transmission.

® Which isolation procedures or restrictions of visitors are or ars not necessary.

® Where to get aGd.tional information for medical professionals, patients and persons
caring for the AIDS .-nents at home.

12
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. COMPONZNTS OF THE PLAN

A. ACTION MATRIX
B. ACIIONSTEPS
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A, ACTION MATRIX

AIDS INFORMATION/EDUCATION
® FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

fce

PHS TASK FORCE
(==

ADAMHA

L]

#DA

HRSA

OASH - OMH

® STATE AXD LOCAL

STATE HEALTH AGEK IES

STATE ORUG ABUSE AGENCIES
STATE EDUCATION AGENCIES

STATE LAW ENFORCELLENT AGENCHES
LOTAL AGENCIES

®  VOLUNTARY ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL INFORMATION EDUCATION COALITION
NATIONAL EDUCATION COALITION
NATIONAL HEALTH ORGANIZATIONS
NATIONAL AIDS ORGANIZATIONS

EDUCAT IONS

Mne (v ONS
NATIONAL P 10F ESSIONAL OXGANIZATIONS
NATIONAL R “LIGIOUS ORGAMIZATIONS
NATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATIONS
COCAL AFFILIATES COUNTERPARTS

®  COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

® PRIVATE € TERPRISE

COM AGENCY

ATIONAL BUSIN $% ASSOCIATIONS
NATIGNAL LABGA ORCANIZATIONS
NATIONAL MEDIA

BUSINESSES THAT S YOUTH SCHOOLS, HEALTH

LOCAL AFFILIATES
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8. ACTION STEPS

1.0PUBLIC

An informed public provides the basis upon which other information/education pro-
grams operate. Information must be provided through s variety of channels: televi
sion, radio, press, posters, leaflets, advertisements, and personal appearances. This
effort must be closely coordinated and sustained over a long period of time. Groups
specifically spotlighted include teenagers, young adults, parents, minorities, and
opinion leaders.

16
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WHAT: inform and Educate
THE PUBLIC

*HOTLINES
*COALITiIONS
*AD CAMPAIGN
sCLEARINGHOUSE

—
/.;onmss PARENTS
SCHOOL & HIGH RISK HEALTH
COLLEGE AGED PERSONS WORKERS

TEENAGERS &
YOUNG ADULTS OPINION LEADERS

NOT IN SCHOOL

17
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© FEOERAL GOVEANMENT

FCC

PHS TASY. FORCE
coc

ADAMHA

L

FOA

HASA

OASH - OWH

® STATE AND LOCAL

STATE HEALTH AGENCIES

STATE DRUG ABUSE AGENCIES

STAVE /PRIVATE EOUCATION AGENCIES
STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES
LOCAL AGENCIES

®  VOLUNTARY ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL INFORMATION EDUCATION CLALITION
NATIONAL EOUCATION COALITION

NATIONAL HEALTH ORGANIZATIONS

NATIINAL A:0S ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL EOUCATION ORGANIZATIONS
NATJONAL MINORITY ORGANIZATIONS
NATIONAL PROFESSIONAL CRIANIZATIONS
NATIONAL RELIGIIUS ORGANIZATIONS
NATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATICNS

LOCAL AFFILIATES COUNTERPARYS

©  COLLECES AND UMIVERSITIES

© PRIVATE ENTERPNISE
NATIONAL COMIUNICATIONS AGENCY
NATIONAL BUS! {ESS ASSOCIATIONS
NATIONAL LALOR ORGANIZATIONS
NATIONAL MEOIA
BUSINESSES THAT SERVE YOUTH, SCHOOLS, HEALTH
LCCAL AFFILILTES
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1.0ruBLIC
LEAD PHS COLLABORA..NG BEQINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS OATE
.11, Enter into contract with e myor coc State & local 6/87
nstionsl sdvertng agency and heaith denert-
CBITY OUt Mess mecha campesgns (TV & ments & prvate
8o spots, posiers, prnt, ads, ornganzstions
atc) st nationsl and locai levels
1.1.2 Meet with major public [os124 AIDS orjamzations, 2/87
and prvate sector orgamzstons private, professor.al,
to provde & coslition for & voluntary organi-
mmma 2tions.
1.13.  Distnbute the Surgeon G i's coc State health 85/86
Repert on AIDS, PHSVideo tapes a3 departments,
28 pudlicatrons and &a.vate
Service snnouncements prepared in organizatons,
collsboration with the. Red Cross snd
other organszatione.
1.14. Explon the sffectiveness of direct coc 2/87
maikng a8 an sppropriate method of
prowding AIDS nformation: to the
pubke.
1135, Provide a clearinghouse to respond coc t.ate X local 8/87
10 the public's nformational needs & prnivate
for the most current & accurste
information on AIDS.
118,  Provide s nationally svaiatie hot- coc 85
fine.
1.1.7. Issue press relesses & public infor- ANPHS 83
mation matenuls to provide curent agencns
wof to the public throug!
the news media.
1.1.8.  Work with national & jocal pnait ARPHS 83
meds 10 a8t M accuate snencies
reporting on AIDS,
1.1.9 Comph generic ongoing ADS NH Nationat, State. 87/88
/od P to (NHLBD o dlocal organc-a-
stimulate £ redeposit of blond by tions representing
olective surpery patents and transfusers, col-
incresss” Lisod donatons by lectors, and fonors
hesithy donoes. of blood.
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2~ SCHOOLAN" COLLEG.E AGED POPULA IONS

The Pubke Health Service has e responsibisity 1o provide clesr and sczurate information about AIDS to
all segments of our society. in par-culsr, our youth must understand that sexusl activity snd IV drug
sbuse can lea. to AIDS. Engaging i sexusl activity with multipiq partrers, both heterosaxual and homo-
saxusl, incresses the probabikity of contracting AIDS in the United States, to date, homosexust practices
ndNmmmmmmmlotspnodolws.M.wyo'rthmustmwm-
tion sbout the disssse, how the AIDS virus is transmitted, and how 0 praveatnfection with this virus.

TMPuincmSGvic:wilprovidomﬁomlSmo.Mlocdcdua!mwithup-!oodtu.lmdms
information. Stat~ and locas school boards, aleng with famlies, community, and parent groups have the
primary re ponsibikty for 8d ,tmvounq.l!islmthmgmm!odﬂmimhowbnﬂodssmﬁ-
nate this information in the most effectrva fashion, with consideration of their own values snd concems,
to schieve the goal of prev-=ating AIDS among our youth.
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WHAT: Inform and Educate

SCHOOL &COLLEGE AGED

*CLEARINGHOUSE
*TEACHER TRAINING
*EDUCATIONAL COALITION
*CURRICULA DEVELOPMENT
* STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS

SECONDARY
ELEMENTARY 3°"‘°°’~3
SCHOOLS
cou.eees s
umvensmss

e8]
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20 $"HOOL AND COLLEGE AGED

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

Fce

PHSTASK FORCE
coc

ADAMRA

N

FDA

HRSA

OASH  OMN

STATE AND LOCAL

STATE HEALIH AGENCHS

STATE DRUG ABUSE AGENCIHS
STATEARIVATL EOUCATION AGENCIES
STATE CAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES
LOCAL AGENCIES (ep. 3CHOOL F JARDS)

VOLUNTARY ORGAMIZATONS

NATIONAL INFORMATION EQUCATION COALITION
NATIOHAL EQUCATION COALITION
NATIONAL HEALTM ORGANL \TIONS
NATIONAL ANOS ORGANIZATIONS
NATIONAL EDUCATION ORGANIZ ATIONS
NATIONAL MINORITY ORGANIZATIONS

» TIONS
NATIONAL RELIGIOUS ORGANIZA (I0NS
“IATIONAL YOUTHORGANIZATIONS
LOCAL AF FILIATES. COUNTERPARTS

COLLENES ANG UMVERSITIES

PRIVATE ENTEIRPRISE

NATIONAL COMMURICATIONS AGENCY

NATIONAL SUSINESS ABSOCIATIONS

NATIONAL L/LORDRGANII A1 IONS

NATIONAL MEDIA

RUSINESSES THAT SERVE YOUTH, SCHOOLS, HEALTH
LOCAL AFFILIATES
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Schoo! Health Education to Pre + £'DS
2.1 Primary snd Secondary Schools
LEAD PHS COLLABORATING BEGINNING

TASKS £ \ENCIES ORGANIZATIONS OATE

FARKN Develop snd dissemmate guideines coC Natonal pudlic, 12/86
for effective school healin education private. profes-
sbout AIDS. sional, & voluntary

organrations &
State & local depart-
ments of sducstion
& beaith

232, Convens a nationsl coskbon for cocC Natonal public, 9/87
8chool hesith education about AIDS private. profes.

20nal, & voluntary
orgaruzations & State
&local departments
of educaton & hesith.

213 Work with relevant coC Natonal pubkc, 8/86
national orginizations to help privats, profes-
schools provsde effective heaith sional & voluntary
education sbout AIDS organizations & Stste

& local departments
of education & hee.th.

214, Waork with sppropnate national cocC National public. 9/87
ommubons 0 assure that Black private. profes-

and Hupanic school ac  youth sonz” & voluntary
receive sffeci:ve sducs on about organizathons & Stats
AlIDS. departments of education
& heslth.

218 W.urk with sn appropriste coc National public, 9/87
natwonsl organzation to he o pavate, profes-
colieges of sducaton provide sional, & voluntary
preserce and ins vice organizations, um-
teacher trsiming about AIDS. versitios, & State &

local departments of
education & heatth.

238, Workwtheneppr. ‘e cocC National public. 9/87
natonal xgenization to . eip sl private. profes-
State deartments of sducaton sional, & voluntary
provide effective sducstion sbout orgunizations & State
AIDS. & local departments

of education & heslth
23
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LEAD PHS CILLABORATING BEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE
217, Work with the State end local
school systems with the tughest coc National pubke, 9/87
incidence of AIDS t0 help schools orivats, profes-
in these States provide effective sional, & voluntary
eaducatron sbout ATDS, organizations & Stats
departmaents of education
& haalth.
2.18. Establish snd continuously update sn coc Nationas! public, 4/87
d, rized bebliography private, profes-
of relevent sducational matenals, sionsl & voluntery
prog h, and organizations & State
departments of sducation
& heslth.
219, Asreq d, provide technicel coc National public, 9/37
sesatance to providers of slementary private, profes-
3chool hesith education programs to slongl & voluntary
help elerrantsry school tesc.ers peo- i &
vide etfective sducation sbout AIDS State departments
. of educstion & hesith.
2110  As provide technical coC National public. 9/817
to . d privats, profes-
mmmwm sional & voluntary
organizations, & Stats
mmmmms
tion & heesith.
211t Assist relevant public snd private- coC Nationsl public 3/87
20Ctor Orgenizations to develop and private, profes-
Mnluuumacuvm sionsl & voluntary
and effective sducationsi matenals organizations, &
that could be used by schools, State departments
colleges, and other sgencies thet of education & hesith.
sarve youth.
2112 Developanddiss. siraess coc National public, 12/87
d "] private, profes-
of materisls, progress, activities, ~ sonsl & voluntary
and resources.
State
of educstion & hesith.
2.1.13  Develop, fisld test, and di 0 coc Nationel pubkic, 9/87
88 requested instruments that can be rivate, profes-
ueed to messure the quaity & slonal & voluntsry
outcomes of sducation sbout AIDS. -
sites, & State
depsrtments of educe-
tion & neeslth.
2.1.14  Plen o nationst survey of coc National public, 12/87
socondary school students privats, profes-
knowledge sbout AIOS, sionsl & voluntary
unhiver-
sities, & State
of educs-
£on & hesith.
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Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

\‘1

24

284




2.2 Colleges and Univernsities

LEADPHS COLLABORATING BEGINNING

TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE
221, Work rith sn spprepriste coc National public, 9/87

Ad.onsl organation to help private, profes.

colleges snd uriversities provide slonal, & voluntary

effective health education sbout organizatens & uni.

AIDS for theh students. versites

28
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2.3 Other Ageroies That Serve Yeuth

LEAD pHS COLLABOAATING BEGINNING

TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE
231 Work with loca! education coc Local & State o/87

& ather sgencies that serve youth in educstion & hestth

Citios with the highest incidence of departments & other

AIDS 10 assure that agencies the* serve

tions who stiend, snd who do notsttend, youthinhign sk

schoole or coleges in the sres receive cities.

effective education sbout AIDS.
232. Work with the education depertments coc Local & State 9/87

and other sgencies that serve youth education & hesith

In three cities anct one State departments & other

with the highest incidencs of AXDS sgencies that serve

1o develop & moc’ §syster: to assure youth in high risk

that school-spe populstions, both

those who attend end who do not sttend

schools or colleges in the eres, receive

sffective atucation sbout AIDS snd to

serve 88 trainng end demonstration

centers,
233. Support the sttendence ot at hyast coc Local education 967

300 representatives from locel & and heaith depart-

State scducation departments to attend ments snd other

the regional training & agancies that sarve

centers. youth in hegh risk

cites.

2866




3.0 PERSONS AT INCREASED RISK OR INFECTED -
Prevention snd control of AIDS will depend upon fully pling the i of the
virus smong those persons whose behaviors or theic circumstances nut them and others at high nsk
of infection.

27
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WHAT: inform and Educate
PERWONS AT INCREASED RISK OR INFECTED

*HOTLINES
* TESTING &
COUNSELING
eDRU TREATMENT
e HE. RR PROGRAMS

iV DRUG
ABUSERS

we®
¢ 85 veY
"“\\5&?“" PROSTITUTES
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3.1 Gay and Bisexusl Men

Most of the AIDS cases have been smong gay or bi exusl men. National snd community gay orgsnizations
m&zd.mbdmmucmﬁﬁmumms.Smoh%nmmnmmtom

educationsl services tc gay and bisexusl men. Continued collsd

sentisl t0 icate effectively and remforce the AIDS risk reduction ressages.
LEAD PHS COLLABORATING BEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE
3.1, O P throug perath coc Selected local 12/85
innovative ways e change hesith depts.
sexual and other behewors to mini- scademic
mivg rigk of infection. insttutions
and communty
organizations.
312 [ through o 50N pro- coc Selected State 9/85
Jects in 6 lerge communides, andlocal
stfectveness of comprehensive pro- govemments.
orame of public informatoon, health
education of risk groups, snd One-on-one
heADSwns.
313 Award 55 cooperative sgreement funds coc State & local 5/868
10 States to build therr capacity for govemnments.
hesith educaton snd isk reduction
actvities including:
® counseling sex periners of persons.
who sre ADS virus sntibody posst.ve
©® prowding pre- snd post- test counsel-
ing for those conmdering serologic
esting
® providing fiscal support for heaith
education performed by communty AIDS
S0rACe groups
@ providing heslth educstion to change
soxusl
[ g the nesds of Qgroups
forint garding svoid of
beh tv
® funding hotlines to give information
and education to gay snd bisexusl men s
weoll 33 t0 the genersi public
@ coordinets public information, hesith
oducaton of risk groups, snd individust
Sounsaeling etforts st the State level
30
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3.21V Drug Abusers

Most of the IV drug sbusers who have developed AIDS reside in New York, California, Florida, New Jersey,
and Taxse. However, infection with the AIDS virus 1 kel 10 eocur in sny locality in which IV drug sbusers
shere needies snd syringes and/or are sexuslly active. Because an infected IV drug abuser can infect
his/her sex pertnerfs), this becomes 8 major route for introducing the AIDS virus into the heterosexusl
populstion. IV drug sbusers sre difficuit to reach because of the covert nature of their IV drug sbuse. Enroll-
mentin e programis en step in providing IV dn*) sbusers with AIDS related r:3k reduc-
mmmmmmmmmmnw
mmmmmmmmeMMmmtgmm

ment clinics, family nlsnning clinics, hospital outpetient clinics, front clinics, private phy
LEAD PHS COLLABORATING BEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE
32.1. 3 ion of drug sbuse ADAMHA State Heelth Depts. 7/88
copacity snd AJDS virus sntibody
weling.
322, O P of d o ADAMHA State Drug Abuse, 11/88
ol ¥ drug sbuee.
323. Training drug sbuse counselors to ADAMHA 3/88
providk ing coc
concemning AIDS virus sntibody testrng.
324, Evelugtion of educations! efforts Medical Centers, 11/88
indk ing riek-taking ADAMHA Universites. 9/88
d ms.&n- Y
325. Disseminstion of materisls on tiek cDC State Heslth Depts, 5/88
factors for AIDS targeed to public ADAMHA State Drug Abuse.
heshh personnel snd to high risk HRSA
grovpe.

n
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3.3 Hemophiliacs

Persons with hemophilia who have bec:. infected with the AIDS virus can infect their sex partners.
Hemophiliecs and thew sex partners need counsaling on how to reduce possible virus trensnussion snd
orf behaviorsl changes siready adopted. The National Hemophika Foundation is sssisting Comp,
hensive Hemophilis Trestment Centers (CHTC) in providing heaith education/risk reduction prog: to
hemophiliecs in thew respective locsities.

LEADPNS COLLABORATING BEGINNING

TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE
33a. Awsrd funds to regionst hemophikis HASA National and 9/868

centers to ensble prowsion of coc repionsl

speciefired risk reduction coungeing organizations.

relatec’ to AIDS, and to provide

0ne-on-on ing to and

their spouses sbout weys to reduce

transmigsion through safer sex

practices.
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24 Porsons Knowe To Be infected

Parsons who leem of their infection with the AIDS virus tan reduce the kkelihood of further transmission
of the virus. These individuals may have been diagnosad with AIDS or lesmed through antbody testing of
their exposure 10 the virus. State and local heskh departrivents offer one-on-one counseling to these indi-
wvidusls. Community orgsnizations, drug sbusa trestment programs. and community mental hesith services
offer heslth educaticn/risk reduction snd counseling programs.

LEAD PHS COLLABORATING BEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ONRGANIZATIONS DATE
34.3. Awsrd cooperstive sgreements to (=2 o Stote & local 5/85
States to provic's pre- and post- govemments,
counseling, testing.
and dissamination of informaton
about the sveilebility of such
services.
342, Provide sssistance 10 ¢ State & local 5/88
community AIDS setvice groups ADAMHA govemments,
& drug sbuse tresiment programs to drug abuse
help petients known to be sero- trestment programs,
understand and accept
i reoponsiblities 10 reduce
tranemission by sdoptng 89p 0~
priste scx practices, elimi
nesdie sharing. and refrein from
donsting biood, semen, or Orgens.
343. Provide couneeling.  .sting, and cDC State & local 5/85
where desmed sppr. Jnste sex ADAMHA govemments,
portnac referral forthe . ¢ drug sbuse
portners of people known to be trestmer.t programs.
SHOPONitive.
344, Supp del programs o provid NH Blocd centers 9/85
acaquste mformation and support NHLB) & community

for blood donors found to be
Infecied with the AIDS virus.

33
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3.8 Femasle $ox Partners of Those at incressed Nisk or infected

Tmmpumomoummdﬁmmwsmmatmwmuolwocm.mmwwm
mmmwuxmmmpmmmﬂ.Wummmume
mnvarmmolhlocﬁmmpuwmynmtfhoymymomkmmmmmmmu
mwmummmmmmwsmwquMWmm
whn. are at i d risk should i hng from faciities that provide them health cera service,
e, family planning s, health dep ts, hospits! outpatient clinics, and drug sbuse centers.

LEAD PHS COLLABORATING BEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANI7ATIONS DATE
35.1. Award cocperstive sgreement funds to coe State & local 5/85
provide one-on-cne ing of governmenty
fomaies whose 8¢1usl partners may be
in risk gre ups, or who sre known to
be seroposve.
352 Encourage women who think thew sex (3.4 State & local 5/88
partners may be st incressed nsk or ADAMHA govemmaents,
infected 10 use exsting counsehng commumty 9/87
and service sites for pre- and post. organizations
counsshng sbout serciogic testng
353 [+ P and dis. 0 coc State & local 5/88
sbout safer sex practices to women ADAMHA governments,
who may be sex partners of persons. commumty 9/87
in hegh nek groups, but who elect organizations
1ot to seek 0ne-0n-0ne counsehng
354 Intiate demonstrat:on projects to ADAMHA Community 9/87
identify female sexus! pariners of organizetions
drug sbusers; encoursge serologic
testng. and reduce nsk.taking
3585, initute demonstration progects to coc State & local /87
reduce pennatal transmission ADAMHA governments,
selected high mcdence sreas, by commumty 9/87
intensi nd lng to organizations.
women who are sex partners of those
atincreased risk of infected.
358 Educste health care providers to coc State & local 5/85
actively sesess the risk status of HRSA govemnments,
women, intorm them of existing ADAMHA drug sbuse treate
hng and testmg ment programs
#and counsel them about safer sex
practices,
357 Determmne a1d address the special o010 State & locs! 5/86
needs of mmnonty women for health governmaents,
o ig and g drug abuse treate 9/87
to reduce risk ment programs.
34




3.6 Prostitutes and Their Clients

Prostitutes are st incressed nsk of sn AIDS virus infaction because thay have muitiple sex partners. snd
some sE:ars needies 8nd synnges while abusing IV drugs. Ther clients are also at inCressed nsk

LEAD PHS COLLABORATIKG BEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE
38.1. Awrd cooperative sgreements to States (o104 Steta & locad 5/88
10 provide general healith educaton aovemnmaents.
and 0Ne-0n-one tounselng to Prosti-
tutes and other women wnth mulbple sex
partrers.
382, Encoursge prosttutes 10 utikize ex- coe State & local 5/8¢
Isting sites for pre- and pos.- communty
counsehng and 3erologe testing ovganzetions.
3e83. Initigte Gemonsiration projects ADAMHA Communty 9/87
10 identfy prostitutes who are IV organizations.
drug sbusers or sre sexuslly
lnvoived wrth IV drug sbusers.
SNCOUrSQge Sacciogic testing. snd
reduce risk-taking behaviors.
364, Provide information 10 the general cocC Strta & loce! 538
publc, and targeted heaith education governmants.
Nessages to the users of prostitutes.
regading the nsh of female 10 male
transmission.
3
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4.0 HEALTH WORKERS

Health workers must be prepared to sdd f d p * hestth needs and to counsal. or refer for
hng. those infacted with the AIDS virus to reduce the infected p ° nsk of transinitting the
virus to others.

Hesith work o @ msjor ch i for providing AIDS mnt ion to the patient. sex
partners of the patient, friends and family membaecs of the patient, silied haaith care workers. as well 28
*he public.

Soma health cars workers by virtus of their ion reed to be inf d thet there is some risk,
sibeit small, of infection.
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WHAT: inform and Educate
HEALTH WORKERS

HOW:

*CLEARINGHOUSE
» TRAINING CENTERS
* IN-SERVICE TRAINING

PHYSICIANS & DENTISTS & ALLIED HEALTH
NURSES HYGIENISTS WORKERS

7
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4.8 HEALTHWORKERS

& FEDIRAL GOVERWMEINT

L

k
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»00

o>
L ]

(1273 [ ] [ ]
OASH « OWM

& STATS AND LOCAL

STATE HEALTH AGENCIES

STATE OAUG ABUSE AGENCIES
STATE EOUCATION AGENCIES

STATE LAW ENFORCIMENT AGENCIES
LOCAL AGENCIES

s> 8>
o> > 00

®  YOLUNTARY ORGANLIATIONS

T NAL INFORMATION EDUCATION COALITION
MNATIONAL EOUCATION COALITION

NATIOMAL HEALTH ORGANIZATIONS
MATIONAL A0S ORGANMTATIONS

MINOATTY .

HATIONAL PROFE SIONAL DRAGANIZATIONS sl ™ oleja

(]
NATIONAL YOUTH OAGAMZATIONS
LOCAL AFEILIATESTOUNTERPARTS ' oj®|a

COLLEGES AND UMVERNITIES [ ] . el

® MUIVATE INTEAPANE

AGENCY ry
RATIONAL SUCINESS ASOCIATIONS
RATIONAL LASOR ORGAMIZATIONS
NATIONAL BMEDIA ]
BUBINESIIS THAT STAVE YOUTH SCHOOLS. HEALTH ®
LOCAL AFEILIATES .
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4.1 Frysiciens and Nurses

MNWMowommMMwlmmmmmmm.
resserch, and riek reduction information to care for persons infected with AIDS and to setve o8 a commusi-
ty information They sleo require sppropriate Messsges for thoss with Dositive sntibody tests for
the AIDS virws and for sex snd needie-sharing partners snd family members of infected persons. This
9°oup will need 10 be informed of steps they can take 1o reduce thelr own risk of infection. Pubkic, private,
hospital, 3nd non-hospitsl personnel are inciuded in this group. Special smphasis will be given to resching
minority heelth professionsis end p:oviders who serve minority patients, particulary minority women.

LEADPHS COLLABORATING STOINNING
TASKS AGENCHS ORGANIZATIONS OATE
[ARN Plon 8 survey 10 determine whet coc Americen m
pegiowiciens snd 08/GYN ganersi Medical
imermists, ond other Associstion
sround the couniry now
shout AIDS ond idensly aress where
Information etferts should be
412 Plan 3 survey of physicien N Georgetown [T 2]
ling p nd & ) NAD)} University.
413, Encoursge the efforts of professional NH Public & private 67
Srganizations thet serve MwAONLes INWAD} orgsagstions,
nd 0rganiee sympesis.
414, Develop the Collsberstive ADS HRSA Pubkc & privete /87
Educaton Training Center Program organizstions .
0 troin physicians, nursen, and
other haolth Care prefessonasle
hess who will irsin ethers.
418 Spencer outresch conference N Universdies, 7183
for hookh care werkan. SAD) Hospitsls.
418 Encoursge physicien and surgeon [ Notionat & State 88
refervel of sloctive surgery NHLSY professional
potiants for predepesst of blooJ organizetons.
for Senafusion;
increses use of other forme of
tronstusion; end
PeduCEOn of UNNECessery trant-
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4.2 Dontiets and Hyplonists

Dentists, dentel hygienists, and dental technicians sre at a small theoretical occupstionst risk of being in-
focted by the AIDS virve.

LEAD PNS COLLABORATING BEAINNING

TASKS AOENCHS ORGANIZATIONS OATE
424, Plan 3 survey 10 300008 the ADDS- N Public snd 2000

relored otindes, ond NOR) private

infechion contrel prechoes of orgenizstions.

@oniel core Providers and use this

(] 10 plon on od

progrem.
422 Oevelep sducations! proge on L Public snd 387

ADS for dentists snd susiliery NOR) privete

i designed to meet J coC organizetions.




4.3 Alied Heslth workers

Aled hesith work such ss 9 dics! service p 1, hemophilia chnic staff. methadone
ond othe. mmmmmm and sor.s! service workers, plumadonmonccnmw~
sonml, medical technologists and hosoitsl lab y r.ta’f requi ion about ASDS and
work procedures that d d fear and enth pational safaty skils.
LEAD PHS COLLADORATING BEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE
4231 Provida the lstest AIDS information coc Public snd 9/85
and safety recommendations to profes- private
sionel organizatiors. onganizstions.
432. 8 Qb NG Prog ADAMHA State snd 3/88
10 traln representatves of more locel
then 500 agencies on how to govemments,
establish, conduct and evaluste public snd
outresch to intravenous drug users pavate
‘who 31 not undhee trestment to organizatons
s increass swareness of AIDS snd high
risk behaviors and rentorce adopton
of risk reduction mesewn s
433, Conduct 30 AIDS regions! ADAMHA State snd 3/88
workshops for drug sbuse counselors focal
and administrators n States that governements.
have not yet had many cases of AIDS
434. Conduct t9 courses in current AIDS coC Pubbc heaith, 6/82
lsboratory techmgies. hospital &
prva‘e tsbora-
tones & blood
banks.

41

. ERIC 30

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




IV. APFENDICES

A

ACCOMPLISHMENTS THROUGH
DEC. 31, 1986

LIST OF PHS AVAILABLE MATERIALS

GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS
FOR FEDERAL ORGANIZATIONS
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APPENDIX A

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

All PHS sgencies have participated in AIDS-related pubkic inf ion and ed: activi-
tes. Efforts have simed st the four groups:

1.0 The Public

2.0 School and College Aged Populstions
30 P sthn d Risk or infected

40 Heslth Workers

Spectfic activities simed at reaching each of these groups are described in the following
pages. Fraquently one activity ioned in one s dd: more than one grovp;
however, the sctivities have not been repeated.

313
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1.0 THEPUBLKC
Amtsszmmummwmmmtmwcmuw
] ion to American pubkc. P d and ged press g hetero-
sexusl trangmission of AIDS, develop ouns* mmmms
and the workplace, PHS dations 1o px perinatel i progress in
h 1o deveiop therapies and » vacemw, 'S dations to reduce sexusl

MMMMMMMMMWI«ADSWIM
tion units, snd the announcement of evidence that azidothymidine (AZT'} prolonged sur-
vivel in some AJDS patients.

B. Released a report from the Surgeon Ger.eral of the PHS 1o the general public on the pre-
mumsto«mtsw The report is being dissemi  »d to the public through

is. Television public tS & ..4wS reports advertise
ovaiabityolnpon.(OASH)

C.Established snd d 8 nations! toll-free AIDS hotiine (1983-present) available to
the public. As of Novemnber $986. the hotline was contracted to the Americen Social
Healtt Association, » vendor with relsted hotline/ h axperi {€oC)

D.Provided funding for a8 Nationsl Conf on AIDS in the Black Community (July
1986) Devdopodmddumudwmumr and radiwo releases on AIDS nationwide

y medis; p d Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report (IMMWR) s ti-
doonADSmnmorm(PHS)

E. Es hed AIDS sp b in four States—Californis, Texas, Pennsyivania. snd
m-wammmmmwuwuamumn
pilot project in which local phy re trained to p inf ion snd risk reduc-

mmmmSmeuxmmmmmmmu
essily and widely sdaptable for use in st States. (OASH)

F. Developed a mass media campaign with the Americsn Red Cross, including television
public service snnouncements, 8 poster promoting the AIDS hotline, and a series of 10
pemphlets for various targeted audiences. (OASH)

G.Wrote snd distnbuted widaly tlncounw AIDS pubﬁclhons—‘Fu’sAbom
ADS"ADShfmboan.m % AIDS b igned and displsyed
exhibirs at major medical d AIDS videotsp lonhc ¥ public
Momwcmmhwolmsmm

H. Established Comprshensive C v-Based AIDS Risk Reduction, Heslth Education
and P jon D 2 Pronmnmemu.Abmy(NY)ChmoMDalu
ma. m:«co».mmtcnws.mowm Projects will produce prototype,

commnnymbonmmmleumADSwvsmmsbn
th h ed: duction efforts. Four projects are into their second yesr of fund-
hg.tmmfmlmdodeomombu!SBG (cocC}

B/ by & . wee of vade doss noly ythey S
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20 SCHOOL AND COLLEGE AGED POPULATIONS

AC ¢ from rel | to develop guidelines for

offective school hestti: educabon sbout AIDS. The Quidsknes will later be distnbuted
through appropriate channels. (CDC)

B. 'Norked with the Heslth insurance Associstion of America and the A Council of
Life insurance t0 develop educationa’ ials for ado} t« These ials are to
be used fur junior and senior high school students (CDC)

C Worked with the indisns Department of Health snd ind University to develop a
manual on AIDS for students snd teachers. (CDC)

D. Utilized = computenzed system (CHID) for an d dium of ials, zi0-
grams, mmwdmmmnewldbousodbvwhools colleges, and other agen-
cies that serve youth to provide effective education about AIDS. (CDC)

47
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30 PERSONS AT INCREASED RISK OR INFECTED

A.Awarded nf son snd education program grants t0 the six largest AIDS mortudity
sreas (Los Angeles, New Jerssy, New York City. Florida, Texss. snd San Francisco).
begwning in FY 84 Actrvitres includ: to ity org ions in delivering
hesith education and risk reduction Messages o groups at risk, Supp t for the creati

Mmmwﬁmmolwmﬁmmmtogmmauhkwtom
general populstion. (COC)

8. Established AIDS P jon Augmentation Projects in 18 selected cities and States
wnhaswmtwswommmhctmmﬂmlmdstommtmom
mszmmknducﬁmu\thhodmﬁmmmwmummm
of these prevention programs. (CDC)

C.Established Community-based AIDS Prevention/Risk Reduction/Hesith Education
c;podtvmlo?miocuhﬂsmu.mm1980.Thtmoioctmaswilobuin
baseline data on AIUS virus infection and the AIDS probk in their ities, analy
the Y d to AIDS, send pisn goals, objectives, and activities for
20 AIDS nsk reduction/prevention program. (COC)

. Colisborated with the U.S. Conference of Mayors to increase knowledge and influence
mmmmm:«mumsmmmmmhwun-
tivities include awarding grants to eight community-based organizetions to provide AIDS
sducation for high risk groups; and producing the bi thiy jatter, “AlDS Informa-
tion "

ge,” which is circulated to cities d the country. (CDC)

E. Funded 55 agencies. vis cooperative agreements, 10 establish “Counseling and Testing”
sitas beginning in © 25, The puep of this prog! is 10 enable State and loca! hesith
departmants t0 Cou. “t parsons at increased risk for AIDS virua infection, test the anti-
bodystomof.pmanp.opb.u\deomsdthmwhoanmsmmubodvpoﬁ-
tive. {CDC)

F. Funded | A0S Risk Reduction Projects (o eval unique and innovative risk
reduction, preventon, snd/or health ed: trvities for selected high nsk groups.
mmmw-xsmnnmm,umovmwhw».m
Men’s Health Crisis INY), Ohio Department cf Haaith (OH). AID Atlanta (GA), AIDS Project
Lotmmm(CA).mmoﬁcavldDmoRmmh.lm.(NY).mdanmbrulModiul
Center (NV). ({COC)

G.Developed an i gency &g t to provide AIDS risk reduction, health education
Mpnvuvﬁonmmnslmmlmnophkpowhmuwodbyknimﬂmmophnb
owmmrm:cﬂmmt.cm

H.Provided risk reduction counseling 10 gay and bisexusl men participating i natural his-
tory studies being conducted in San Franci: Los Angeles, Chicago, daltimore, snd Pit-
tsburgh. INH)

memdmummmmmmmmamsm

AIDS and persons demonstrating high risk behavior for AIDS through a grants progrem.
mmmmmmhwmmmmmknmcﬁonm
for AIDS virus seropositive end seronegative p ways 0 ge drug sbusers
10 enter treatment, factors that influence gay men’s complience or nori-complisnce with
safe sex recommendstions, snd effects on undergoing AIDS health educstion sessions
upon risk reduction and other behaviorsl chang g P in high risk status.
(ADAMHA) as

306
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J. Funded grants to develop strategies for hung and modifyng behavior of IV drug
3busers not in treatment. (ADAMHA)

K. Worked with the blood banks and plasma on prog! to inform p -
creesed risk for AIDS that they should refram from d (FOA).

LPmidodn'Wﬁuu!obloodwplcmcoloctimcenlmolnmloulﬂo
reduce the risk of transmitting the AIDS virus through the transfusion of blood or
plssma. (FDA)

49
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4.0 HEALTH WORKERS

AWMhMolmmmuo&wmwymmww
hundrede of peer raviewed scientifsc and other srticles on AIDS. (PHS)

8. Sponsored in 10 LS. cities 18 conferences designed to provide the {azsst information
about AIDS to hesith care workers {October 1983-October 1986). These confersnces
addressed the epidemiciogy. pathogenssis, and immunology of the disssse, s well s
related paychosocisl, economic and socis! issues. in addition, @ number of AIDS work-
mmmmmmmwhwmmmtmwwm
mestings. (N

C.Conducted 45 comprehensive 2 %-dsy Regionsl Workshops to trein over 2,500 drug
sbuse trestment prograrn counselors snd drug sbuse treatment program sdministrators
10 counsst and manege persons with AIDS virus infection snd in b
to pravent transmission; followup tachnical assistance is being provided to 120 drug
shuse trestment agencies. A -aining guide on education, riek sssessment, snd trestment
pisnning for counselors and program sdministrators was developed, pilot tested, and
used in these workshops. in colisborstion with criminal justice and hesith cere sgencies,
AIDS training is being deliversd to 750 workers who comu lnto contact with IV drug
sbusers. (ADAMHA)

D. Advised registersd biood or plasma establishments on safe procedures for handling
blood o plasma collected from donors who are AIDS virus entibody positive. Encour-
wmmmmlammnmdmtowmmdm
reject donors with eerly signs snd symptoms of AIDS. (FDA)

E. issued @ “Desr Doctor™ letter to over 500.000 physicisns explsining the utilty of the
AIDS virus sntibody test, foklowing its kcensure in March 1985, (FDA)

F. Prepared State snd locs! health departments for AIDS virus antibody testing snd the es-
tablishment of alternate testing sites through training activities (CDC):

—Conducted 44 1-dsy seminars on AIDS virus sntibody testing in 34 cities reaching
over 7.500 professionals {rnm hesith department, blood donation centers, snd com-
munity orgsnizations concemed with AIDS,

—Conducted 35 2-day courses in 24 States 1o train personnel statfing sltemate testing
sites 10 prepare them 10 offer sensitive and effective pre- and Post-test counseling
services. An additions! 40 sessions were provided by selected Stats or local health
department personnet using COC'’s curriculum.

— Conducted 6 trainng courses on Western blot serologic tests for 112 students from

42 different States snd 3 foreig one in ELISA test methodology for
19 students representing 10 State hesith Gep! ts; » d in ELISA test
methodology was conducted in Hawsii for 16 students.

- Troined various representatives of go and 9 {aboratories to
culture AIDS virus,

G.Devaloped and disseminated recommendstions snd guidelines for the prevention of

AIDS and AIDS virus infection. These materisis 8r8 used to train hestth-care profession-
ois and others who handle snd dispose of materisis contsining AIDS virus, ~ad who need

308




O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

305

to i snd individusis with, or at risk of, infection. The guidelinas and
recommendations pubkshoe in the Morbudity and Mortality Weekly Report IMMWR) are
Sisted at the and of this appendix. (COC)

H.Funded 9 prohonsive AIDS-related prok to add the specis! | heaith
educstional needs of medical students snd othe: hesith care students and to davelop
mmmlorhwmmworkmwhomcmnﬂy providing haalth care to

A0S patients. (ADAMHA)

t Dovdopod wd dutribnmd brochures simed at health care workers, such as “Coping

AIDS;" ts to ducation efforts through pedistncians, ob-
Mridmlm Hogists, employ program staff, and college health profas-
sionals snd counselors. (ADAMHA)}

J. Supported development of an AIDS Reference Guide for Health Cace Professionals for
the Lon Angeles snd Washington, D C. sress, through the Center for Iinterdsciphnary Re-
seorch on immunologic Diseases (CIRID! at UCLA. These guides provide information
about the disesse and its transmission, as well a3 sbout local hasith care and support ser-
vices. (NH)

K. Prepared inf i kages for pati physici and ph ists in
wm.mm'umd:mbwono'klf to patients who mest the qualifying cntena
for the drug. (N0

L. Worked with dentel orgsnizations to improve infect:on control practices in dental officas.
with primary focus on preventing hepatitis B virus and AIDS virus infections. Guidalines
for dentst personnel have been issued. (CDC, NIN)

M.Produced and distributed videotsp “What If the Patient Has AIDS?" for use in educating
heeith care workers. (OASH) .

N.Wrote snd distributed AIDS publications—“Facts About AIDS" {distrnbuted widely,
including msjor supermarket chains across the country), “AlDS Information Bulletin,*
Channing Bete AIDS bookiets, etc.; designed and displayed exhibits at major medicat
mestings. {OASH)




O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

12,

13

14.

18.

306

22 AIDS GuUIDEUINES/ASCOMMENDATIONS PUBLISHED IN MMWR
bequired immy -2 Jetu. .Y 8Y e (AIDS): Pr ions for clinicat and leborstory

" statts. MMWR 1882 Nov 5;31:577-80.

Pravecion of scquired immune deficlency syndromae (AIDS): Report of intersgency
recommendations. MMWR 1983 Mar 4;32:301-03.

immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS): Precetior ) for hestth-cers workers
and aled professionsis. MMWR 1983 Sept 2;32:450-51

Prospective eveluation of hesith-core workers exposed vis PMEN‘e:T: Gr :MUCOUs-
membrane routes 1o bload and body fluids of patients with acquired immmnodeficien-
cy syndrome. MMWR 1984 Apr 6;33:181-82.

. Update: Acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) '3 persons with hemnohifis.

MMWR 1984 Oct 26:33:589-91.

Hepatitis 8 ine: Evid firning lack of AIDS trensmission. MMWR 1934
Dec 14;33:688-87.

. Provisionsl public hesith 5. ice intersgency recommendations for screening dona‘ed

biood snd plasme for antibody to the virus causing scquired immunodsficiency sin-
drome. MMWR 1985 Jan 11;34:1.5.

. Updst s: Prospective evalustion of hesith-care workers exposad vis the parents al or

MU-aus-membrane routs 10 blood or body fluids from petierts with scquired immuno-
desiclency syndrome—United States. MMWR 1985 Feb 22;34:101-03.

World Hesith Organization workshop: Conclusions and recommendations on 8cq« e
immunodeficiency syndrome. MMWR 1985 May 17;34:275-76.

Testing donors of (rgane, tissues, and semen for antibody to humen T-lymphotropic
virus type I/ lymphi denopathy iated virus. MMWR 1985 May 24:34:294.

Education and foster care of children infected with human T-lymphotropic virus ty .-
Wiymphsdenopathy-sssocisted virus. MMWR 1985 Aug 30;34:517-21.

WMMMWMWMWT-WM
virvs typs Wiymphsdenopethy loted virus from tesrs. MMWR 1985 Aug
30;34:533-34.

Update: Revissd Public Health Service definition of persons who should refrain from
donsting blood snd plssms — United States. MMWR 1985 Sep 6:34:547-48.

Updste: Evelustion of humen T-lymphotropic virus type WAymphadenopsthy-
sssocisted virus infection in hesith-cers personnel — United Ststes. MMWR 1985
Sept 27;34:575-78.

for preventing transmission of infection with humen T-
tymphotropic virus type Wiymphed y isted vius in the workplece.
m‘IDOSNW‘ISM“‘IMOM-DS
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MV«Mhmmovmwwnmoﬁm«
T-tymphotropic virus typs M/ ted virus and acquwed immu-
nodoﬁenncywmmm nssooce 34:721.26 ,731-32

. Additional recommendations 0 reduce sexusi snd drup abuse-related transmission of

humen T-tymphadenopathy-sesocisted vicus. MMWR 19868 Mer 14:35:152-58.

Recommendations for preventing transmission of infection with humen T-
lymphotropic virus typs Wlymphedenopathy-sssocisted virur during invasive proce-
dures. MAWR 1988 Apr 11,35:221-23.

&v«,ummmmmmmwmu
humen T-lymphotropic virus type Wiymphadenopathy virus ct
MMWR 1986 Apr 11;35:231.33.

Recommended infection-control practices for dentistry. MMV/R 1986 Apr 18;

35:237.42.

Disgnosis and Mansgement of Mycot risl infection and Di hPonommth

Human T.lymphotropic Virus Type tl/Lymphsdenopathy-A iated Virus Inf

MMWR 1986 July 18:35:448-52. .

Imm.nluuon of CM infocted with Human T-lymphotropic Vius Type

My pathy lated Virus. MMWR 1988 Sept 20;35.595.98 603-08,
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UST OF RECOMMENDATIONS/PUBLICATIONS ISSUED BY FDA
TO BLOOD/PLASMA COLLECTING ESTABLISHMEXTS

R datiuns %0 ¢ the risk of itting infectious diseases from blood
donors, 1982
«= Recommend sons 10 & the risk of itting Acquired I Daficiency

Syndrome (AIDS) from plesms donors, 1984.
— Source materisl used 10 menufacture certain plsems decivatives, 1984,

~ Revissd recommendstions 10 cecresse the tisk of t. itting Acquired defi
cierx y Syndrome from blood snd plasmas donors, 1984.
lon of PHS provisional recommendations conceming testing blood and

plcom for Mumv.n. 1988.
« Testing for sntibodies to HTLV-M, 1885.

« Revised definition of high risk groups with respect to Acq: ired | ficiency
smmmmmmmmnu

= Collection snd shipment of HTLV-l antibody-positive blood products, 1485.

-wwmmvmmmmmmmnmmnm
cmmvmwmmmmmmmv-umw

and its use, 1988.

- Additicnsl detions for reducing further the number of units of blood snd
plesma donsted for transfusion snd for further manufecture by persons st incressed
riok of HTLV-WLAYV infection, 1988.

AIDS information diseminated 10 medical professionals through the “FDA Drug Bulletin®
- Ressarch on AIDS ~ The FDA Drug Bulletin, December, 1982; 12{3):21.23.
—AIDS Update — The FOA Drug Bulietin, August, 1983; 13(2):9-11.

- Progress on AIDS ~ The FDA Drug Bulletin, Octobor, 1988 15{3):27-32.
AIDS inform stion dk inated to through the “FOA Consumer™ magazine.

« What the Experts Know About AIDS ~ FDA Consumer, September, 1983, pp, 15-19.
- Screening Blood Donations for AIDS -~ FDA Concumer, May, 1986, pp. 5-11.
~ AIDS Progress Report — FOA Coneumer, F>Srusry, 1986, pp. 33-36.

«=The Centuries-Old Struggle Againet lnf i ~ FDA C , April
1986, pp. 18-23.
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APPENDIX B
LIST OF MATERIALS AVAILASLE
PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE PUBLICATIONS, VIDEOTAPES. POSTERS ON AIDS
Publicatione

Ovwor Iree (single copies or in ftyl from InterAmerics R h, 1200€ North Henry
St, Alaxandris, VA 22314, Attn: Ciint Jones:

® “Surgeon Genersi's Report on Acquiiad Immune Deficiency Syndroms™—October
1mmwmwwamusmms«vauwmm
Poopls. A clesr and comprehensive explanstion of what AIDS is, how the AIDS virus is
ond is not spread. and what practical Tieps each person can teke to svoid infection
Addresses controversisl ietues 83 provides projections for the future.”

® Facts About AIDS"—Leeflet ides S¥mely, to inf lon in & questi
MWWMMWWWMW
recommaendstions for the genaral pubhc, p ot k d risk of inf , snd
Persons with positive AIDS sntibody test results.*

® “Coping with AIDS ™~ intended for hesith care work this booklet add: psy-
chological and socist considerstions in serving pecple with AIDS and others who have
besn infected by the AIDS virue.

© Lesfiots coproduced by the Public Heelth Service snd the Amencen Red Cross:
="AIDS Sex, and You*©

~“Focts About AIDS snd Drug Abuse”

~="AIDS snd Your Job ~Are Thers Risks?*

=“Gay snd Biosnusl Men snd AIDS”

="AIDS snd Children— informetion for Parents of School Age Children™
—~"AIDS and Childron.- Inf tion for Teachers snd Schoot Officiats”
~"Caring for the AIDS Petient st Home™

=¥ Your Test for Amibody 10 the AIDS Virug ie Positive .. .~

anwn:smdwhbwmmmonuammqumm for
Disssse Control, Sidg. 1, Am. B-83, 1800 Clifton Rd., Atlents, GA 30333,

Lorger queitition are for selg by Chenning L. Bete Co., inc. 100 State Rd., South Desrfield,
MA 01373; teleghone 413-885-7611. (Price per unit varies, dependng on size of order)

®  Scriptegraphic bovkiets:
=“What Everyons Should Know About AIDS™ (sls0 avellsbie in Spenish)
= “Why You Should Be informed About AIDS™ (for heelth-care workers)
= “What Gey snd Buexus! Men Should Know About AIDS ™
=="AIDS and Shooting Drugs” (for intravenous drug users, their famiy
members, and drug trestment counselors)
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Ovser the fellowing from the Netlonsl Technical informetion Service, 5286 Port Rysl Rd.
Spcingfield, VA 22181; telephone 703-487-4850:

® “Recemmendations snd Guidelines Conceming ADS Published in the Morbidity snd

guidelines concerning
AIDS snd' the werkplecs, Tecommendstions 19 prevent perinatsl trenemission of the
AIDS virvs, snd recommendations concerning educstion end foster care of AIDS-
virve-infected children. Order No. PBIS-210101. Paper copy, $7.50; microfiche,
$5.98. {Add §3 per erder fer shipping and hendling.)

® "Reports on ADS Published in the Merbidity and Mortality Weekly Report, June 1981
through Mey 1908° —Alse includes ol Public Heslth Servics recommendetions end
guidelings conceming AIDE during the steted period. Order No. PS08-211488. Paper
coCy. $8.75; microfiche, $5.95. (Add $3 per order fer sh's.ping and handling )

@ “Acquired immunodeficiency Syndrome: Legel snd Regulstory Policy,” by Wilism
Curren, Larry Gootin, ang Mary Clork, Department of H¢alth Policy Mensgement, Har-
verd School of Public Heskth. Rleport ¢f 3 study voncucted by the suthors undss con-
troct with the Public Heslth Service. Ordwr No. PBOS-248291/AS. Peper copy:
$30.95; microfiche, $8.50. (Add 53 per erder for shipping and hendiing)

Videctapes (/4. BETA 2, VHS)

To purchese tapes (355 eechl. contect the Netionsl Audiovisust Center, 8700 Edgeworth
Or. Capitol Helghts, MD 20743.370%, Attn: Customer Service Section; telephone
301.783-1998.

Yo obtain tapes on free losn, contact Modem Teking Picture Service, 5000 Purk St North,
St Potersburg, FL 33709, Arwn: Film Scheduling: (slephone 813-541.87863.

® “AlDS: Feors and Focts"~—For the generst public. Answers the most frequently seked
questions sbout AIDS: what causes it, who lg ot rish, how it is transmitted, what is
being done 10 control its spreed, end how individusls can reduce thelr risks of infec-
ton. 23 minutes.

ownnmmmr-rumm MMWM

hospital personnel. Outines the risks loted with dures invoived in
mmmmummmmmmm
mended 10 minimize these risks. 22 minvtes.

® “AIDS and Your Job®—Oeveloped for policemen, firemen, acd Othet amergency per-

sonnel Outiines the precaviions thet can be tshen to reduce the :fek of * 10
the AIDS virus on the job. 23 minutes.
Poster
Orvier froe (single copies or in quentind! fra::) inter Amed h, 1200€ North Heary
St Alexandris, VA 22314, At: Cint ~ 38:
® Four-color poster, preduced Ly the M . o Americen Red
Croes, festuring Patti LaBelle. Poster con. * e .. Do not Eeten %0 rumors
sbout AIDS. Get the fecki” and provides ¢ . 3 eamber of the Public Heslth Ser-

vice's mmmnm:nu.
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GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS FOR FEDERAL ORGANIZATIONS

ADAMHA
coc
FCC
FOA

HASA
MAID
NIDA
NIOR
NH

DASH-OMH

Akotn, Drug Abuse snd Ments! Health Adms

Centeis fcr Disease Control

Federsi Coordinating Committee (AIDS)

Food & Drug Administration

Hesith Resources snd Services Administration

Nations! Institute of Allergy and Infactious Diseases

National Institute on Drug Abuse

National institute 9' Dental Research

National institutes of Health

Dtfice of the Assistent Secretary for Health - Dffice of Minority Heatth

Pubhic Heslth Service

57
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APPENDIX 2.—MATERIAL SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD

Nationa} Association of State Boards of Education
701 N. Fairfax St., Suite 340

Alexandria, VA 22314
{703) 684-4000

March 4, 1987

Dear State Board Chair:

In January, the National Association of State Boards of Education {NASBE)
Board of Directors discussed the issue of the spread of Acquired Immune
Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) among youth, As a result of that discussion, the
Board developed a position statement recommending that state boards adopt
policies to address the need for educat -n about AIDS and its prevention, to
assure education and protection of privacy rights for young people who have the
disease, and to address the rights and privileges of school personnel with
AlDS,

The frightening statistics contained in the position statement underscores
the dimensions of the problem. You will also find enclosed with this position
statement the American Red Cross brochure, "AIDS and Children.™ NASBE is
collaborating with the Red Cross on an AIDS Educaticn program for use in middle
and senlor high schools next fall. 1Included in the program will be a short
film, student workbooks, teacher guides and a parent brochure, In addition,
Red Cross chapters will be encouraged to make the {ilm available for hame video
use,

Tha AIDS crisis, in the opinfon of medical experts, is an lmpending
catastrophe, The urgent recommendations contained in the NASBE policey
statement will help state boards recognize and meet their obligations to the
nation's young people and school personnel.

Sincerely,

Phyl%is L. Blaunstein

Phylis L. Blaunsiein
taecutive Director
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NATIONAL ASSOCTATION OF STATE BOARDS OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT ON ACQUIRED TMMINE DEFICIENCY SYNDRCME

There is & general agreement among medical experts that Acquired Immune
Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) represents an impending catastrophe. By 1991, there
are expected to be 179,000 AIDS related deaths in the United States.
Worldwide, conservative estimates put the number >f AIDS victims at 100 million
by 1990.

Medical experts and scientists assert that the majority of heterosexual
victims of AIDS will continue to be young people. The American School Health
Association projects some 2.5 million teenagers will contract a sexually
transmitted disease this year. [t is therefore critical that our youth are
educated ahout the dangers of sexually transmitted diseases and intravenous
drug use,

The National Association of State Boards of Education (NASBE) urgently
recommends that all state boards of education adopt a policy:

1. To require school districts to provide instruction regarding AIDS
that includes a full range of preventive measures youngsters can

emloy to avoid contracting the disease;

2. To assure that young people infected with AIDS have full access to
education, and their rights to privacy are protected; and

3. To address the rights and privileges of all school personnel infected
with AIDS,

O
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